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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT S

Statements contained in this Annual Report on FtPAK (this “Annual Report”yelating to plans, strategies, economic performamcktrends, projections
results of specific activities or investments atigeo statements that are not descriptions of hcstbfacts may be forwarbboking statements within the meaning
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and SecH1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.waod{ooking information is inherently subject to riskac
uncertainties, and actual results could differ mallg from those currently anticipated due to amer of factors, which include, but are not limitex] factor:
discussed under the captions “Business — GenerAllewance for Loan Losses” and “Business — GeneraMarket Area and Competition” in Item 1 belovRisk
Factors” in Item 1A below, in “Management’s Discassand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resoft®©perations — Overviewt Item 7 below, and elsewhere
this Annual Report and in other documents filedh®y Company with the Securities and Exchange Cosiamsrom time to time. Forwarkboking statements may
identified by terms such as “may,” “will,” “should;could,” “expects,” “plans,” “intends,” “anticipi@s,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “foredas’ “potential” or
“continue” or similar terms or the negative of thderms. Although we believe that the expectatiefiected in the forwardboking statements are reasonable
cannot guarantee future results, levels of actipgrformance or achievements. We have no obtigati update these forward-looking statements.

PART |

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, thedsdwve,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” are used to refer to Flushing Financial Corporatiand ou
consolidated subsidiaries, including the survivamgity of the merger (the “Merger"dn February 28, 2013 of our wholly owned subsididyshing Savings Bar
FSB (the“Savings Bank”) with and into Flushing Commerciahiik (the “Commercial Bank”)The surviving entity of the Merger was the Comnagf8ank, whos
name has been changed to “Flushing Bank.” Referefmezein to the “Bank’'mean the Savings Bank (including its wholly owngdussliary, the Commercial Bar
prior to the Merger and the surviving entity aftte Merger.

ltem 1. Business.
GENERAL
Overview

We are a Delaware corporation organized in May 1984. Savings Bank was organized in 1929 as a Neik Statechartered mutual savings bank. In 1¢
the Savings Bank converted to a federally chartenetbial savings bank and changed its name fromhiFlgsSavings Bank to Flushing Savings Bank, FSBe
Savings Bank converted from a federally charteredual savings bank to a federally chartered sta@skngs bank on November 21, 1995, at which timesifihc
Financial Corporation acquired all of the stocktled Savings Bank. On February 28, 2013, in the Meithe Savings Bank merged with and into the Congial
Bank, with the Commercial Bank as the survivingitgntPursuant to the Merger, the Commercial Bankiarter was changed to a fekrvice New York Sta
commercial bank charter, and its name was chamngédushing Bank. Also in connection with the Merge€lyshing Financial Corporation became a bank hg
company. We have not made any significant chargesit operations or services as a result of the &tefithe primary business of Flushing Financial ©cafion ha
been the operation of the Bank. The Bank owns thubsidiaries: Flushing Preferred Funding CorporatFlushing Service Corporation, and FSB Propeitie. Thi
Bank has an internet branch, iGObanking.¢onThe activities of Flushing Financial Corporatior grimarily funded by dividends, if any, receivedm the Bant
issuances of junior subordinated debt, and isssaotequity securities. Flushing Financial Corpiards common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global 3
Market under the symbol “FFIC.”

Flushing Financial Corporation also owns FlushimgaRcial Capital Trust Il, Flushing Financial CapiTrust Ill, and Flushing Financial Capital Truigt(the
“Trusts”), which are special purpose business trusts forméskte a total of $60.0 million of capital secestiand $1.9 million of common securities (which e
only voting securities). Flushing Financial Corgaa owns 100% of the common securities of the f&u$he Trusts used the proceeds from the issuaittees:
securities to purchase junior subordinated debestfrom Flushing Financial Corporation. The Trusts not included in our consolidated financial estents as v
would not absorb the losses of the Trusts if losgz® to occur.




Unless otherwise disclosed, the information presgbim this Annual Report reflects the financial dition and results of operations of Flushing Final
Corporation, the Bank and the Bank’s subsidiaries consolidated basis (collectively, the “Companifanagement views the Company as operating aesumgt —a
community bank. Therefore, segment informationds provided. At December 31, 2014, the Company thtal assets of $5.1 billion, deposits of $3.3iduil anc
stockholders’ equity of $456.2 million.

Our principal business is attracting retail deofiom the general public and investing those déptsgether with funds generated from ongoing apens
and borrowings, primarily in (1) originations andrghases of multiamily residential properties, commercial businksms, commercial real estate mortgage |
and, to a lesser extent, one-to-four family (fongsin mixeddse properties, which are properties that contath kesidential dwelling units and commercial unig)
construction loans, primarily for residential prages; (3) Small Business Administration (“SBAQans and other small business loans; (4) mortigzage surrogate
such as mortgage-backed securities; and (5) Ugrgment securities, corporate fixadome securities and other marketable securiés.also originate certe
other consumer loans including overdraft lines refdd. At December 31, 2014, we had gross loanstauding of $3,798.7 million (before the allowarioe loar
losses and net deferred costs), with gross mortigeges totaling $3,321.5 million, or 87.4% of grdsans, and nomortgage loans totaling $477.2 million, or 12
of gross loans. Mortgage loans are primarily mutinfly, commercial and one-to-four family mixede properties, which combined totaled 82.1% o$gtoans. Ot
revenues are derived principally from interest anmortgage and other loans and mortgbgeked securities portfolio, and interest and dimits on other investme
in our securities portfolio. Our primary sourcesfohds are deposits, Federal Home Loan Bank of Newk (“FHLB-NY”) borrowings, repurchase agreeme
principal and interest payments on loans, mortdeygked and other securities, proceeds from salssaufrities and, to a lesser extent, proceeds $ades of loans. C
July 21, 2011, as a result of the Dodd-Frank Wake& Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “DBdahk Act”), the Savings Bank’primary regulator becar
the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (“O@@nd Flushing Financial Corporatianprimary regulator became the Federal ReservedBotGovernor
(“Federal Reserve”). Upon completion of the Mergée Bank's primary regulator became the New Yorat&tDepartment of Financial Services (“NYSDJS”
(formerly, the New York State Banking Departmerd its primary federal regulator became the Féd2eaosit Insurance Corporation (“FDICReposits ar
insured to the maximum allowable amount by the F¥@ditionally, the Bank is a member of the Fedétaime Loan Bank (“FHLB") system.

Our operating results are significantly affectedniagional and local economic conditions, includihg strength of the local economy. The national lacel
economies were generally considered to be in ssséme from December 2007 through the middle of 20D8is resulted in increased unemployment andirag
property values, although the property value deslim our market, the New York City metropolitaearhave not been as great as many other arels obtintry
While the national and local economies have shagmssof improvement since the middle of 2010, inmgrments in unemployment have lagged until recemtigr
the unemployment rate decreased to 6.3% at Dece2@iidrfrom 7.5% at December 31 2013, for the Newk\Qity region, according to the New York Departref
Labor. We have also seen improvements in our lefvebn-performing loans, although they still rematrelevated levels. Ngmerforming loans totaled $34.2 millic
$49.0 million and $89.8 million at December 31, 202013 and 2012, respectively. Additionally, wevénaot experienced a significant increase in fasa
properties despite an extended foreclosure prooesg market. Net chargeffs of impaired loans have decreased in 2014 t@ 80llion from $13.3 million and $20
million for the years ended December 31, 2013 d@if?2respectively. In response to the economicitiond in our market and the increase in qpanforming loan
resulting from the recession, we tightened our eoregive underwriting standards in 2008 to redbeerisk associated with lending.

The following changes were made in our underwritstgndards since 2008 to reduce the risk associwitbdlending on income producing real es
properties:

= When borrowers requested a refinance of an existioggage loan when they had acquired the propertybtained their existing loan witt
two years of the request, we generally requiredlende of improvements to the property that incréabe property value to support
additional funds and generally restricted the -to-value ratio for the new loan to 65% of the apprisaiue.

= The debt coverage ratio was increased and the-to-value ratio decreased for income producing progeniith fewer than ten units. T
required the borrower to have an additional investhin the property than previously required anavjaled additional protection should rel
units become vacar




= Borrowers who owned multiple properties were regplito provide detail on all their properties tooallus to evaluate their total cash f
requirements. Based on this review, we may dedfiadoan application, or require a lower I-to-value ratio and a higher debt coverage r:

= Income producing properties with existing rentd thare at or above the current market rent forlgingroperties were required to have a hi
debt coverage ratio to provide protection shoutdgéecline

= Borrowers purchasing properties were required toafestrate they had satisfactory liquidity and mamagnt ability to carry the property shc
vacancies occur or increa:

The following changes were made in our underwristegndards since 2008 to reduce the risk on orfiediofamily residential property mortgage loans
home equity lines of credit:

= We discontinued originating home equity lines addit without verifying the borrow’s income. This was done in two stages. Beginniriday
2008, we began verifying the borroneihcome when the home equity line of credit exedebL00,000. Beginning in October 2009, we ver
the income of all borrowers applying for a homeisgline of credit.

= We discontinued offering o-to-four family residential property mortgage loansselfemployed individuals based on stated income
verifiable assets in June 20:

The following changes were made in our underwristapndards since 2008 to reduce the risk assoaiatiedusiness lending:

= All borrowers obtaining a business loan were regpito submit a complete financial information pagkaregardless of the amount of the |
Previously, borrowers for SBA Express loans an@iokbans under $150,000 had been exempt fromehisirement

= Background checks on all borrowers and guarantarbudsiness loans were expanded to identify ani@wewnformation in more public recor
including a search for judgments, liens, negatiesg articles, and affiliations with other entiti

= The guarantee of related business entities prayidash flow to the borrowing entity became requitedbusiness loan:
= The allowable percentage of inventory and accowgusivable pledged as collateral for a businegs \ees reducec
= We established specific risk acceptance critenigfivate not for profit school:

The economic conditions we have experienced sireeeidber 2007 resulted in loan originations dedjniear-overyear from 2008 through 2011. In 2(
the trend of declining loan originations reverseithvioan originations improving year-ovgear in 2012 through 2014. Loan originations anctipases for 207
increased $122.2 million, or 14.6%, to $958.2 wiillfrom $836.0 million for 2013.

Our operating results are also affected by extessioenewals, modifications and restructuring @nk in our loan portfolio. Loans which are rene
modified or restructured are required to be fulhderwritten in accordance with our policy for nevams, except when the borrower is seeking a restuati the
interest rate due to a decline in interest ratelhénmarket, or for a loan classified as a trouldelt restructured (“TDR”)Our policy for modifying a loan due to 1
borrowers request for changes in the terms will dependhenchange requested. The borrower must be currehhave a good payment history to have a
modified. If the borrower is seeking additional fisnthe loan is fully underwritten in accordancéhwaur policy for new loans. If the borrower is kieg a reduction i
the interest rate due to a decline in interestsratghe market, we generally limit our review aidws: (1) for income producing properties andibess loans, to
review of the operating results of the propertyibess and a satisfactory inspection of the propentyl (2) for one-tdeur residential properties, to a satisfac
inspection of the property. Our policy on restruictg a loan when the loan will be classified asRTrequires the loan to be fully underwritten ircaclance wit
Company policy. The borrower must demonstrate thilityato repay the loan under the new terms. Wites restructuring results in a TDR, we may waivene
requirements of Company policy provided the bornohes demonstrated the ability to meet the requergmof the restructured loan and repay the rdsired loar
While our formal lending policies do not prohibitaking additional loans to a borrower or any relatedrest of the borrower who is past due in ppatior interes
more than 90 days, it has been our practice notaike additional loans to a borrower or a relatéera@st of the borrower if the borrower is past thare than 90 da
as to principal or interest. During the most redbnte fiscal years, we did not make any additiémahs to a borrower or any related interest ofttheower who we
past due in principal or interest more than 90 dAjlsextensions, renewals, restructurings and ricetions must be approved by either the Board ioé&ors of th
Bank (the “Bank Board of Directors”) or its Loan @mittee (the “Loan Committee”).




Our operating results are also affected by loseesoaperforming loans. Our policy requires a reappraigadn independent third party when a loan bec
twelve months delinquent. We generally obtain apeaisal by an independent third party for loansrd0 days delinquent when the outstanding loaanial is ¢
least $1.0 million. We also obtain reappraisals nvber internally prepared valuation of a propertglitates there has been a decline in value belevottstandin
balance of the loan, or when a property inspedtias indicated significant deterioration in the dtod of the property. These internal valuations prepared wher
loan becomes 90 days delinquent.

The Bank has a business banking unit. Our busistestegy includes a transition from a traditiorralft to a more “commercial-likebanking institution b
focusing on the development of a full complementahmercial business deposit, loan and cash maraggoducts. As of December 31, 2014 the busibasking
unit had $461.5 million in gross loans outstanding $134.6 million of customer deposits.

The Bank has an internet branch, iGObanking.comi®ch provides access to consumers in marketsdwitgir geographic locations. Accounts can be of
online at www.iGObanking.com or by mail. The imter branch does not currently accept loan apptinati As of December 31, 2014, the internet brdrach$281.
million of customer deposits.

The Savings Bank formed a wholly owned subsidi&iyshing Commercial Bank, a New York Stateartered commercial bank, for the limited purpot
providing banking services to public entities irdihg counties, cities, towns, villages, schoolritits, libraries, fire districts and the variousuas throughout the Ne
York City metropolitan area. The Commercial Banksviarmed in response to New York State law, whisuires that municipal deposits and state funds v
deposited into a bank or trust company as definddew York State law. The Savings Bank was not iclemed an eligible bank or trust company for thisgwse. O
February 28, 2013, in the Merger, the Savings Baekged with and into the Commercial Bank, with th@r@nercial Bank as the surviving entity. Pursuanthe
Merger, the Commercial Bank’s charter was changedftdi-service New York State commercial bank ¢darand its name was changed to Flushing Bank.

Market Area and Competition

We are a community oriented financial institutidifedng a wide variety of financial services to méee needs of the communities we serve. The Bank’
main office is in Flushing, New York, located iretBorough of Queens. At December 31, 2014, thek B@erated out of 17 fuBervice offices, located in the N
York City Boroughs of Queens, Brooklyn, and Manhattand in Nassau County, New York. We also opaatmternet branch, iGObanking.c6mWe maintain ot
executive offices in Lake Success in Nassau Coudéwy York. Substantially all of our mortgage loaer® secured by properties located in the New Yatk
metropolitan area.

We face intense competition both in making loand @nattracting deposits. Competition for loansour market is primarily based on the types of I
offered and the related terms for these loansudicy fixed-rate versus adjustabkgte loans and the interest rate on the loan. &aostable rate loans, competitiol
also based on the repricing period, the index tchvithe rate is referenced, and the spread ovemttex rate. Also, competition is influenced by thility of ¢
financial institution to respond to customer redsi@sd to provide the borrower with a timely demisio approve or deny the loan application.

Our market area has a high density of financiditirtsons, many of which have greater financialowses, name recognition and market presence, |laot
which are competitors to varying degrees. PartiGulatense competition exists for deposits, ascampete with over 115 banks and thrifts in the ¢iesrnin which wi
have branch locations. Our market share of depwsitsese counties is approximately 0.32% of thaltdeposits of these competing financial institn$, and we a
the 25th largest financial institution. In additiame compete with credit unions, the stock markelt mutual funds for customensinds. Competition for deposits in
market and for national brokered deposits is primméased on the types of deposits offered andpaié on the deposits. Particularly intense cortipatalso exists i
all of the lending activities we emphasize. In &ddi to the financial institutions mentioned abowe compete against mortgage banks and insurarmpacoe
located both within our market and available onititernet. Competition for loans in our market ignarily based on the types of loans offered amdrtiated tern
for these loans, including fixed-rate versus adjolstrate loans and the interest rate on the loan. 8oistble rate loans, competition is also basetherrepricing
period, the index to which the rate is refereneext] the spread over the index rate. Also, compatit influenced by the ability of a financial iitstion to respond 1
customer requests and to provide the borrower aviilmely decision to approve or deny the loan apibn. The internet banking arena also has maggidinancis
institutions which have greater financial resouraesme recognition and market presence. Our fugaraings prospects will be affected by our abildycompet
effectively with other financial institutions and implement our business strategies. Our strategwtfracting deposits includes using various margetechnique:
delivering enhanced technology and customer frieldinking services, and focusing on the uniquegmaisand small business banking needs of the rathitiic
communities we serve. Our strategy for attractiew hoans is primarily dependent on providing timedgponse to applicants and maintaining a netwbiuality
brokers. See “Risk Factors — The Markets in Which@perate Are Highly Competitive” included in IterA df this Annual Report.




For a discussion of our business strategies, se@dljlament’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial dit@n and Results of Operations — Overview
Management Strategy” included in Item 7 of this AainReport.

Lending Activities

Loan Portfolio Composition Our loan portfolio consists primarily of morggaloans secured by multi-family residential, contia real estate, one-four
family mixed-use property, one-four family residential property, and commerciakimess loans. In addition, we also offer constancipans, SBA loans, Te
medallion loans and other consumer loans. Subatlyndill of our mortgage loans are secured by prtigelocated within our market area. At Decembier2014, w
had gross loans outstanding of $3,798.7 millioriqteethe allowance for loan losses and net defezostks).

Since 2009 we have focused our mortgage loan atigim efforts on multfamily residential mortgage loans, although regeni have cautiously increas
our focus on commercial real estate and businessslaith full banking relationships. In prior yeave had focused our mortgage loan originations aiti+family
residential, commercial real estate and one-to-faumily mixed-use property mortgage loans. Thesmndogenerally have higher yields than onéoto- family
residential properties, and include prepayment Iiesahat we collect if the loans pay in full prit the contractual maturity. We expect to corgitiois emphasis
multi-family residential mortgage loans, commercial resthte and business loans with full banking ratatiips through marketing and by maintaining contipe
interest rates and origination fees. Our markeéffgrts include frequent contact with mortgage lerskand other professionals who serve as refeotatss. Th
reduced emphasis on commercial real estate, ofmstdamily mixeduse property mortgage loans, and construction Ieerte 2009 was due to the increased lev
risk in these types of loans in the current ecowoemvironment. However, due to the changes in odleowriting standards, which we believe has reducgdin
newly originated commercial real estate mortgages$owe have increased our focus on the originafi@ommercial real estate mortgage loans.

Fully underwritten one-téeur family residential mortgage loans generallg eonsidered by the banking industry to have lisésthan other types of loal
Multi-family residential, commercial real estate aode-to-four family mixed-use property mortgagen®agenerally have higher yields than ondetor family
residential property mortgage loans and shortengeio maturity, but typically involve higher pripell amounts and may expose the lender to a greskeof credi
loss than one-to-four family residential propertgrigage loans. Our increased emphasis on multijaresidential mortgage loans since 2009, and ohi+family
residential, commercial real estate and one-to-faonily mixeduse property mortgage loans during years priorO@2 has increased the overall level of credit
inherent in our loan portfolio. The greater risls@sated with multi-family residential, commercralal estate and one-to-four family mixege property mortga
loans could require us to increase our provisionddan losses and to maintain an allowance fan loases as a percentage of total loans in exéeke allowance w
currently maintain. We continually review the corapion of our mortgage loan portfolio to manage tis& in the portfolio. As a result of this ongoingview, we
reduced our reliance on commercial real estate aradto-four family mixedise property mortgage loans during the most reteotyears, and tightened «
conservative underwriting standards to further cedilne risk associated with lending. See “GenefVerview”in this Item 1 of this Annual Report. To date, vwavé
not experienced significant losses in our multi-fgresidential, commercial real estate and onésta-family mixed-use property mortgage loan pditi&

Our mortgage loan portfolio consists of adjustabte mortgage (“ARM”) loans and fixedte mortgage loans. Interest rates we chargeanslare affecte
primarily by the demand for such loans, the supglynoney available for lending purposes, the rdfered by our competitors and the creditworthinegghe
borrower. Many of those factors are, in turn, affedby local and national economic conditions, dradfiscal, monetary and tax policies of the fedestdte and loc
governments.




In general, consumers show a preference for ARMdaarperiods of high interest rates and for fixate loans when interest rates are low. In peraf
declining interest rates, we may experience refimanactivity in ARM loans, as borrowers show a prefice to lock-in the lower rates available ondixate loans. |
the case of ARM loans we originated, volume andstdjent periods are affected by the interest ratdsother market factors as discussed above asaselbnsum
preferences. We have not in the past, nor do weistly, originate ARM loans that provide for negatamortization.

Prior to 2007, we had grown our construction loartfplio. During 2007, we began to deemphasize tanson loans, as originations of new construc
loans declined. We have continued to deemphasimstruction loans since then as we reduced thendalaf our construction loan portfolio, which tetal$5.:
million at December 31, 2014. We intend to corgibto deemphasize construction loans in the near. Mfe obtain a first lien position on the undertyirollateral, an
generally obtain personal guarantees on construtians. These loans generally have a term of ®arsyor less. Construction loans involve a gredggree of ris
than other loans because, among other things nitherwriting of such loans is based on an estimaa@ak of the developed property, which can bediffito ascertai
in light of uncertainties inherent in such estimai. In addition, construction lending entails tisk that the project may not be completed duedst overruns «
changes in market conditions. The greater riskaat with construction loans could require ugtwease our provision for loan losses, and to taairan allowanc
for loan losses as a percentage of total loangdess of the allowance we currently maintain. Teedee have not incurred significant losses in@anstruction loa
portfolio.

The business banking unit was formed in 2006 taugoon loan and deposit relationships to businelkseded within our market area. These loans
generally personally guaranteed by the owners,naagd be secured by the assets of the businessdinglueal estate. The interest rate on these lisagsnerally a
adjustable rate based on a published index. Theses] while providing us a higher rate of retutapresent a higher level of risk. The greatet associated wii
business loans could require us to increase owigion for loan losses, and to maintain an alloveafar loan losses as a percentage of total loamexéess of tr
allowance we currently maintain. To date, we haseimcurred significant losses in our business Iparifolio.

From time to time, we may purchase loans from banksrtgage bankers and other financial institutiorten the loans complement our loan portt
strategy. Loans purchased must meet our undergstandards when they were originated. Our lendgtiyities are subject to federal and state lawsragulations
See “— Regulation.”




The following table sets forth the composition aof toan portfolio at the dates indicated.

Mortgage Loans
Multi-family residentia
Commercial real esta
One-to-four family - mixec-

use propert
One-to-four family -

residential (1.
Cc-operative apartment (.
Constructior

Gross mortgage loa

Nonr-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic
Taxi medallion
Commercial business al
other
Gross no-mortgage loan
Gross loan:

Unearned loan fees and defer
costs, ne

Less: Allowance for loan loss 525,09()

Loans, ne

At December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Percen Percen Percen Percen Percen
Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total
(Dollars in thousands
$1,923,46! 50.62% $1,712,03 50.02% $1,534,43 47.62% $1,391,22. 43.26% $1,252,17 38.4(%
621,56 16.3¢ 512,55:. 14.97 515,43t 16.0( 580,78: 18.0% 662,79: 20.3:
573,77¢ 15.1C 595,75 17.4( 637,35: 19.7¢ 693,93: 21.5¢ 728,81( 22.3¢
187,57. 4,94 193,72¢ 5.6¢€ 198,96¢ 6.1¢ 220,43: 6.8€ 241,37t 7.41
9,83t 0.2¢ 10,137 0.3( 6,30: 0.2C 5,50¢ 0.17 6,21¢ 0.1¢
5,28¢ 0.1<4 4,247 0.12 14,38: 0.4& 47, 14( 1.47 75,51¢ 2.32
3,321,50 87.4¢ 3,028,45; 88.4% 2,906,88. 90.2¢ 2,939,01. 91.4¢ 2,966,89 91.01
7,13¢ 0.1¢ 7,792 0.22 9,49¢ 0.2¢ 14,03¢ 0.4¢ 17,51 0.5¢
22,51¢ 0.5¢ 13,12¢ 0.3¢ 9,927 0.31 54,32¢ 1.6¢ 88,26¢ 2.71
447,50( 11.7¢ 373,64 10.9:7 295,07¢ 9.1€ 206,61 6.4 187,16 5.74
477,15: 12.5¢ 394,55¢ 11.57 314,49: 9.7¢ 274,98: 8.5¢ 292,93¢ 8.9¢
3,798,65 100.0(% 3,423,00: 100.00% 3,221,37! 100.00% 3,213,99. 100.0(% 3,259,82! 100.0(%
11,71¢ 11,17( 12,74¢ 14,88¢ 16,50:¢
(31,779 (31,109 (30,349 (27,699
$3,785,27 $3,402,40: $3,203,01 $3,198,53 $3,248,63!

(1) One-to-four family residential mortgage loans also inclimbene equity and condominium loans. At Decembe£814, gross home equity loans totaled $!
million and condominium loans totaled $22.3 milli

(2) Consists of loans secured by shares representeigats in individual c-operative units that are generally owner occug




The following table sets forth our loan originasofincluding the net effect of refinancing) and thenges in our portfolio of loans, including plashs, salt
and principal reductions for the years indicated:

For the years ended December
(In thousands 2014 2013 2012

Mortgage Loans

At beginning of yea $ 3,028,45. $ 2,906,88. $ 2,939,01
Mortgage loans originate
Multi -family residentia 314,14¢ 382,04 317,66
Commercial real esta 165,05 68,96¢ 31,78¢
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 50,07( 40,89¢ 15,96:
One-to-four family residentia 24,727 27,49t 24,48¢
Cao-operative apartmel 17C 4,96¢ 1,81(
Constructior 1,56€ 3,08¢ 80¢
Total mortgage loans originated 555,73t 527,45 392,51«
Mortgage loans purchase
Multi -family residentia 106,83( - -
Commercial real esta 14,79 452 -
Total mortgage loans purchas 121,62 452 -
Less:
Principal reduction 363,20t 363,80! 359,16¢
Loans transferred to loans held for < - 9,524 6,49¢
Mortgage loan sale 12,87 18,30¢ 34,03
Chargeoffs 1,78( 12,32¢ 19,28¢
Mortgage loan foreclosure 6,45% 2,374 5,66:
At end of yeal $ 3,321,500 $ 3,028,45. $ 2,906,88.

Non-mortgage loans

At beginning of yea $ 39455t $ 314,49: $ 274,98
Loans originatec
Small Business Administratic 1,611 602 52¢
Taxi Medallion - - 8
Commercial busines 227,90:¢ 292,38! 231,87"
Other 3,05¢€ 5,36( 4,13¢
Total other loans originate 232,57: 298,34¢ 236,55
Non-mortgage loans purchase
Taxi Medallion 14,43: 9,731 3,45¢
Commercial busines 33,80¢ - -
Total nor-mortgage loans purchas 48,23¢ 9,731 3,45¢€
Less:
Non-mortgage loan sale 4 - 1,37¢
Loans transferred to loans held for s 1,15( - 5,40(
Principal reduction 196,39: 225,50¢ 191,73:
Chargeoffs 662 2,514 1,98t
At end of yeal $ 477,150 $ 394,55t $ 314,49




Loan Maturity and Repricinglhe following table shows the maturity of our tdtzdn portfolio at December 31, 2014. Schedul@dyments are shown in
maturity category in which the payments become due.

Mortgage loan:

Non-mortgage loan

One-to-four
Multi- family ~ One-tofour Commercie
family ~Commerciec mixed-use family  Cc-operativt Small Busines  Taxi business
(In thousands residentia real estatc  property residentia apartmen Constructiol Administratior Medallior and othel Total loan:
Amounts due withinoneye. $ 151,79 $ 94,75¢$ 42,14t $ 7,85 $ 33€ $ 5,28¢ $ 2,28¢ $ 11,69: $ 179,75t $ 495,90¢
Amounts due after one ye:i
One to two year 146,09¢ 72,85( 33,63: 7,944 34k - 1,18¢ 9,48¢ 61,17. 332,71
Two to three year 146,33! 64,53¢ 28,64¢ 7,651 35E - 757 1,13¢ 44,55¢  293,98(
Three to five year 142,33: 58,35: 25,79: 7,15¢ 367 - 50z 20k 38,46: 273,17t
Over five years 1,336,89. 331,07" 443,55 156,96 8,432 - 2,39¢ - 123,55: 2,402,87.
Total due after one ye 1,771,66. 526,81! 531,63: 179,72( 9,49¢ - 4,84¢ 10,821 267,74: 3,302,741
Total amounts du $1,923,46' $ 621,56¢$ 573,77¢$ 187,57 $ 9,83t $ 5,28¢ $ 7,13¢ $ 22,51¢ $ 447,500 $3,798,65
Sensitivity of loans to chang
in interest rates - loans due
after one yeai
Fixed rate loan $ 330,32t $ 80,76($ 93,15($ 4249 $ 1,56« $ - % 11¢ $ 10,36: $ 98,69! $ 657,47:
Adjustable rate loar 1,441,33. 446,05! 438,48 137,22 7,93¢ - 4,72¢ 46€ 169,05. 2,645,27.
Total loans due after or
year $1,771,66. $ 526,81' $ 531,63.$ 179,72( $ 9,49¢ $ -$ 4,84¢ $ 10,821 $ 267,74« $3,302,74




Multi-Family Residential Lending .Loans secured by mulamily residential properties were $1,923.5 milliar 50.64% of gross loans, at Decembe
2014. Our multi-family residential mortgage loaredhan average principal balance of $0.8 milliorDatember 31, 2014, and the largest nfaltily residentie
mortgage loan held in our portfolio had a principalance of $44.1 million, secured by 13 propertidge offer both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate tixfaimily
residential mortgage loans, with maturities of aj3® years.

In underwriting multifamily residential mortgage loans, we review thpested net operating income generated by the statleecollateral securing the lo
the age and condition of the collateral, the finaln@sources and income level of the borrowertardorrowers experience in owning or managing similar props
We typically require debt service coverage of astel25% of the monthly loan payment. During 2808,increased the required debt service coveragefoatmulti-
family residential loans with ten units or less. Wémerally originate these loans up to only 75%hefappraised value or the purchase price of tbpapty, whicheve
is less. Any loan with a final loan-talue ratio in excess of 75% must be approved byBink Board of Directors or the Loan Committe@magxception to polic
We generally rely on the income generated by tlupgnty as the primary means by which the loan itk However, personal guarantees may be obtdor
additional security from these borrowers. We tyfiycarder an environmental report on our multi-firand commercial real estate loans.

Loans secured by multamily residential property generally involve a aer degree of risk than residential mortgage l@enascarry larger loan balances.
increased credit risk is the result of severaldigtincluding the concentration of principal israaller number of loans and borrowers, the effetteneral econom
conditions on income producing properties and tloeeiased difficulty in evaluating and monitoringsk types of loans. Furthermore, the repaymertanfsl secure
by multi-family residential property is typically dependemton the successful operation of the related ptgpemich is usually owned by a legal entity withe
property being the entity’s only asset. If the cistv from the property is reduced, the borrowgeability to repay the loan may be impaired. If Huerower default:
our only remedy may be to foreclose on the propéotywhich the market value may be less than #iarite due on the related mortgage loan. Loansestoy multi-
family residential property also may involve a dezalegree of environmental risk. We seek to ptagainst this risk through obtaining an environtakreport. Se
“—Asset Quality — Environmental Concerns Relatiod-bans.”

At December 31, 2014, $1,548.9 million, or 80.53%6.0ur multifamily mortgage loans consisted of ARM loans. Weeo#ARM loans with adjustme
periods typically of five years and for terms of t@p30 years. Interest rates on ARM loans curreoftigred by us are adjusted at the beginning oh eajustmer
period based upon a fixed spread above the FNIBeorresponding Regular Advance Rate. From timéne, due to competitive forces, we may originaieM
loans at an initial rate lower than the fully indeixrate as a result of a discount on the spreathéomitial adjustment period. Multi-family adjasierate mortgag
loans generally are not subject to limitations oieliest rate increases either on an adjustmerdceri aggregate basis over the life of the loan. dNginated an
purchased multi-family ARM loans totaling $398.9 lioih, $197.8 million and $221.7 million during 2012013 and 2012, respectively.

At December 31, 2014, $374.5 million, or 19.47%o0f multi-family mortgage loans consisted of fixate loans. Our fixed-rate mufémily mortgage loar
are generally originated for terms up to 15 yead are competitively priced based on market comuktiand our cost of funds. We originated and pweth&22.
million, $184.3 million and $95.9 million of fixetate multi-family mortgage loans in 2014, 2013 20d2, respectively.

Commercial Real Estate LendingLoans secured by commercial real estate were.668illion, or 16.36% of gross loans, at Decembgy 2014. OL
commercial real estate mortgage loans are secureichjroved properties such as office buildings,elsitotels, nursing homes, small business fad|itgrif
shopping centers, warehouses, and, to a lessertestéigious facilities. At December 31, 2014, @mammercial real estate mortgage loans had an gevgmancipa
balance of $1.0 million and the largest of suctnépavhich was secured by seven mtdtiant shopping centers, had a principal balan@24f0 million. Commerci.
real estate mortgage loans are generally originatadange of $100,000 to $6.0 million.

In underwriting commercial real estate mortgage$pave employ the same underwriting standards anckfdures as are employed in underwriting multi-
family residential mortgage loans.

Commercial real estate mortgage loans generally ¢arger loan balances than onefoor family residential mortgage loans and invodvgreater degree
credit risk for the same reasons applicable toinfutbily loans.

10




At December 31, 2014, $529.5 million, or 85.18%pof commercial mortgage loans consisted of ARM $oaMe offer ARM loans with adjustment peri
of one to five years and generally for terms oftal5 years. Interest rates on ARM loans curreofigred by us are adjusted at the beginning of eatjhstmer
period based upon a fixed spread above the FNIYBeorresponding Regular Advance Rate. From timgnie, we may originate ARM loans at an initial r&dever
than the index as a result of a discount on theagpfor the initial adjustment period. Commercidjlatablerate mortgage loans generally are not subjectrtidtions
on interest rate increases either on an adjustpeiad or aggregate basis over the life of the .|¢¥8e originated and purchased commercial ARM loataling $169.
million, $43.9 million and $19.9 million during 2812013 and 2012, respectively.

At December 31, 2014, $92.1 million, or 14.82%paf commercial mortgage loans consisted of fixed-laans. Our fixedate commercial mortgage lo:
are generally originated for terms up to 20 yead are competitively priced based on market comattiand our cost of funds. We originated and pwetha10.
million, $25.5 million and $11.9 million of fixedate commercial mortgage loans in 2014, 2013 an@,2@&pectively.

One-to-Four Family Mortgage Lending — Mixed-Use jpedies. We offer mortgage loans secured by one-to-fammily mixeduse properties. The
properties contain up to four residential dwellimgits and a commercial unit. We offer both fixeterand adjustable-rate one-to-four family mixes® propert
mortgage loans with maturities of up to 30 yeard ageneral maximum loan amount of $1,000,000.nlar@inations primarily result from applicatioreceived fror
mortgage brokers and mortgage bankers, existingast customers, and persons who respond to ouretivagkefforts and referrals. One-to-four family mbuse
property mortgage loans were $573.8 million, od0%0 of gross loans, at December 31, 2014.

In underwriting one-to-four family mixed-use proggemortgage loans, we employ the same underwrgtagdards as are employed in underwriting multi-
family residential mortgage loans.

At December 31, 2014, $456.2 million, or 79.50%00f one-to-four family mixed-use property mortgaggns consisted of ARM loans. We offer adjustable-
rate one-to-four family mixedse property mortgage loans with adjustment peripgisally of five years and for terms of up to Bars. Interest rates on ARM lo.
currently offered by the Bank are adjusted at thgitning of each adjustment period based uponeal fopread above the FHLUBY corresponding Regular Advar
Rate. From time to time, we may originate ARM loahan initial rate lower than the index as a resti#t discount on the spread for the initial adjestt period. One-
to-four family mixed-use property adjustalsbte mortgage loans generally are not subjectnddtions on interest rate increases either ondjurstment period «
aggregate basis over the life of the loan. We oaitgid and purchased one-to-four family mixese-property ARM loans totaling $39.4 million, $2én8lion and $10.
million during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

At December 31, 2014, $117.6 million, or 20.50%paf one-to-four family mixed-use property mortgdgens consisted of fixed-rate loans. Our fixate
one-to-four family mixed-use property mortgage ®are originated for terms of up to 15 years aedcampetitively priced based on market conditioms the Banks
cost of funds. We originated and purchased $10llfomi $20.6 million and $5.2 million of fixed-ratene-to-four family mixedise property mortgage loans in 2(
2013 and 2012, respectively.

One-to-Four Family Mortgage Lending — Residentiabperties. We offer mortgage loans secured by onésta- family residential properties, includi
townhouses and condominium units. For purposes®fdescription contained in this section, one-ta-family residential mortgage loans, operative apartme
loans and home equity loans are collectively reféio herein as “residential mortgage loans.” Werdfoth fixed-rate and adjustabiate residential mortgage lo:
with maturities of up to 30 years and a generalimarm loan amount of $1,000,000. Loan originatioeserally result from applications received from tgage
brokers and mortgage bankers, existing or pasbmests, and referrals. Residential mortgage loanrs $&87.6 million, or 4.94% of gross loans, at Decer 31
2014.

We generally originate residential mortgage loanamounts up to 80% of the appraised value oralerice, whichever is less. We may make resiel

mortgage loans with loan-to-value ratios of up @®of the appraised value of the mortgaged propbdwever, private mortgage insurance is requirbdnever loan-
to-value ratios exceed 80% of the appraised vditieeoproperty securing the loan.
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In addition to income verified loans, we have ir fhast originated residential mortgage loans teesaployed individuals within our local community ke
on stated income and verifiable assets that allaveetd assess repayment ability, provided thabtmeower’s stated income is considered reasonablthé borrowes
type of business. The preponderance of stated iaaome-to-four family residential mortgage loanseverade available to sedfnployed individuals within our loc
community for their primary residence. Our undeting standards required that we verify the assétthe borrowers and the sources of their cash flols
information reviewed for purchases included attlehsee months and refinances included at leastroeth of personal bank statements (checking amthgs
accounts), statements of investment accounts, égsichecking account statements (when applicadobe)) ,other information provided by the borrowersuiltbeil
personal holdings. Our review of these bank stat¢snallowed us to assess whether or not theirdsiatmme appeared reasonable in comparison to ¢hsir flows
and if their income level supported their persdr@tiings. We also obtained and reviewed creditmtspmn these borrowers. An acceptable credit repastone of th
key factors in approving this type of mortgage lodfe obtained appraisals from an independent théntly for the property, and limited the amount wetlon th
properties to 80% of the lesser of the propertpigraised value or the purchase price. Home equiég lof credit were offered on oneftir residential properties
homeowners based on various levels of income eatifin. We limited the amount available under a daquity line of credit to 80% of the lesser of #ppraise
value of the property and the purchase price. Theses involve a higher degree of risk as compéweslir other fully underwritten residential mortgagans as the
is a greater opportunity for sedfmployed borrowers to falsify or overstate theireleof income and ability to service indebtedneRsis risk is mitigated by tt
requirements discussed above in our loan policyaddition, since 2008, the underwriting standaaishbme equity loans were modified to discontindginating
home equity lines of credit without verifying therbower’s income. This was accomplished in tw@eta Beginning in May 2008, we began verifying liberowers
income when the home equity line of credit exceefiHaD,000. Beginning in October 2009, we verifieel income of all borrowers applying for a homeiggline of
credit. We also discontinued offering one-to-foamfly residential property mortgage loans to selfployed individuals based on stated income aniflalele assets i
June 2010. We had $12.9 million and $15.8 milliastanding of onée four family residential mortgage loans origirthte individuals based on stated income
verifiable assets at December 31, 2014 and 20%Beotively. We had $44.8 million and $49.9 milliadvanced on home equity lines of credit for whidah did no
verify the borrowers’ income at December 31, 20dd 2013, respectively.

At December 31, 2014, $141.3 million, or 75.31%opof residential mortgage loans consisted of ARMiso&Ve offer ARM loans with adjustment period
one, three, five, seven or ten years. InteressrateARM loans currently offered by us are adjustethe beginning of each adjustment period baseah @pfixec
spread above the FHLBY corresponding Regular Advance Rate. From timgnte, we may originate ARM loans at an initial redever than the index as a result «
discount on the spread for the initial adjustmesrign. ARM loans generally are subject to limitaiaon interest rate increases of 2% per adjustmenmgand a
aggregate adjustment of 6% over the life of thenl0e originated and purchased adjustable ratdeesal mortgage loans totaling $21.0 million, $lillion anc
$23.6 million during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respetyiv

The retention of ARM loans in our portfolio helpsresluce our exposure to interest rate risks. Hewer an environment of rapidly increasing interases
it is possible for the interest rate increase tceed the maximum aggregate adjustment on offiedtofamily residential ARM loans and negativelyeaff the spree
between our interest income and our cost of funds.

ARM loans generally involve credit risks differembfn those inherent in fixedite loans, primarily because if interest rates, rise underlying payments
the borrower rise, thereby increasing the poteftiatefault. However, this potential risk is lessd by our policy of originating one-four family residential ARN
loans with annual and lifetime interest rate cdyas kmit the increase of a borrower's monthly paym

At December 31, 2014, $46.3 million, or 24.69%,0af residential mortgage loans consisted of fixa@-loans. Our fixedate residential mortgage lo:
typically are originated for terms of 15 and 30ngeand are competitively priced based on marketlitioms and our cost of funds. We originated anctpased $3.
million, $4.3 million and $2.7 million in 15-yeaixtd-rate residential mortgages in 2014, 2013 &itR2respectively. We did not originate or purchasg 30yeal
fixed-rate residential mortgages in 2014, 2013 20iP.

At December 31, 2014, home equity loans totaledl Bhillion, or 1.47%, of gross loans. Home equdgns are included in our portfolio of resider
mortgage loans. These loans are offered as adiestte “home equity lines of creditin which interest only is due for an initial terrh X0 years and thereaf
principal and interest payments sufficient to ldate the loan are required for the remaining terat,to exceed 30 years. These adjustabtarie equity lines «
credit” may include a “floor” and/or a “ceiling” otine interest rate that we charge for these IoEmsse loans also may be offered as fully amortizinged-end fixed-
rate loans for terms up to 15 years. The majafthome equity loans originated are owner occupmird-tofour family residential properties and condomin
units. To a lesser extent, home equity loans e aiginated on one-tfwur residential properties held for investment aadond homes. All home equity loans
subject to an 80% loan-tealue ratio computed on the basis of the aggrenfatee first mortgage loan amount outstanding &dproposed home equity loan. They
generally granted in amounts from $25,000 to $30@,0
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Construction Loans.At December 31, 2014, construction loans total®® $nillion, or 0.14%, of gross loans. Our congtart loans primarily have be
made to finance the construction of one-to-fourifamesidential properties, mulfamily residential properties and residential candoums. We also, to a limit
extent, finance the construction of commercial eshte. Our policies provide that constructiom$may be made in amounts up to 70% of the estimatieie of th
developed property and only if we obtain a firehlposition on the underlying real estate. Howewergenerally limit construction loans to 60% of #stimated vall
of the developed property. In addition, we gengnadtjuire personal guarantees on all constructiand. Construction loans are generally made withgef two yeai
or less. Advances are made as construction pragressl inspection warrants, subject to continuélgearches to ensure that we maintain a firstpiesition. W
made construction loans of $1.6 million, $3.1 roitliand $0.8 million during 2014, 2013 and 2012peetively.

Construction loans involve a greater degree ofthisk other loans because, among other thingsinttierwriting of such loans is based on an estimaadk
of the developed property, which can be difficoltascertain in light of uncertainties inherentucts estimations. In addition, construction lendamgails the risk th
the project may not be completed due to cost omsran changes in market conditions.

Small Business Administration LendingAt December 31, 2014, SBA loans totaled $7.liom|lrepresenting 0.19%, of gross loans. Theseslaam extende
to small businesses and are guaranteed by the $B& aimaximum of 85% of the loan balance for loaith balances of $150,000 or less, and to a maxirofi75%
of the loan balance for loans with balances gregn $150,000. We also provide term loans and lofecredit up to $350,000 under the SBA Expresgiam, ol
which the SBA provides a 50% guaranty. The maxinhoan size under the SBA guarantee program wasrlion, with a maximum loan guarantee of $1.5 roiil.
The Small Business Jobs Act of 2010 permanentlseased the limits to a maximum loan size of $5.Manj with a maximum loan guarantee of $3.75 raoiili All
SBA loans are underwritten in accordance with SBan8ard Operating Procedures which requires codlagand the personal guarantee of the owners witrerthal
20% ownership from SBA borrowers. Typically, SB/Aafs are originated in the range of $25,000 to $#lion with terms ranging from one to seven yeansl up t
25 years for owner occupied commercial real estatdgages. SBA loans are generally offered at &aljles rates tied to the prime rate (as publishatiewall Stree
Journal) with adjustment periods of one to three monthstimes, we may sell the guaranteed portion ofaierSBA term loans in the secondary market, reajiz
gain at the time of sale, and retaining the samgicights on these loans, collecting a servicirggdeapproximately 1%. We originated and purcha&k@ million, $0.(
million and $0.5 million of SBA loans during 2012013 and 2012, respectively.

Taxi Medallion.At December 31, 2014, taxi medallion loans tota32@.5 million, or 0.59%, of gross loans. We origiand purchase loans made to |
York City and Chicago taxi medallion owners, whiohns are secured by liens on the taxi medallidg. originate and purchase taxi medallion loansu0% of th
value of the taxi medallion. We originated and pased $14.4 million, $9.7 million and $3.5 milliohtaxi medallion loans during 2014, 2013 and 20&&pectively.

Commercial Business and Other LendiAg.December 31, 2014, commercial business and dvlags totaled $447.5 million, or 11.78%, of grasans. Wi
originate and purchase commercial business loath®ter loans for business, personal, or housghaidoses. Commercial business loans are providbddimesse
in the New York City metropolitan area with annsales of up to $250.0 million. Our commercial bassloans include lines of credit and term loaokiding owne
occupied mortgages. These loans are secured hydsgsassets, including accounts receivables, iomeahd real estate and generally require persguaiantees. Tl
Bank also, at times, enters into participationsdgyetions with other banks on senior secured coroi@ebusiness loans. Commercial business loangemerall
originated in a range of $100,000 to $10.0 million.

At December 31, 2014, $334.2 million, or 74.67%pof commercial business loans consisted of ARMdo#¥e generally offer ARM loans with adjustn
periods of five years for owner occupied mortgaged for lines of credit the adjustment period iseggally monthly. Interest rates on ARM loans cutlseoffered by
us are adjusted at the beginning of each adjustpenind based upon a fixed spread above the FNIKBecorresponding Regular Advance Rate for owneupiEt
mortgages and a fixed spread above the Londonbbmér Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) or Prime Rate for line$ credit. Commercial business adjustatate loan
generally are not subject to limitations on interase increases either on an adjustment peri@gdjgregate basis over the life of the loan.

At December 31, 2014, $113.3 million, or 25.33%paf commercial business loans consisted of fiatd-loans. Our fixedate commercial business lo.
are generally originated for terms up to 20 yearsare competitively priced based on market comltiand our cost of funds.
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Other loans generally consist of overdraft linesmefdit. Generally, unsecured consumer loans ariéelil to amounts of $5,000 or less for terms ofaifive
years. We originated and purchased $3.1 million4 $8illion and $4.1 million of other loans durin@2, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The underwristamdard
employed by us for consumer and other loans inctudetermination of the applicant’s payment histumyother debts and assessment of the applgcahbtlity to mee
payments on all of his or her obligations. In &ddito the creditworthiness of the applicant, tiielerwriting process also includes a comparisoth@fvalue of th
collateral, if any, to the proposed loan amounhsétured loans tend to have higher risk, and thereommand a higher interest rate.

Loan Extensions, Renewals, Modifications and Reftring . Extensions, renewals, modifications or restrustua loan, other than a loan that is classifie
a TDR, requires the loan to be fully underwrittenaiccordance with our policy for new loans. Therdwer must be current to have a loan extendedwede!
restructured. Our policy for modifying a mortgagarn due to the borrowarrequest for changes in the terms will dependherchanges requested. The borrower
be current and have a good payment history to hdean modified. If the borrower is seeking addiéibfunds, the loan is fully underwritten in accamde with oL
policy for new loans. If the borrower is seekingeduction in the interest rate due to a declinmterest rates in the market, we generally limit mview as follows
(2) for income producing properties and busineasgoto a review of the operating results of tleperty/business and a satisfactory inspection@ptioperty, and (.
for one-tofour residential properties, to a satisfactory edjon of the property. Our policy on restructurad¢pan when the loan will be classified as a TBRuire:
the loan to be fully underwritten in accordancehw@ompany policy. The borrower must demonstrateathiéty to repay the loan under the new terms. Wite
restructuring results in a TDR, we may waive sosguirements of Company policy provided the borrolss demonstrated the ability to meet the requingsnaf the
restructured loan and repay the restructured Méile our formal lending policies do not prohibiaking additional loans to a borrower or any reldtedrest of th
borrower who is past due in principal or interesirenthan 90 days, it has been our practice notakenadditional loans to a borrower or a relatedrest of th
borrower if the borrower is past due more than &@sdas to principal or interest. During the moseng three fiscal years, we did not make any aafditi loans to
borrower or any related interest of the borroweowlas past due in principal or interest more thau&ys. All extensions, renewals, restructurings modification:
must be approved by either the Loan Committee ®Bidnk Board of Directors.

Loan Approval Procedures and Authoritiffhe Board of Directors of the Company (the “BoafdDirectors”) approved lending policies establishes
approval requirements for our various types of lpanducts. Our Residential Mortgage Lending Poljich applies to all one-tfeur family mortgage loan
including residential and mixed-use property) dighbs authorized levels of approval. Ondédar family mortgage loans that do not exceed $7&0,require tw
signatures for approval, one of which must be feither the President, Executive Vice President Semnior Vice President (collectively, “Authorizedfiders”) anc
the other from a Senior Underwriter, Manager, Undigewor Junior Underwriter in the Residential Matg Loan Department (collectively, “Loan Officersdnc
ratification by the Management Loan Committee. Foe-tofour family mortgage loans in excess of $750,000tau$1.0 million, three signatures are requirec
approval, at least two of which must be from Authed Officers, and the other one may be a Loanc&ffiand ratification by the Management Loan CongaitiTh
Loan Committee or the Bank Board of Directors asest approve one-tiwur family mortgage loans in excess of $1.0 milli®ursuant to our Commercial Real Es
Lending Policy, all loans secured by commercial esséate and multiamily residential properties must be approvedhsy President or the Executive Vice Presic
Chief of Real Estate Lending upon the recommendaifathe appropriate Senior Vice President, anfigation by the Management Loan Committee. Sucimdoa
excess of $1.0 million up to and including $2.5limil must also be approved by the Management Loanmtiee and ratified by the Loan Committee or ttank
Board of Directors. Such loans in excess of $2.Bianialso require Loan Committee or Bank BoardDafectors approval. In accordance with our Businéssdi
Policy all business and SBA loans up to $1.5 millioust be approved by the Business Loan Commitideatified by the Management Loan Committee. Bus
and SBA loans in excess of $1.5 million up to $2ilion must be approved by the Management Loan Citteenand ratified by the Loan Committee. Commé
business and other loans require two signatureagproval, one of which must be from an Authorigficer. Our Construction Loan Policy requires doaetior
loans up to and including $1.0 million must be awed by the Senior Executive Vice President, ChfeReal Estate Lending and the Executive Vice Eerdio
Commercial Real Estate, and ratified by the Manageiean Committee or the Loan Committee. Such laamescess of $1.0 million up to and including $éhilion
require the same officer approvals, approval ofMfamagement Loan Committee, and ratification oflthan Committee or the Bank Board of Directors. §orctior
loans in excess of $2.5 million up to and includ#ig.0 million require the same officer approvalsproval by the Management Loan Committee, and appod the
Loan Committee or the Bank Board of Directors. QGatdion loans in excess of $15.0 million requine same officer approvals, approval by the Manageinear
Committee, and approval of the Bank Board of Dwext Any loan, regardless of type, that deviatesfour written credit policies must be approvedtloy Loal
Committee or the Bank Board of Directors.
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For all loans originated by us, upon receipt obepleted loan application, a credit report is oedeand certain other financial information is ohéal. Ar
appraisal of the real estate intended to securprt@osed loan is required to be received. An irddpnt appraiser designated and approved by usntiyrperform
such appraisals. Our staff appraisers reviewmdlasals. The Bank Board of Directors annuallyrapes the independent appraisers used by the Bahlagprove
the Banks appraisal policy. It is our policy to requirertmwers to obtain title insurance and hazard insteaon all real estate loans prior to closing. Eentair
borrowers, and/or as required by law, the Bank reayiire escrow funds on a monthly basis togeth#r each payment of principal and interest to a gaw¢ escro
account from which we make disbursements for iteuth as real estate taxes and, in some cases lreaarance premiums.

Loan Concentrations. The maximum amount of credit that the Bank caterek to any single borrower or related group ofrowers generally is limited
15% of the Banks unimpaired capital and surplus, or $70.8 milidrbecember 31, 2014. Applicable laws and reguiatpermit an additional amount of credit tc
extended, equal to 10% of unimpaired capital anglss, if the loan is secured by readily marketatd#ateral, which generally does not include restate. See “-
Regulation.” However, it is currently our policy not to extendch additional credit. At December 31, 2014, theeze no loans in excess of the maximum d
amount of loans to one borrower that the Bank waisaxized to make. At that date, the three largeatentrations of loans to one borrower consistddams secure
by commercial real estate, muléimily income producing properties and businessdoaith an aggregate principal balance of $66.Tianil $56.6 million and $53
million for each of the three borrowers, respedyive

Loan Servicing.At December 31, 2014, we were servicing $1.5 anllof mortgage loans and $10.2 million of SBA lo&arsothers. Our policy is to retain
servicing rights to the mortgage and SBA loans #esell in the secondary market, other than perierming loans that are sold with servicing retzhto the buye
In order to increase revenue, management intencisnttinue this policy.

Asset Quality

Loan Collection When a borrower fails to make a required paymerd toan, we take a number of steps to induce th@Wer to cure the delinquency ¢
restore the loan to current status. In the casmartgage loans, personal contact is made with treoler after the loan becomes 30 days delinqufet.take
proactive approach to managing delinquent loargdudting conducting site examinations and encouagiorrowers to meet with one of our representativVéiser
deemed appropriate, we develop shertn payment plans that enable borrowers to btiegr foans current, generally within six to ninentits. At times, when
borrower is experiencing financial difficulties, wieay restructure a loan to enable a borrower tdimoe making payments when it is deemed to be mbest long-
term interest. This restructure may include redy¢hwe interest rate or amount of the monthly paynfiena specified period of time, after which timerest rate ar
repayment terms revert to the original terms ofitlam. We classify these loans as “Troubled DelstiRetured”. At December 31, 2014, we had $12.7 million of Ic
classified as Troubled Debt Restructured, with $Xfillion of these loans performing according teittrestructured terms and $2.4 million not perfimgraccordin
to their restructured terms. We review delinquesncie a loan by loan basis, diligently exploring w/&y help borrowers meet their obligations andrrethbem back 1
current status, and we have increased staffingtalle delinquent loans by hiring people experiennddan workouts.

When the borrower has indicated that they will bahle to bring the loan current, or due to othesuchstances which, in our opinion, indicate therdwwel
will be unable to bring the loan current withineasonable time, the loan is classified as non-peifg. All loans classified as nguerforming, which includes
loans past due 90 days or more, are classifiedoasacrrual unless there is, in our opinion, compellavidence the borrower will bring the loan currémtthe
immediate future. At December 31, 2014, there i€répans, which totaled $2.3 million, past due 89sdor more and still accruing interest.

Upon classifying a loan as ngerforming, we review available information and dibions that relate to the status of the loan,udiig the estimated value
the loan’s collateral and any legal consideratithred may affect the borrowerability to continue to make payments. Based uperavailable information, we w
consider the sale of the loan or retention of dan! If the loan is retained, we may continue tokawith the borrower to collect the amounts duestart foreclosui
proceedings. If a foreclosure action is initiated she loan is not brought current, paid in fulirefinanced before the foreclosure sale, the pegperty securing tt
loan is sold at foreclosure or by us as soon tliiereas practicable.

Once the decision to sell a loan is made, we détermhat we would consider adequate consideratidretobtained when that loan is sold, based ofettte
and circumstances related to that loan. Investodsbaokers are then contacted to seek interestiichpsing the loan. We have been successful innfinduyers fo
some of our nomerforming loans offered for sale that are willlogpay what we consider to be adequate considaraferms of the sale include cash due upon cli
of the sale, no contingencies or recourse to usjceg is released to the buyer and time is of éssence. These sales usually close within a rabloshort tim
period.
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This strategy of selling non-performing loans hii@wed us to optimize our return by quickly conwegtour nonperforming loans to cash, which can the
reinvested in earning assets. This strategy alswslus to avoid lengthy and costly legal procegslithat may occur with ngmerforming loans. We sold 34 delinqu
loans totaling $15.9 million, 72 delinquent loaotating $33.4 million, and 77 delinquent loans lioa$44.2 million during the years ended Decengier2014, 201
and 2012, respectively. We recorded net recovenedelinquent loans that were sold during 2014004 $nillion, compared to net chargéfs of $4.7 million and $5
million during 2013 and 2012, respectively. We izl gross gains of $67,000, $134,000 and $21,60Besale of delinquent loans for the years emismember 3:
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. We realizedgjtosses $81,000 and $69,000 on the sale of delmdoans for the years ended December 31, 20d2ah2
respectively. We did not record any gross lossemguhe year ended December 31, 2014. There camlmssurances that we will continue this straiegiture
periods, or if continued, we will be able to findylers to pay adequate consideration.

On mortgage loans or loan participations purchdmseds for whom the seller retains the servicingntsg we receive monthly reports with which we mor
the loan portfolio. Based upon servicing agreemevits the servicers of the loans, we rely upon skevicer to contact delinquent borrowers, colleglinduen
amounts and initiate foreclosure proceedings, wiesressary, all in accordance with applicable laagulations and the terms of the servicing agreé¢srisgtween
and our servicing agents. The servicers are redjiiresubmit monthly reports on their collectionoefs on delinquent loans. At December 31, 2014held $293.
million of loans that were serviced by others.

In the case of commercial business or other loaasgenerally send the borrower a written noticea@mfpayment when the loan is first past due. In thent
payment is not then received, additional lettexds @mone calls generally are made in order to ergmuthe borrower to meet with one of our represieetato discus
the delinquency. If the loan still is not broughtrrent and it becomes necessary for us to take &gi@n, which typically occurs after a loan ididguent 90 days «
more, we may attempt to repossess personal ordassproperty that secures an SBA loan, commergghbss loan or consumer loan.

Troubled Debt RestructuredWe have restructured certain problem loans fordweers who are experiencing financial difficultieg ®ither: reducing tt
interest rate until the next reset date, extentliegamortization period thereby lowering the monttyments, deferring a portion of the interestrpent, or changir
the loan to interest only payments for a limiteddiperiod. At times, certain problem loans havenbrestructured by combining more than one of tlogg®ns. Thes
restructurings have not included a reduction afigipal balance. We believe that restructuring tHeaas in this manner will allow certain borrowgéosbecome ar
remain current on their loans. These restructwadd are classified as troubled debt restructfiddR”). Loans which have been current for six consecutivatirs a
the time they are restructured as TDR remain oruatstatus. Loans which were delinquent at the tihey are restructured as a TDR are placed oranomal statt
until they have made timely payments for six contige months.

The following table shows our recorded investmaribans classified as TDR that are performing atiogrto their restructured terms at the periodscated:

At December 31

(Dollars in thousands 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Multi-family residentia $ 3,03t $ 3,087 $ 2,347 $ 941: $ 7,94¢€
Commercial real esta 2,37: 2,407 7,19( 2,49¢ 5,81t
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 2,381 2,692 2,33¢ 79t 20¢€
One-to-four family residentia 354 364 374 - -
Constructior - 74€ 3,80t 5,88¢ -
Commercial business and ott 2,24¢ 4,40¢ 3,84¢ 2,00(¢ -
Total performing troubled debt restructu $ 10,39: $ 13,70: $ 19,90 $ 20,59: $ 13,967

Loans that are restructured as TDR but are nobpaifg in accordance with the restructured terneseacluded from the TDR table above, as they areex
on non-accrual status and reported as penfierming loans. At December 31, 2014 and 201&ethvere two loans for $2.4 million and one loaaling $2.3 million
respectively, which were restructured as TDR wlhiehe not performing in accordance with their resticed terms.
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Delinquent Loans and Non-performing Assefée generally discontinue accruing interest on dglént loans when a loan is 90 days past due oclémere
proceedings have been commenced, whichever ficstrec At that time, previously accrued but unczibe interest is reversed from income. Loans imaée®0 day
or more as to their maturity date but not theirrpagpts, however, continue to accrue interest asasrtge borrower continues to remit monthly payment

The following table shows our ngrerforming assets, including Loans held for salehe dates indicated. During the years ended mbee 31, 2014, 20:
and 2012, the amounts of additional interest inctimé would have been recorded on raefual loans, had they been current, totaled $@libn, $3.4 million an
$7.3 million, respectively. These amounts wereimcitided in our interest income for the respectiegods.

At December 31

(Dollars in thousands 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing
Multi-family residentia $ 67¢ $ 52 §% - 8 6,287 $ 103
Commercial real esta 82C - - 92 3,32¢
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 40t - - - -
One-to-four family - residentia 14 15 - - -
Commercial Business and ott 38¢€ 53¢ 644 - 6
Total 2,301 60€ 644 6,37¢ 3,431
Non-accrual mortgage loans:
Multi-family residentia 6,87¢ 13,68: 16,48¢ 19,94¢ 35,63
Commercial real esta 5,68¢ 9,96: 15,64( 19,89¢ 22,80¢
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 6,93¢ 9,06: 18,28( 28,42¢ 30,47¢
One-to-four family residentia 11,244 13,25( 13,72¢ 12,76¢ 10,69¢
Ca-operative apartmen - 57 234 152 -
Constructior - - 7,69¢ 14,72 4,46
Total 30,74 46,01« 72,06: 95,90¢ 104,07

Non-accrual norn-mortgage loans:

Small Business Administratic - - 282 492 1,15¢
Commercial Business and ott 1,14 2,34¢ 16,86( 14,66( 3,41¢
Total 1,14 2,34¢ 17,14: 15,15? 4,57¢
Total non-accrual loans 31,89( 48,36 89,20« 111,06: 108,65!
Total non-performing loans 34,19: 48,96¢ 89,84¢ 117,44: 112,09:
Other non-performing assets:
Real Estate Owne 6,32¢ 2,98t 5,27¢ 3,17¢ 1,58¢
Investment securitie - 1,871 3,33 2,56z 5,13¢
Total 6,32¢ 4,85¢€ 8,61( 5,741 6,722
Total non-performing assets $ 40,517 $ 5382: $ 98,45¢ $ 123,18. $ 118,81«
Non-performing loans to gross loa 0.9(% 1.42% 2.7<% 3.65% 3.44%
Non-performing assets to total ass 0.8(% 1.14% 2.21% 2.81% 2.7%%
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The following table shows our delinquent loans tiratless than 90 days past due and still acciotagest at the periods indicated:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
60- 89 30-59 60- 89 30-59
days days days days
(In thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 1,72¢  $ 7721 % 3,68t $ 14,10:
Commercial real esta 1,34t 2,171 7,69¢ 5,02¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 1,15 10,40¢ 1,09¢ 14,01°
One-to-four family - residentia 2,03¢ 1,751 517 3,927
Cc-operative apartmen - - - -
Construction loan - 3,00(¢ 3,00(¢ -
Small Business Administratic - a0 - 10t
Taxi medallion - - - -
Commercial business and ot 1,58¢ 6 2 187
Total $ 785 $ 25147 $ 16,00 $ 37,36

Other Real Estate Owned We aggressively market our Other Real Estated€d(*OREQO”)properties. At December 31, 2014, we owned eigbpentie:
with a combined fair value of $6.3 million. At Deuber 31, 2013, we owned 12 properties with a costbifair value of $3.0 million. At December 31, 20%&
owned 11 properties with a combined fair value @83million.

Investment Securities Nonperforming investment securities included one pobdtest preferred security with a fair value of $illion at December 3
2013. This security was sold during 2014.

Environmental Concerns Relating to Loawée currently obtain environmental reports in conimecwith the underwriting of commercial real estédans, an
typically obtain environmental reports in connestigith the underwriting of multiamily loans. For all other loans, we obtain enmirental reports only if the natt
of the current or, to the extent known to us, puse of the property securing the loan indicatpstantial environmental risk. However, we may betaware of suc
uses or risks in any particular case, and, accglgithere is no assurance that real estate achhyreis in foreclosure is free from environmentaitamination or the
if any such contamination or other violation existhether we will have any liability.

Classified Assets.Our policy is to review our assets, focusing p@uiity on the loan portfolio, OREO and the investipaortfolios, to ensure that the cre
quality is maintained at the highest levels. Wheraknesses are identified, immediate action is tékeorrect the problem through direct contact whith borrower ¢
issuer. We then monitor these assets, and, in @coe with our policy and current regulatory guitks, we designate them as “Special Mentiovhich is considere
a “Criticized Asset,” and “Substandard,” “Doubtfubr “Loss” which are considered “Classified Assétas deemed necessary. These loan designationpdaee
quarterly. We designate an asset as Substandard awvelldefined weakness is identified that jeopardizesotiderly liquidation of the debt. We designate aseh a
Doubtful when it displays the inherent weaknesa 8ubstandard asset with the added provision thigction of the debt in full, on the basis of diig facts, is highl
improbable. We designate an asset as Loss ifieésned the debtor is incapable of repayment. Wntlbold any loans designated as loss, as loahsthaesignate
as Loss are charged to the Allowance for Loan Losaesets that are n@tcrual are designated as Substandard, Doubtlubgs. We designate an asset as Sy
Mention if the asset does not warrant designatiathiwione of the other categories, but does cordapotential weakness that deserves closer atterfian tota
Criticized and Classified assets were $76.5 milibDecember 31, 2014, a decrease of $53.7 millan $130.2 million at December 31, 2013.
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The following table sets forth the Bank's Criticizend Classified assets at December 31, 2014:

(In thousands Special Mentio  Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia $ 6,49¢ $ 10,22¢ $ - 8 - $ 16,72(
Commercial real esta 5,457 7,10C - - 12,55:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 5,25¢ 12,49¢ - - 17,75:¢
One-to-four family - residentia 2,352 13,05¢ - - 15,40
Cc-operative apartmen 622 - - - 622
Construction loan - - - - -
Small Business Administratic 47¢ - - - 47¢
Commercial business and ott 2,841 3,77¢ - - 6,62(
Total loans 23,49¢ 46,66( - - 70,15¢
Other Real Estate Owned - 6,32¢ - - 6,32¢
Total $ 23,49t $ 52,98¢ $ - % - $ 76,48
The following table sets forth the Bank's Criticizend Classified assets at December 31, 2013:
(In thousands Special Mentio  Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia $ 9,94( $ 19,08¢ $ - 8 - $ 29,02¢
Commercial real esta 13,50¢ 16,82( - - 30,32
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 7,992 14,89¢ - - 22,89(
One-to-four family - residentia 2,84¢ 14,02¢ - - 16,87«
Cc-operative apartmen - 59 - - 59
Construction loan 74€ - - - 74¢€
Small Business Administratic 31C - - - 31C
Commercial business and ot 7,31¢ 8,45( 50 - 15,81+«
Total loans 42,65 73,34 50 - 116,04}
Investment Securities: )
Pooled trust preferred securiti - 11,13« - - 11,134
Total investment securitie - 11,13« - - 11,13¢
Other Real Estate Own - 2,98t - - 2,98¢
Total $ 4265. $ 87,46 $ 50 $ - $ 130,16

(1) Our investment securities are classified as séesirétvailable for sale and as such are carriededt fair value in our Consolidated Financial Staats. The securities above had a fair value &
million at December 31, 2013. Under current applieaegulatory guidelines, we are required to diselthe classified investment securities, as shouime tables above, at their book values (amai
cost, or fair value for securities that are underfair value option). Additionally, the requireniémonly for the Banls securities. Flushing Financial Corporation ditl mve any securities classifiec
criticized at December 31, 2014 and 2C
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On a quarterly basis all mortgage loans that assdied as Substandard or Doubtful are intermayewed for impairment, based on updated cashsflm
income producing properties, or updated independpptaisals. The loan balances of collateral degrenidans reviewed for impairment are then compaoetthe
loans updated fair value . We consitir value of collateral dependent loans to be 83%he appraised or internally estimated valuehef property. The balan
which exceeds fair value is generally charged-gfdiast the allowance for loan losses. At Decemter 2014, the current loan-t@lue ratio on our collatel
dependent loans reviewed for impairment was 40.69%.

We classify investment securities as Substandaehwibased on an internal review, we concluded ébargies are below investment grade. We do noe
any investment securities classified as SubstarataPecember 31, 2014.

During 2014 we did not record any other-than-terapoimpairment (“OTTI")charges. During 2013 we recorded OTTI charges &f 8illion on four privat
issue collateralized mortgage obligations. During2we recorded OTTI charges of $0.8 million orefprivate issue collateralized mortgage obligations

Allowance for Loan Losses

We have established and maintain on our books lawatce for loan losses that is designed to progideserve against estimated losses inherent
overall loan portfolio. The allowance is establidhierough a provision for loan losses based on gemants evaluation of the risk inherent in the varioumponent
of the loan portfolio and other factors, includimigtorical loan loss experience (which is updatedrtgrly), current economic conditions, delinqueaog nonaccrua
trends, classified loan levels, risk in the poitfchnd volumes and trends in loan types, recendfén chargeffs, changes in underwriting standards, experis
ability and depth of our lenders, collection pagiand experience, internal loan review function ather external factors. Additionally, we segtedeour loans ini
two portfolios based on year of origination. Onetfmiio was reviewed for loans originated after Bewber 31, 2009 and a second portfolio for loangimated prior t
January 1, 2010. Our decision to segregate théofiorbased upon origination dates was based ongdmmade in our underwriting standards during 2B93he en
of 2009, all loans were being underwritten basedesised and tightened underwriting standards.nkaaiginated prior to 2010 have a higher delingyemate an
loss history. Each of the years in the portfolio lfzans originated prior to 2010 has a similar mpliency rate. The determination of the amount efaffowance fc
loan losses includes estimates that are suscepbildggnificant changes due to changes in appraeales of collateral, national and local econoroaditions an
other factors. We review our loan portfolio by segte categories with similar risk and collaterah@tteristics. Impaired loans are segregated anewed separatel
All non-accrual loans are classified impaired. limgé loans secured by collateral are reviewed basethe fair value of their collateral. For nooHateralize:
impaired loans, management estimates any recovisdsare anticipated for each loan. In connectiith the determination of the allowance, the mankatie o
collateral ordinarily is evaluated by our staff egiper. On a quarterly basis, the estimated valti@apaired mortgage loans are internally reviewsaked on updat
cash flows for income producing properties, antiraés an updated independent appraisal is obtaifibd.loan balances of collateral dependent imgddoans ar
then compared to the properyipdated fair value. We consider fair value ofatetal dependent loans to be 85% of the apprais@uternally estimated value of 1
property. The balance which exceeds fair valueeisegally chargedff. When evaluating a loan for impairment, we dut rely on guarantees, and the amoui
impairment, if any, is based on the fair valuehaf tollateral. We do not carry loans at a valuexicess of the fair value due to a guarantee franbthrower. Impaire
mortgage loans that were written down resulted foprarterly reviews or updated appraisals that atéid the propertiegstimated value had declined from wher
loan was originated. The Board of Directors redend approves the adequacy of the allowance dorllisses on a quarterly basis.
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In assessing the adequacy of the allowance, wewewlr loan portfolio by separate categories wihakie similar risk and collateral characteristics,,
multi-family residential, commercial real estat@eeto-four family mixed-use property, one-to-foanfily residential, cmperative apartment, construction, S
commercial business, taxi medallion and consunsrdoGeneral provisions are established againfdrpeng loans in our portfolio in amounts deemeddant base
on our qualitative analysis of the factors, inchglthe historical loss experience, delinquencydsesnd local economic conditions. The national lanel economie
were generally considered to be in a recession fBmoember 2007 through the middle of 2009. Thisilted in increased unemployment and declining pity
values, although the property value declines inroarket, the New York City metropolitan area, hae¢ been as great as many other areas of the gotile the
national and local economies have shown signs giamement since the middle of 2010, improvementsinemployment have lagged until recently wher
unemployment rate decreased to 6.3% at Decembdrf2frh 7.5% at December 2013, for the New York @dgion, according to the New York Department ofdue
The slow improvement in the level of unemploymeas had a negative effect on our loan portfolio. #erforming loans totaled $34.2 million and $49.0lion at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. ThekBamderwriting standards generally require a ftmmalue ratio of no more than 75% at the time then iz
originated. At December 31, 2014, the outstandiiigcjpal balance of our impaired mortgage loans lgas than 41% of the estimated current value @ftipportin
collateral, after considering the charge-offs thate been recorded. We incurred total net chaffgeof $0.7 million and $13.3 million during theegrs ende
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Thigdrgmment in net chargeffs allowed us to reduce the provision for loassks to a benefit of $6.0 million for
year ended December 31, 2014, from a provision res@ef $13.9 million and $21.0 million for the yeanded December 31, 2013 and 2012, respec
Management has concluded, and the Board of Direbi@ssconcurred, that at December 31, 2014, thevatioe was sufficient to absorb losses inherenumlaar
portfolio.

Our determination as to the classification of osseds and the amount of our valuation allowansaligect to review by our regulators, which can neqthe
establishment of additional general allowancespecsic loss allowances or require chaafés. Such authorities may require us to make &fdit provisions to tr
allowance based on their judgments about informagigailable to them at the time of their examinatid policy statement provides guidance for examsnie
determining whether the levels of general valuaglowances for banking institutions are adequ@ite policy statement requires that if a bangeneral valuatic
allowance policies and procedures are deemed tndalequate, recommendations for correcting defitées) including any examiner concerns regardingékel of
the allowance, should be noted in the report ofrémation. Additional supervisory action may alsothken based on the magnitude of the observedcsimoirigs it
the allowance process, including the materialitay error in the reported amount of the allowance.

Management believes that our current allowancedan losses is adequate in light of current econ@mmilitions, the composition of our loan portfolibe
level and type of delinquent loans, our level afssified loans, chargeffs recorded and other available information drelBoard of Directors concurs in this belief
December 31, 2014, the total allowance for loarsdsswas $25.1 million, representing 73.40% of nerfigpming loans and 61.94% of nperforming assel
compared to 64.89% of non-performing loans and88.0f nonperforming assets at December 31, 2013. We contma®onitor and, as necessary, modify the |
of our allowance for loan losses in order to mamthae allowance at a level which we consider adégio provide for probable loan losses based aiiladnle
information.

Many factors may require additions to the allowafareloan losses in future periods beyond thoseectly revealed. These factors include further agk
changes in economic conditions, changes in intea¢s$ and changes in the financial capacity afiddal borrowers (any of which may affect the @pibf borrower:
to make repayments on loans), changes in the seteemarket within our lending area and the vafumllateral, or a review and evaluation of owrgortfolio in th
future. The determination of the amount of thevadloce for loan losses includes estimates thatuseeptible to significant changes due to changepmaised valu
of collateral, national and local economic condisipinterest rates and other factors. In additiam,overall level of credit risk inherent in ourato portfolio can t
affected by the loan portfolio’s composition. At é@nber 31, 2014, multi-family residential, commalckeal estate, construction and one-to-four famiixed-use
property mortgage loans, totaled 82.2% of our gtoass. The greater risk associated with thesesloas well as business loans, could require uad@ase ol
provisions for loan losses and to maintain an alloge for loan losses as a percentage of total kbamss in excess of the allowance we currentlyntain. Provision
for loan losses are charged against net income.“-Sé&ending Activities” and “—Asset Quality.”
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The following table sets forth changes in, andit@lance of, our allowance for loan losses.

At and for the years ended December

(Dollars in thousands 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of ye $ 31,77¢  $ 31,10 $ 30,34 $ 27,69¢ $ 20,32
Provision (benefit) for loan loss (6,02]) 13,93¢ 21,00( 21,50( 21,00(
Loans charge-off:
Multi-family residentia (1,167) (3,58%) (6,01¢) (6,807) (5,790
Commercial real esta (325) (2,05)) (2,74¢) (5,172) (2,685)
One-to-four family mixec-use propert (423) (4,20¢) (4,28¢6) (2,649 (2,580)
One-to-four family residentia (209%) (701) (1,587 (2,22¢) (236)
Cc-operative apartmel - (10¢) (62) - -
Constructior - (2,67¢) (4,59)) (1,08¢) (1,879
SBA (49) (457) (329) (871) (925)
Commercial business and other lo. (381) (2,057) (1,667 (642) (500)
Total loans chargeoff (2,4472) (14,847 (21,269 (19,450 (14,599
Recoveries
Mortgage loan: 1,51¢ 1,407 83¢ 52z 188
SBA, commercial business and other lo 26€ 17z 191 72 787
Total recoverie! 1,78: 1,58( 1,02¢ 59t 97C
Net charg-offs (659 (13,269 (20,240 (18,855 (13,62%)
Balance at end of ye. $ 25,09¢ $ 31,77¢  $ 31,10¢  $ 30,34« $ 27,69¢
Ratio of net charc-offs during the year to average loans outstanduring the yee 0.02% 0.41% 0.64% 0.5%% 0.42%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to gross lodrend of the yee 0.6€% 0.92% 0.97% 0.94% 0.85%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to -performing loans at the end of the y 73.4(% 64.8% 34.62% 25.8%% 24.71%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to -performing assets at the end of the y 61.94% 59.0/% 31.5¢% 24.62% 23.31%
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The following table sets forth our allocation ofetlallowance for loan losses to the total amountoahs in each of the categories listed at the
indicated. The numbers contained in the “Amowdfumn indicate the allowance for loan losses alled for each particular loan category. The numbentained i
the column entitled “Percentage of Loans in CategoiTotal Loans'indicate the total amount of loans in each parsicahtegory as a percentage of our loan portf

At December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Percen Percen Percen Percen Percen
of Loans ir of Loans ir of Loans ir of Loans ir of Loans ir
Category t Category t Category t Category t Category t
Loan Categon Amount Total loans Amount Total loans Amount Total loans Amount Total loans Amount Total loan:
(Dollars in thousands
Mortgage loans
Multi-family residentia $ 8,82i 50.6 $ 12,08¢ 50.09% $ 13,00: 47.62% $ 11,26" 43.28% $ 9,007 38.41%
Commercial real esta 4,20z 16.3¢ 4,95¢ 14.97 5,70¢ 16.0( 5,21( 18.07% 4,90¢ 20.3¢
One-to-four family mixec-use
property 5,84( 15.1(¢ 6,32¢ 17.4C 5,96( 19.7¢ 5,31¢ 21.5¢ 5,991 22.3¢
One-to-four family residentia 1,69( 4,94 2,07¢ 5.6€ 1,99¢ 6.1¢ 1,64¢ 6.8¢ 93¢ 7.4C
Cc-operative apartmel - 0.2¢€ 104 0.3C 46 0.2C 8C 0.17 17 0.1¢
Constructior 42 0.1< 444 0.1Z 66 0.4¢ 66¢ 1.47 58¢ 2.3z
Gross mortgage loar 20,60: 87.4¢ 25,99¢ 88.47 26,77 90.2¢ 24,18¢ 91.4¢ 21,45 91.01
Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic 27¢ 0.1¢ 45¢ 0.2¢ 50& 0.2¢ 987 0.4< 1,30: 0.5¢
Taxi Medallion 11 0.5¢ - 0.3¢ 7 0.31 41 1.6¢ 63¢ 2.71
Commercial business and ot} 4,20t 11.7¢ 5,32( 10.92 3,81¢ 9.1¢ 5,12¢ 6.4% 4,30¢ 5.7¢
Gross no-mortgage loan 4,49¢ 12.5¢ 5,77¢ 11.5¢ 4,32 9.7¢ 6,15¢ 8.5¢ 6,24¢ 8.9¢
Total loans $ 25,09¢ 100.00% $ 31,77¢ 100.0% $ 31,10« 100.00% $ 30,34« 100.0% $ 27,69¢ 100.0%
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Investment Activities

General. Our investment policy, which is approved by theRbof Directors, is designed primarily to mandgeihterest rate sensitivity of our overall as
and liabilities, to generate a favorable returrhaitt incurring undue interest rate and credit riskcomplement our lending activities and to prevahd maintai
liquidity. In establishing our investment strategieve consider our business and growth stratetfieseconomic environment, our interest rate risgosure, ot
interest rate sensitivity “gap” position, the typafssecurities to be held, and other factors. 9darfagemeng Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiorl
Results of Operations — Overview—Management Strétegijem 7 of this Annual Report.

Although we have authority to invest in variousdgmf assets, we primarily invest in mortgdigeked securities, securities issued by mutuabadBund:
that invest in government and government agencyrigms, municipal bonds and corporate bonds. Vdendit hold any issues of foreign sovereign delidextembe
31, 2014 and 2013.

Our Investment Committee meets quarterly to moniteestment transactions and to establish invedtragategy. The Board of Directors reviews
investment policy on an annual basis and investaeintity on a monthly basis.

We classify our investment securities as availdbiesale. We carry some of our investments underf#lir value option. Unrealized gains and losse
investments carried under the fair value option iacduded in our Consolidated Statements of Incobierealized gains and losses on the remaining imess
portfolio, other than unrealized credit losses agred other than temporary, are excluded fromiegsrmand included in Accumulated Other Comprehenbicome (
separate component of equity), net of taxes. Atebreser 31, 2014, we had $973.3 million in securifieailable for sale, which represented 19.17% t#l tasset:
These securities had an aggregate market valuecaniber 31, 2014 that was approximately 2.1 tilmesmount of our equity at that date.

There were no credit related OTTI charges recodigthg the year ended December 31, 2014. Durid® 2@ recorded OTTI charges of $1.4 million on
private issue collateralized mortgage obligatidhsting 2012 we recorded OTTI charges of $0.8 millan five private issue collateralized mortgagdgattions. Wi
sold these private issue collateralized mortgadigations during 2013. As a result of the magnite@®ur holdings of securities available for salleanges in intere
rates could produce significant changes in theevafusuch securities and could produce signififiaistuations in our operating results and equiBed Notes 6 and
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsuoheti in Item 8 of this Annual Report.)
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The table below sets forth certain information relgeay the amortized cost and market values of egusties portfolio, interestarning deposits and fede
funds sold, at the dates indicated. Securitiedalaifor sale are recorded at market value. (Seed\6 and 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financete&tents, include
in Item 8 of this Annual Report.)

At December 31
2014 2013 2012
Amortized Market Amortized Market Amortized Market
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value

(In thousands
Securities available for sale
Bonds and other debt securiti

U.S. government and agenc $ - % -8 -8 - % 31,40¢ $ 31,51:
Municipal securitiet 145,86- 148,89¢ 127,96 123,42 74,22¢ 75,29°
Corporate debenturt 90,71¢ 91,27: 100,36: 101,71: 83,38¢ 87,48¢
Total bonds and other debt securities 236,58: 240,16¢ 228,32¢ 225,13: 189,02¢ 194,29¢
Mutual funds 21,11¢ 21,11¢ 21,56¢ 21,56¢ 21,84 21,84
Equity securities
Common stocl 864 864 88¢ 88¢ 71€ 71€
Preferred stoc 6,23¢ 6,22¢ 17,27 14,04" 17,07¢ 12,597
Total equity securitie 7,09¢ 7,09C 18,16( 14,93¢ 17,79° 13,31t
Mortgage-backed securitiet
FNMA 169,95¢ 170,36 217,61! 212,32: 168,04( 175,92¢
REMIC and CMC 504,20 505,76¢ 494,98 489,67( 453,46¢ 474,05(
FHLMC 14,50¢ 14,63¢ 13,29° 13,29( 22,56: 23,20:
GNMA 13,86: 14,15¢ 38,97« 40,87 43,21: 46,93:
Total mortgag-backed securitie 702,53( 704,93: 764,87( 756,15t 687,28 720,11:
Total securities available for se 967,32¢ 973,31( 1,032,92. 1,017,791 915,94 949,56¢
Interest-earning deposits anc
Federal funds sold 22,97 22,97 23,74¢ 23,74¢ 31,27¢ 31,27¢
Total $ 990,30t $ 99628 $ 105667 $ 1,04153 $ 947,22t $ 980,84

Mortgage-backed securitiesAt December 31, 2014, we had $704.9 million inedsn mortgagdsacked securities, of which $6.3 million was ineeksir
adjustable-rate mortgage-backed securities. Thégage loans underlying these adjustatle- securities generally are subject to limitagion annual and lifetin
interest rate increases. We anticipate that inverstsnin mortgage-backed securities may continumtosed in the future to supplement mortglegeling activities
Mortgagebacked securities are more liquid than individuaktgage loans and may be used more easily to edllae our obligations, including collateralizio€
the governmental deposits of the Bank.
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The following table sets forth our mortgage-backedurities purchases, sales and principal repayfenthe years indicated:

For the years ended December
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands

Balance at beginning of ye $ 756,15t $ 720,111 $ 747,28t
Purchases of mortga-backed securitie 125,89° 357,02: 141,51
Amortization of unearned premium, net of accretbrmnearned discoul (2,699 (3,577) (3,269
Net change in unrealized gains on mort--backed securities available for s 11,110 (41,54¢ 6,591
Net realized gains (losses) recorded on mori-backed securities carried at fair va 84 (589 (381)
Net change in interest due on securities carriédiavalue ()] (62) (51)
Sales of mortga¢-backed securitie (85,02)) (126,849 (12,590
Otherthar-temporary impairment charg - (1,419 (77€)
Principal repayments received on mort¢-backed securitie (100,599 (146,939 (158,21))

Net increase (decrease) in mortc-backed securitie (51,229 36,04 (27,175
Balance at end of ye. $ 70493 $ 756,15¢ $ 720,11

While mortgagebacked securities carry a reduced credit risk aspeoed to whole loans, such securities remain sulpethe risk that a fluctuating inter
rate environment, along with other factors suclhasgeographic distribution of the underlying madg loans, may alter the prepayment rate of suctgage loar
and so affect both the prepayment speed and vakugch securities. We do not own any derivativérimaents that are extremely sensitive to changegeénest rates.
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The table below sets forth certain information relgay the amortized cost, fair value, annualizedgivied average yields and maturities of our investnir
debt and equity securities and intereatning deposits at December 31, 2014. The statifin of balances is based on stated maturitigsitfsecurities are shown
immediately maturing, except for preferred stockthwstated redemption dates, which are shown inptréod they are scheduled to be redeemed. Assongpto
repayments and prepayments are not reflected fotgagebacked securities. We carry these investmentseat ¢istimated fair value in the consolidated final
statements.

One year or Les One to Five Year Five to Ten Year More than Ten Yeat Total Securitie:
Average
Weighte( Weightec Weightec Weightec Remaining Estimater Weightec
Amortizec  Average Amortizec Average Amortizec Average Amortizec  Average Yearsto Amortizec  Fair Average
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Maturity Cost Value Yield
(Dollars in thousands
Securities
available for
sale
Bonds anc
other debt
securities
Municipal
securities $ 7,43 0.5%$% 8C 1.3(%$ 18,62( 4.3(%$ 119,73« 4.4% 16.21 $ 145,86« $ 148,89t 4.26%
Corporate
debentures 4,991 0.7: 35,72 1.9¢ 50,00( 1.6€ - - 5.74 90,71¢  91,27¢ iL7E
Total
bonds
and
other
debt
securitie 12,42° 0.62 35,80: 1.9¢ 68,62( 2.3¢ 119,73« 4.4¢ 12.2( 236,58 240,16! 3.2¢
Mutual funds 21,11¢ 1.7¢€ - - - - - - N/A 21,118 21,11¢ 1.7¢
Equity
securities
Common
stock - - - - - - 864 3.57 N/A 864 864 3.57
Preferrec
stock - - - - - - 6,23¢ 7.07 N/A 6,234 6,22¢ 7.07
Total
equity
securitie - - - - - - 7,09¢ 6.64 N/A 7,09¢ 7,09( 6.64
Mortgage-
backed
securities
FNMA - - 4,98t 1.97 78,17 2.6¢ 86,79« 2.97 12.37 169,95¢ 170,36 2.81
REMIC and
CMO - - 95 3.51 14,68« 4.4¢4 489,42¢ 2.91 23.7: 504,200 505,76¢ 2.9t
FHLMC - - 9 2.1¢ 2,03t 4.64 12,46 2.5¢4 11.6¢ 14,50F  14,63¢ 2.8¢
GNMA - - - - - - 13,86 3.44 16.9¢ 13,862  14,15¢ 3.44
Total
mortgag
-backed
securitie - - 5,08¢ 2.0C 94,89¢ 2.9¢ 602,54! 2.92 20.5¢ 702,53( 704,93: 2.9:
Interest-
earning
deposits 22,97: 0.2F - - - - - - N/A 22,977 22,97. 0.2¢
Total $ 56,52: 0.89%$ 40,89: 1.96% $ 163,51t 2.70% $ 729,37 3.22% 18.4¢ $ 990,30¢ $ 996,28 2.95%
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Sources of Funds

General. Deposits, FHLB-NY borrowings, repurchase agreets, principal and interest payments on loans.tgagebacked and other securities,
proceeds from sales of loans and securities arpromary sources of funds for lending, investing ather general purposes.

Deposits. We offer a variety of deposit accounts havingrayeaof interest rates and terms. Our depositsariiynconsist of savings accounts, money mz
accounts, demand accounts, NOW accounts and catéifi of deposit. We have a relatively stable Ird&gposit base drawn from our market area throughl@ full-
service offices. We seek to retain existing deposielationships by offering quality service andnpetitive interest rates, while keeping depositwghowithin
reasonable limits. It is managemenititention to balance its goal to maintain contjpetiinterest rates on deposits while seeking toaga its cost of funds to finar
its strategies.

In addition to our full-service offices we have iternet branch “iGObanking.cofh”, which currently offers savings accounts, money m@dccount:
checking accounts, and certificates of deposits BHbws us to compete on a national scale witltreigeographical constraints of physical locati@isce the numb
of U.S. households with accounts at Wetly banks has grown, our strategy was to joinrttaket place by creating a branch that offers tdighe simplicity an
flexibility of a virtual online bank, which is awdsion of a stable, traditional bank that was d&thbd in 1929. At December 31, 2014 and 2013 weposits for tt
internet branch were $281.6 million and $293.3ioml| respectively.

We have a government banking division, which ptaoothe Merger operated as the Commercial Bank, a Xesk Stateehartered commercial bank, wh
provided banking services to public municipalitiessluding counties, cities, towns, villages, sdhdigtricts, libraries, fire districts, and the i@rs courts througho
the New York City metropolitan area as an additiamarce of deposits. At December 31, 2014 and 2818l deposits in our government banking divisiotalec
$891.9 million and $867.1 million, respectively.

Our core deposits, consisting of savings accolN@®)V accounts, money market accounts, andintarest bearing demand accounts, are typicallyerstabl
and lower costing than other sources of fundingweber, the flow of deposits into a particular typleaccount is influenced significantly by geneealonomi
conditions, changes in prevailing money market ather interest rates, and competition. We expeeéran increase in our Due to depositaks’ing 2014 of $272
million. During the year ended December 31, 20hé, dost of Due to depositordecreased 12 basis points to 0.97% from 1.09%hferyear ended December
2013. This decrease in the cost of deposits imaily attributable to the Bank’reducing the rates it pays on its deposit pradiwhile we are unable to predict
direction of future interest rate changes, if iatrrates rise during 2015, the result could b&earease in our cost of deposits, which could redower net intere
margin. Similarly, if interest rates remain at thairrent level or decline in 2015, we could segeeline in our cost of deposits, which could inseaur net intere
margin.

Included in deposits are certificates of deposthwalances of $100,000 or more (excluding brokelepbsits issued in $1,000.00 amounts under a r
certificate of deposit) totaling $403.1 million, 384 million and $393.7 million at December 31, 202013 and 2012, respectively.

We utilize brokered deposits as an additional fngdiource and to assist in the management of tenest rate risk. We have obtained brokered ceatifis ¢
deposit when the interest rate on these depoditsidasv the prevailing interest rate for nbrekered certificates of deposit with similar métas in our market, or whe
obtaining them allowed us to extend the maturitiesur deposits at favorable rates compared toolong funds with similar maturities, when we arelgag tc
extend the maturities of our funding to assisthie tnanagement of our interest rate risk. Brokeeztificates of deposit provide a large deposit dsrat a lowe
operating cost as compared to rwokered certificates of deposit since we only heame account to maintain versus several accourtts miltiple interest ar
maturity checks. The Depository Trust Company eduss the clearing house, maintaining each depodér the name of CEDE & Co. These deposits ansfeeabli
just like a stock or bond investment and the custotan open the account with only a phone calt, liks buying a stock or bond. Unlike r-brokered certificates
deposit, where the deposit amount can be withdnaitin a penalty for any reason, including increasimgrest rates, a brokered certificate of deposit only b
withdrawn in the event of the death, or court dexlamental incompetence, of the depositor. Thiswallus to better manage the maturity of our depasit oL
interest rate risk. We also utilized brokers toaiiimoney market account deposits. The rate weopayrokered money market accounts is the samelawhbe rat
we pay on norbrokered money market accounts, and the rate isedgio in a contract between the Bank and the brdkeese accounts are similar to broks
certificates of deposit accounts in that we onlyntzén one account for the total deposit per brokéth the broker maintaining the detailed recasfisach depositor.
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We also offer access to FDIC insurance coveragxadess of $250,000 through a Certificate of Depls@ount Registry Service (“CDARS®3nd throug
an Insured Cash Sweep service (“ICS”). CDAR&® ICS are deposit placement services. These retvaorange for placement of funds into certificateleposi
accounts or money market accounts issued by otkenb@r banks of the network in increments of less 250,000 to ensure that both principal and estear:
eligible for full FDIC deposit insurance. This alle us to accept deposits in excess of $250,000 &afepositor, and place the deposits through theonle to othe
member banks to provide full FDIC deposit insuranoeerage. We may receive deposits from other meiéeks in exchange for the deposits we place tim
network. We may also obtain deposits from othewngt member banks without placing deposits intortevork. We will obtain deposits in this mannengarily as
a shortterm funding source. We also can place depositis atiher member banks without receiving depositsnfaither member banks. Depositors are allowt
withdraw funds, with a penalty, from these accowitene or more of the member banks that hold #posits. Additionally, during 2014 we shifted appnoately
$94.0 million in Government NOW deposits to an I@Bkered money market product which does not requsrto provide collateral. This will allow us tovest ou
funds in higher yielding assets.

We also utilize brokers to obtain money market actaeposits. These accounts are similar to brokegetificate of deposit accounts in that we onbimtair
one account for the total deposit per broker, withbroker maintaining the detailed records of efegositor.

Brokered deposits and funds obtained through thRE® and ICS networks are classified as brokered depdait financial reporting purposes.
December 31, 2014, we had $763.9 million classifietrokered deposits, with $583.7 million in brekkcertificates of deposit and $180.2 million mokered mone
market accounts. The brokered certificates of defodude $9.3 million obtained through the CDARS®®twork and the brokered money market accountsidie
$107.0 million obtained through the ICS network.
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The following table sets forth the distributionafr deposit accounts at the dates indicated andiéighted average nominal interest rates on eaegag/ o

deposits presented.

At December 31

2014 2013 2012
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Percen Average Percen Average Percen Average
of Total Nominal of Total Nominal of Total Nominal
Amount Deposits Rate Amount Deposits Rate Amount Deposits Rate
(Dollars in thousands
Savings accoun $ 261,94 7.41% 0.3¢% $ 265,00: 8.2(% 0.1¢% $ 288,39¢ 9.56% 0.1<%
NOW account: 1,359,05 38.7¢ 0.4t 1,416,77. 43.8: 0.5C 1,136,59 37.7( 0.57
Demand accouni 255,83¢ 7.2¢ - 197,34¢ 6.1C - 155,78¢ 5.17 -
Mortgagors' escrow depos 35,67¢ 1.02 0.0¢ 32,79¢ 1.01 0.0¢ 32,56( 1.0¢ 0.0¢
Total 1,912,51. 54.5] 0.37 1,911,91 59.1¢ 0.4C 1,613,34! 53.51] 0.44
Money market accoun(8) 290,26: 8.27 0.32 199,90° 6.1¢ 0.21 148,61¢ 4.9¢ 0.1f
Certificate of deposit accour
with original maturities of
Less than 6 Month(2) 7,05¢ 0.2C 0.1C 10,11¢ 0.31 0.17 58,70t 1.9 0.22
6 to less than 12 Montt(3) 82,96¢ 2.3¢€ 0.8C 20,67: 0.64 0.1z 25,147 0.8: 0.1:
12 to less than 30 Montl(4) 275,82¢ 7.8¢€ 0.8¢ 246,41¢ 7.62 0.87 319,48 10.6( 0.94
30 to less than 48 Montl(5) 198,29( 5.6t 1.0¢ 132,96! 4.11 1.1¢€ 155,14: 5.1¢ L7
48 to less than 72 Montl(6) 622,90¢ 17.7¢ 2.0€ 585,20 18.1( 2.5C 565,59: 18.7¢ 2.71
72 Months or mor(?) 118,77: 3.3¢ 2.8¢ 125,58« 3.8¢ 3.2¢ 129,15¢ 4.2¢ 3.27
Total certificate of depos
accounts 1,305,82 37.2: 1.65 1,120,95! 34.61 2.01 1,253,22! 41.5¢ 2.04
Total deposity(1) $3,508,59: 100.0(% 0.84% $3,232,78I 100.0(% 0.94% $3,015,19: 100.0(% 1.0%%

1) Included in the above balances are IRA and Keoglosits totaling $91.0 million, $117.4 million andi48.4 million at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 26dshectively
2) Includes brokered deposits of $3.0 million, $4.8iom and $53.0 million at December 31, 2014, 2@b8 2012, respectivel

3) Includes brokered deposits of $5.7 million, $0.8iom and $0.8 million at December 31, 2014, 20h8 2012, respectivel

(4) Includes brokered deposits of $85.9 million, $1@ilion and $20.9 million at December 31, 2014, 2@hd 2012, respectivel
(5) Includes brokered deposits of $145.2 million, $20%illion and $70.0 million at December 31, 201@12 and 2012, respective
(6) Includes brokered deposits of $271.4 million, $862illion and $314.6 million at December 31, 202813 and 2012, respective
()] Includes brokered deposits of $72.4 million, $68illion and $62.9 million at December 31, 2014, 2@hd 2012, respectivel

(8) Includes brokered deposits of $180.2 million an@.57million at December 31, 2014 and 2C
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The following table presents by various rate catiegpthe amount of time deposit accounts outstandt the dates indicated, and the years to maiofrithe
certificate accounts outstanding at December 31420

At December 31, 201
At December 31 Within One to
2014 2013 2012 One Yeal Three Year: Thereaftel Total
(In thousands

Interest rate

1.99% or les: 1 s 817,10 $ 543,75¢ $ 571,10¢ $ 284,427 $ 411,39¢ $ 121,27 $ 817,10(
2.00% to 2.99% (2) 301,44! 212,97: 279,69¢ 32,10¢ 65,41¢ 203,92( 301,44!
3.00% to 3.99% (3) 184,17: 344,88 370,57( 135,65 22,95: 25,56 184,17
4.00% to 4.99% 14 30¢ 10,30¢ 14 = = 14
5.00% to 5.99% 3,092 19,03¢ 21,54« 3,092 - - 3,092

Total $ 130582 $ 1,12095 $ 1,25322¢ $ 455,29t $ 499,77(  $ 350,757 $ 1,305,82:

(1) Includes brokered deposits of $435.3 million, $204illion and $221.5 million at December 31, 202@13 and 2012, respective
(2) Includes brokered deposits of $83.1 million, $108ifion and $152.1 million at December 31, 201@12 and 2012, respective
(3) Includes brokered deposits of $65.3 million, $138iBion and $148.5 million at December 31, 201@12 and 2012, respective

The following table presents by remaining matucityegories the amount of certificate of deposibants with balances of $100,000 or more at Decerdb.
2014 and their annualized weighted average inteasss.

Weighted
Amount Average Rat
(Dollars in thousands

Maturity Period:

Three months or les $ 70,52« 1.75%
Over three through six mont 37,54¢ 1.92
Over six through 12 montt 46,59 1.1¢
Over 12 month: 248,48( 1.87
Total $ 403,14« 1.71%

The above table does not include brokered depissited in $1,000.00 amounts under a master ceattfiof deposit totaling $582.3 million with a wetigth
average rate of 1.52%.

The following table presents the deposit activiitgjuding mortgagors’ escrow deposits, for the pdsiindicated.

For the year ended December

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands
Net deposits (withdrawal: $ 244,831 $ 184,47¢ $ (172,519
Amortization of premiums, n¢ 944 1,08( 1,08t
Interest on deposi 30,04+ 32,037 40,38
Net increase (decrease) in depo $ 275,81t $ 217,58 $ (131,057
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The following table sets forth the distributionaifr average deposit accounts for the years indic#te percentage of total deposit portfolio, amel dverag
interest cost of each deposit category preserdedrage balances for all years shown are derivam filaily balances.

At December 31

2014 2013 2012
Percen Percen Percen
Average of Total Average Average of Total Average Average of Total Average
Balance Deposits Cost Balance Deposits Cost Balance Deposits Cost

(Dollars in thousands

Savings account $ 258,24 7.7(% 0.23% $ 274,79: 8.7% 0.19% $ 317,09* 10.11% 0.22%
NOW account: 1,390,89 41.47 0.4t 1,291,86. 41.0¢ 0.52Z 1,025,111 32.61 0.61
Demand account 211,38¢ 6.3C - 169,19( 5.37 - 134,16¢ 4.2¢ -
Mortgagors' escrow depos 47,87¢ 1.4% 0.2¢ 46,217 1.47 0.0¢€ 41,97: 1.34 0.0¢
Total 1,908,40 56.9( 0.37 1,782,05! 56.61 0.41 1,518,35! 48.4( 0.4¢
Money market accoun 245,75 7.3 0.27 180,21: 5.72 0.1€ 175,81° 5.6C 0.2
Certificate of deposit accour 1,199,84 35.71 1.87 1,185,69! 37.67 2.0€ 1,443,19! 46.0( 2.2¢
Total depositt $3,354,00: 100.0% 0.9(% $3,147,96! 100.0% 1.02% $3,137,36. 100.0(% 1.25%

Borrowings. Although deposits are our primary source of furwig,also use borrowings as an alternative and dfesttiee source of funds for lendir
investing and other general purposes. The Bankneember of, and is eligible to obtain advances frdre FHLBNY. Such advances generally are secured
blanket lien against the Bank’s mortgage portf@itd the Bank’s investment in the stock of the FHLB- In addition, the Bank may pledge mortgdggeke:
securities to obtain advances from the FHLB-NY. SeeRegulation — Federal Home Loan Bank System.& ileximum amount that the FHLBY will advance fo
purposes other than for meeting withdrawals flugtsidrom time to time in accordance with the peticof the FHLBNY. The Bank may also enter into repurct
agreements with broker-dealers and the FHN'B-These agreements are recorded as financingactions and the obligations to repurchase arectefi as a liabilit
in our consolidated financial statements. In additiwe issued junior subordinated debentures withiad par of $61.9 million in June and July 200hese junic
subordinated debentures are carried at fair valtled Consolidated Statement of Financial Condifidre average cost of borrowings was 2.49%, 2.3882298% fo
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 284/ atively. The average balances of borrowinge $e83.8 million, $953.2 million and $767.6 millidor the
same years, respectively.
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The following table sets forth certain informati@yarding our borrowings at or for the periods ehole the dates indicated.

At or for the years ended December
2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands

Securities Sold with the Agreement to Repurchas

Average balance outstandi $ 137,82¢ $ 172,94 $ 185,30(
Maximum amount outstanding at any moend during the perio 155,30( 185,30( 185,30(
Balance outstanding at the end of pel 116,00( 155,30( 185,30(
Weighted average interest rate during the pe 5.31% 3.42% 3.62%
Weighted average interest rate at end of pe 3.1¢ 3.41 3.47
FHLB -NY Advances

Average balance outstandi $ 826,13] $ 754,308 $ 557,14
Maximum amount outstanding at any moend during the perio 936,81« 864,86« 739,18:
Balance outstanding at the end of pel 911,72: 827,25 739,18:
Weighted average interest rate during the pe 2.02% 2.02% 2.32%
Weighted average interest rate at end of pe 1.44 1.4¢ 1.72
Other Borrowings

Average balance outstandi $ 29,83 % 2593¢ $ 25,19:
Maximum amount outstanding at any moend during the perio 30,35: 29,57( 26,38¢
Balance outstanding at the end of pel 28,77 29,57( 23,92:
Weighted average interest rate during the pe 5.3(% 6.17% 12.65%
Weighted average interest rate at end of pe 5.9¢ 5.67 6.9z
Total Borrowings

Average balance outstandi $ 993,79C $ 953,18 $ 767,63t
Maximum amount outstanding at any moend during the perio 1,112,20 1,067,171 948,40!
Balance outstanding at the end of pel 1,056,49: 1,012,12; 948,40!
Weighted average interest rate during the pe 2.4% 2.3% 2.98%
Weighted average interest rate at end of pe 1.7 1.9C 2.21
Subsidiary Activities

At December 31, 2014, Flushing Financial Corporatiad four wholly owned subsidiaries: the Bank #r Trusts. In addition, the Bank had three wt
owned subsidiaries: FSB Properties Inc. (“Propgf}jd-lushing Preferred Funding Corporation (“FPEGihd Flushing Service Corporation.

(a) Properties, which is incorporatecttie State of New York, was formed in 1976 under $lawings Banls New York State leeway investm
authority. The original purpose of Properties waengage in joint venture real estate equity itmests. The Savings Bank discontinued these degvin 1986. Th
last joint venture in which Properties was a partmas dissolved in 1989. The last remaining propacquired by the dissolution of these joint veesuwas dispost
of in 1998. Properties is currently used to hdlé tio real estate owned that is obtained via fosge.

(b) FPFC, which is incorporated in that8tof Delaware, was formed in 1997 as a realegtaestment trust for the purpose of acquirindding anc
managing real estate mortgage assets. FPFC aldgs@n additional vehicle for access by the Campa the capital markets for future opportunities.

(c) Flushing Service Corporation, whishricorporated in the State of New York, was forrimeti998 to market insurance products and mutuadsu
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Personnel

At December 31, 2014, we had 407 full-time emplayaed 17 partime employees. None of our employees are repredént a collective bargaining ui
and we consider our relationship with our employteelse good. At the present time, Flushing Findn€@rporation only employs certain officers of tAank. Thes
employees do not receive any extra compensatioffiasrs of Flushing Financial Corporation.

Omnibus Incentive Plan

The 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“2014 Omnibus Bl&ecame effective on May 20, 2014 after adoptionheyBoard of Directors and approval by
stockholders. The 2014 Omnibus Plan authorizesCiipensation Committee of the Company’s Board ae®@ors (the “Compensation Committeéd) grant
variety of equity compensation awards as well agterm and annual cash incentive awards, all of whaii but need not, be structured so as to comitfySectior
162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asndex (the “Internal Revenue CodeThe 2014 Omnibus Plan authorizes the issuancel6DX000 shares. To t
extent that an award under the 2014 Omnibus Plaariselled, expired, forfeited, settled in caslttlest by issuance of fewer shares than the numbeenlying thi
award, or otherwise terminated without deliverysbfres to a participant in payment of the exerpig=e or taxes relating to an award, the sharesned by o
returned to the Company will be available for fetissuance under the 2014 Omnibus Plan. No fugivards may be granted under the Compa2@05 Omnibt
Incentive Plan, 1996 Stock Option Incentive Plard 4996 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan. At Decan3ide 2014, there were 1,097,200 shares availablddlivery
in connection with awards under the 2014 Omnibas Pl

For additional information concerning this plane $Blote 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Stegets” in Item 8 of this Annual Report.
FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL TAXATION

The following discussion of tax matters is intendatly as a summary and does not purport to be gmmnsive description of the tax rules applicdline
Company.

Federal Taxation

General. We report our income using a calendar year aadaticrual method of accounting. We are subjetitédederal tax laws and regulations wl
apply to corporations generally, and, since thetnent of the Small Business Job Protection Adt3%6 (the “Act”), those laws and regulations gowegrthe Banks
deductions for bad debts, described below.

Bad Debt ReservesPrior to the enactment of the Act, which was s@jimto law on August 20, 1996, savings instituierhich met certain definitional te
primarily relating to their assets and the natdrtheir business (“qualifying thrifts”such as the Savings Bank, were allowed deductmmiad debts under methe
more favorable than those granted to other taxgaygwalifying thrifts could compute deductions bad debts using either the specific charge off owethf Sectio
166 of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”)he reserve method of Section 593 of the Codeti@ 1616(a) of the Act repealed the Sectionrg38rve method
accounting for bad debts by qualifying thrifts,egffive for taxable years beginning after 1995. @yiny thrifts that are treated as large bankshsas the Savini
Bank, are required to use the specific charge @fhod, pursuant to which the amount of any debt bexgleducted only as it actually becomes whollpantially
worthless.

Distributions. To the extent that the Bank makes “non-dividerstrifiutions” to stockholders that are consideredesult in distributions from its pr&98¢
reserves or the supplemental reserve for lossésamis (“excess distributions”), then an amount Basethe amount distributed will be included in Benk’s taxabl
income. Non-dividend distributions include distrilons in excess of the Bank’s current and d®@81 accumulated earnings and profits, as calallfite federe
income tax purposes, distributions in redemptiosto€k and distributions in partial or completailption. The amount of additional taxable incaesulting from a
excess distribution is an amount that when redibgette tax attributable to the income is equah® amount of the excess distribution. Thus, diygmore than or
and onehalf times the amount of the excess distributiomenaould be includable in gross income for federabme tax purposes, assuming a 35% federal cdg
income tax rate. See “Regulatidh Restrictions on Dividends and Capital Distributibrier limits on the payment of dividends by the Barikhe Bank does n
intend to pay dividends or make non-dividend disitions described above that would result in apeea of any portion of its pre-1988 bad debt reser

Corporate Alternative Minimum Tax The Code imposes an alternative minimum tax omparations equal to the excess, if any, of 20% t#rahtive

minimum taxable income (“AMTI") over a corporationfegular federal income tax liabilityAMTI is equal to taxable income with certain adjustits. Generall
only 90% of AMTI can be offset by net operating loasrybacks and carryforwards.
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State and Local Taxation

New York State and New York City Taxatiowe are subject to the New York State Franchese dn Banking Corporations in an annual amount letguide
greater of (1) 7.1% of “entire net incoma&flocable to New York State during the taxable y@af2) the applicable alternative minimum tax.eTditernative minimui
tax is generally the greater of (a) 0.01% of thie@@f assets allocable to New York State withaiartnodifications, (b) 3% of “alternative entiret mecome”allocable
to New York State or (c) $250. Entire net incomsimilar to federal taxable income, subject tdairmodifications, including that net operatingdes arising durir
any taxable year prior to January 1, 2001 cannatdsged back or carried forward, and net operatosges arising during any taxable year beginnimgioafte
January 1, 2001 cannot be carried back. Alternait@e net income is equal to entire net incomghavit certain deductions that are allowable indakulation o
entire net income. We are also subject to a silyizlculated New York City tax of 9% on incoméoahted to New York City. For New York City tax yposes
entire net income is similar to federal taxableome, subject to certain modifications, includingtthet operating losses arising during any taxgéde prior to Janua
1, 2009 cannot be carried back or carried forwand, net operating losses arising during any taxgdde beginning on or after January 1, 2009 caheatarried bac
and similar alternative taxes. In addition, we subject to a tax surcharge at a rate of 17% oNehe York State Franchise Tax that is attributableusiness activi
carried on within the Metropolitan Commuter Transgtion District (“MTA surcharge”).

Notwithstanding the repeal of the federal incone paovisions permitting bad debt deductions undher teserve method, New York State had en:
legislation maintaining the preferential treatmehadditional loss reserves for qualifying realpedy and norgualifying loans of qualifying thrifts for both Ne¥ork
State and New York City tax purposes. Calculatéthe amount of additions to reserves for quatifyreal property loans was limited to the largeth& amour
derived by the percentage of taxable income metidtle experience method. For these purposespiiieable percentage to calculate the bad debtalieuunde
the percentage of taxable income method was 32faxable income, reduced by additions to reserveada-qualifying loans, except that the amount of theitimtt
to the reserve could not exceed the amount negessarcrease the balance of the reserve for lossegualifying real property loans at the closé¢hef taxable year
6% of the balance of the qualifying real propedsris outstanding at the end of the taxable yeatetlime experience method, the maximum additicalt@an resen
generally equaled the amount necessary to inctbadgalance of the bad debt reserve at the clodedaxable year to the greater of (1) the amthattbears the sat
ratio to loans outstanding at the close of thelibxgiear as the total net bad debts sustainedgithiancurrent and five preceding taxable yearssoeathe sum of tt
loans outstanding at the close of those six year§?) the balance of the bad debt reserve atlthee ®f the “base yeardr, if the amount of loans outstanding
declined since the base year, the amount whiclsltkarsame ratio to the amount of loans outstargtitige close of the taxable year as the balanteeateserve at tl
close of the base year. For these purposes, tise {mar” was the last taxable year beginning bef®88. The amount of additions to reserves for quaalifying loan:
was computed under the experience method. In notexild the additions to reserves for qualifyimglrproperty loans be greater than the larger efaitmour
determined under the experience method or the anwhioh, when added to the additions to reservesido-qualifying loans, equal the amount by which 12%h&
total deposits or withdrawable accounts of depositd the Savings Bank at the close of the taxgblr exceeded the sum of the Savings Baskrplus, undivide
profits and reserves at the beginning of such year.

In September 2010, the New York State legislatirenged New York State and City tax law for thrif¢sich as the Savings Bank, by eliminating
percentage of taxable income method for determibiad debt deductions for taxable years beginningraafter January 1, 2010. This change in the Nenk\Stat:
and City tax law for thrifts did not require theapture of tax bad debt reserves previously estady, and eliminated the requirement to recapaxéad debt reserv
if a thrift failed to meet the definition of a thrinstitution under New York State and City tawla

The Savings Bank had historically reported in itsANYork State and City income tax returns a deduadir bad debts based on the amount allowed tthe
percentage of taxable income method. This amouhthietorically exceeded actual bad debts incurgethb Savings Bank. Since the Savings Bank hasistensly
stated its intention to convert to a more “commadritke” bank, which would have previously required the 8gsiBank to recapture this excess bad debt redat
failed to meet the definition of a thrift under thiew York State and City tax law, the Savings Baakl, in prior periods, recorded the tax liabiliglated to th
possible recapture of the excess tax bad debtvees&s a result of the legislation passed by thes Nerk State legislature, this tax liability willonlonger be require
to be recaptured. As a result, the Savings Bandrsexd approximately $5.5 million of net tax liatdls through income during the year ended Dece@ibe?010.
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In March 2014, the New York State legislature chaniyew York State tax law, eliminating the sepatzak tax section of the tax code, which resultall
corporations being taxed in the same manner. Taegds to the tax law are effective for tax yeagsryeng on or after January 1, 2015. The most §igamt change
in the new tax law include:

The existing corporate franchise tax rate of 7.8%educed to 6.5% effective January 1, 2016.

All corporations will calculate tax on the follovgrthree bases: business income base, capitaldabséxed dollar minimum base; the highest taxaslp
The MTA surcharge is increased to 25.6% effectivey&ars beginning on or after January 1, 2015 afidre January 1, 2016 with adjustments in rateke
discretion of the Commissioner of Taxation.

The capital base tax will be completely phasedogu2021.

Apportionment of income to New York State will based on a single receipts factor.

Repeals the existing combined reporting standard requires unitary combined reporting.

New Jersey State TaxationThe Bank is required to pay New Jersey Statente tax based on the percentage of receipts fotimitg in New Jersey.

Delaware State Taxation As a Delaware holding company not earning incémBelaware, we are exempt from Delaware corpoirteme tax but a
required to file an annual report with and pay anual franchise tax to the State of Delaware.

REGULATION

General

The Bank is a New York State-chartered commeraakband its deposit accounts are insured undebépmsit Insurance Fund (the “DIFYf the Feder:
Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIGIp to applicable legal limits. The Bank is subjecextensive regulation and supervision by the N8D&s its charterir
agency, by the FDIC, as its insurer of depositd, lanthe Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (@ PB”), which was created under the Doeiink Wall Stree
Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frauak’) in 2011 to implement and enforce consumer protediéavs applying to banks. The Bank must
reports with the NYDFS, the FDIC, and the CFPB eoning its activities and financial condition, iddition to obtaining regulatory approvals prioremwtering int
certain transactions such as mergers with, or aitiguis of, other depository institutions. Furthene the Bank is periodically examined by the NYDé#ffsl the FDI(
to assess compliance with various regulatory requénts, including safety and soundness considegatithis regulation and supervision establishesnapcehensiv
framework of activities in which a commercial bacd&n engage, and is intended primarily for the ptaia of the insurance fund and depositors. Theileggry
structure also gives the regulatory authoritieeesive discretion in connection with its superwsand enforcement activities and examination pegicincludin
policies with respect to the classification of assand the establishment of adequate loan loswatioes for regulatory purposes. Any change in saghlation
whether by the NYDFS, the FDIC, or through legisiat could have a material adverse impact on thegamy, the Bank and its operations, and the Conipany
shareholders.

The Company is required to file certain reportserndnd otherwise comply with, the rules and retipiia of the Federal Reserve Board of Govel
(the “FRB"), the FDIC, the NYDFS, and the Secustand Exchange Commission (the “SEGrider federal securities laws. In addition, the FRRBodically examine
the Company. Certain of the regulatory requiremaptdicable to the Bank and the Company are refaoéelow or elsewhere herein. However, such dson is nc
meant to be a complete explanation of all lawsragdlations and is qualified in its entirety byerefnce to the actual laws and regulations.

The Dodd-Frank Act

The DoddFrank Act has significantly changed the currentkbaagulatory structure and will continue to affantp the immediate future, the lend
and investment activities and general operatiordepbsitory institutions and its holding companigsaddition to creating the CFPB, the Ddaiénk Act requires tt
FRB to establish minimum consolidated capital regraents for bank holding companies that are asgent as those required for insured depositorytitisins; the
components of Tier 1 capital will be restrictectpital instruments that are currently consideceble Tier 1 capital for insured depository instdns. In addition, th
proceeds of trust preferred securities will be edel from Tier 1 capital unless (i) such securidiesissued by bank holding companies with asddess than $5C
million, or (ii) such securities were issued priorMay 19, 2010 by bank or savings and loan holdigpanies with assets of less than $15 billion. Dbdd+rank
Act created a new supervisory structure for ovétsaf the U.S. financial system, including the bitshment of a new council of regulators, the FeiahStability
Oversight Council, to monitor and address systersls to the financial system. Ndrank financial companies that are deemed to béfisigmt to the stability of th
U.S. financial system and all bank holding compsmigth $50 billion or more in total consolidatedsets will be subject to heightened supervisionragdlation. Th
FRB will implement prudential requirements and ppbrcorrective action procedures for such companies.
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The DoddFrank Act made many additional changes in bankegulation, including: authorizing depository instibns, for the first time, to pi
interest on business checking accounts; requiriigjnators of securitized loans to retain a peragatof the risk for transferred loans; establishiegulatory rate-
setting for certain debit card interchange feed; establishing a number of reforms for mortgageilem and consumer protection.

The DoddFrank Act also broadened the base for FDIC ins@assessments. The FDIC was required to promutgkge revising its assessm
system so that it is based not on deposits, buheraverage consolidated total assets less thébtareguity capital of an insured institution. Thrate took effec
April 1, 2011. The Doddrrank Act also permanently increased the maximurowerinof deposit insurance for banks, savings insbibs, and credit unions to $250,(
per depositor, retroactive to January 1, 2008,modided non-interest-bearing transaction accowitts unlimited deposit insurance through Decemtigr2®12.

Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act are pet effective. The Dodé&rank Act requires various federal agencies to pitgate numerot
and extensive implementing regulations over thet sexeral years. Although it is therefore diffictdt predict at this time what impact the Doidink Act and th
implementing regulations will have on the Company ¢he Bank, they may have a material impact omatjpss through, among other things, heightenedlagory
supervision and increased compliance costs.

Basel Il

In the summer of 2012, our primary federal regukafmublished two notices of proposed rulemakingRRs”) that would have substantially revised thk-ris
based capital requirements applicable to bank hgldompanies and depository institutions, includimg Company and the Bank, compared to the thelerud.S
risk-based capital rules, which are based on ttegriational capital accords of the Basel Committedanking Supervision, which are generally refétieas Base
|

During July 2013, our primary federal regulatorsusd revised NPRs that will revise and replaceattpencies' current capital ruleBhe NPRs incluc
numerous revisions to the existing capital regaitegj including, but not limited to, the following:

« Revises the definition of regulatory capital comguats and related calculatior

« Adds a new common equity tier 1 capital ra

« Increases the minimum tier 1 capital ratio requieatrfrom four percent to six perce

« Incorporates the revised regulatory capital reguéets into the Prompt Corrective Action framew

« Implements a new capital conservation buffer thatilel limit payment of capital distributions and teén discretionary bonus payments to executiveceft
and key risk takers if the banking organizationsinet hold certain amounts of common equity tieafital in addition to those needed to meet itsinmmim

risk-based capital requiremen

« Provides a transition period for several aspectthefproposed rule: the new minimum capital raéiquirements, the capital conservation buffer, dre
regulatory capital adjustments and deducti

« Increases capital requirements for -due loans, high volatility commercial real estatpasures, and certain st-term loan commitment:
« Removes references to credit ratings consisteit 8gction 939A of the Do-Frank Act.
« Establishes due diligence requirements for seeatitin exposures.
The capital regulations were effective JanuaryQiL52for bank holding companies and banks with teas $15 billion in total assets, such as our Cay

and Bank. Based on our preliminary assessmenedlBRs, we believe we will see an increase inatat tiskweighted assets. However, the Company and the
based on our preliminary assessment, would meeetherements of the NPRs and will continue to dvestdered well-capitalized.
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Volcker Rule

On December 10, 2013, our primary federal regusatoiopted Section 619 of the Dodd-Frank Act, comyn@ierred to as the “Volcker Rulevithich prohibit:
insured depository institutions from engaging imrstterm proprietary trading of certain securitiégrivatives and other financial instruments foe firm’'s owr
account, subject to certain exemptions, includiragket making and risk-mitigating hedging. The VacRule also imposes limits on banking entitiegestments it
and other relationships with, hedge funds and prieguity funds.

The rule as adopted prohibited banking entitiesnfewning collateralized debt obligations backednarily by trust preferred securities (“TruPS CDOaflel
July 21, 2015. At December 31, 2014, the Compaaydt hold any TruPs CDOs.

New York State Law

The Bank derives its lending, investment, and othehority primarily from the applicable provision$ New York State Banking Law and
regulations of the NYDFS, as limited by FDIC redidas. Under these laws and regulations, bank#ydirgy the Bank, may invest in real estate mortgagensume
and commercial loans, certain types of debt seesrfincluding certain corporate debt securities] abligations of federal, state, and local goveznta and agencie
certain types of corporate equity securities, agrtiain other assets. The lending powers of New Ridte-chartered commercial banks are not suljgueitcentage-
of-assets or capital limitations, although themelamits applicable to loans to individual borrower

The exercise by an FDI®sured commercial bank of the lending and investnpwers under New York State Banking Law is ledity FDIC
regulations and other federal laws and regulatiomgarticular, the applicable provisions of NewrkK&tate Banking Law and regulations governingitivestmer
authority and activities of an FDIC-insured stebartered savings bank and commercial bank hava bffectively limited by the Federal Deposit Ingure
Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA”) arlde FDIC regulations issued pursuant thereto.

With certain limited exceptions, a New York Statertered commercial bank may not make loans @nextredit for commercial, corporate
business purposes (including lease financing)smgle borrower, the aggregate amount of which ddod in excess of 15% of the baskiet worth or up to 25% 1
loans secured by collateral having an ascertairmabldet value at least equal to the excess of k#ts over the ban&’net worth. The Bank currently complies v
all applicable loans-to-one-borrower limitationst December 31, 2014, the BasKargest aggregate amount of loans to one borrexsr$66.7 million, all of whic
were performing according to their terms. See “en&al — Lending Activities.”

Under New York State Banking Law, New York Stateutbred stockerm commercial banks may declare and pay dividendsof its net profit:
unless there is an impairment of capital, but aparof the NYDFS Superintendent (the “Superintertjeis required if the total of all dividends declafegthe ban
in a calendar year would exceed the total of itgonafits for that year combined with its retainget profits for the preceding two years less piieidends paid.

New York State Banking Law gives the Superintenderthority to issue an order to a New York Stttartered banking institution to appear
explain an apparent violation of law, to disconérunauthorized or unsafe practices, and to keegzpbed books and accounts. Upon a finding by tH®RS that an
director, trustee, or officer of any banking orgaion has violated any law, or has continued urmaized or unsafe practices in conducting the lassrof the bankir
organization after having been notified by the Sugpendent to discontinue such practices, suckctliretrustee, or officer may be removed from @fafter notice ar
an opportunity to be heard. The Superintendenttescauthority to appoint a conservator or a rezdivr a savings or commercial bank under certaumstances.

FDIC Regulations

Capital Requirements.The FDIC has adopted riskased capital guidelines to which the Bank is subjéhe guidelines establish a systen
analytical framework that makes regulatory cap@agjuirements sensitive to differences in risk pesfamong banking organizations. The Bank is reguio maintai
certain levels of regulatory capital in relationrégulatory risk-weighted assets. The ratio of segjulatory capital to regulatory riskeighted assets is referred to .
“risk-based capital ratio.” Risk-based capital aatare determined by allocating assets and speaffebalance-sheet items to four rigleighted categories rangi
from 0% to 100%, with higher levels of capital lpirequired for the categories perceived as reptiegegreater risk.
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These guidelines divide an institution’s capitaioinwo tiers. The first tier (“Tier 1”) includes sonon equity, retained earnings, certain non-
cumulative perpetual preferred stock (excludingtiancrate issues), and minority interests in eqaiégounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less gdbawd othe
intangible assets (except mortgage servicing rights purchased credit card relationships subjecettain limitations). Supplementary (“Tier 2apital includes
among other items, cumulative perpetual and long-témiteddife preferred stock, mandatorily convertible séies, certain hybrid capital instruments, ti
subordinated debt, and the allowance for loan Kssebject to certain limitations, and up to 45%poé#tax net unrealized gains on equity securities wetidily
determinable fair market values, less required diéoluss. Commercial banks are required to maintéital riskbased capital ratio of at least 8%, of which aste#
must be Tier 1 capital.

In addition, the FDIC has established regulatioresgribing a minimum Tier 1 leverage capital rdtlee ratio of Tier 1 capital to adjusted avel
assets as specified in the regulations). Thesdations provide for a minimum Tier 1 leverage cabiftio of 3% for institutions that meet certapesified criterie
including that they have the highest examinatidimgaand are not experiencing or anticipating gigant growth. All other institutions are requiredmaintain a Tier
leverage capital ratio of at least 4%. The FDIC magwever, set higher leverage and tislsed capital requirements on individual institusiovhen particuli
circumstances warrant. Institutions experiencinguoticipating significant growth are expected tointan capital ratios, including tangible capitaisgions, wel
above the minimum levels.

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank was deemed weliecapitalized under the regulatory framework foompt corrective action. To be categor
as well capitalized, a bank must maintain a mininitier 1 leverage capital ratio of 5%, a minimumrTlerisk-based capital ratio of 6%, and a minimwtalt risk-
based capital ratio of 10%. For a summary of trgulegory capital ratios of the Bank at December 3114, see Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Finan
Statements” in Item 8 of this Annual Report.

The regulatory capital regulations of the FDIC atlder federal banking agencies provide that the@gs will take into account the exposure ¢
institution’s capital and economic value to changes in inteagstrisk in assessing capital adequacy. Accorttirguch agencies, applicable considerations iecthe
quality of the institutiors interest rate risk management process, overahdial condition, and the level of other riskgshat institution for which capital is need
Institutions with significant interest rate risk ynlae required to hold additional capital. The agembave issued a joint policy statement providjoglance on intere
rate risk management, including a discussion ottfieal factors affecting the agencies/aluation of interest rate risk in connection wittpital adequacy. Institutio
that engage in specified amounts of trading agtiviay be subject to adjustments in the calculadiothe riskbased capital requirement to assure sufficienttiahai
capital to support market risk.

Standards for Safety and Soundnedsederal law requires each federal banking agencprégcribe, for the depository institutions undis
jurisdiction, standards that relate to, among othergs, internal controls; information and audistems; loan documentation; credit underwritings thonitoring ¢
interest rate risk; asset growth; compensatiors fe® benefits; and such other operational and gesiah standards as the agency deems appropriagefetere
banking agencies adopted final regulations anddgency Guidelines Establishing Standards for $afetl Soundness (the “Guidelines)implement these safe
and soundness standards. The Guidelines set farthafety and soundness standards that the féxteriaing agencies use to identify and address prabbg insure
depository institutions before capital becomes iimgah If the appropriate federal banking agencyedsines that an institution fails to meet any staddrescribed
the Guidelines, the agency may require the ingtituto provide it with an acceptable plan to ackieempliance with the standard, as required byFdderal Depos
Insurance Act, as amended, (the “FDI Act”). Thafiregulations establish deadlines for the submisand review of such safety and soundness conegligians.

Real Estate Lending Standard§ he FDIC and the other federal banking agenttée® adopted regulations that prescribe standardsxtensions «
credit that are (i) secured by real estate, om{aple for the purpose of financing constructioringprovements on real estate. The FDIC regulati@ugiire eac
institution to establish and maintain written im&irreal estate lending standards that are consisith safe and sound banking practices, and gpjate to the size
the institution and the nature and scope of it estate lending activities. The standards alsotesconsistent with accompanying FDIC guidelinelsich include
loan-tovalue limitations for the different types of reatate loans. Institutions are also permitted toerekmited amount of loans that do not confornthi® propose
loan-tovalue limitations so long as such exceptions avéeeweed and justified appropriately. The FDIC guideb also list a number of lending situations inclu
exceptions to the loan-to-value standard are jadtif
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Dividend Limitations. The FDIC has authority to use its enforcement peverprohibit a commercial bank from paying dividenf, in its opinior
the payment of dividends would constitute an unsafensound practice. Federal law prohibits thenperyt of dividends that will result in the institti failing to mee
applicable capital requirements on a pro formashashe Bank is also subject to dividend declaratistrictions imposed by New York State law as jmesly
discussed under “New York State Law.”

Investment Activities.Since the enactment of FDICIA, all statieartered financial institutions, including commardanks and their subsidiari
have generally been limited to such activities scipal and equity investments of the type, anthem amount, authorized for national banks. Seate FDICIA, ant
FDIC regulations permit certain exceptions to thiésétations. In addition, the FDIC is authorizeal permit institutions to engage in staethorized activities
investments not permitted for national banks (ottieem nonsubsidiary equity investments) for institutions ttimaeet all applicable capital requirements if |
determined that such activities or investments atopoese a significant risk to the insurance funide Gramm-LeaciBliley Act of 1999 and FDIC regulations impc
certain quantitative and qualitative restrictiomssoich activities and on a bank’s dealings withlzs&liary that engages in specified activities.

Prompt Corrective Regulatory ActianFederal law requires, among other things, tedefal bank regulatory authorities takgdmpt correctiv
action” with respect to institutions that do not meet mimimcapital requirements. For such purposes, theelmblishes five capital tiers: well capitalizadequatel
capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undgsitalized, and critically undercapitalized.

The FDIC has adopted regulations to implement ptaopective action. Among other things, the retiales define the relevant capital measure
the five capital categories. An institution is desiio be “well capitalized” if it has a total riflased capital ratio of 10% or greater, a Tier R-liased capital ratio
6% or greater, and a leverage capital ratio of 5%reater, and is not subject to a regulatory qragreement, or directive to meet and maintainezifip capital leve
for any capital measure. An institution is deemete “adequately capitalized” if it has a totakfisased capital ratio of 8% or greater, a Tiersk-biased capital rat
of 4% or greater, and generally a leverage camita of 4% or greater. An institution is deemed&“undercapitalized” if it has a total riflased capital ratio of le
than 8%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of lésan 4%, or generally a leverage capital ratio exfslthan 4%. An institution is deemed to Is@tiificantly
undercapitalized” if it has a total risk-based talpiatio of less than 6%, a Tier 1 ribksed capital ratio of less than 3%, or a levecagéal ratio of less than 3%. .
institution is deemed to be “critically undercapited” if it has a ratio of tangible equity (as oefd in the regulations) to total assets that isaétp or less than 2%.

“Undercapitalized” institutions are subject to growth, capital digitibn (including dividend), and other limitationsnd are required to submit a caf
restoration plan. An institutios’compliance with such plan is required to be guaed by any company that controls the undercé@thlinstitution in an amou
equal to the lesser of 5% of the bankotal assets when deemed undercapitalized oanfm@int necessary to achieve the status of adeguegpltalized. If a
undercapitalized institution fails to submit an guable plan, it is treated as if it is “signifitgnundercapitalized.’Significantly undercapitalized institutions
subject to one or more additional restrictions udahg, but not limited to, an order by the FDICgell sufficient voting stock to become adequatelpi@lized
requirements to reduce total assets, cease redealpposits from correspondent banks, or dismigctlirs or officers; and restrictions on interesés paid on deposi
compensation of executive officers, and capitatithistions by the parent holding company.

Beginning 60 days after becoming “critically undspitalized,”critically undercapitalized institutions also magt make any payment of principal
interest on certain subordinated debt, or exteaditfor a highly leveraged transaction, or entéo iany material transaction outside the ordinayrse of business.
addition, subject to a narrow exception, the apipoémt of a receiver is required for a criticallyd@ncapitalized institution within 270 days afteolittains such status.

Insurance of Deposit AccountsThe deposits of the Bank are insured up to eable limits by the DIF. Under the FDIC's riblased assessm
system, insured institutions are assigned to orfewfrisk categories based upon supervisory etialus, regulatory capital level, and certain otfetors, with les
risky institutions paying lower assessments. Atitunson’s assessment rate depends upon the category th ivliscassigned and certain other factors. Histdky,
assessment rates ranged from seven to 77.5 basts pb each institution’s deposit assessment b@seFebruary 7, 2011, as required by the DBdahk Act, th
FDIC published a final rule to revise the deposiurance assessment system. The rule, which tdekt efpril 1, 2011, changed the assessment base fog
calculating deposit insurance assessments fromsitego total assets less tangible (Tier 1) cap8aice the new base is larger than the previoss,lihe FDIC als
lowered assessment rates so that the rule wouldgigoificantly alter the total amount of revenudlexed from the industry. On September 30, 2068, EDIC
collected, from all insured institutions, a speaahergency assessment of five basis points of &stséts minus Tier 1 capital (capped at ten basigspof ai
institution’s deposit assessment base as of June 30, 20@®jleinto cover losses to the DIF. The FDIC considehe need for similar special assessments dtha
final two quarters of 2009. However, in lieu ofther special assessments, the FDIC required insastitutions to prepay estimated quarterly rislsed assessme
for the fourth quarter of 2009 through the fourttager of 2012. The Bank prepaid a total of $16ilfon in risk-based assessments.
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Due to the decline in economic conditions, the dépasurance provided by the FDIC per account ownas raised to $250,000 for all type:
accounts. That change, initially intended to begerary, was made permanent by the Dé&dank Act. In addition, the FDIC adopted an optiof@mporary Liquidit
Guarantee Program (“TLGP”) under which, for a feen-interesbearing transaction accounts would receive unlinitessurance coverage until December 31, :
(later extended to December 31, 2010), and cest@mior unsecured debt issued by institutions asit tiolding companies between October 13, 2008 Jame 3(
2009 (later extended to October 31, 2009) wouldueranteed by the FDIC through June 30, 2012 areitain cases, until December 31, 2012. The Deddk Ac
provided for continued unlimited coverage for ciertaon-interest-bearing transaction accounts rtember 31, 2012.

The DoddFrank Act increased the minimum target DIF ratimnir1.15% of estimated insured deposits to 1.35%stinated insured deposits. *
FDIC must seek to achieve the 1.35% ratio by Selpeer80, 2020. Insured institutions with assetsd¥ Billion or more are supposed to fund the inaedse Dodd-
Frank Act eliminated the 1.5% maximum fund rateaing it, instead, to the discretion of the FDT®e FDIC has exercised that discretion by estaiblish long
range fund ratio of 2%, which could result in oaymg higher deposit insurance premiums in theréutu

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the Ripi@h a finding that the institution has engagedrisafe or unsound practices, is in an unsg
unsound condition to continue operations, or hatated any applicable law, regulation, rule, oraercondition imposed by the FDIC. Management dagsknow o
any practice, condition, or violation that woulddeto termination of the deposit insurance of thal8

On September 30, 1996, as part of an omnibus apatiops bill, the Deposit Insurance Funds Act 89 (the “Funds Act"was enacted. The Fur
Act required Bank Insurance Fund (“BlIRMstitutions, including the Savings Bank, beginniranuary 1, 1997, to pay a portion of the intedest on the Finan
Corporation (“FICO”")bonds issued in connection with the savings and &ssociation crisis in the late 1980s, and redu#- institutions to pay their full pro re
share of the FICO payments starting the earlidaaliary 1, 2000 or the date at which no savingdgutien continues to exist. We were required, Bdamuary 1, 200
to pay our full pro rata share of the FICO paymefite FICO assessment rate is subject to changeB&hk paid $267,000, $269,000 and $299,000 far share o
the interest due on FICO bonds in 2014, 2013 ad@ 2@spectively, which was included in FDIC insum expense.

Brokered Deposits.The FDIC has promulgated regulations implementirggRDICIA limitations on brokered deposits. Undge tegulations, well-
capitalized institutions are not subject to brokedeposit limitations, while adequately capitalizestitutions are able to accept, renew or rollrdw®kered deposi
only with a waiver from the FDIC and subject totrietions on the interest rate that can be paiduch deposits. Undercapitalized institutions arepsomitted t
accept brokered deposits and may not solicit dépbgyi offering an effective yield that exceeds byrenthan 75 basis points the prevailing effectiiedg on insure
deposits of comparable maturity in the institutonormal market area or in the market area in whiath deposits are being solicited. Pursuantdadulation, th
Bank, as a well-capitalized institution, may acdequtkered deposits. At December 31, 2014, the Back$763.9 million in brokered deposit accounts.

Transactions with Affiliates

Under current federal law, transactions betweerosigry institutions and their affiliates are gaved by Sections 23A and 23B of the Fec
Reserve Act and the FR8BRegulation W promulgated thereunder. An affiliat@ commercial bank is any company or entity tiwatdtrols, is controlled by, or is uni
common control with, the institution, other thasubsidiary. Generally, an institutiesubsidiaries are not treated as affiliates urttesg are engaged in activities
principal that are not permissible for national kerin a holding company context, at a minimum,gheent holding company of an institution, and aagnpanies th.
are controlled by such parent holding company a#fitates of the institution. Generally, SectioB2 limits the extent to which the institution os isubsidiaries mi
engage in “covered transactions” with any oneiafil to an amount equal to 10% of the institusocapital stock and surplus, and contains an agtgédnit on al
such transactions with all affiliates to an amoeaepial to 20% of such capital stock and surplus. t€h@a “covered transactionficludes the making of loans or ot
extensions of credit to an affiliate; the purchatassets from an affiliate; the purchase of, oimaestment in, the securities of an affiliate; teeeptance of securit
of an affiliate as collateral for a loan or extemsof credit to any person; or issuance of a guaearacceptance, or letter of credit on behalfoffiliate. Section 23
also establishes specific collateral requirementddans or extensions of credit to, or guarant@eacceptances on letters of credit issued on befiahn affiliate
Section 23B requires that covered transactionsaahtbad list of other specified transactions bedesms substantially the same as, or at leastfagorable to, th
institution or its subsidiary as similar transanfiawvith non-affiliates.
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The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohilugs by the Company to its executive officers dindctors. However, the Sarbar@sley Act
contains a specific exemption for loans by an tagtn to its executive officers and directors mmpliance with federal banking laws. Section 22th}he Feder:
Reserve Act, and FRB Regulation O adopted thereurgteverns loans by a savings bank or commerciak ta directors, executive officers, and princ
shareholders. Under Section 22(h), loans to dirscxecutive officers, and shareholders who céndiicectly or indirectly, 10% or more of voting geities of ai
institution, and certain related interests of afiyhe foregoing, may not exceed, together withottler outstanding loans to such persons and &ffili@ntities, th
institution’s total capital and surplus. Section 22(h) alsdibits loans above amounts prescribed by the apiatepfederal banking agency to directors, exee
officers, and shareholders who control 10% or nudrae voting securities of an institution, andrigspective related interests, unless such loappsoved in advan
by a majority of the board of the institution’s efitors. Any “interestedtirector may not participate in the voting. Theroamount (which includes all ott
outstanding loans to such person) as to which guichh board of director approval is required, ig treater of $25,000 or 5% of capital and surpluany loan
aggregating over $500,000. Further, pursuant téic@e22(h), loans to directors, executive officexsd principal shareholders must be made on tenlrstantially th
same as those offered in comparable transactiooth&y persons. There is an exception for loansenpatisuant to a benefit or compensation programishaidely
available to all employees of the institution armksl not give preference to executive officers @tber employees. Section 22(g) of the Federal Reskct place
additional limitations on loans to executive offise

Community Reinvestment Act

Federal Regulation Under the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA8&s implemented by FDIC regulations, an instituti@s a continuing ai
affirmative obligation consistent with its safe asdund operation to help meet the credit needgsogmtire community, including low and moderateoime
neighborhoods. The CRA does not establish spdeifiding requirements or programs for financialitngbns, nor does it limit an institutios’discretion to devel
the types of products and services that it beli@resbest suited to its particular community, cstesit with the CRA. The CRA requires the FDIC, @amiection witl
its examinations, to assess the institusorecord of meeting the credit needs of its comiguand to take such record into account in its eatadn of certai
applications by such institution. The CRA requipetblic disclosure of an institutios’'CRA rating and further requires the FDIC to pdeva written evaluation of
institution’s CRA performance utilizing a four-tet descriptive rating system. The Bank receivedR@ @ating of “Satisfactory’in its most recent completed ClI
examination, which was completed as of April 30120 Institutions that receive less than a satisfgcrating may face difficulties in securing apyab for nev
activities or acquisitions. The CRA requires altitutions to make public disclosures of their CRAIngs. As a special purpose commercial bankGbemercic
Bank was not required to comply with the CRA piimthe Merger. Since the Merger, the Bank is requinezbmply with CRA.

New York State RegulationThe Bank is also subject to provisions of thevN¢ork State Banking Law that impose continuing adfirmative
obligations upon a banking institution organizedNiew York State to serve the credit needs of ksllcommunity (the “NYCRA”)Such obligations are substantii
similar to those imposed by the CRA. The NYCRA tieggi the NYDFS to make a periodic written assess$mémn institutions compliance with the NYCR.
utilizing a fourtiered rating system, and to make such assessmaitalde to the public. The NYCRA also requires Swgperintendent to consider the NYCRA ra
when reviewing an application to engage in certi@nsactions, including mergers, asset purchasdsha establishment of branch offices or ATMs, pravides the
such assessment may serve as a basis for the deargl such application.

Federal Reserve System

Under FRB regulations, the Bank is required to t@mreserves against its transaction accounts FRi& regulations generally require that rese
be maintained against aggregate transaction accasrfollows: for that portion of transaction aausuaggregating $103.6 million or less (subjecadpstment by tr
FRB), the reserve requirement is 3%; for amourgatgr than $103.6 million, the reserve requirenseb0% (subject to adjustment by the FRB betweera8&0614%,
The first $14.5 million of otherwise reservabledrales (subject to adjustments by the FRB) are etezhfpom the reserve requirements. The Bank isompdianct
with the foregoing requirements.
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Federal Home Loan Bank System

The Bank is a member of the FHL¥BY, one of 12 regional FHLBs comprising the FHLBs®m. Each regional FHLB manages its cust:
relationships, while the 12 FHLBs use its combisest and strength to obtain its necessary fundinpealowest possible cost. As a member of the FHHB the
Bank is required to acquire and hold shares of Fi{Bcapital stock. Pursuant to this requirementDatember 31, 2014, the Bank was required to mair§éd6.¢
million of FHLB-NY stock.

Holding Company Regulation

Subsequent to the Merger, the Compasyligect to examination, regulation, and periodoréng under the Bank Holding Company Act of 19&¢
amended (the “BHCA")as administered by the FRB. The Company is reduoebtain the prior approval of the FRB to aceuill, or substantially all, of the ass
of any bank or bank holding company. Prior FRB appl would be required for the Company to acquireat or indirect ownership or control of any vafisecuritie
of any bank or bank holding company if, after gyieffect to such acquisition, it would, directly iodirectly, own or control more than 5% of anysdeof voting
shares of such bank or bank holding company. litiaddoefore any bank acquisition can be complepehr approval thereof may also be required tmbtiner
from other agencies having supervisory jurisdicteer the bank to be acquired, including the NYDFS.

FRB regulations generally prohibit a bank holdimgnpany from engaging in, or acquiring, direct adiiact control of more than 5% of the vot
securities of any company engaged in banking activities. One of the principal exceptidasthis prohibition is for activities found by tHeRB to be so close
related to banking or managing or controlling Baisko be a proper incident thereto. Some of thecjpél activities that the FRB has determined lgulation to be <
closely related to banking are: (i) making or seing loans; (ii) performing certain data processsegvices; (iii) providing discount brokerage seesd; (iv) acting &
fiduciary, investment, or financial advisor; (vakng personal or real property; (vi) making inwestts in corporations or projects designed primaal promot
community welfare; and (vii) acquiring a savingsldman association.

The FRB has adopted capital adequacy guidelinebdak holding companies (on a consolidated bagit)December 31, 2014, the Compasny’
consolidated Total and Tier 1 capital exceededetiheguirements. The Doderank Act required the FRB to issue consolidateghlagory capital requirements for bz
holding companies that are at least as stringetiias® applicable to insured depository instituigidBuch regulations eliminated the use of certairiments, such
cumulative preferred stock and trust preferred stes, as Tier 1 holding company capital.

Bank holding companies are generally required & ghe FRB prior written notice of any purchaseestemption of its outstanding equity securitiethd
gross consideration for the purchase or redemptitien combined with the net consideration paidalbsuch purchases or redemptions during the phegedelve
months, is equal to 10% or more of the Compsagnsolidated net worth. The FRB may disapproeh supurchase or redemption if it determines thatpropos:i
would constitute an unsafe or unsound practiceyauld violate any law, regulation, FRB order oreditive, or any condition imposed by, or writtenesmnent witt
the FRB. The FRB has adopted an exception to gpsoal requirement for well-capitalized bank haolficompanies that meet certain other conditions.

The FRB has issued a policy statement regardingayenent of dividends by bank holding companiesgéneral, the FRB' policies provide th
dividends should be paid only out of current eagaiand only if the prospective rate of earningsnbn by the bank holding company appears comsistéh the
organization’s capital needs, asset quality, aretall/financial condition. The FRB’policies also require that a bank holding compserye as a source of finan
strength to its subsidiary banks by standing retadyse available resources to provide adequatdatdpnds to those banks during periods of findnsteess c
adversity, and by maintaining the financial flekitlyiand capitalraising capacity to obtain additional resourcesafsisting its subsidiary banks where necessag
Dodd+Frank Act codifies the source of financial strengtiicy and requires regulations to facilitatedfsplication. Under the prompt corrective actiondathe abilit
of a bank holding company to pay dividends mayedstricted if a subsidiary bank becomes undercageial These regulatory policies could affect thiitgtof the
Company to pay dividends or otherwise engage iitaagistributions.

Under the FDI Act, a depository institution maylable to the FDIC for losses caused the DIF ibanmonly controlled depository institution w
to fail. The Bank is commonly controlled within theeaning of that law.

43




The status of the Company as a registered banknigoltbmpany under the BHCA does not exempt it froentain federal and state laws
regulations applicable to corporations generatigluding, without limitation, certain provisions tbfe federal securities laws.

The Company, the Bank, and their respective affiiawill be affected by the monetary and fiscaligge$ of various agencies of the United St
Government, including the Federal Reserve Systemielw of changing conditions in the national eaogaand in the money markets, it is difficult for nagement t
accurately predict future changes in monetary palicthe effect of such changes on the businefisamcial condition of the Company or the Bank.

Acquisition of the Holding Company

Under the Federal Change in Bank Cotml(“CIBCA”), a notice must be submitted to the FRB if any pefgswiuding a company), or group act
in concert, seeks to acquire 10% or more of the fiamy's shares of outstanding common stock, unless th& &R found that the acquisition will not resulta
change in control of the Company. Under the CIB@# FRB generally has 60 days within which to attsach notices, taking into consideration certaictdrs
including the financial and managerial resourcethefacquirer; the convenience and needs of thenomties served by the Company and the Bank; am@miitrusi
effects of the acquisition. Under the BHCA, any pamy would be required to obtain approval fromRERB before it may obtain “controlif the Company within tf
meaning of the BHCA. Control generally is definedhiean the ownership or power to vote 25% or mbeny class of voting securities of the Companyherability
to control in any manner the election of a majodfythe Companys directors. An existing bank holding company wouldder the BHCA, be required to obtain
FRB’s approval before acquiring more than 5% of @@npanys voting stock. In addition to the CIBCA and thel®A, New York State Banking Law gener:
requires prior approval of the New York State BagkBoard before any action is taken that causescampany to acquire direct or indirect control abanking
institution that is organized in New York.

Federal Securities Law

The Compang’common stock and (associated preferred stoclkhasecrights) listed on the cover page of this rteger registered with the SEC un
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended‘Ekchange Act”).The Company is subject to the information and répgmrequirements, regulations goverr
proxy solicitations, insider trading restrictiomsd other requirements under the Exchange Act.

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau

Created under the Dodelank Act, and given extensive implementation amdreement powers, the CFPB has broad rulemakittgoaty for a wide
range of consumer financial laws that apply tobalhks, including, among other things, the authdstyrohibit “unfair, deceptive, or abusivatts and practice
Abusive acts or practices are defined as thosgthamaterially interfere with a consumgibility to understand a term or condition of astamer financial product
service, or (2) take unreasonable advantage ohaucoers (a) lack of financial savvy, (b) inability to peat himself in the selection or use of consumearitia
products or services, or (c) reasonable relianca oavered entity to act in the consursdriterests. The CFPB has the authority to invattigossible violations
federal consumer financial law, hold hearings amchmence civil litigation. The CFPB can issue cemseéeesist orders against banks and other entitiesvtbksite
consumer financial laws. The CFPB may also ingtitutivil action against an entity in violationfefleral consumer financial law in order to imposgvd penalty o
an injunction.

Mortgage Banking and Related Consumer Protection Rgulations

The retail activities of the Bank, including lendimnd the acceptance of deposits, are subjectviriaty of statutes and regulations designe
protect consumers. Interest and other chargesctetleor contracted for by the Bank are subjectatesusury laws and federal laws concerning intaagss. Loa
operations are also subject to federal laws apgkct credit transactions, such as:

« The federal Truth-In-Lending Act and Regulatidrssued by the FRB, governing disclosures of ¢itedims to consumer borrowers;

* The Home Mortgage Disclosure Act and RegulationsDesd by the FRB, requiring financial institutiomsprovide information to enable the public and jpu
officials to determine whether a financial institut is fulfilling its obligation to help meet thehsing needs of the community it serves;

¢ The Equal Credit Opportunity Act and RegulationsBued by the FRB, prohibiting discrimination on thesis of race, creed or other prohibited factai
extending credit;
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¢ The Fair Credit Reporting Act and Regulationsgued by the FRB, governing the use and providiamfarmation to consumer reporting agencies;
« The Fair Debt Collection Act, governing the manm which consumer debts may be collected byectiin agencies; and
« The guidance of the various federal agenciesgetbwith the responsibility of implementing sueldéral laws.

Deposit operations also are subject to:

« The Truth in Savings Act and Regulation DD iskbg the FRB, which requires disclosure of depiesins to consumers;
« Regulation CC issued by the FRB, which relatethé availability of deposit funds to consumers;

« The Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposedidy to maintain the confidentiality of consumerahcial records and prescribes procedures for tonye
with administrative subpoenas of financial recoats]

* The Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulatioisdtied by the FRB, which governs automatic depdsitand withdrawals from deposit accounts
customers’ rights and liabilities arising from thee of automated teller machines and other eldctb@mking services.

In addition, the Bank and its subsidiaries may akscubject to certain state laws and regulati@sigded to protect consumers.

Many of the foregoing laws and regulations are stikije change resulting from the provisions in tredB¥rank Act, which in many cases calls
revisions to implementing regulations. In additiomersight responsibilities of these and other norex protection laws and regulations will, in largeasure, transi
from the Bank$ primary regulators to the CFPB. We cannot prettiieteffect that being regulated by a new, addiigegulatory authority focused on consu
financial protection, or any new implementing regigins or revisions to existing regulations thaymesult from the establishment of this new autigpmill have or
our businesses.

Available Information

We are a reporting company and file annual, qugrgerd current reports, proxy statements and dtifermation with the SEC. We make available fré
charge on or through our web site at www.flushimdbe@om our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarteglgorts on Form 10-Q, current reports on Forid 8nc
amendments to those reports filed or furnishedyantto Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicHisr wi
electronically file such material with, or furnighto, the SEC. Our SEC filings are also avagato the public free of charge over the InternghatSECS web site «
http://www.sec.gov.

You may also read and copy any document we filh@tSECS public reference room located at 100 F. Stredf,,NRoom 1580, Washington, D.C. 20t
You may obtain information about the operationtaf public reference room by calling the SEC at @-8&C90330. You may request copies of these documer
writing to the SEC and paying a fee for the copyiogt.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

In addition to the other information containedhistAnnual Report, the following factors and othensiderations should be considered carefully aiwating
us and our business.

Changes in Interest Rates May Significantly ImpacOur Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Like most financial institutions, our results ofevptions depend to a large degree on our net gitEr@ome. When interebiearing liabilities mature or repri
more quickly than interestarning assets, a significant increase in marketdst rates could adversely affect net interesinre. Conversely, a significant decreas
market interest rates could result in increasedntetest income. As a general matter, we seakanage our business to limit our overall exposaraterest ra
fluctuations. However, fluctuations in market netst rates are neither predictable nor controll@itid may have a material adverse impact on ouratipes an
financial condition. Additionally, in a rising intest rate environment, a borrongegbility to repay adjustable rate mortgages candgatively affected as payme
increase at repricing dates.
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Prevailing interest rates also affect the extenviich borrowers repay and refinance loans. In dimiag interest rate environment, the number afr
prepayments and loan refinancing may increase, elk a8 prepayments of mortgagaeeked securities. Call provisions associated with investment in U.:
government agency and corporate securities mayaagersely affect yield in a declining intereseranvironment. Such prepayments and calls may selyeaffec
the yield of our loan portfolio and mortgagaeked and other securities as we reinvest theajatépnds in a lower interest rate environment. ldogr, we typicall
receive additional loan fees when existing loamsrafinanced, which partially offset the reduceeld/ion our loan portfolio resulting from prepayneenh periods ¢
low interest rates, our level of core deposits afsy decline if depositors seek highygetding instruments or other investments not @tkby us, which in turn m.
increase our cost of funds and decrease our regesitmargin to the extent alternative funding sesiare utilized. An increasing interest rate emvitent would ter
to extend the average lives of lower yielding fixede mortgages and mortgagacked securities, which could adversely affectintdrest income. In additic
depositors tend to open longer term, higher costengjficate of deposit accounts which could adelraffect our net interest income if rates werestibsequent
decline. Additionally, adjustable rate mortgagenkand mortgagbacked securities generally contain interim aretitiie caps that limit the amount the interest
can increase or decrease at repricing dates. Bigmifincreases in prevailing interest rates mgyiicantly affect demand for loans and the valfidank collatera
See “— Local Economic Conditions.”

Our Lending Activities Involve Risks that May Be Exacerbated Depending on the Mix of Loan Types

At December 31, 2014, our gross loan portfolio $&8s798.7 million, of which 87% was mortgage loaaswsed by real estate. The majority of these
estate loans were secured by multi-family resiéémoperty ($1,923.5 million), commercial realast($621.6 million) and one-to-four family mixede propert
($573.8 million), which combined represent 82% af éan portfolio. Our loan portfolio is concentdtin the New York City metropolitan area. Mdlimily
residential, one-to-four family mixedlse property, commercial real estate mortgage Jaams construction loans, are generally viewedxg®sng the lender to
greater risk of loss than fully underwritten onef@ar family residential mortgage loans and typicahvolve higher principal amounts per loan. Mdkimily
residential, one-to-four family mixedse property and commercial real estate mortgageslare typically dependent upon the successfulatipe of the relate
property, which is usually owned by a legal entiiyh the property being the entity’s only assethié cash flow from the property is reduced, thedwer’s ability tc
repay the loan may be impaired. If the borrowendi$, our only remedy may be to foreclose on tiepgrty, for which the market value may be less ttee balanc
due on the related mortgage loan. We attempt tmaté this risk by generally requiring a loanvi@ue ratio of no more than 75% at a time the lizaariginatec
except for one-to-four family residential mortgdgans, where we require a logmvalue ratio of no more than 80%. Repayment afstroiction loans is continge
upon the successful completion and operation optbgct. The repayment of commercial businessdd#re increased origination of which is part ofnagement
strategy), is contingent on the successful operatiothe related business. Changes in local ecaneonditions and government regulations, whicharside th
control of the borrower or lender, also could dffée value of the security for the loan or theufatcash flow of the affected properties. We cargily review th
composition of our mortgage loan portfolio to mamaige risk in the portfolio.

In addition, prior to 2010, we have originated aodeur family residential mortgage loans withowri¥ying the borrowes level of income. These loz
involve a higher degree of risk as compared toather fully underwritten one-tur family residential mortgage loans. These rigks mitigated by our policy
generally limit the amount of one-four family residential mortgage loans to 80% cf tippraised value or sale price, whichever is Essyell as charging a higl
interest rate than when the borrower’s income idfied. At December 31, 2014, we had $12.9 millioutstanding of one-téeur family residential properti
originated to individuals based on stated income \rifiable assets, and $44.8 million advancechome equity lines of credit for which we did notrife the
borrowers income. The total loans for which we wlid verify the borrowes income at December 31, 2014 was $57.7 milliori,.5% of gross loans. These type
loans are generally referred to as “Alt A” loanscs the borrowes income was not verified. These loans are no¢adily saleable in the secondary market as our
fully underwritten loans, either as whole loanswyen pooled or securitized. We no longer origirate-tofour family residential mortgage loans or home gglimes
of credit to individuals without verifying their dome. We have not originated, nor do we hold irifptio, any subprime loans.

Even in stable economic times, higher default ratag be expected for Alt A and similar loans. Aligb we attempted to incorporate the higher defabdt
associated with these loans into our pricing mqodekre can be no assurance that the premiumsdeamkthe associated investment income will pralegeate t
compensate for future losses from these loans. &dorg economic conditions, rising unemploymentsated/or other regional real estate price declovesd eve
more significantly increase the default risks agged with these loans. In addition, these sameatiggeconomic and market conditions could alsmiBantly
increase the default risk on loans for which werditlassume higher default and claim rates.
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In assessing our future earnings prospects, inkestmuld consider, among other things, our lefefigination of one-to-four family residential, htiufamily
residential, commercial real estate and one-to-family mixeduse property mortgage loans, and commercial busiaed construction loans, and the greater
associated with such loans. See “Business — Lerflatigities” in Item 1 of this Annual Report.

Failure to Effectively Manage Our Liquidity Could Significantly Impact Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Our liquidity is critical to our ability to operateur business. Our primary sources of liquidity deposits, both retail deposits from our branchwoek
including our internet branch and brokered deppaitsl borrowed funds, primarily wholesale borrowirgm the FHLBNY and repurchase agreements from botl
FHLB-NY and commercial banks. Funds are also providethb repayment and sale of securities and loéns. ability to obtain funds are influenced by m
external factors, including but not limited to, #and national economic conditions, the direcbbmterest rates and competition for deposithmmarkets we sen
Additionally, changes in the FHLBFY underwriting guidelines may limit or restrict oability to borrow. A decline in available fundjrcaused by any of the abr
factors or could adversely impact our ability tdagorate loans, invest in securities, meet our espsnor fulfill our obligations such as repaying borrowings o
meeting deposit withdrawal demands.

Our Ability to Obtain Brokered Certificates of Deposit and Brokered Money Market Accounts as an Additbonal Funding Source Could be Limited

We utilize brokered deposits as an additional fogdiource and to assist in the management of tenest rate risk. The Bank had $763.9 million, 8% o
total deposits, and $517.4 million, or 16.0% oftateposits, in brokered deposit accounts at Deeerdb, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We have obtabrokere
certificates of deposit when the interest ratetwsé deposits is below the prevailing interest fiat@onbrokered certificates of deposit with similar métas in ou
market, or when obtaining them allowed us to extiredmaturities of our deposits at favorable raapared to borrowing funds with similar maturitiegien we ar
seeking to extend the maturities of our fundingssist in the management of our interest rate Bstkered certificates of deposit provide a largpaskit for us at
lower operating cost as compared to hwookered certificates of deposit since we only hawe account to maintain versus several accounksmultiple interest ar
maturity checks. Unlike nohrokered certificates of deposit where the depasibunt can be withdrawn with a penalty for any eeasncluding increasing intert
rates, a brokered certificate of deposit can oelyvithdrawn in the event of the death or court @estd mental incompetence of the depositor. Thawallus to bett
manage the maturity of our deposits and our intaegs risk. We also utilize brokers to obtain mpmnearket account deposits. The rate we pay on bedkeone
market accounts is the same or below the rate wepaonbrokered money market accounts, and the rate eeddp in a contract between the Bank and the b
These accounts are similar to brokered certificateteposit accounts in that we only maintain ooeoant for the total deposit per broker, with thieker maintainin
the detailed records of each depositor. Additignaluring 2014 we shifted approximately $94.0 roilliin Government NOW deposits to an ICS brokereday
market product which does not require us to proe@teral. This will allow us to invest our fun@shigher yielding assets. The Bank had $180lJ2amiand $70.!
million in brokered money market accounts at Decem®1, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The FDIC has promulgated regulations implementingtations on brokered deposits. Under the regometi welleapitalized institutions, such as the Bi
are not subject to brokered deposit limitationsilevadequately capitalized institutions are abladoept, renew or roll over brokered deposits avitit a waiver fron
the FDIC and subject to restrictions on the interase that can be paid on such deposits. Undeat@eid institutions are not permitted to accepbklerec
deposits. Pursuant to the regulation, the Banlg a®ll-capitalized institution, may accept brokered degoshould our capital ratios decline, this couditl our
ability to replace brokered deposits when they meatu

The maturity of brokered certificates of depositiidoresult in a significant funding source maturigigone time. Should this occur, it might be difftcto
replace the maturing certificates with new brokeredificates of deposit. We have used brokerdtaio these deposits which results in depositotls whom we hav
no other relationships since these depositors atgde of our market, and there may not be a sefficsource of new brokered certificates of depatihe time ¢
maturity. In addition, upon maturity, brokers couddjuire us to offer some of the highest interatts in the country to retain these deposits, whictld negativel
impact our earnings. The Bank mitigates this rigkobtaining brokered certificates of deposit wihrious maturities ranging up to six years, andngtts to avoi
having a significant amount maturing in any oneryea
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The Markets in Which We Operate Are Highly Competitive

We face intense and increasing competition botmaking loans and in attracting deposits. Our maske& has a high density of financial institutiomsyny
of which have greater financial resources, nameg®ition and market presence than us, and all a€lware our competitors to varying degrees. Pddituintens:
competition exists for deposits and in all of thkading activities we emphasize. Our competitionlé@ns comes principally from commercial banks,irsgs bank
savings and loan associations, mortgage bankingaoies, insurance companies, finance companiesraait unions. Management anticipates that compatiir
mortgage loans will continue to increase in theifeit Our most direct competition for deposits histdly has come from savings banks, commerciakbasaving
and loan associations and credit unions. In additiee face competition for deposits from produdtered by brokerage firms, insurance companiesather financie
intermediaries, such as money market and otherahéunds and annuities. Consolidation in the bagkirdustry and the lifting of interstate bankingddsranchin
restrictions have made it more difficult for smalleommunity-oriented banks, such as us, to comp#estively with large, national, regional and styegiona
banking institutions. We launched an internet bharftGObanking.con®® " a division of the Bank, to provide us with accessonsumers in markets outside
geographic locations. The internet banking aresa abs many larger financial institutions which énayreater financial resources, name recognition raacke
presence than we do.

Notwithstanding the intense competition, we havenbguccessful in increasing our loan portfolios degdosit base. However, no assurances can be tiia
we will be able to continue to increase our loartfpbios and deposit base, as contemplated by meamagt’s current business strategy.

Our Results of Operations May Be Adversely Affectedby Changes in National and/or Local Economic Contibns

Our operating results are affected by national lanel economic and competitive conditions, inclgdithanges in market interest rates, the strengthe
local economy, government policies and actionseglilatory authorities. The national and our lam@nomies were generally considered to be in asseme fron
December 2007 through the middle of 2009. Thislted in increased unemployment and declining pitypealues, although the property value declinethanNev
York City metropolitan area have not been as gaeanany other areas of the country. While the natiand local economies showed signs of improversiece th
middle of 2010, improvements in unemployment haggéd until recently when the unemployment rateedesed to 6.3% at December 2014 from 7.5% at Dee
2013, for the New York City region, according t@tNew York State Department of Labor. The housirggket in the United States continued to see afgigni
slowdown during 2009, and foreclosures of singtaifiahomes rose to levels not seen in the prioe frears. The downturn in the housing market hagesl. Thes
economic conditions can result in borrowers defiagiion their loans, or withdrawing their funds cgpdsit at the Bank to meet their financial obligas. While w
have seen an increase in deposits, we have als@asggnificant increase in delinquent loans, té@sylin an increase in our provision for loan lagssthough we ha
seen improvements in 2013 and 2014. This increaskelinquent loans primarily consists of mortgag@nk collateralized by residential income produgirmpertie
that are located in the New York City metropolitmarket. Given New York Citg low vacancy rates, the properties have retained value and have provided
with low loss content in our non-performing loaée cannot predict the effect of these economic itimmd on our financial condition or operating riésu

A decline in the local or national economy or thewNYork City metropolitan area real estate marketid adversely affect our financial condition aegult:
of operations, including through decreased demandofins or increased competition for good loansrgased noperforming loans and loan losses and rest
additional provisions for loan losses and for lesse real estate owned. Although management ledlithat the current allowance for loan losseseésgjaate in light ¢
current economic conditions, many factors coulduiregadditions to the allowance for loan losse$uiare periods above those currently maintainekdesg factol
include: (1) adverse changes in economic condittmmschanges in interest rates that may affecabiigy of borrowers to make payments on loansc{Znges in tt
financial capacity of individual borrowers, (3) cluges in the local real estate market and the wvafiair loan collateral, and (4) future review andlaation of ou
loan portfolio, internally or by regulators. Thenaunt of the allowance for loan losses at any tis@esents good faith estimates that are suscegttsignificar
changes due to changes in appraisal values ote@llanational and local economic conditions, pifavg interest rates and other factors. See “Bess — General-
Allowance for Loan Losses” in Item 1 of this AnnirReport.

These same factors have caused delinquencies teas® for the mortgages which are the collaterattfe mortgagésacked securities we hold in «
investment portfolio. Combining the increased dgliencies with liquidity problems in the market masulted in a decline in the market value of owesiments i
privately issued mortgage-backed securities. Tloare be no assurance that the decline in the magtae of these investments will not result in aheoithan-
temporary impairment charge being recorded in marfcial statements.”
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Changes in Laws and Regulations Could Adversely Aétt Our Business

From time to time, legislation, such as the Déddnk Act, is enacted or regulations are promutfakat have the effect of increasing the cost ahg
business, limiting or expanding permissible adegitor affecting the competitive balance betweearkband other financial institutions. Proposalshange the lav
and regulations governing the operations and tamaif banks and other financial institutions aegjfrently made in Congress, in the New York legistatind befol
various bank regulatory agencies. No predictiantwa made as to the likelihood of any major charfgreaddition to the Doddrrank Act) or the impact such chan
might have on us. For a discussion of regulatidfecting us, see “Business —Regulation” and “Busgie-Federal, State and Local Taxatiamltem 1 of this Annu:
Report.

There can be no assurance as to the actual infany laws, regulations or governmental progrdmasmay be introduced or implemented in the futuitk
have on the financial markets and the economy. ®icoeation or worsening of current financial markenditions could materially and adversely affaat busines:
financial condition, results of operations, andesscto credit or the trading price of our secugitie

Current Conditions in, and Regulation of, the Bankng Industry May Have a Material Adverse Effect on Qur Results of Operations

Financial institutions have been the subject ofifitant legislative and regulatory changes and rhaythe subject of further significant legislatior
regulation in the future, none of which is withiaracontrol. Significant new laws or regulationsabranges in, or repeals of, existing laws or regana, including
those with respect to federal and state taxati@y, cause our results of operations to differ mallgri In addition, the cost and burden of comptnover time, ha
significantly increased and could adversely afteatability to operate profitably.

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed the DoddkFAct into law. The Dodérank Act is intended to address perceived weaksewss the U.<
financial regulatory system and prevent future eocaic and financial crises. There are many prowsiof the Dodd=rank Act which will be implemented throu
regulations to be adopted within specified timerfeas following the effective date of the DoBdank Act, which creates a risk of uncertainty ashe effect that su
provisions will ultimately have. The full impact tife changes in regulation will depend on new r&ipnis that have yet to be written. The new reigaria could hav
a material adverse effect on our business, finhnoiadition or results of operations. Althouglisinot possible for us to determine at this timesthler the Dodd=rank
Act will have a material adverse effect on our hass, financial condition or results of operatiams,believe the following provisions of the DoBidank Act will havt
an impact on us:

« New Primary Regulator. On July 21, 2011, the OTS, our then primary faleegulator, was eliminated and the OCC took dlkerregulation of all fedel
savings banks, such as the Savings Bank. The &eReserve acquired the OTS’s authority over allrggs and loan holding companies, such as the Bank’
holding company, and became the supervisor ofddsigliaries of savings and loan holding companiégrothan depository institutions. As a result,
became subject to regulation, supervision and exation by two federal banking agencies, the OCCthad-ederal Reserve, rather than just by the @3
was previously the case. The OCC was replacetid¥DIC as the Bank’s federal regulator as a redutie Merger and the Savings Bask'onversion froi
thrift to a bank. The Dodd-Frank Act also providedthe creation of the Consumer Financial ProtecBureau (the “CFPB”JThe CFPB has the authority
implement and enforce a variety of existing consupretection statutes and to issue new regulatidssa new independent bureau within the FRB,
possible that the CFPB will focus more attentiorconsumers and may impose requirements more seha@rehe previous bank regulatory agenc

« Consolidated Holding Company Capital Requireme The Dod«-Frank Act requires the federal banking agenciesstablish consolidated ri-based an
leverage capital requirements for insured depasitostitutions, depository institution holding coarpes and systemically important nonbank fina
companies. These requirements must be no lesstliose to which insured depository institutions everently subject, and the new requirements
effectively eliminate the use of newiysued trust preferred securities as a componefitenf1 Capital for depository institution holdimgmpanies of ol
size. As a result, no later than the fifth anrseey of the effective date of the Do#idank Act, we will become subject to consolidategital requirements
which we have not previously been subject. Effectiebruary 28, 2013, as a result of the Merger,hiigsFinancial Corporation became a bank hol
company and it became subject to consolidatedalapifjuirements
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« Roll Back of Federal Preemptio The Dod+-Frank Act significantly rolls back the federal pmggtion of state consumer protection laws that faldeaving
associations and national banks currently enjoglbyermitting federal preemption of a state consufimancial law only if such law prevents or sfigantly
interferes with the exercise of a federal savirggoeiation’s or national barkpowers or such state law is preempted by anétderal law, (2) mandati
that any preemption decision be made on a case$y lsasis rather than a blanket rule, and (3) gritlie applicability of preemption to subsidiaries
affiliates of national banks and federal savingsoamtions. As a result, we may now be subjectate laws in each state where we do businessthase
laws may be interpreted and enforced differentlglifferent states

The DoddFrank Act also includes provisions, subject toHartrulemaking by the federal bank regulatory agenadhat may affect our future operatic
including provisions that create minimum standdwaisthe origination of mortgages, restrict propigt trading by banking entities, restrict the smoskip of an
investment in hedge funds and private equity fusylbanking entities that remove certain obstaadeth¢ conversion of savings associations to naltibaaks. W
will not be able to determine the impact of thesevigions until final rules are promulgated to iexplent these provisions and other regulatory guiglamgrovide
interpreting these provisions.

Certain Anti-Takeover Provisions May Increase the @sts to or Discourage an Acquirer

On September 5, 2006, the Board of Directors redese Stockholder Rights Plan (the “Rights Plamfjch was originally adopted on and had been ing
since September 17, 1996 and had been schedudegite on September 30, 2006. The Rights Plan wsigded to preserve loigrm values and protect stockholc
against inadequate offers and other unfair tadticcquire control of us. Under the Rights Plaghestockholder of record at the close of busioesSeptember 3
2006 received a dividend distribution of one righpurchase from the Company one ¢ngdredth of a share of Series A junior participgipreferred stock at a pr
of $65. The rights will become exercisable onlgiperson or group acquires 15% or more of our comstock or commences a tender or exchange offerhwif
consummated, would result in that person or groupilg at least 15% of the Common Stock (the “adggiperson or group”)In such case, all stockholders o
than the acquiring person or group will be entitiegurchase, by paying the $65 exercise price, 8omStock (or a common stock equivalent) with aigalf twice
the exercise price. In addition, at any time a#tech event, and prior to the acquisition by angqe or group of 50% or more of the Common Stols&, Board ¢
Directors may, at its option, require each outstandght (other than rights held by the acquirpegson or group) to be exchanged for one sharewfn@n Stock (¢
one common stock equivalent). If a person or gieeEomes an acquiring person and we are acquirgdnierger or other business combination or selertiwan 509
of our assets or earning power, each right willtienall other holders to purchase, by payment&8§ $xercise price, common stock of the acquiringgany with
value of twice the exercise price. The renewedtsighan expires on September 30, 2016.

The Rights Plan, as well as certain provisions wf eertificate of incorporation and bylaws, the Bancharter and bylaws, certain federal regulatiom
provisions of Delaware corporation law, and cerg@iovisions of remuneration plans and agreemeniicaple to employees and officers of the Bank rhaye anti-
takeover effects by discouraging potential proxytests and other takeover attempts, particularbsehwhich have not been negotiated with the Bod
Directors. The Rights Plan and those other promisias well as applicable regulatory restrictionay also prevent or inhibit the acquisition ofaatrolling positiot
in the Common Stock and may prevent or inhibit tedeg attempts that certain stockholders may deebe to their or other stockholdeiisterest or in our interest,
in which stockholders may receive a substantiainen for their shares over then current marketgmid he Rights Plan and those other provisions atsyincreas
the cost of, and thus discourage, any such futtgaisition or attempted acquisition, and would emithe removal of the current Board of Directorsmamagement
the Company more difficult.

We May Not Be Able to Successfully Implement Our Cmmercial Business Banking Initiative

Our strategy includes a transition to a more “comumaélike” banking institution. We have developed a complenoémteposit, loan and cash manager
products to support this initiative, and intendetgand these product offerings. A business banlirigbuilds relationships in order to obtain loveaisting deposit
generate fee income, and originate commercial kssifoans. The success of this initiative is dependn developing additional product offerings, duiding
relationships to obtain the deposits and loansréllean be no assurance that we will be able toesséally implement our business strategy with respe this
initiative.
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The FDIC’s Adopted Restoration Plan and the Relatedncreased Assessment Rate Schedule May Have a MadéEffect on Our Results of Operations

On October 19, 2010, the FDIC Board adopted a mstoration plan to ensure that the DIF reserve raiches 1.35% by September 30, 2020, as redui
the DoddFrank Act, rather than 1.15% by the end of 201&¢€gsired under the prior restoration plan). Ameotiger things, the new restoration plan provides the
FDIC will forego the uniform three basis point ieases in initial assessment rates that was prdyisokeduled to take effect on January 1, 2011raathtains th
current assessment rate schedule. The FDIC interlgsue further rulemaking regarding the reqoéet under the DodBrank Act that the FDIC offset the effect
institutions with less than $10 billion in assedsdh as us) of the requirement that the reseri@ medich 1.35% by September 30, 2020, so that mibtiee cost ¢
raising the reserve ratio to 1.35% will be borneibstitutions with more than $10 billion in assets. this connection, the FDIC Board approved & riila
implemented a provision in the Dodidank Act that changes the assessment base froraseel on domestic deposits (as it has been s@8% o one based on tc
average assets less Tier 1 Capital (as definecefpratory purposes). The FDIC also lowered assessrates. Effective April 1, 2011, the new assesg base
based on assets rather than domestic deposits vghéchmuch larger assessment base than in the Pastrange of the base assessment rates is 25Hasis point
whereas the prior range was 7 to 77.5 basis polntaddition, the FDIC Board approved setting designated DIF reserve ratio at 2% as a lamg, minimum goa
adopt a lower assessment rate schedule when tweeastio reaches 1.15% and, in lieu of FDIC divids, adopt progressively lower assessment ragelsleds whe
the reserve ratio reaches 2% and 2.5%. Anotherapproved by the FDIC Board, which replaces agseg rule approved by the FDIC on April 13, 2010uld
revise the deposit insurance assessment systamstoed depository institutions with over $10 loitliin assets. This rule is not directly applicables.

There is no guarantee that the rules describedeabevsufficient for the DIF to meet its funding uegments, which may necessitate further rulema
special assessments or increases in deposit itgu@emiums. Any such future rulemaking, assestsranincreases could have a further material impacou
results of operations.

A Failure in or Breach of Our Operational or Security Systems or Infrastructure, or Those of Our Third Party Vendors and Other Service Providers
Including as a Result of Cyber Attacks, Could Disrpt Our Business, Result in the Disclosure or Misusef Confidential or Proprietary Information, Damage
Our Reputation, Increase Our Costs and Cause Losses

We depend upon our ability to process, record aoditor our client transactions on a continuousass client, public and regulatory expectatiorgareing
operational and information security have increasen operational systems and infrastructure masticue to be safeguarded and monitored for patefdilures
disruptions and breakdowns. Our business, finana@ounting and data processing systems, or offemating systems and facilities, may stop opegatioperly o
become disabled or damaged as a result of a nuphif@etors, including events that are wholly ortaly beyond our control. For example, there cdoddelectrical ¢
telecommunications outages; natural disasters asdmarthquakes, tornadoes and hurricanes; disaagemics; events arising from local or larger sgalitical ol
social matters, including terrorist acts; and, ascdbed below, cybettacks. Although we have business continuity pkamd other safeguards in place, our bus
operations may be adversely affected by signifiegut widespread disruption to our physical infrasttire or operating systems that support our basiaad clients.

Information security risks for financial institutie such as ours have generally increased in rgeans in part because of the proliferation of neghhologies
the use of the internet and telecommunicationsiigclgies to conduct financial transactions, andrleeased sophistication and activities of orgadhierime, hacker
terrorists, activists and other external parties.nated above, our operations rely on the secureepsing, transmission and storage of confideintfiafmation in ou
computer systems and networks. Our business refiesur digital technologies, computer and emaiteys, software and networks to conduct its oparatidr
addition, to access our products and servicesgl@nts may use personal smartphones, tables,R€rsonal computers and other mobile devicesatigabeyond o1
control systems. Although we have information siégyorocedures and controls in place, our techrielgsystems, networks and our cliemtsvices may become 1
target of cybemttacks or information security breaches that coegllt in the unauthorized release, gathering,itodng, misuse, loss or destruction of our or
clients’ confidential, proprietary and other infation, or otherwise disrupt our or our clients’abner third parties’ business operations.

Third parties with whom we do business or thatli@té our business activities, including finandiaiermediaries or vendors that provide serviceseaurity

solutions for our operations, could also be sounfesperational and information security risk tq uluding from breakdowns or failures of their mwystems ¢
capacity constraints.
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Although to date we have not experienced any natesses relating to cybattacks or other information security breachegetiean be no assurance tha
will not suffer such losses in the future. Our ragkd exposure to these matters remains heightesalibe of the evolving nature of these threatsa Assult, cybe
security and the continued development and enhagmeof our controls, processes and practices degigm protect our systems, computers, softwarey dat
networks from attack, damage or unauthorized acmssin a focus for us. As threats continue to \ejolve may be required to expend additional ressuic
continue to modify or enhance our protective messor to investigate and remediate information sgrcwulnerabilities.

Disruptions or failures in the physical infrastiuret or operating systems that support our busiaedsclients, or cybeattacks or security breaches of
networks, systems or devices that our clients vsactess our products and services could resutfiemt attrition, regulatory fines, penalties otteirvention
reputational damage, reimbursement or other congpienscosts and/or additional compliance costs, @nyhich could materially and adversely affect éimancia
condition or results of operations.

We May Experience Increased Delays in Foreclosureréceedings

Foreclosure proceedings face increasing delaysileWile cannot predict the ultimate impact of aniaglén foreclosure sales, we may be subject totamfil
borrower and nomorrower litigation and governmental and regulatecyutiny related to our past and current foredesactivities. Delays in foreclosure sa
including any delays beyond those currently angitgd could increase the costs associated with outgage operations and make it more difficult ferta prever
losses in our loan portfolio.

We May Need to Recognize Other-Than-Temporary Impament Charges in the Future

We conduct a periodic review and evaluation ofgkeurities portfolio to determine if the declinetlie fair value of any security below its cost basiother-
thantemporary. Factors which we consider in our analystlude, but are not limited to, the severity ahdation of the decline in fair value of the séiyyrthe
financial condition and nederm prospects of the issuer, whether the declppears to be related to issuer conditions or gémeaeket or industry conditions, ¢
intent and ability to retain the security for aipdrof time sufficient to allow for any anticipateecovery in fair value and the likelihood of anganterm fair valu
recovery. We generally view changes in fair vata@sed by changes in interest rates as temporamye¥er, we have recorded other-themporary impairme
charges on some securities in our portfolio. Ifdeem such decline to be other-than-temporarysékarity is written down to a new cost basis ardé¢bkulting loss |
charged to earnings as a component of non-interesmne.

We continue to monitor the fair value of our setiesi portfolio as part of our ongoing other-thtemporary impairment evaluation process. Therebeanc
assurance that we will not need to recognize dthen-temporary impairment charges related to seesiin the future.

The Current Economic Environment Poses SignificanChallenges for us and Could Adversely Affect our Fiancial Condition and Results of Operations

We are operating in a challenging and uncertaimeedc environment, including generally uncertairtior@al conditions and local conditions in
markets. While the national and local economiema&d signs of improvement since the middle of 2Qt@mployment has remained at elevated levels hbhsing
market in the United States continued to see afiignt slowdown during 2009, and foreclosures ioigke family homes rose to levels not seen in therdive
years. The housing market has shown improveme2®1i3, but has not returned to pemession levels. Financial institutions continudé¢ affected by sharp decli
in the real estate market and constrained finamoekets. While we are taking steps to decreaddianit our exposure to residential mortgage lodrane equit
loans and lines of credit, and construction andl leoans, we nonetheless retain direct exposurédardsidential and commercial real estate marketd, we ar
affected by these events. Further declines inesi@te values, home sales volumes and finanogssbn borrowers as a result of the uncertain@o@menvironmen
including job losses, could have an adverse eftectour borrowers or their customers, which couldeasely affect our financial condition and resudtf
operations. The overall deterioration in econoovaditions has subjected us to increased regulatomytiny. In addition, further deterioration iational or loce
economic conditions in our markets could drive éssBeyond that which is provided for in our allos&for loan losses and result in the following ottensequence
loan delinquencies, problem assets and foreclosuegsincrease; demand for our products and servimgsdecline; deposits may decrease, which woueraely
impact our liquidity position; and collateral fouioloans, especially real estate, may decline lneyan turn reducing customensbrrowing power, and reducing
value of assets and collateral associated witteristing loans. These same factors have causedjdehcies to increase for the mortgages whichhareollateral fc
the mortgagdsacked securities that we hold in our investmenmtfpl@d. Combining the increased delinquencies Mitjuidity problems in the market has resulted
decline in the market value of our investments brtgagebacked securities. There can be no assurancehthaetline in the market value of these investmeiit:
not cause us to record an other-than-temporaryirmeat charge in our financial statements.
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We May Not Pay Dividends on Our Common Stock

Holders of shares of our common stock are onlytledtio receive such dividends as our Board of @ies may declare out of funds legally availablesiact
payments. Although we have historically declareshcdividends on our common stock, we are not reduio do so and may reduce or eliminate our comstack
dividend in the future. This could adversely afféet market price of our common stock.

Goodwill Recorded as a Result of Acquisitions Coulecome Impaired, Negatively Impacting Our Earningsand Capital

Goodwill is presumed to have an indefinite life andested annually, or when certain conditionsraeg, for impairment. If the fair value of the retdog unit
is greater than the goodwill amount, no furtherlea®on is required and no impairment is recordédhe fair value of the reporting unit is less thine goodwil
amount, further evaluation would be required to pare the fair value of the reporting unit to theodwill amount and determine if a write down is riegd.
Management views the Company as operating as aesinmgt - a community bank. At December 31, 2014, we haddwdl with a carrying amount of $1€
million. Declines in the fair value of the repoii unit may result in a future impairment chardey such impairment charge could have a materi@cefon ou
earnings and capital.

We May Not Fully Realize the Expected Benefit of OuDeferred Tax Assets
At December 31, 2014, we have a deferred tax aés&9.8 million. This represents the anticipatedefral, state and local tax benefits expected tedleec
in future years upon the utilization of the undenfytax attributes comprising this balance. In ofdeuse the future benefit of these deferred &mets, we will need

report taxable income for federal, state and ltealpurposes. Although we have reported taxaldene for federal, state, and local tax purpose=ath of the pa
three years, there can be no assurance that thisowiinue in the future.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Iltem 2. Properties.

At December 31, 2014, the Bank conducted its bssitierough 17 full-service offices and its interetnch, “iGObanking.corfi”.
Flushing Financial Corporation neither owns nosésaany property but instead uses the premisescuipment of the Bank.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are involved in various legal actions arisingthie ordinary course of our business which, in dggregate, involve amounts which are believe
management to be immaterial to our financial cooujtresults of operations and cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable
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PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Flushing Financial Corporation Common Stock is éhdn the NASDAQ Global Select Mark&tunder the symbol “FFIC.’As of December 31, 2014,
had approximately 740 shareholders of record, mduding the number of persons or entities holdt@ck in nominee or street name through variougdysan:
banks. Our stock closed at $20.27 on Decembe2@®4. The following table shows the high and lakes price of the Common Stock and the dividend$aded ol
the Common Stock during the periods indicated.hSpiices do not necessarily reflect retail markupsrkdowns, or commissions. (See Note 13 of Nt
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Ariaual Report for dividend restrictions.)

2014 2013
High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
First Quarte! $ 2191 $ 19.0¢ $ 0.1t $ 17.1C $ 15.02 $ 0.1:
Second Quarte 21.7¢ 18.8: 0.1t 16.87 15.02 0.1:
Third Quartel 21.3i 18.1¢ 0.1f 19.8¢ 16.4C 0.1z
Fourth Quarte 20.8¢ 17.7C 0.1f 21.7C 17.9¢ 0.1z

The following table sets forth information regamglithe shares of common stock repurchased by usgitime quarter ended December 31, 2014:

Maximum

Total Number o

Number of

Total Shares Purchast  Shares That May
Number as Part of Publicl  Yet Be Purchase
of Shares Average Price Announced Plan Under the Plans
Purchase: Paid per Shar or Program: or Program:
October 1 to October 31, 20 - % = - 888,40(
November 1 to November 30, 20 163,20: 19.7¢ 163,20: 725,19¢
December 1 to December 31, 2( 90,00( 19.5¢ 90,00( 635,19¢
Total 253,20:  $ 19.6¢ 253,20:

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Coynpampleted the common stock repurchase progratmths approved by the CompasyBoard ¢
Directors on May 22, 2013. On August 19, 2014, @eenpany announced the authorization by the Boafdimfctors of a new common stock repurchase prog
which authorizes the purchase of up to 1,000,0@0eshof its common stock. During the years endeceBber 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company repurcl®dged?7:
shares and 836,092 shares, respectively, of thep@wyis common stock at an average cost of $19.29 pee stmal $15.73 per share, respectively. At Decergh
2014, 635,199 shares remain to be repurchased thmleurrent stock repurchase program. Stock wilpbrchased under the current stock repurchasegpnofyon
time to time, in the open market or through privassactions subject to market conditions anchatdiscretion of the management of the CompanyreTgenc
expiration or maximum dollar amount under this auttation.
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The following table sets forth securities authadifer issuance under all equity compensation ptdrise Company at December 31, 2014:

(c) B
Number of securities
remaining available fi

@) (b) future issuance under
Number of securities Weighted-average equity compensation
be issued upon exerc exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding option  outstanding option:  securities reflected in
warrants and right warrants and right column (a)
Equity compensation plans approwby security holder 15491 $ 15.1¢ 1,097,201
Equity compensation plans rapproved by security holde - - -
15491! $ 15.1¢ 1,097,201
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph shows a comparison of cumutattetal stockholder return on the Compangommon stock since December 31, 2009 witt
cumulative total returns of a broad equity marketex as well as comparative published industryciesli The broad equity market index chosen was tsaldy
Composite. The comparative published industry ieslichosen were the SNL Bank $1 Billion to $5 Billia Assets Index and the SNL M#ttantic Bank Index. Th
SNL Mid-Atlantic Bank Index was chosen for inclusiimthe Company Stock Performance Graph because the Companyéelieprovides valuable comparai
information reflecting the Company’s geographicrg®up. The SNL Bank $1 Billion to $5 Billion ins&ets Index was chosen for inclusion in the Comgagtocl
Performance Graph because it uses a broader gfdagnks and therefore more closely reflects the gamg’s size. The Company believes that both geograpks
and size are important factors in analyzing the gamy’s performance against its peers. The graph belft@cte historical performance only, which is nadiicative o
possible future performance of the common stock.

Total Return Performance
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The total return assumes $100 invested on Dece8ih&@009 and all dividends reinvested through titeaf the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31,
2014. The performance graph above is based upsimglprices on the trading date specified.

Period Ending
Index 12/31/0¢ 12/31/1( 12/31/1: 12/31/1: 12/31/1¢ 12/31/1¢
Flushing Financial Corporatic 100.0( 129.6¢ 122.0: 153.8: 213.87 215.8:
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 118.1¢ 117.2: 138.0: 193.47 222.1¢
SNL Bank $1 Billion to $5 Billior 100.0( 113.3¢ 103.3¢ 127.47 185.3¢ 193.8:
SNL Mid-Atlantic Bank 100.0( 116.6¢ 87.64 117.4C 158.2¢ 172.4:
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

At or for the years ended December 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d:
Selected Financial Condition Date
Total asset $ 5077,01: $ 4,721,500 $ 4,451,41 $ 4,287,94 $ 4,324,74!
Loans, ne 3,785,27 3,402,40: 3,203,01 3,198,53 3,248,63!
Securities available for sa 973,31 1,017,79i 949,56t 812,53( 804,18
Deposits 3,508,59: 3,232,78l 3,015,19: 3,146,24! 3,190,61!
Borrowed funds 1,056,49: 1,012,12 948,40! 685,13¢ 708,68:
Total stockholders' equit 456,24 432,53: 442,36} 416,91: 390,04!
Common stockholders' equi 456,24 432,53. 442,36! 416,91: 390,04!
Book value per common shg(1) $ 155 % 14.3¢  $ 143¢ % 13.4¢ % 12.4¢
Selected Operating Date
Interest and dividend incon $ 197,12t $ 20052« $ 213,71 $ 224,49t $ 229,62¢
Interest expens 54,74 54,86: 63,27¢ 76,721 91,76
Net interest incom 142,38 145,66 150,43¢ 147,77" 137,86:
Provision (benefit) for loan loss: (6,027 13,93¢ 21,00( 21,50( 21,00(
Net interest income after provisifor loan losse: 148,40¢ 131,72¢ 129,43¢ 126,27" 116,86:
Nor-interest income
Net gains on sales of securitand loans 2,87¢ 3,021 69 511 7
Other-thar-temporary credit impairmeicharge on securitie - (1,419 (77€) (1,57¢) (2,045)
Net (loss) gain from fair value adjustme (2,56%) (2,527) 55 1,96( 47
Other income 9,93¢ 10,47¢ 9,71 9,38¢ 10,29:
Total nor-interest incom 10,24: 9,55¢ 9,06t 10,28: 8,30(
Nor-interest expens 85,83¢ 80,57¢ 82,32¢ 77,73¢ 70,38t
Income before income tax provisi 72,81 60,70¢ 56,17¢ 58,817 54,77¢
Income tax provisiol 28,57 22,95¢ 21,84% 23,46¢ 15,94.
Net income $ 4423¢  $ 37,75 % 34,33 $ 35,34¢  $ 38,83t
Basic earnings per common sh(2) $ 14¢ % 12¢ $ 1.1 $ 1.1 $ 1.2¢
Diluted earnings per common shi(2) $ 148 3 1.2¢ $ 1.1 % 115 3 1.2¢
Dividends declared per common sh(2) $ 06C $ 05z % 05z $ 05z $ 0.52
Dividend payout ratic 40.2% 41.%% 46.(% 45.2% 40.€%

(Footnotes on the following page)
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At or for the years ended December 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Selected Financial Ratios and Other Dat:

Performance ratio:
Return on average ass 0.91% 0.82% 0.7% 0.82% 0.92%
Return on average equ 9.82 8.7¢ 7.9¢ 8.7¢ 10.3Z
Average equity to average ass 9.31 9.4t 9.8¢ 9.3€ 8.8¢
Equity to total assef 8.9¢ 9.1€ 9.9 9.72 9.0z
Interest rate spree 2.9¢ 3.2t 3.5C 3.4¢€ 3.27
Net interest margi 3.11 3.37 3.6t 3.61 3.4%
Nonr-interest expense to average as 1.77 1.7¢ 1.8¢ 1.8C 1.6€
Efficiency ratio 54.4( 50.6¢ 50.7: 49.1¢ 47.37
Average intere-earning assets to avercinteres-bearing liabilities 1.11x 1.1Cx 1.0¢€ x 1.0€ x 1.07x

Regulatory capital ratios: (:
Core capital (well capitalized = 59 9.62% 9.4¢% 9.62% 9.62% 9.1&%
Tier 1 risk-based capital (well capitalized =6¢ 13.8% 14.5¢ 14.3¢ 14.2¢ 13.0%
Total risk-based capital (well capitalized =10 14.6( 15.6: 15.4: 15.32 13.9¢

Asset quality ratios
Non-performing loans to gross loans 0.9(% 1.43% 2.7% 3.65% 3.44%
Non-performing assets to total assets 0.8C 1.14 2.21 2.87 2.7¢
Net charg-offs to average loar 0.0z 0.41 0.64 0.5¢ 0.4z
Allowance for loan losses to gross lo: 0.6€ 0.9 0.97 0.94 0.8t
Allowance for loan losses to toinor-performing assets (! 61.9¢ 59.0¢ 31.5¢ 24.6: 23.31
Allowance for loan losses to toinor-performing loans (4 73.4( 64.8¢ 34.6: 25.8¢ 24.71

Full-service customer facilitie 17 17 17 16 15

(1) Calculated by dividing common stockholc” equity of $456.2 million and $432.5 million at Detleer 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, by 29,403:82B30,123,252 shares outstanding at Decemb
2014 and 2013, respectively. Common stockho’ equity is total stockholde’ equity less the liquidation preference value ofgmred shares outstandir

(2) The shares held in the Comp’s Employee Benefit Trust are not included in shargstanding for purposes of calculating earnirgrsshare

(3) Represents the Ba's capital ratios, which exceeded all minimum reguiacapital requirements during the periods presg|
(4) Non-performing loans consist of n-accrual loans and loans delinquent 90 days or thateare still accruing
(5) Non-performing assets consist of I-performing loans, real estate owned and-performing investment securitie
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Item 7. Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations.

As used in this discussion and analysis, the wbngs” “us,” “our” and the “Company” are used to refer to Flushing Financial Corporatiamd ou
consolidated subsidiaries, including the survivergity of the merger (the “Merger"dn February 28, 2013 of our wholly owned subsididyshing Savings Bar
FSB (the“Savings Bank”) with and into the Savings Bank’'soli§r owned subsidiary Flushing Commercial Bank (8emmercial Bank”).The surviving entity of tl
Merger was the Commercial Bank, whose name has dtemmged tc‘Flushing Bank”. References herein to the “Bankiean the Savings Bank (including its wr
owned subsidiary, the Commercial Bank) prior to Merger and the surviving entity after the Merger.

General

We are a Delaware corporation organized in May 1984. Savings Bank was organized in 1929 as a Neik Statechartered mutual savings bank. In 1¢
the Savings Bank converted to a federally chartenetlial savings bank and changed its name fromhiigsSavings Bank to Flushing Savings Bank, FSBe
Savings Bank converted from a federally charteretluad savings bank to a federally chartered stackngs bank in 1995. On February 28, 2013, in thegkle the
Savings Bank merged with and into the CommercialkBavith the Commercial Bank as the surviving entRursuant to the Merger, the Commercial Bardtiarte
was changed to a New York State fedlrvice commercial bank charter, and its name Wwasged to Flushing Bank. Also in connection wite ¥Merger, Flushin
Financial Corporation became a bank holding comp#fg/ do not anticipate any significant changesuoaperations or services as a result of the Merger.

On July 21, 2011, as a result of the Dodd-Frank|\8teet Reform and Consumer Protection Act (thed®Frank Act”), the Savings Barkpriman
regulator became the Office of the Comptrolleri@ Currency (“OCC”). Upon completion of the Mergire Banks primary regulator became the New York £
Department of Financial Services (“NYSDFS™ornerly the New York State Banking Department)d s federal regulator became the Federal Depasitranc
Corporation (“FDIC"). The Banls deposits are insured to the maximum allowableuatnioy the FDIC. The Bank owns three subsidiaféisshing Preferred Fundi
Corporation, Flushing Service Corporation, and FP2&perties Inc.

Flushing Financial Corporation also owns FlushiimgaRcial Capital Trust Il, Flushing Financial CapiTrust Ill, and Flushing Financial Capital Truligt(the
“Trusts”), which are special purpose business trusts formeidgl2007 to issue a total of $60.0 million of dapisecurities, and $1.9 million of common secet
(which are the only voting securities). Flushingndticial Corporation owns 100% of the common sdeariof the Trusts. The Trusts used the proceeds fhe
issuance of these securities to purchase juniasrditated debentures from Flushing Financial Cafion. The Trusts are not included in our consoéiddinancis
statements as we would not absorb the losses dirtists if losses were to occur.

The following discussion of financial condition amesults of operations includes the collective itesof the Flushing Financial Corporation and
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”), butleets principally the Bank’s activities. Managemeigws the Company as operating as a single uaitemmunit
bank. Therefore, segment information is not prodide

The Bank has a business banking unit. Our busistestegy includes a transition from a traditiorralft to a more “commercial-likebanking institution b
focusing on the development of a full complementahmercial business deposit, loan and cash maradgroducts. As of December 31, 2014, the busibasking
unit had $461.5 million in gross loans outstanding $134.6 million of customer deposits.

The Bank has an internet branch, iGObanking.comi®ch provides access to consumers in marketsdmutgir geographic locations. Accounts can be of
online at www.iGObanking.com or by mail. The imter branch does not currently accept loan apptinati As of December 31, 2014, the internet brdrach$281.
million of customer deposits.

The Savings Bank formed a wholly owned subsidi&iyshing Commercial Bank, a New York Stateartered commercial bank, for the limited purpot
providing banking services to public entities irdihg counties, cities, towns, villages, schoolritits, libraries, fire districts and the variousias throughout the Ne
York City metropolitan area. The Commercial Banksviarmed in response to New York State law, whieuires that municipal deposits and state funds i
deposited into a bank or trust company as definédew York State law. The Savings Bank was not iclemed an eligible bank or trust company for thisgose. O
February 28, 2013, in the Merger, the Savings Barkged with and into the Commercial Bank, with th@ar@nercial Bank as the surviving entity. Pursuanthe
Merger, the Commercial Bank’s charter was changedftdl-service New York State commercial bank tdrarand its name was changed to Flushing Bank.
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The Merger was the result of the combination of ®swtities under common control, and in accordandd WSC 805-50-3(%, the Bank measured -
recognized assets and liabilities transferredeit trarrying amounts (historical cost) for thismsaction.

Overview

Our principal business is attracting retail deofiom the general public and investing those déptsgether with funds generated from ongoing apens
and borrowings, primarily in (1) originations andrghases of multiamily residential properties, commercial businksms, commercial real estate mortgage |
and, to a lesser extent, one-to-four family (fongsin mixeddse properties, which are properties that contath kesidential dwelling units and commercial unig)
construction loans, primarily for residential prages; (3) Small Business Administration (“SBAQans and other small business loans; (4) mortigzage surrogate
such as mortgage-backed securities; and (5) Ugrgment securities, corporate fixadome securities and other marketable securiés.also originate certe
other consumer loans including overdraft linesrefd@. Our results of operations depend primarily on negrest income, which is the difference betweenribeme
earned on its interest-earning assets and theo€aatr interesbearing liabilities. Net interest income is theulesf our interest rate margin, which is the diéfiece
between the average yield earned on interest-epassets and the average cost of intdyeating liabilities, adjusted for the differencetire average balance
interest-earning assets as compared to the avbadgece of interest-bearing liabilities. We alsograte norinterest income from loan fees, service chargedeposi
accounts, mortgage servicing fees, and other feesme earned on Bank Owned Life Insurance (“BOL#lividends on Federal Home Bank of New York (“FHLB
NY”) stock and net gains and losses on sales of sesuaitid loans. Our operating expenses consist paihciof employee compensation and benefits, oaeeypanc
equipment costs, other general and administratipereses and income tax expense. Our results ofitgaes also can be significantly affected by ouriqac
provision for loan losses and specific provisionlésses on real estate owned.

Management StrategyOur strategy is to continue our focus on being rastitution serving consumers, businesses, and goartal units in our loc
markets. In furtherance of this objective, we inltéo

« continue our emphasis on the origination of n-family residential mortgage loans, commercial besgloans and commercial real estate mortgage; |
« continue to transition the balance sheet to a I'commercie-like’ banking institution

« increase our commitment to the m-cultural marketplace, with a particular focus oe #fsian community in Queer

« maintain asset qualit

« manage deposit growth and maintain a low costd$ithrough

business banking depos

personal account

municipal deposits through government banking,
new customer relationships via iGObanking.®;

« cross sell to lending and deposit customers;
« take advantage of market disruptions to attraentend customers from competitc
« manage interest rate risk and capital:
« manage enterpri-wide risk.
There can be no assurance that we will be abléfdotiwely implement this strategy. Our strateggibject to change by the Board of Directors.

Multi-Family Residential, Commercial Business and ComiakeReal Estate Lending.In recent years, we have emphasized the origimadi
higher-yielding multi-family residential mortgagean. During 2014, we continued to focus on theioation of multifamily properties and increas
originations of business loans with a full banknetptionship and commercial mortgage lending, asstnategic plan included reentering these markit
continued to deemphasize one-to-four family — mixsd property and construction lending. We expeaantinue this emphasis on higher-yielding multi-

family residential mortgage loans, business loaitis av/full banking relationship and commercial ngage lending, while we continue to deemphasizetone-
four family mixed-use property and constructiondiery.
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The following table shows loan originations andghases during 2014, and loan balances as of Dec&hp2014.

Loan Loan Balance
Originations and December 31, Percent o
Purchase 2014 Gross Loan:
(Dollars in thousands
Multi-family residentia $ 420,97¢ $ 1,923,46! 50.6%
Commercial real esta 179,84t 621,56 16.3¢
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 50,07( 573,77¢ 15.1(C
One-to-four family — residentia 24,727 187,57. 4,94
Cc-operative apartmel 17C 9,83¢ 0.2¢€
Constructior 1,56¢ 5,28¢ 0.1<
Small Business Administratic 1,611 7,13¢ 0.1¢
Taxi Medallion 14,43: 22,51¢ 0.5¢
Commercial Business and Ott 264,76! 447 ,50( 11.7¢
Total $ 958,16t $ 3,798,65. 100.0(%

At December 31, 2014, multi-family residential, aoercial real estate, construction and one-to-familly mixeduse property mortgage loa
totaled 82.2% of our gross loar@ur concentration in these types of loans has as&@ the overall level of credit risk inherent ur ¢doan portfolio. Th
greater risk associated with multi-family, commafcieal estate, construction and one-to-four familyed-use property mortgage loans could require |
increase our provisions for loan losses and to tamiran allowance for loan losses as a percentfdetal loans in excess of the allowance curre
maintained.

Continue to Transition the Balance Sheet to a M@@mmerciallike’ Banking InstitutionWe have an established business banking unit dtafit
a team of experienced commercial bankers. We havelapbed a complement of deposit, loan and castageement products to support this initiative,
expanded these product offerings. The businessifgnlit is responsible for building business rielaghips in order to obtain lowessting deposit
generate fee income, and originate commercial lasitbans. Building these business relationshipklgmrovide us with a lowetosting source of funds a
higher-yielding adjustable-rate loans, which wolidp us manage our intergste risk. On February 28, 2013, in the Merger,3bgings Bank merged w
and into the Commercial Bank, with the CommerciahB as the surviving entity. Pursuant to the Merger,Commercial Bank’ charter was changed t
full-service New York State commercial bank charéerd its name was changed to Flushing Bank.

Increase Our Commitment to the Me@ultural Marketplace, with a Particular Focus on fan Community in Queen®ur branches are
located in the New York City metropolitan area wgtrticular concentration in the borough of Quee@seens in particular exhibits a high level ofnit
diversity. An important element of our strategytds service the multethnic consumer and business. We have a particolacentration in the Asii
communities-among them Chinese and Korean populations. Baihpgr are noted for high levels of savings, edunatiod entrepreneurship. In orde
service these and other important ethnic grougsiimmarket, our staff speaks more than 30 langualyeshave an Asian advisory board to help broade
link to the community by providing guidance andtémsg awareness of our active role in the locahownity. Our focus on the Asian community in Qug
where we have four branches, has resulted in wsnibg approximately $500 million in deposits iregle branches. We also have over $400 millionanfs
and lines of credit outstanding to borrowers inAlsé&an community.

Maintain Asset Quality By adherence to our conservative underwritirrmndards, we have been able to minimize net logses impaired loar
with net chargesffs of $0.7 million and $13.3 million for the yesaended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectivetys&®k to maintain our loans
performing status through, among other things,iglised collection efforts, and consistently monitg nonperforming assets in an effort to return thel
performing status. To this end, we review the dyalf our loans and report to the Loan Committe¢hef Board of Directors of the Bank on a monthlgis
We sold 32 delinquent mortgage loans totaling $1&il8on, 72 delinquent mortgage loans totaling $B8illion and 77 delinquent mortgage loans tog
$44.2 million during the years ended December 81422013 and 2012, respectively. We recordedeteiveries of $0.4 and net chamfés of $4.7 millior
and $5.7 million to the allowance for loan lossesthe nonperforming loans that were sold during 2014, 2048 2012, respectively. We realized g
gains of $54,000, $134,000 and $21,000 on the shleonperforming mortgage loans for the years ended Dbeen3l, 2014, 2013 and 20
respectively. We realized gross losses of $81:0@D$69,000 on the sale of nperforming mortgage loans for the years ended Dbeeidil, 2013 and 20
respectively. We did not record any gross lossethidyear ended December 31, 2014. There can beswances that we will continue this strategytiare
periods, or if continued, we will be able to findyers to pay adequate consideration. erforming assets amounted to $40.5 million and&&3llion a
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Nerferming assets as a percentage of total assrts W80% and 1.14% at December 31, 2014 and
respectively.
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Manage Deposit Growth and Maintain Low Cost of FuMis. have a relatively stable retail deposit basevdritom our market area through
full-service offices. Although we seek to retain exstiteposits and maintain depositor relationshipsfigring quality service and competitive interesster
to our customers, we also seek to keep deposittgraxithin reasonable limits and our strategic plemorder to implement our strategic plan, we ha
business banking operation that we designed speltjfito develop full business relationships thgrébinging in lower cost checking and money me
deposits. At December 31, 2014, deposits balantélsei business sector are $134.6 million. We abseehan internet branch, “iGObanking.céni, as ¢
division of the Bank, to compete for deposits freources outside the geographic footprint of oukdatvice offices. In creating iGObanking.com@yr
strategy is to reduce our reliance on wholesaleobongs and reduce our funding costs. Deposit lz&larin iGObanking.com@ere $281.6 million
December 31, 2014, at rates lower than our bormgsvikVe have a government banking division, whidbrgo the Merger operated as the Commercial E
as an additional source of deposits. At DecembegPB14, deposits in our government banking divigaaled $891.9 million at rates below our averege
of funds. We also obtain deposits through brokeithe CDARS®&nd ICS network. Management intends to balanceoébtg maintain competitive inter:
rates on deposits while seeking to manage its dvast of funds to finance its strategies. We galie rely on our deposit base as our principalreew
funding. In addition, the Bank is a member of théLB-NY, which provides us with a source of borrowinge\&lso utilize reverse purchase agreem
established with other financial institutions. Dwgi2014, we realized an increase in Due to depssib$272.9 million, as core deposits increase8l.1
million while certificates of deposit increased 818 million. At the same time our borrowed fundsreased by $44.4 million as we looked to extent
maturities of our funding.

Cross Sell to Lending and Deposit Custom@rsignificant portion of our lending and deposistamers do not have both their loans and dej
with us. We intend to continue to focus on obtajgnaditional deposits from our lending customers arginating additional loans to our deposit costes
Product offerings were expanded and are expectée forther expanded to accommodate perceived rogstdemands. In addition, specific employee:
assigned responsibilities of generating these iaddit deposits and loans by coordinating effortsveen lending and deposit gathering departments.

Take Advantage of Market Disruptions to Attract Taland Customers From CompetitoFie New York City market place has been dominate
large institutions, many of which recently have mio difficult situations due to the recessionanyironment. During this time period we have bable tc
attract talent from such large commercial bankatTalent has brought with it significant busineslationships. We have been able to see a largebeuo
strong companies that have been caught in a rétnegrat by their existing large institution. We aigtéte this environment remaining for some periotiraé.

We have in the past increased growth through aitiguis of financial institutions and branches dfiet financial institutions, and will continue
pursue growth through acquisitions that are, oreagected to be within a reasonable time frameagtige to earnings, as well as evaluating the Belityi of
opening additional branches. We have in the ppshed new branches. We plan to continue to seekranew potential acquisition opportunities 1
complement our current business, are consistehtauit strategy to build a bank that is focusedhenunique personal and small business banking redette
multi-ethnic communities we serve.

62




Manage Interest Rate Risk and Capitsle seek to manage our interest rate risk by agtinaliewing the repricing and maturities of oureirgst rat
sensitive assets and liabilities. The mix of loares originate (fixed or ARM) is determined in largart by borrowerspreferences and prevailing mai
conditions. We seek to manage the interest rskeofi our loan portfolio by actively managing oecarity portfolio and borrowings. By adjusting timéx of
fixed and adjustable rate securities, as well asntiaturities of the securities, we have the abtlitynanage the combined interest rate sensitivitpur
assets. Additionally, we seek to balance the ésterate sensitivity of our assets by managingntiaurities of our liabilities. The Bank faces sal
minimum capital requirements imposed by federaliaipn. These requirements limit the dividends Bank is allowed to pay, including the paymer
dividends to Flushing Financial Corporation, and kmit the annual growth of the Bank.

Manage EnterprisiVide Risk.We identify measure and attempt to mitigate risled taffect, or have the potential to affect, ousibass. Due to tl
economic crisis and resulting increase in goverrimegulation, there is greater demand for us tootkesgignificant resources to risk management. Inl.
2010, a seasoned risk officer was hired to proegecutive risk leadership, and an enterpwsde risk management program was implemented. &t
enterprise risk management analytical products haes implemented which include key risk indicat@sr management of enterprisgde risk enables |
to recognize and monitor risks and establish proesito disseminate the risk information acrossooganization and to our Board of Directors. Thgeotive
is to have a robust and focused risk managemenéegsaapable of identifying and mitigating emerdghvgats to the Bank'’s safety and soundness.

Trends and ContingenciesOur operating results are significantly affectednayional and local economic and competitive caods, including changes
market interest rates, the strength of the locahemy, government policies and actions of regujatarthorities. As shotierm interest rates declined from 2
through 2014, we remained strategically focusedhernorigination of multi-family residential mortgagand to a lesser extent, commercial real estat@me-tofour
family mixeduse property mortgage loans. However, recently axelincreased our emphasis on the origination amdhpse of business loans with full banl
relationships and commercial real estate loansa Aesult of this strategy, we were able to contitmuachieve a higher yield on our mortgage poxtfttian we woul
have otherwise experienced

The New York City metropolitan area, our primaryrke for lending, was generaltonsidered to be in a recession from December #@@ugh the middl
of 2009. In the New York City metropolitan areajling permits for one-to-four family residentipioperties, multkamily residential properties, and commer
properties all declined over this time period tstbiically low levels. Building permits issued ImetNew York metropolitan area have increased dweipast sever
years. The home price index for the New York Citgtropolitan area declined from the beginning of 260 the end of 2012 by approximately 23.7%, big
increased 7.0% from 2012 through 2014. The valuaufi-family and commercial properties showed $imprice movements.

Building permits for one-to-four family residentigtoperties, multfamily residential properties, and commercial prtips all declined over this time per
to historically low levels. This resulted in inceeal unemployment and declining property values. mb@rity of our impaired loans are income prodgaiasidentic
properties located in the New York City metropalitaarket. Due to the low vacancy rates for thepegyof properties, they have retained more of tradire, therek
reducing their loss content. While the national bowél economies have improved since the middi20d0, improvements in unemployment have lagged redently
when the unemployment rate decreased to 6.3% atrifeer 2014 from 7.5% at December 2013, for the Newvk City region, according to the New York St
Department of Labor. This slow improvement in tinemployment rate has resulted in the balance ohomperforming loans remaining at an elevated levéhoaigt
non-performing loans declined in 2014, 2013 and22Monperforming loans totaled $34.2 million, $49.0 noitliand $89.8 million at December 31, 2014, 201:
2012, respectively. While ngmerforming loans have remained elevated, we havexmerienced a significant increase in foreclogeaperties despite an exten
foreclosure process in our market. The extendeecfosure process in our market is due to the highber of foreclosure actions filed in the courttegsin the
counties for which we are seeking foreclosure dingeent mortgage loans. We have not encounteigrdfigiant issues with documentation relating to tgages fc
which we are seeking foreclosure as we maintaitodysof all loan documents and review them prioptoviding them to our legal counsel to initiate floreclosur
action. The deterioration in the economy also teduin an increase in net chargiés from impaired loans, although improvement waen in 2014 and 2013. |
charge-offs totaled $0.7 million, $13.3 million a#20.2 million for the years ended December 3142@013 and 2012, respectively. This improvememtahcharge-
offs allowed us to reduce the provision for loasskes to a benefit of $6.0 million for the year eh@&cember 31, 2014, compared to a provision expeh$13.!
million and $21.0 million for the years ended Debem31, 2013, and 2012, respectively. We canndatigréhe effect of these economic conditions onGloenpanys
future financial condition or operating results.
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In addition, in response to the economic conditioneur market combined with the increase in penforming loans, we began tightening our undemg
standards in 2008 to reduce the risk associatddleriding.

The following changes were made in our underwritstgndards since 2008 to reduce the risk associwitbdlending on income producing real es

properties:

When borrowers requested a refinance of an existinggage loan when they had acquired the propgertybtained their existing loan witt
two years of the request, we generally requiredlende of improvements to the property that incréabe property value to support
additional funds and generally restricted the -to-value ratio for the new loan to 65% of the apprisaiue.

The debt coverage ratio was increased and the-to-value ratio decreased for income producing progenith fewer than ten units. T
required the borrower to have an additional invesinin the property than previously required anavjated additional protection should rel
units become vacar

Borrowers who owned multiple properties were regglito provide detail on all their properties tooadlus to evaluate their total cash f
requirements. Based on this review, we may dedfiadoan application, or require a lower I-to-value ratio and a higher debt coverage r:

Income producing properties with existing rents thare at or above the current market rent forlasingroperties were required to have a hi
debt coverage ratio to provide protection shoutdséecline

Borrowers purchasing properties were required toafestrate they had satisfactory liquidity and mamagnt ability to carry the property she
vacancies occur or increa:

The following changes were made in our underwristgndards since 2008 to reduce the risk on offiedtofamily residential property mortgage loans
home equity lines of credit:

We discontinued originating home equity lines idit without verifying the borrowes’income. This was done in two stages. Beginniriday
2008, we began verifying the borroneihcome when the home equity line of credit exedebL00,000. Beginning in October 2009, we ver
the income of all borrowers applying for a homeisggline of credit.

We discontinued offering o-to-four family residential property mortgage loansselfemployed individuals based on stated income
verifiable assets in June 20:

The following changes were made in our underwristandards since 2008 to reduce the risk assoaiatiedusiness lending:

All borrowers obtaining a business loan were regfliio submit a complete financial information pagkaregardless of the amount of the |
Previously, borrowers for SBA Express loans an@iokbans under $150,000 had been exempt fromehjisirement

Background checks on all borrowers and guarantorbdsiness loans were expanded to identify ani@weinformation in more public recort
including a search for judgments, liens, negatiesg articles, and affiliations with other entiti

The guarantee of related business entities prayidash flow to the borrowing entity became requfmdusiness loan:
The allowable percentage of inventory and accorgtisivable pledged as collateral for a business \eas reducec

We established specific risk acceptance critenigfivate not for profit school:

Since 2008, we have reduced our focus on commeegdlestate and one-to-four family mixese residential property mortgage loans, whichesgmte
$300.6 million, or 50%, of our mortgage loan or@ions and purchases in 2008 compared to $2291Bmibr 24%, in 2014. In addition to reducing dacus or
commercial real estate lending, during that penigel further reduced our origination of smaller comeiad real estate properties. Recently, however, haee
cautiously increased our focus on larger commerel estate properties. We also reduced our fonusonstruction lending, which we reduced from £3dillion in
advances on existing loans in 2008 to $0.9 miliioradvances on existing loans in 2014, and newtngetion loan approvals from $27.2 million in 2068 $0.7
million in 2014. We reduced our focus on these $ypkloans due to changes in market conditionseasing delinquencies and losses incurred on dedimgoan
associated with these types of loans.

64




We also shifted our focus in multi-family lending larger properties. Our review of delinquent mfdtnily mortgage loans revealed that the majoritpor
delinquent multifamily mortgage loans were on smaller propertieth iewer rental units. We concluded that the maritsua property had to rent, the less lil
vacancies would cause a disruption in the propeissh flow.

While we primarily rely on originating our own loginwe purchased $169.9 million of loans in 2014 gared to $10.2 million in 2013 and $3.5 millior
2012. We purchase loans when the loans complensemda@n portfolio strategy. Loans purchased mustroar underwriting standards when they were oaigid.

The economic conditions we have experienced simeend of 2007 reduced loan demand from 2008 thr@0d2 in our market. In addition, the tightenir
our underwriting standards and the shift in ourdleg focus also contributed to total loan origina and purchases remaining below geession levels. Lo
originations returned back to preeession levels in 2013, and in 2014 were a re$8E8.2 million, an increase of $122.2 million, 18+.6%, from $836.0 million
2013.

During the three year period ended December 314,20 allocation of our loan portfolio has remairfairly consistent. The majority of our loans
collateralized by real estate, which comprised &7cf our portfolio at December 31, 2014 compare88%% at December 31, 2013 and 90.2% at Decenih@032
Multi- family residential mortgage loans comprised 50.6860% and 47.6% of our loan portfolio at Decemkier2d14, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Commerca
estate mortgage loans comprised 16.4%, 15.0% a@¥al6f our loan portfolio at December 31, 2014, 2@hd 2012, respectively. One-to-four family mixest-
property mortgage loans comprised 15.1%, 17.4% 1#n8% of loan portfolio at December 31, 2014, 2@b8 2012, respectively. One-fmdr family residentie
mortgage loans comprised 4.9%, 5.7% and 6.2% of pogtfolio at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201sheetively.

Due to depositors increased $272.9 million and $47illion in 2014 and 2013, respectively, compated decrease of $133.8 million in 2012. Lower-
costing core deposits increased $88.1 million, $348illion and $142.1 million in 2014, 2013 and 20tespectively. Highetosting certificates of deposit increa
$184.9 million during 2014, compared to decreade’182.3 million and $275.9 million during 2013 af@12, respectively. Brokered deposits represedied%
16.0% and 17.3% of total deposits at December @14,22013 and 2012, respectively.

Prevailing interest rates affect the extent to Whilorrowers repay and refinance loans. In a dedgjinnterest rate environment, the number of
prepayments and loan refinancing tends to increasejo prepayments of mortgage-backed securitiak. p@ovisions associated with our investmenia U.S
government agency and corporate securities mayaagersely affect yield in a declining intereseranvironment. Such prepayments and calls may selyeaffec
the yield of our loan portfolio and mortgagaeeked and other securities as we reinvest theajatépnds in a lower interest rate environment. ldogr, we typicall
receive additional loan fees when existing loamsrafinanced, which partially offsets the reduceddyon our loan portfolio resulting from prepayneenn periods ¢
low interest rates, our level of core deposits afsy decline if depositors seek highygetding instruments or other investments not atkby us, which in turn m.
increase our cost of funds and decrease our regesttmargin to the extent alternative funding sesirare utilized. By contrast, an increasing e@gerate environme
would tend to extend the average lives of lowetdyigy fixed rate mortgages and mortgdggeked securities, which could adversely affectinitrest income. |
addition, depositors tend to open longer term, diigtosting certificate of deposit accounts whiclildoadversely affect our net interest income iesatvere t
subsequently decline. Additionally, adjustable r@sidential mortgage loans and mortgageked securities generally contain interim aretiliie caps that limit tt
amount the interest rate can increase at re-pritatgs.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we extetiteterm of 15 business loans totaling $30.8ioniland 49 mortgage loans totaling $49.2 mill
which we did not consider as nperforming loans nor troubled debt restructurecchEaf these loans was extended in accordance witheoading policies, whic
required the loans to be fully underwritten, anat #hach of the borrowers is current as to paymeéluse of these borrowers was experiencing finarmiféitulties, anc
none received a below market interest rate or déharable terms at the time the loans were exi@ndderefore, we did not consider these loansttrdubled del
restructured.
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We attempt to pursue the guarantor on all loansvfach a loss has been incurred and for which aiagiee was obtained, when, after considering thefiie
and costs, we have concluded we will be successfutcovering at least a portion of the loss weuined. The success of this pursuit is based orasisets tr
guarantor holds when we obtain a judgment.

During 2014, we sought performance under guaramereme business loan, seeking judgment of appteimn $45,000. As of December 31, 2014, we
not received any recoveries on this business Idamever, during the year ended December 31, 20&4realized recoveries of approximately $180,00®wsines
loans and $50,000 on real estate mortgage loanstich we sought judgments prior to 2014. Durind.20we sought performance under guarantees on difhdn
loans, seeking judgments in excess of $2.8 milleor six real estate mortgage loans, seeking judgnie excess of $1.1 million. As of December 3112, we ha
realized recoveries of less than $0.1 million or dnusiness loan, and had not received any receveriehe mortgage loans. In addition, during tharyende
December 31, 2013, we realized recoveries of apmately $0.1 million on business loans and $0.lliomlon real estate mortgage loans for which weght
judgments prior to 201!

During 2014 our net interest margin declined 26dpsints to 3.11% for the year ended Decembe2814 from 3.37% for the comparable period in 2
This decrease in the net interest margin resutied$3.3 million decrease in net interest incom#142.4 million for the year ended December 31,420am $145.
million in 2013. The decrease in the net intematgin for 2014 was primarily due to a declinehia yield of our interestarning assets, partially offset by a reduc
in our funding costs. The decline in the yield af interest earning assets was primarily due tesratrned on new loans originated and securitiehased durin
2014 being lower than the yield of the existingtfwdio. During 2014, the average balance of tabalns and total securities increased $263.2 mildioth $4.3 millior
respectively, to $3,521.9 million and $1,020.0 ioil| respectively. During 2014, the average balafdeorrowed funds increased by $40.6 million t®@%8 millior
compared to $953.2 million for 2013, while the cosborrowed funds increased 10 basis points t8%.4or the year ended December 31, 2014 from 2.B98e
comparable period in 2013. The increase in the @olsbrrowed funds was primarily due to a $5.2 imillprepayment penalty incurred from prepaying $68illion in
long-term FHLBNY advances at an average cost of 2.98% and $30i0min repurchase agreements at an averageof@s98% during the year ended Decembe
2014, partially offset by a $2.6 million prepaymeenalty, resulting from the prepayment of $69.9iom in FHLB-NY advances at an average cost of 3.21% in :
The cost of certificates of deposit and NOW acceutgcreased 19 basis points and seven basis peispectively, for the twelve months ended Decen3fier201.
from the prior year, while the cost of money marketounts and savings accounts increased 11 hsts pnd four basis points, respectively, for tilvelve month
ended December 31, 2014 from the prior year. Tis¢ @omoney market accounts increased primarily tdueur shifting Government NOW deposits to Insu@zst
Sweep service (“ICS"prokeredmoney market product, which does not requ# to provide collateral. This is expected towalus to invest our funds in higl
yielding assets. The cost of savings accounts asem as we increased the rate we pay on savingardsan our internet branch to attract additiategosits. Thi
resulted in a decrease in the cost of due to diepesdf 12 basis points to 0.97% for the twelve therended December 31, 2014 from 1.09% for thevieveionth
ended December 31, 2013. As a result of these elsangur funding mix, and a favorable interest mtvironment, we were able to reduce our cositeféstbearing
liabilities eight basis points to 1.32% for the yeaded December 31, 2014 from 1.40% for the yede& December 31, 2013.

We are unable to predict the direction of futureeiiest rate changes. Approximately 28% of our fieaites of deposit accounts and borrowings repoi
mature during the next year, which could resuli secrease in the cost of our intefeséring liabilities. Also, in a decreasing intenege environment, mortgage lo.
and mortgage-backed securities with higher rated te prepay, which could result in a reductiotthia yield on our interest-earning assets.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

A financial institutions exposure to the risks of changing interest nai@g be analyzed, in part, by examining the extenthich its assets and liabilities
“interest rate sensitive” and by monitoring thetitogion’s interest rate sensitivity “gapAn asset or liability is said to be interest rag@stive within a specific tin
period if it will mature or reprice within that tenperiod. The interest rate sensitivity gap isrdedi as the difference between the amount of irttedasing asse
maturing or repricing within a specific time periadd the amount of interesearing liabilities maturing or repricing withinahtime period. A gap is conside
positive when the amount of interest-earning assetsiring or repricing exceeds the amount of irsidoearing liabilities maturing or repricing withingtsame perio
A gap is considered negative when the amount efast-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing egds the amount of interesarning assets maturing or repric
within the same period. Accordingly, a positive gapy enhance net interest income in a rising raterenment and reduce net interest income in anfalfate
environment. Conversely, a negative gap may enhagiceterest income in a falling rate environmemd reduce net interest income in a rising ratérenment.
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The table below sets forth the amounts of inteeasting assets and interéstaring liabilities outstanding at December 31,2@hich are anticipated by t
Company, based upon certain assumptions, to repriceature in each of the future time periods shditept as stated below, the amount of assetdiaritities
shown that reprice or mature during a particulaiggewas determined in accordance with the eadfehe term to repricing or the contractual terrhshe asset «
liability. Prepayment assumptions for mortgage #oand mortgagbacked securities are based on our experiencendogtry averages, which generally range
6% to 42%, depending on the contractual rate ef@st and the underlying collateral. Money markebents and savings accounts were assumed to haitledrawa
or “run-off” rate of 8% and 13%, respectively, based on our reequee. While management bases these assumptioractanl prepayments and withdrav
experienced by us, there is no guarantee that theysgs will continue in the future.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap Analysis at Decendder2014
More Than More Than More Than More Than

Three Three One Year Three Year: Five Years
Months Months To To Three To Five To Ten More Than
And Less One Yeal Years Years Years Ten Years Total

(Dollars in thousands
Interest-Earning Assets

Mortgage loan: $ 300,80 $ 58802 $ 1,21470 $ 858,32t $ 343,19¢ $ 16,44: $ 3,321,50
Other loans 119,07: 114,78. 118,51¢ 63,34 49,14: 12,29¢ 477,15:
Shor-term securitie|(1) 22,977 - - - - - 22,97
Securities available for sal -
Mortgage«backed securitie 30,03¢ 69,94! 193,72 138,39: 189,69¢ 83,13t 704,93
Other 86,29¢ 15,25: - 5,36¢ 18,79¢ 142,66¢ 268,37
Total interes-earning asse 559,18¢ 788,00: 1,526,95. 1,065,42 600,83( 254,54 4,794,94
Interest-Bearing Liabilities
Savings account 8,512 25,53¢ 68,10 68,10 91,68: - 261,94:
NOW account: - - - - - 1,248,05 1,248,05
Money market accoun 5,80¢ 17,41t 46,44( 46,44( 116,10( 58,06 290,26:
Certificate of deposit accour 154,07¢ 301,22( 499,771 325,30t 25,45: - 1,305,82:
Mortgagors' escrow depos - - - - - 35,67¢ 35,67¢
Borrowings 88,77 125,55! 697,37. 104,79t 40,00( - 1,056,49:
Total interes-bearing liabilities(2) $ 257,168 $ 469,72 $ 131168 $ 54464¢( $ 27323. $ 1,341,790 $ 4,198,25
Interest rate sensitivity g¢ $ 302,022 $ 31827t $ 21526° $ 520,77¢ $ 327,597 $ (1,087,25) $ 596,68!
Cumulative intere-rate sensitivity ga $ 302,022 $ 62030 $ 83556 $ 1,356,344 $ 168394 $ 596,68!
Cumulative intere-rate sensitivity gaas a
percentage of total ass 5.95% 12.22% 16.46% 26.7% 33.1% 11.7%
Cumulative net intere-earning asseias a
percentage of intere-bearingliabilities 217.4% 185.39% 140.9% 152.5% 158.9'% 114.2%

(1) Consists of intere-earning deposits
(2) Does not include nc-interest bearing demand accounts totaling $255l8aniat December 31, 201

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodraflysis presented in the foregoing table. For ekanalthough certain assets and liabilities maye
similar estimated maturities or periods to repggithey may react in differing degrees to changemarket interest rates and may bear rates thir dif varying
degrees from the rates that would apply upon ntgtarid reinvestment or upon repricing. Also, thieriest rates on certain types of assets and tiabilinay fluctuat
in advance of changes in market interest ratedevitierest rates on other types may lag behinchgds in market rates. Additionally, certain asssish as ARI
loans, have features that restrict changes ingsteates on a shaerm basis and over the life of the asset. Furinethe event of a significant change in the lesf
interest rates, prepayments on loans and mortgageet securities, and deposit withdrawal or “rufi-@#vels, would likely deviate materially from thoassumed i
calculating the above table. In the event of aarest rate increase, some borrowers may be unaleét the increased payments on their adjustabdedebt. Th
interest rate sensitivity analysis assumes thah#tere of the Compang’assets and liabilities remains static. Intergtsrmay have an effect on customer prefer:
for deposits and loan products. Finally, the matuand repricing characteristics of many assetsliabdities as set forth in the above table aregaverned by contra
but rather by management’s best judgment basedmweart market conditions and anticipated busingasegjies.
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Interest Rate Risk

Our Consolidated Financial Statements have begraped in accordance with accounting principles gilyeaccepted in the United States of America,ch
requires the measurement of financial position @etating results in terms of historical dollarsheiut considering the changes in fair value ofaerinvestments di
to changes in interest rates. Generally, the falmey of financial investments such as loans andriess fluctuates inversely with changes in inténates. As a rest
increases in interest rates could result in deeseasthe fair value of our interesaérning assets which could adversely affect ourltesf operations if such ass
were sold, or, in the case of securities classtigdvailable for sale, decreases in our stockheldquity if such securities were retained.

We manage the mix of interest-earning assets aedestbearing liabilities on a continuous basis to maxenieturn and adjust our exposure to interes
risk. On a quarterly basis, management prepare$Bhmings and Economic Exposure to Changes irrdsteRate report for review by the Board of Directors.
summarized below. This report quantifies the pagtichanges in net interest income and net podfadilue should interest rates go up or down (sta)cR80 basi
points, assuming the yield curves of the rate shoak be parallel to each other. Net portfolio walis defined as the market value of assets nisieafarket value
liabilities. The market value of assets and lidilei is determined using a discounted cash flowutation. The net portfolio value ratio is the oatif the net portfoli
value to the market value of assets. All changesdome and value are measured as percentage chfnogethe projected net interest income and nafgio value
at the base interest rate scenario. The base shi@te scenario assumes interest rates at Dec&hp@014. Various estimates regarding prepaymesiraptions a
made at each level of rate shock. Actual resultsdcdiffer significantly from these estimates. Aé@mber 31, 2014, we were within the guidelinealdished by th
Board of Directors for each interest rate level.

Projected Percentage Change Net Portfolio

Change in Interest Ra Net Interest Incom Net Portfolio Value Value Ratic
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

-200 basis point -3.8(% -3.2% 7.51% 5.82% 13.01% 13.5¢%
-100 basis point -0.0t 0.2¢ 5.87 6.28 13.0Z 13.77
Base interest rai — — — — 12.61 13.2¢
+100 basis point -5.2(C -4.8¢4 -11.9¢ -12.2¢ 11.4% 12.0t
+200 basis point -10.9: -9.7C -26.5¢ -24.3¢ 9.9( 10.7¢

Analysis of Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the difference batviecome on interest-earning assets and expenisgeoastbearing liabilities. Net interest income depe
upon the relative amount of interest-earning assadsinterest-bearing liabilities and the interast earned or paid on them.

The following table sets forth certain informaticeiating to our Consolidated Statements of Findr@andition and Consolidated Statements of Incoor
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 28d2eéects the average yield on assets and avegjeof liabilities for the periods indicated. 8ugelds an
costs are derived by dividing income or expens¢hkyaverage balance of assets or liabilities, wsmdy, for the periods shown. Average balancesdarived fror
average daily balances. The yields include amditizaf fees that are considered adjustments tdgyie
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For the year ended December

2014 2013 2012
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost
(Dollars in thousands
Interest-earning assets
Mortgage loans, n¢1)(2) $3,075,05! $ 154,31t 5.02% $2,928,69. $ 158,42( 541% $2,89327 $ 167,92 5.8(%
Other loans, ne(1)(2) 446,85: 16,01: 3.5¢ 329,96¢ 12,88¢ 3.91 293,73 13,56¢ 4.62
Total loans, ne 3,521,90° 170,32 4.84 3,258,66. 171,30¢ 5.2¢ 3,187,00 181,48t 5.6¢
Mortgag¢-backecsecurities 740,19( 19,87: 2.6¢ 764,29( 22,84 2.9¢ 700,94! 26,76¢ 3.82
Other securitie 279,80« 6,85( 2.4F 251,38( 6,294 2.5C 197,77! 5,39¢ 2.7¢
Total securitie: 1,019,99. 26,72: 2.62 1,015,67 29,13¢ 2.87 898,72 32,16: 3.5¢
Interes-earning depositand
federal funds sold 41,77( 79 0.1¢ 42,45 79 0.1¢ 41,32 67 0.1€
Total interes-earningassett 4,583,67. 197,12¢ 4.3C 4,316,78 200,52t 4,65 4,127,04 213,71« 5.1¢
Other asset 254,74 259,33 243,73!
Total asset $4,838,41. $4,576,12. $4,370,78
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Savings accoun $ 258,24 597 0.2  $ 274,79: 51E 0.1¢ $ 317,09 68¢ 0.2Z
NOW account: 1,390,89! 6,221 0.4F 1,291,86 6,771 0.52 1,025,111 6,27¢ 0.61
Money market accoun 245,75 667 0.27 180,21: 294 0.1¢€ 175,81 39¢ 0.2:2
Certificate of depos
accounts 1,199,84! 22,42( 1.87 1,185,69 24,41« 2.0€ 1,443,19! 32,98 2.2¢
Total due to depositol 3,094,74. 29,91: 0.97 2,932,55' 32,00( 1.0¢ 2,961,22. 40,34¢ 1.3¢€
Mortgagors' escrow
accounts 47,87¢ 13: 0.2¢ 46,21" 37 0.0¢ 41,97 36 0.0¢
Total interes-bearing
deposits 3,142,61! 30,04« 0.9¢ 2,978,77 32,03: 1.0¢ 3,003,19 40,38: 1.3¢
Borrowings 993,79( 24,697 2.4¢ 953,18t 22,82t 2.3¢ 767,63t 22,89: 2.9¢
Total interes-bearing
liabilities 4,136,40 54,74: 1.32 3,931,96. 54,86: 1.4C 3,770,83 63,27¢ 1.6¢
Non interes-bearingdemanc
deposits 211,38¢ 169,19( 134,16t
Other liabilities 40,21" 42,56( 36,30¢
Total liabilities 4,388,01! 4,143,71. 3,941,30
Equity 450,39 432,411 429 47.
Total liabilities and equity $4,838,41. $4,576,12. $4,370,78
Net interest incomenet
interest rate spread (3) $ 142,38 2.98% $ 145,66: 3.25% $ 150,43¢ 3.5(%
Net interes-earning assetsnet
interest margin (4) $ 447,26. 3.11% $ 384,82 3.31% $ 356,21. 3.65%
Ratio of interes-earningasset:
to interest-bearing liabilities 1.11X 1.1CX 1.0¢ X

(1) Average balances include r-accrual loans

(2) Loan interest income includes loan fee income (Whicludes net amortization of deferred fees argls;date charges, and prepayment penalties) ofcqimately $5.0 million, $3.6 million and $2

million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 200&82012, respectivel
(3) Interest rate spread represents the difference éetvthe average rate on inter-earning assets and the average cost of int-bearing liabilities.
(4) Net interest margin represents net interest incbefere the provision for loan losses divided byrage interes-earning assets
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table presents the impact of changesnterest rates and in the volume of interestiegy assets and interdséaring liabilities on tr
Companys interest income and interest expense during ¢hegs indicated. Information is provided in eactiegory with respect to (1) changes attributab
changes in volume (changes in volume multipliedh®yprior rate), (2) changes attributable to charigeate (changes in rate multiplied by the priolume) and (=
the net change. The changes attributable to thévioma impact of volume and rate have been allocatedortionately to the changes due to volume aedchange
due to rate.

Increase (Decrease) in Net Interest Incc

Year Ended December 31, 2C Year Ended December 31, 2C
Compared to Compared to
Year Ended December 31, 2C Year Ended December 31, 2C
Due to Due to
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

(Dollars in thousands
Interest-Earning Assets:

Mortgage loans, ne $ 7,672 $ (1,779 $ (4,109 $ 2,01 $ (11,519 $ (9,500
Other loans, ne 4,28( (1,15¢%) 3,122 1,55¢ (2,237 (677)
Mortgage-backed securitie (693%) (2,279 (2,972 2,26¢ (6,189 (3,929
Other securitie 68€ (230 55€ 1,38( (481) 89¢
Interes-earning deposits arfederal funds sol - - - 2 10 12
Total interes-earning asse! 11,94¢ (15,3479 (3,399 7,217 (20,405 (13,189
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Deposits:
Savings accoun (30 112 82 (86) (88) 1749
NOW account: 457 (1,007 (550) 1,49¢ (99€) 50z
Money market accoun 12¢ 244 373 11 (11€) (105)
Certificate of deposit accour 28¢ (2,287) (1,999 (5,487) (3,08¢) (8,569
Mortgagors' escrow accour 1 95 96 5 (@) 1
Borrowings 944 927 1,871 4,942 (5,009 (67)
Total interes-bearing liabilities 1,78¢ (1,910 (122) 887 (9,299 (8,412
Net change in net interest incol $ 10,15¢ $ (13/43) $ (3,276 $ 6,33C $ (113,100 $ (4,776

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ende®ecember 31, 2014 and 2013

General. Net income for the twelve months ended DecerBig2014 was $44.2 million, an increase of $6.3ioni) or 17.2%, compared to $37.8 million
the twelve months ended December 31, 2013. Diletedings per common share were $1.48 for the twalweths ended December 31, 2014, an increase 22 $0
17.5%, from $1.26 for the twelve months ended Dédwmar31, 2013.

Return on average equity increased to 9.82% fortwiedve months ended December 31, 2014, from 8.7@&%he prior year. Return on average as
increased to 0.91% for the twelve months ended @bee 31, 2014, from 0.79% for the prior year.

Interest Income Interest income decreased $3.4 million, or 1.689%197.1 million for the year ended December2f4 from $200.5 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in intei@sine was primarily due to a 35 basis point reducii the yield of interestarning assets to 4.30% for the \
ended December 31, 2014 from 4.65% for the yeaeciecember 31, 2013, partially offset by a $266ilion increase in the average balance of inteeashing
assets to $4,583.7 million for the year ended Déegr8l, 2014 from $4,316.8 million for the year etiddecember 31, 2013. The 35 basis point declitiegryield o
interestearning assets was primarily due to a 42 basig pedtuction in the yield on the loan portfolio t@4% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2@t
5.26% for the twelve months ended December 31, 26dr@bined with a 25 basis point decline in thddyin total securities to 2.62% for the twelve nienénde
December 31, 2014 from 2.87% for the prior yeae #8 basis point decrease in the yield on the pmatiolio was primarily due to a decline in theesiearned on ne
loan originations and existing loans modified tavdw rates. The 25 basis point decrease in the gielithe securities portfolio was primarily due e purchase of ne
securities at lower yields than the existing pdidfoT he yield on the mortgage loan portfolio dexsed 39 basis points to 5.02% for the twelve moatisked Decemb
31, 2014 from 5.41% for the twelve months endedebdser 31, 2013. The yield on the mortgage loatfgimr, excluding prepayment penalty income on &
decreased 40 basis points to 4.84% for the twelwetihs ended December 31, 2014 from 5.24% for tledvenmonths ended December 31, 2013.
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Interest Expense.Interest expense decreased $0.1 million, or 0.28%54.7 million for the year ended December 31,422flom $54.9 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in the twgeest-bearing liabilities is primarily attritable to an eight basis point reduction in the cdshterestbearing
liabilities to 1.32% for the year ended December2Zil 4 from 1.40% for the year ended December @13 2partially offset by a $204.4 million increasehe averac
balance of interedtearing liabilities to $4,136.4 million for the yeended December 31, 2014 from $3,932.0 millionttier year ended December 31, 2013. The
basis point decrease in the cost of intebestring liabilities was primarily attributable tbet Bank reducing the rates it pays on its depasitiycts. The cost
certificates of deposit and NOW accounts decred€ednd seven basis points, respectively, partifliget by increases in the cost of money markebaats an
savings accounts of 11 and four basis points, otisedy, for the twelve months ended December BlL42from the prior year. The cost of due to depositiecreass
12 basis points to 0.97% for the twelve months dridecember 31, 2014 from 1.09% for the twelve memihded December 31, 2013. The decrease in thefodgt
to depositors was partially offset by a $5.2 milliorepayment penalty recorded on borrowings asultref the Bank prepaying $66.9 million in longrteFHLB-NY
advances and $30.0 million in repurchase agreendemiisg the year ended December 31, 2014. The peiar includes a $2.6 million prepayment penaltprded ol
borrowings as a result of the Bank prepaying $&8i8on of FHLB-NY advances. Including these prepayment penattiesgost of borrowed funds increased 10 |
points to 2.49% for the year ended December 314 2fin 2.39% in the prior year. Excluding thesepasgnent penalties, the cost of borrowed funds deec 1
basis points to 1.96% for the year ended Decembe?®L4 from 2.12% in the prior year. The 16 basit decrease in the cost of borrowed funds wasgyily due
to maturing and new borrowings being replaced dndined at lower rates.

Net Interest Income.Net interest income for the year ended DecembefB14 totaled $142.4 million, a decrease of $3.anj or 2.25%, from $145
million for 2013. The decrease in net interesbme is attributed to a decrease in the net integstad of 27 basis points to 2.98% for the twehanths ende
December 31, 2014 from 3.25% for the prior yeartiglly offset by an increase in the average badasicinteresearning assets of $266.9 million, to $4,583.7 i
for the year ended December 31, 2014. The yielthtmmestearning assets decreased 35 basis points to 4&0#tef year ended December 31, 2014 from 4.65'
the year ended December 31, 2013, while the cdsterestbearing liabilities decreased eight basis points.82% for the year ended December 31, 2014 fra®94
for the prior year period. The net interest madgereased 26 basis points to 3.11% for the yeaaceBecember 31, 2014 from 3.37% for the year efsxmber 3.
2013. Excluding prepayment penalty income, thentetest margin would have been 2.98% and 3.26%hfoyears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, teghec

Provision for Loan Losses The provision for loan losses decreased $20lllomiduring the twelve months ended December 3 42to a benefit of $6
million from a provision of $13.9 million during ¢hprior year. During the twelve months ended Deaar34, 2014, noperforming loans decreased $14.8 millio
$34.2 million from $49.0 million at December 31,130 Net chargeffs for the twelve months ended December 31, 20izled $0.7 million, or two basis points
average loans. The current loan-to-value ratioofor nonperforming loans collateralized by real estate Wa9% at December 31, 2014. When we have obt
properties through foreclosure, we have been abdpiickly sell the properties at amounts that apprate book value. We anticipate that we will cong to see lo
loss content in our loan portfolio. The Bank conéia to maintain conservative underwriting standatdsa result of the analysis of the allowanceléans losses,
reduction in the allowance was warranted, and als,sbhe Company recorded a benefit of $6.0 milfamthe twelve months ended December 31, 2014.

Non-Interest Income.Non-interest income for the twelve months ended Dece®bg2014 was $10.2 million, an increase of $0illian, or 7.2%, from $9.
million for the twelve months ended December 31,20 he increase in non-interest income was prignetie to an improvement in Other-theemporary impairme
(“OTTI") charges as there were no OTTI charges recordedglitire twelve months ended December 31, 2014,Heuptior year included an OTTI charge of ¢
million on private issue CMOs. This improvement wastially offset by decreases of $0.3 million incleaof other fee income and bank owned life insue:
respectively. Additionally, net gains on sale ofwgities decreased $0.1 million to $2.9 million fbe twelve months ended December 31, 2014, frof $dlion for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2013.

Non-Interest ExpenseNon-interest expense was $85.8 million for the twehanths ended December 31, 2014, an increase ofr$iii8n, or 6.5%, fron
$80.6 million for the twelve months ended Decenier2013. The increase was primarily due to in@sas $4.6 million in salaries and benefits expgurmarily
due to an increase of $0.4 million in split dolB®LI expense due to a decrease in the discountussé to calculate the liability, increased sataggpense of $3
million due to annual increases and increasedirstatd support the growth of the Bank and an inseeaf $0.9 million in the cost of grants of annestricted stoc
unit awards. Additionally, the increase in nioterest expense was from increases of $0.8 millioprofessional services from increased legal teethe prior ye:
period included a decrease in legal fees and $illibmin other operating expense. These increasme partially offset by decreases of $1.0 milliorther real esta
owned/foreclosure expense from a reduction in acerual loans and $0.5 million in FDIC insuranceense primarily due to a reduction in the assessmagn Th
efficiency ratio was 54.4% for the twelve monthsleth December 31, 2014 compared to 50.6% for thivéweonths ended December 31, 2013.
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Income Tax Provisions.Income tax expense for the year ended Decemhe2034 increased $5.6 million to $28.6 million, qmamed to $23.0 million for tt
year ended December 31, 2013. The increase wasuiirattributed to an increase of $12.1 millioniircome before income taxes, combined with an as®en th
effective tax rate. The effective tax rate was 3®ahd 37.8% for the years ended December 31, 20d2@13, respectively.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ende®ecember 31, 2013 and 2012

General. Net income for the twelve months ended DecerBig2013 was $37.8 million, an increase of $3.4ioni} or 10.0%, compared to $34.3 million
the twelve months ended December 31, 2012. Diletedings per common share were $1.26 for the twalweths ended December 31, 2013, an increase 13.$0
11.5%, from $1.13 for the twelve months ended Dédwmr31, 2012.

Return on average equity was 8.73% for the tweleaths ended December 31, 2013 compared to 7.99%hddmwelve months ended December 31, 2
Return on average assets was 0.79% for both dfvtlee months ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Interest Income Interest income decreased $13.2 million, or %10 $200.5 million for the year ended December28il3 from $213.7 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in intei@sine was primarily due to a 53 basis point reducii the yield of interestarning assets to 4.65% for the \
ended December 31, 2013 from 5.18% for the yeaeciecember 31, 2012, partially offset by a $188illon increase in the average balance of inteeashing
assets to $4,316.8 million for the year ended Déegr8l, 2013 from $4,127.0 million for the year etiddecember 31, 2012. The 53 basis point declitiegryield o
interestearning assets was primarily due to a 43 basig pedtuction in the yield on the loan portfolio t®6% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2@t
5.69% for the twelve months ended December 31, 26ddbined with a 71 basis point decline in thddyn total securities to 2.87% for the twelve nienénde
December 31, 2013 from 3.58% for the prior yearaddition, the yield of interegtarning assets was negatively impacted by a $xiflion increase in the avera
balance of the lower yielding securities portfdias the twelve months ended December 31, 2013.4thbasis point decrease in the yield on the loatfgio was
primarily due to a decline in the rates earned ew ipan originations and existing loans modifieddwer rates. The 71 basis point decrease in takl yin th
securities portfolio was primarily due to the puast of new securities at lower yields than thetiexggortfolio. The yield on the mortgage loan flib decreased @
basis points to 5.41% for the twelve months endedember 31, 2013 from 5.80% for the twelve montided December 31, 2012. The yield on the mortdzay
portfolio, excluding prepayment penalty income oanis, decreased 42 basis points to 5.24% for telvéwmonths ended December 31, 2013 from 5.66%hk
twelve months ended December 31, 2012.

Interest Expense.Interest expense decreased $8.4 million, or 13.28%54.9 million for the year ended December 3,2from $63.3 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in the tosecest-bearing liabilities is primarily attritable to a 28 basis point reduction in the cosntgrestbearing
liabilities to 1.40% for the year ended December2gll3 from 1.68% for the year ended December @12 2partially offset by a $161.1 million increasehe averac
balance of interedtearing liabilities to $3,932.0 million for the yeended December 31, 2013 from $3,770.8 milliontfar year ended December 31, 2012. Tt
basis point decrease in the cost of intebestring liabilities was primarily attributable tbet Bank reducing the rates it pays on its depasitiycts. The cost
certificates of deposit, money market accountsinggvaccounts and NOW accounts decreased 23 lhaisis,pseven basis points, three basis points amel basi
points, respectively, for the twelve months endeddnber 31, 2013 from the prior year. This redultea decrease in the cost of due to depositol¥ dfasis poin
to 1.09% for the twelve months ended December 813 Zrom 1.36% for the twelve months ended Decer8tieR2012. The decrease in the cost of due to deps
was partially offset by a $2.6 million prepaymemnplty recorded on borrowings as a result of thekBarepaying in 2013 $69.9 million of FHLBY advance
scheduled to mature in 2014. Including the pregaytrpenalty, borrowed funds decreased 59 basisspir?.39% for the year ended December 31, 2G#8 £#.98%
in the prior year. The 59 basis point decreagéncost of borrowed funds was primarily due touriag and new borrowings being replaced and obthaidowe
rates.
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Net Interest Income.Net interest income for the year ended DecembefB13 totaled $145.7 million, a decrease of $4.8anj or 3.17%, from $150
million for 2012. The decrease in net interesbme is attributed to a decrease in the net integstad of 25 basis points to 3.25% for the twehanths ende
December 31, 2013 from 3.50% for the prior yeartiglly offset by an increase in the average badasicinteresearning assets of $189.7 million, to $4,316.8 i
for the year ended December 31, 2013. The yielthtamestearning assets decreased 53 basis points to 4 @58tef year ended December 31, 2013 from 5.18
the year ended December 31, 2012 while the colstrafs of decreased 28 basis points to 1.40% foy¢lae ended December 31, 2013 from 1.68% for ther peal
period. The net interest margin decreased 28 pagiss to 3.37% for the year ended December 313 2@In 3.65% for the year ended December 31, 2B%@ludinc
prepayment penalty income, the net interest mawginld have been 3.26% and 3.53% for the years eDdedmber 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Provision for Loan Losses A provision for loan losses of $13.9 million wasorded for the twelve months ended Decembe2@13, which was a decre:i
of $7.1 million from $21.0 million recorded in theelve months ended December 31, 2012. During wWedve months ended December 31, 2013, perierming
loans decreased $40.9 million to $49.0 million fr$89.8 million at December 31, 2012. Net chanffs-for the twelve months ended December 31, 206t8ed $13.
million, or 41 basis points of average loans. Taeant loan-to-value ratio for our ngerforming loans collateralized by real estate #&2% at December 31, 20
When we have obtained properties through forecgsue have been able to quickly sell the propegtesmounts that approximate book value. We artieiphat w
will continue to see low loss content in our loasrtfolio. The Bank continues to maintain consematunderwriting standards. As a result of the asialpf the
allowance for loans losses, management deemedetsary to record a $13.9 million provision fordasses for the twelve months ended December(B13.2

Non-Interest Income.Non4interest income for the twelve months ended Decer@be2013 was $9.6 million, an increase of $0.8ioni, or 5.4%, from $9.
million for the twelve months ended December 31120The increase in non-interest income was pilyneue to the $2.9 million gain from the sale obryage-
backed securities during the twelve months endecemdéer 31, 2013. Nointerest income also improved due to a $0.6 milliecrease in BOLI income. The
increases were partially offset by a $2.6 milliaorease in net losses from fair value adjustmemisaa$0.6 million increase in OTTI charges recordedour privat
issue CMOs during the twelve months ended DecembeP@®L3 compared to the twelve months ended DeaeB81he2012. Additionally, during the twelve mor
ended December 31, 2013, we sold five OTTI CMOsgdtal proceeds of $18.3 million realizing a losssathe of $1.7 million. In conjunction with thislsawe als
sold $22.8 million in corporate securities realigi gain on sale of $1.4 million and sold a moregaacked security for $2.7 million realizing a gaim sale of $0.
million.

Non-Interest ExpenseNondinterest expense was $80.6 million for the twelvenths ended December 31, 2013, a decrease of $lliépor 2.1%, fron
$82.3 million for the twelve months ended DecenBier2012. The decrease was primarily due to deeseafs$1.0 million in FDIC insurance expense pritgatue tc
a reduction in the assessment rate and base aslaakthe Merger, $0.7 million in OREO/foreclosumepense primarily due to a reduction in rperforming assel
$0.8 million in net losses on sales of OREO an@® #dlllion in professional services primarily duedecreased legal expense. These decreases wéadlypaffset by :
$1.9 million increase in salaries and benefits egpeprimarily due to annual salary increases ao#@sed annual incentives for exceeding corporatfnmanc
goals, partially offset by decrease in BOLI lifesimance liability primarily due to an increasehe tiscount rate used to calculate the liabilitye Efficiency ratio we
50.6% and 50.7% for the twelve months ended DeceBhe2013 and 2012, respectively.

Income Tax Provisions.Income tax expense for the year ended Decemh&@B increased $1.1 million to $23.0 million, qmamed to $21.8 million for tt
year ended December 31, 2012. The increase wasuisirattributed to the increase of $4.5 millionintome before income taxes, partially offset jealine in th
effective tax rate.

The effective tax rate was 37.8% and 38.9% forytree's ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respgctiVak decline in the effective tax rate was priig.
due to an increase in tax preference items in 20b3ared to 2012.

Liquidity, Regulatory Capital and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of funds are deposits, borrgaiprincipal and interest payments on loans, ragegacked and other securities, and proceeds frore
of securities and loans. Deposit flows and mortgagpayments, however, are greatly influenced eg# interest rates, economic conditions and caitigre At
December 31, 2014, the Bank had an approved overliig of credit of $100.0 million with the FHLBF. In total, as of December 31, 2014, the Bank afale tc
borrow up to $2,201.4 million from the FHLBY in Federal Home Loan advances, letters of cradit overnight lines of credit. As of December 3114, the Bar
had $1,411.8 million outstanding in combined baésnaf FHLBNY advances and letters of credit. In addition sking Financial Corporation has junior subordin
debentures with a face amount of $61.9 million anchrrying amount of $28.8 million (which are irnbdd in Borrowed Funds) and the Bank had $116.0amiih
repurchase agreements to fund lending and investapgortunities. (See Note 9 of Notes to the Cadatéd Financial Statements in Item 8 of this ArdrReport.
Management believes its available sources of furelsficient to fund current operations.
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Our most liquid assets are cash and cash equigalhich include cash and due from banks, overnigbtestearning deposits and federal funds sold
original maturities of 90 days or less. The leviethese assets is dependent on our operating,dimgnlending and investing activities during arniyem period. A
December 31, 2014, cash and cash equivalentsddt8 3 million, an increase of $0.8 million frone€@mber 31, 2013We also held marketable securities avail
for sale with a market value of $973.3 million a&d@mber 31, 2014.

At December 31, 2014, we had commitments to exteadit (principally real estate mortgage loans$68.3 million and open lines of credit for borrog
(principally business lines of credit and home gglgan lines of credit) of $190.4 million. Sincergerally all of the loan commitments are expectelet drawn upo
the total loan commitments approximate future casfuirements, whereas the amounts of lines of tnealy not be indicative of our future cash requieats. The log
commitments generally expire in 90 days, while tdion loan lines of credit mature within 18 miesitand home equity loan lines of credit mature iwiftD years
We use the same credit policies in making commitsiand conditional obligations as we do for on-be¢asheet instruments.

Our total interest expense and operating expen2@lid were $54.7 million and $85.8 million, respesdy.

We maintain three postretirement defined beneéihglfor our employees: a noncontributory definetkelie pension plan which was frozen as of Septe
30, 2006, a contributory medical plan, and a notrdmrtory life insurance plan. The life insurandarpwas amended to discontinue providing life iasge benefits -
future retirees after January 1, 2010 and the raégian was frozen as of January 1, 2011. We abiotain a noncontributory defined benefit plan dertain of ou
non-employee directors, which was frozen as of dgnd, 2004. The employee pension plan is the pldp that we have funded. During 201%e incurred cas
expenditures of $0.1 million for the medical anié linsurance plans and $0.1 million for the renployee director plan; we did not make a contiisuto the
employee pension plan in 2014. We expect to pajlaimmounts for these plans in 2015. (See NotefI¥otes to Consolidated Financial StatementsemI8 of thi:
Annual Report.)

The amounts reported in our financial statemergsoatained from reports prepared by independenides, and are based on significant assumptidme
most significant assumption is the discount ratdus determine the accumulated postretirementfibv@tdigation (“APBQO”) for these plans. The APBO is the pre
value of projected benefits that employees andeesi have earned to date. The discount rate isgéesiate at which the liabilities of the plans discounted int
today’s dollars and could be effectively settled or efiated. The discount rate used is based on ther@ippgPension Liability Index, and reflects a rdtattcould b
earned on bonds over a similar period that we ipatie the plandiabilities will be paid. An increase in the disetduate would reduce the APBO, while a reductic
the discount rate would increase the APBO. Durlrgggast several years, when interest rates havedtdestorically low levels, the discount rate diser our plan
has declined from 7.25% for 2001 to 3.76% for 2004s decline in the discount rate has resulteshiincrease in our APBO.

The Companys actuaries use several other assumptions thatl ¢@ye a significant impact on our APBO and pedoekpense for these plans. Tt
assumptions include, but are not limited to, expéctte of return on plan assets, future increasemdical and life insurance premiums, turnoveéesaf employee
and life expectancy. The accounting standardsdetrptirement plans involve mechanisms that senlienit the volatility of earnings by allowing chges in the valt
of plan assets and benefit obligations to be amextover time when actual results differ from tesunptions used, there are changes in the assuspsed, or the
are plan amendments. At December 31, 2014, ouramelpension plan and medical and life insuranae phve unrecognized losses of $9.9 million and &2llion,
respectively. The noamployee director plan has a $0.5 million unrecpeghigain, due to experience different from what been estimated and changes in actt
assumptions. The employee pension plan’s unrecednass is primarily attributed to the reductiorttie discount rate and change in the Rlanbrtality table. Tt
medical and life insurance plans’ unrecognized isstributed to the reduction in the discounérater the past several years. In addition, treemployee directc
pension plan has an unrecognized past servicdityadi $0.1 million due to plan amendments in pry@ars and the medical and life insurance plare [@$0.6 milliol
past service credit due to plan amendments. Thaftettax effect of the unrecognized gains anddesassociated with these plans has been recordedumulate
other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equésgulting in a reduction of stockholders’ equify$6.3 million as of December 31, 2014.
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The change in the discount rate, the Pension ®lawrtality table and the reduction in medical prens are the only significant changes made t
assumptions used for these plans for each of tleaes ended December 31, 2014. During the yeaidebdeember 31, 2012 the actual return on the ereplpgnsio
plan assets approximated the assumed return uskgtdonine the periodic pension expense for that.\2uring the year ended December 31, 2013, thaketun
on the employee pension plan assets was approtynatetimes the assumed return used to deternmi@epériodic pension expense for that year. Durirggytea
ended December 31, 2014, the actual return onrttpogee pension plan assets was approximately #a¥e@ssumed return used to determine the perpetisiol
expense for that year.

The market value of the assets of our employeeigensan is $20.5 million at December 31, 2014, ehhis $3.6 million less than the projected be
obligation. We do not anticipate a change in theketavalue of these assets which would have a f&gni effect on liquidity, capital resources, @sults o
operations.

During 2014, funds provided by the Company's ojregaactivities amounted to $57.4 million. Thesedsrcombined with $283.0 million provided fr
financing activities were utilized to fund net irstig activities of $339.6 million. The Companyhnpary business objective is the origination andchase of multi-
family residential loans, commercial business loam$ commercial real estate mortgage loans andessar extent one-to-four family (including mixese propertie:
and SBA loans. During the year ended December @14,2he net total of loan originations and purelsdsss loan repayments and sales was $402.1mibiarinc
the year ended December 31, 2014, the Companyfatsted $162.8 million in purchases of securitieailable for sale and repaid $167.1 million in lcegsr
borrowed funds. During the year ended DecembefB14, funds were provided by net increases of $llion in total deposits and $30.5 million ihasttern
borrowed funds. Additionally, funds were provideg $227.4 million in proceeds from maturities, salesls and prepayments of securities availablesébe and tt
addition of $180.0 million in longerm borrowed funds. The Company also used fund&l@f9 million and $18.9 million for dividend paynte and purchases
treasury stock, respectively, during the year eridecember 31, 2014.

At the time of the Savings Barsktonversion from a federally chartered mutualrsgsrbank to a federally chartered stock saving&,tthe Savings Bank w
required by its primary regulator to establishcuidation account which is reduced as and to thenéxhat eligible account holders reduce theirityiing deposits
Upon completion of the Merger, the liquidation aatiowas assumed by the Bank. The balance of thalitjan account at December 31, 2014 was $1.0anillin the
unlikely event of a complete liquidation of the Barach eligible account holder will be entitledréaeive a distribution from the liquidation accburhe Bank is nc
permitted to declare or pay a dividend or to repase any of its capital stock if the effect woultb cause the Bark'regulatory capital to be reduced below
amount required for the liquidation account butrappl of the NYDFS Superintendent is required & tbtal of all dividends declared by the Bank icaéendar ye:
would exceed the total of its net profits for tigair combined with its retained net profits for ireceding two years less prior dividends paid. JOly 21, 2011, as
result of the Dodd-Frank Act, the Bank’s primargukator became the OCC and Flushing Financial Gatjmm’s primary regulator became the Federal Reserved
of Governors (“Federal ReserveBrior to July 21, 2011, unlike the Savings Bankjshing Financial Corporation was not subject tail&igry restrictions on ti
declaration or payment of dividends to its stockleas, although the source of such dividends coefsedd upon dividend payments from the Savings Bdolwever
Flushing Financial Corporation was subject, torsguirements of Delaware law, which generally lidiitidends to an amount equal to the excess ofetsassets (tl
amount by which total assets exceed total liabgjtiover its stated capital or, if there is no sexbess, to its net profits for the current andtonediately precedir
fiscal year. With the Federal Reserve becoming Hihgs Financial Corporatios’ primary regulator, Flushing Financial Corporatioecame subject to the se
regulatory restrictions on the declaration of dérds as the Savings Bank.

Regulatory Capital Position.Under applicable regulatory capital regulaticthg, Bank and the Company are required to complip eétch of three separ
capital adequacy standards: leverage capital, ITiek-based capital and total rislased capital. Such classifications are used byENE€ and other bank regulat
agencies to determine matters ranging from eactitutisn’s quarterly FDIC deposit insurance premium assassméo approvals of applications authori:
institutions to grow their asset size or otherwdgpand business activities. At December 31, 2012013, the Bank and the Company each exceeded thei
regulatory capital requirements. (See Note 14 deBléo Consolidated Financial Statements includdteéim 8 of this Annual Report.)

Critical Accounting Policies

The Companys accounting policies are integral to understantiegresults of operations and statement of firdrezindition. These policies are describe
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementser@kof these policies require management'’s judgritedetermine the value of the Compangssets and liabilitie
The Company has established detailed written @alieind control procedures to ensure consistenicapph of these policies. The Company has idesdifiou
accounting policies that require significant mamaget valuation judgment: the allowance for loarséss fair value of financial instruments, goodivitpairment an
income taxes.
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Allowance for Loan LosseéAn allowance for loan losses is provided to abgodbable estimated losses inherent in the loarfghiort Management reviev
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses higweng all impaired loans on an individual basifie remaining portfolio is evaluated based on toengany'
historical loss experience, recent trends in lgssefiection policies and collection experiencegntis in the volume of noperforming loans, changes in
composition and volume of the gross loan portfading local and national economic conditions. Juglgnis required to determine how many years obhisdl los:
experience are to be included when reviewing histbloss experience. A full credit cycle must k&ed, or loss estimates may be inaccurate. Thisigah i
inherently subjective, as it requires estimatesaha susceptible to significant revisions as nigiemation becomes available.

Notwithstanding the judgment required in assesiirgzomponents of the allowance for loan lossesCitimpany believes that the allowance for loarelos
adequate to cover losses inherent in the loan gliartfThe policy has been applied on a consistesisbfor all periods presented in the Consoliddedncia
Statements.

Fair Value of Financial InstrumentstThe Company carries certain financial assets amahéial liabilities at fair value in accordance lwihe Financiz
Accounting Standards Board’'s (“FASB”) AccountingaStlards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 82%-inancial Instruments” and values those financial assets
financial liabilities in accordance with ASC TomB20 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price thatid be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer klitia in an orderly transaction between markettiggrants at the measurement date, establisheanaefvork fo
measuring fair value, and expands disclosures daautvalue measurements. ASC Topic 825 permitgies to choose to measure many financial instnisian:
certain other items at fair value. Management seted¢he fair value option for certain investmentusigies, primarily mortgagéacked securities, and cenr
borrowings. Changes in the fair value of finandrtruments for which the fair value election isdeare recorded in the Consolidated Statementacaofre. A
December 31, 2014, financial assets and finaniaillities with fair values of $32.6 million and 3 million, respectively, are carried at fair v@lunder the fair valt
option.

The securities portfolio also consists of mortghgeked and other securities for which the fair gadlection was not selected. These securitieslassifiec
as available for sale and are carried at fair vatuthe Consolidated Statements of Financial Camlitwith changes in fair value recorded in Accuatedl Othe
Comprehensive Income. If any decline in fair vafae these securities is deemed other-ttemporary, the security is written down to a newstdeasis with th
resulting loss recorded in the Consolidated Statésnaf Income. During 2014, no other-thi@mporary impairment charges were recorded. D203, we recorde
an other-than-temporary impairment charge of $lildlom for certain private issue collateralized rtgarge obligations.

Financial assets and financial liabilities reportgdfair value are required to be measured basetheriollowing alternatives: (1) quoted prices ittie
markets for identical financial instruments (Letd) (2) significant other observable inputs (Le2l or (3) significant unobservable inputs (Levgl Budgment |
required in selecting the appropriate level to beduto determine fair value. The majority of finahassets and financial liabilities for which ttaér value election we
made, and the majority of investments classified\aailable for Sale, were measured using Levelfuis, which require judgment to determine the ¥aiue. Thi
trust preferred securities held in the investmemntfplio, and the Compang’junior subordinated debentures, were measured Lsivel 3 inputs due to the inact
market for these securities. The private labelatethlized mortgage obligations for which othemt@mporary impairment charges were recorded ir3 2&re value
using a Level 3 input.

Goodwill ImpairmentGoodwill is presumed to have an indefinite life andested for impairment, rather than amortizedableast an annual basis. For
purpose of goodwill impairment testing, managentest concluded that the Company has one reportiibgliuthhe estimated fair value of the reportingtuexceeds it
carrying amount, there is no impairment of goodwibwever, if the fair value of the reporting uigtless than its carrying amount, further evaluai®required t
determine if a write down of goodwill is required.

Quoted market prices in active markets are the dddence of fair value and are to be used as alés lfor measurement, when available. Other adole
valuation methods include an asset approach, wdetérmines a fair value based upon the value etasegt of liabilities, an income approach, whieltedmines fa
value using one or more methods that convert gatied economic benefits into a present single athand a market approach, which determines a &irevbased ¢
the similar businesses that have been sold.
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The Company conducts its annual impairment tesifrgpodwill as of December 31. The impairment tesths of December 31, 2014 and 2@iBnot shov
an impairment of goodwill based on the fair valfithe Company.

Income TaxesThe Company estimates its income taxes payablellmséhe amounts it expects to owe to the variaxmg authorizes (i.e. federal, state
local). In estimating income taxes, managementsassethe relative merits and risks of the tax rimeat of transactions, taking into account statytgrglicial anc
regulatory guidance in the context of the Compatgsxsposition. Management also relies on tax opmioecent audits, and historical experience.

The Company also recognizes deferred tax assetiéadldies for the future tax consequences ofaténces between the financial statement carryimguent:
of existing assets and liabilities and their reipedax bases. A valuation allowance is requiraddeferred tax assets that the Company estimegenare likely tha
not to be unrealizable, based on evidence avaikbtbe time the estimate is made. These estincatede affected by changes to tax laws, statutorydtes, ar
future income levels.

Contractual Obligations

Payments Due By Peric

More
Less Thar 1-3 3-5 Than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(In thousands

Borrowings $ 105649 $ 34155 $ 58137 $ 104,79¢ $ 28,77
Deposits 3,508,59i 2,658,07! 499,77 325,30( 25,457
Loan commitment 258,68! 258,68 - - -
Operating lease obligatiol 53,80: 4,44( 8,89¢ 9,78( 30,68"
Purchase obligatior 10,077 4,91¢ 4,641 51¢ -
Pension and other postretirembenefits 14,82 51¢ 1,01¢ 1,08¢ 12,20:
Deferred compensation plans 11,42( 57E 1,15(C 1,15(C 8,54¢
Total $ 4,913,890 $ 3,268,75 $ 1,096,841 $ 442,63. $ 105,66:

We have significant obligations that arise in tleenmal course of business. We finance our assets deposits and borrowings. We also use borrowin
manage our intereséte risk. Borrowings with call provisions are inded in the period of the next call date. We hangerheans to refinance these borrowings as
mature or are called through financing arrangemeitts the FHLB-NY and our ability to arrange repoase agreements with broker-dealers and the FNYB(See
Notes 8 and 9 of Notes to Consolidated FinancieBtents in Iltem 8 of this Annual Repo

We focus our balance sheet growth on the originabiomortgage loans. At December 31, 2014, we lwdneitments to extend credit and lines of cred
$258.7 million for mortgage and other loans. Thiesas will be funded through principal and interpayments received on existing mortgage loans amdigage-
backed securities, growth in customer deposits, aheén necessary, additional borrowings. (See Mbtef Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementseim 8 o
this Annual Report.)

At December 31, 2014, the Bank had seventeen beantivelve of which are leased. The Bank leasdsritsch locations primarily when it is not the :
tenant. Whether the Bank will purchase its futuranbh locations will depend in part on the avallgbbf suitable locations and the availability pfoperties. |
addition, we lease our executive offices. We cutyasutsource our data processing, loan servicimijcheck processing functions. We believe thatithise most co
effective method for obtaining these services. €r@sangements are usually volume dependent araaying terms. The contracts for these serviseslly includ:
annual increases based on the increase in theroenguice index. The amounts shown above for pselobligations represent the current term and velahactivity
of these contracts. We expect to renew these aigtaa they expire.

The amounts shown for pension and other postretintipenefits reflect our directongénsion plan and the supplemental retirement ksneffiour presider
and amounts due under our plan for medical andrgarance benefits for retired employees. The anhebown in the “Less Than 1 Yeablumn represents c
current estimate for these benefits, some of whighbased on information supplied by actuaries. aheunts shown in columns reflecting periods oves gea
represent our current estimate based on the passyactual disbursements and information supplieddiyaries. The amounts do not include an increarsgadssibl
future retirees or increases in health plan cdgte.amount shown in the “More Than 5 Yeazslumn represents the amount required to incréaséotal amount
the projected benefit obligation of the directgiin and the medical and life insurance benefitqlaince these are unfunded plans and the undeduyportion of th
employee pension plan. (See Note 12 of Noteotts@lidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of nisual Report.)
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We currently provide a noqualified deferred compensation plan for officetsovhave achieved the level of at least senior president (certain officers w
had achieved the level of at least vice presidemirecluded in this plan under previously existmgdelines). In addition to the amounts deferredHhsy officers, w
match 50% of their contributions, generally up tanaximum of 5% of the offices’ salary. These plans generally require the defdsedance to be credited w
earnings at a rate earned by certain mutual fuhkiough December 31, 2011, employees could noiveeedistribution from these plans until their dayment it
terminated. The amounts shown in the columns &8 tkan five years represent the estimate of tleuate we will contribute to a rabbi trust with respto matchin
contributions under these plans, and the amounite tpaid from the rabbi trust to two executives vilawe retired. The amount shown in the “More Thare&rs”
column represents the current accrued liability tfegse plans, adjusted for the activity in the ooia for less than five years. This expense is geabiin the
Consolidated Statements of Income, and the lighiikts been provided in the Consolidated Statenwérgancial Condition.

New Authoritative Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2@%4+o clarify that when an in substance repossessioforeclosure occurs, a creditor is consideredhave
received physical possession of residential retdtegroperty collateralizing a consumer mortgaggn, upon either (1) the creditor obtaining legté tto the
residential real estate property upon completioa fifreclosure or (2) the borrower conveying akiast in the residential real estate propertyhéocreditor to satis
that loan through completion of a deed in lieuarEtlosure or through a similar legal agreementi#iahally, the amendments require interim and ahisclosure ¢
both (1) the amount of foreclosed residential esthte property held by the creditor and (2) tleended investment in consumer mortgage loans eodlited b
residential real estate property that are in thregss of foreclosure according to local requirementhe applicable jurisdiction. ASU 20124 is effective for annu
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 204doption of this update is not expected to havmaterial effect on the Compasytonsolidated results
operations or financial condition.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 which pdesinew guidance that supersedes the revenue igomogaquirements in ASC Topic 605R&évenu
Recognition”.The guidance requires an entity to recognize rexénudepict the transfer of promised goods or ses/to customers in an amount that reflect
consideration to which the company expects to ligleshin exchange for those goods or servicess Quidance is effective for interim and annual répg period:
beginning after December 15, 2016. We are curreetBluating the impact of adopting this new guidana our consolidated results of operations andnfira
condition.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-11 whichrateehe authoritative accounting guidance under A®@ic 860 “Transfers and ServicingThe
amendments require two accounting changes. Hirstamendments change the accounting for repurcbasaturity transactions to secured borrowing accoigy.
Second, for repurchase financing arrangementsatiendments require separate accounting for a énranéfa financial asset executed contemporaneouitty a
repurchase agreement with the same counterparfghwtill result in secured borrowing accounting tbie repurchase agreement. The amendments alsive
additional disclosures regarding repurchase agreesn@he amendments are effective for the firgtrim or annual period beginning after December208,4. Entitie
are required to present changes in accountingdaséctions outstanding on the effective date@sraulativeeffect adjustment to retained earnings as of tigénbéc
of the period of adoption. Early adoption is praotgt. The amendments regarding disclosures fomicettansactions accounted for as a sale are esfjtir b
presented for interim and annual periods beginmfigr December 15, 2014, and the disclosure fourcddfmse agreements, securities lending transactaom
repurchase-tonaturity transactions accounted for as securedotimgs are required to be presented for annuabgerbeginning after December 15, 2014, an
interim periods beginning after March 15, 2015. Hgelosures are not required to be presented fapecative periods before the effective date. Wecareently
evaluating the impact of adopting these amendrmantsur consolidated results of operations and firgmondition.
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In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-14 whigteads the authoritative accounting guidance und&€ Aopic 310 “ReceivablesThe amendmen
require that a mortgage loan be derecognized aatdatiseparate other receivable be recognized upenlésure if the follow conditions are met: (1§ lhan has
government guarantee that is not separable frortotlrebefore foreclosure; (2) at the time of foosdire, the creditor has the intent to convey takestate property
the guarantor and make claim on the guaranteethendreditor has the ability to recover under tlaim and (3) at the time of foreclosure, any ant@frthe clain
that is determined on the basis of the fair valieeal estate is fixed. Upon foreclosure, the safgaother receivable should beasured based on the amount o
loan balance (principal and interest) expectedetodzovered from the guarantor. The amendmentsftgetive for annual periods, and interim periodthim those
annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2&hities should adopt the amendments in this Updateg either a prospective transition method enaalifiec
retrospective transition method. Adoption of thjglate is not expected to have a material effecthenCompanys consolidated results of operations or final
condition.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

This information is contained in the section captid “Interest Rate Riskbn page 66 and in Notes 15 and 16 of the Notesaws@idated Financi
Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

Assets
Cash and due from ban
Securities available for sale, at fair val
Mortgage-backed securities (including assets pled§&d64,626 and $556,520 at December 31, 2014£ah8,
respectively; $4,678 and $7,119 at fair value pamsto the fair value option at December 31, 201d1 2013,
respectively’
Other securities (including assets pledged of $7d& December 31, 201$27,915 and $30,163 at fair val
pursuant to the fair value optionDecember 31, 2014 and 2013, respectiv
Loans held for sal
Loans, net of fees and co:
Less: Allowance for loan loss
Net loans
Interest and dividends receival
Bank premises and equipment,
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock, at «
Bank owned life insuranc
Goodwill
Other asset

Total asset

Liabilities

Due to depositors
Non-interest bearin
Interes-bearing

Mortgagors' escrow depos

Borrowed funds ($28,771 and $29,570 at fair valuiesyant to thfair value option at December 31, 2014 and 2!
respectively’

Securities sold under agreements to repurc

Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note

Stockholders' Equity

Preferred stock ($0.01 par value; 5,000,000 sheur#®orized; none issue

Common stock ($0.01 par value; 100,000,000 shar®azed; 31,530,595 sharissued at December 31, 2014 :
2013; 29,403,823 shares and 30,123,252 sloutstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respgot

Additional paic-in capital

Treasury stock, at average cost (2,126,772 shark$,407,343 at December 31, 2(and 2013, respectivel

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of t

Total stockholders' equit

Total liabilities and stockholders' equ

December 31

December 31

2014 2013
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d:
$ 34,26! $ 33,48t

704,93 756,15t

268,37 261,63«

- 42t

3,810,37: 3,434,17
(25,096 (31,776

3,785,27 3,402,40:

17,25: 17,37(

21,86¢ 20,35¢

46,92¢ 46,02¢

112,65t 109,60t

16,12 16,127

69,33! 57,91¢

$ 5,077,01 $ 4,721,50.
$ 255,83« $ 197,34
3,217,08! 3,002,63!

35,67¢ 32,79¢

940,49:. 856,82:

116,00¢ 155,30¢

55,67t 44,06

4,620,76 4,288,96!

31t 31t

206,43 201,90:

(37,22) (22,059

289,62: 263,74

(2,909 (11,379

456,24 432,53:

$ 5,077,01 $ 4,721,50.

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income

Interest and dividend income
Interest and fees on loa
Interest and dividends on securiti
Interest
Dividends
Other interest incom

Total interest and dividend incor

Interest expense

Deposits

Other interest expen:
Total interest expens

Net interest income
Provision (benefit) for loan loss

Net interest income after provision for loan losse

Non-interest income
Otherthar-temporary impairment ("OTTI") charg

Less: Nor-credit portion of OTTI charge recordedOther Comprehensive Income, before te

Net OTTI charge recognized in earnir

Banking services fee incon

Net (loss) gain on sale of loans held for ¢

Net gain on sale of loar

Net gain on sale of securiti

Net (loss) gain from fair value adjustme

Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock divide
Bank owned life insuranc

Other income

Total nor-interest income

Non-interest expense

Salaries and employee bene

Occupancy and equipme

Professional service

FDIC deposit insuranc

Data processin

Depreciation and amortization of premises and egaip
Other real estate owned / foreclosure expt

Other operating expens

Total nor-interest expens
Income before income taxe
Provision for income taxes
Federa
State and loce

Total provision for income taxe

Net income

Basic earnings per common sh
Diluted earnings per common shi

For the years ended December

2014 2013 2012

(In thousands, except per share d¢
170,32° $ 171,30¢ $ 181,48t
25,96¢ 28,31( 31,30¢
758 82¢ 85¢
79 79 67
197,12¢ 200,52¢ 213,71
30,04 32,03% 40,38:
24,69’ 22,82t 22,89!
54,74 54,86 63,27t
142,38 145,66: 150,43¢
(6,02]) 13,93¢ 21,00(
148,40¢ 131,72¢ 129,43¢
- (1,419 (3,139
- - 2,362
- (1,419 (776
3,39 3,687 4,007
- (10¢) 9
67 284 31
2,87¢ 3,021 47
(2,56%) (2,52) 55
1,89¢ 1,66: 1,507
3,05( 3,36: 2,79(
1,527 1,58¢ 1,41z
10,24 9,55¢€ 9,06¢
48,99¢ 44,397 42,50:
7,99¢ 7,64¢€ 7,801
5,98 5,21( 6,10¢
2,701% 3,20¢ 4,18¢
4,194 4,23¢ 4,101
2,81: 2,95: 3,201
1,33¢ 2,292 2,96¢
11,80¢ 10,63¢ 11,45(
85,83¢ 80,57¢ 82,32¢
72,81. 60,70¢ 56,17¢
20,91 17,34« 16,74(
7,661 5,612 5,107
28,57 22,95¢ 21,84%
44,23¢  $ 37,75: $ 34,33:
14¢ $ 1.2¢ $ 1.12
148 $ 1.2¢ $ 1.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.




FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive Income
Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of
Unrecognized actuarial (losses) ge
Amortization of actuarial losse
Amortization of prior service crec
OTTI charges included in incon
Reclassification adjustment for net gains inclutheiticome
Unrealized gains (losses) on securi

Comprehensive incorr

For the years ended December

2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands

$ 44,23¢  $ 37,75. $ 34,33:
(3,790 3,261 (479

37C 69€ 587
(26) (26) (26)

- 79€ 437

(1,639 (1,700 (26)

13,54¢ (26,547) 6,831

$ 52,700 $ 14,24C  $ 41,65¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholder&quity

For the years ended December

2014 2013 2012

(Dollars in thousands, except per share ds
Common Stock
Balance, beginning of ye $ 31 % 31 % 31E
No activity - - -
Balance, end of yei 31E 31E 31E
Additional Paid-In Capital
Balance, beginning of ye 201,90: 198,31 195,62¢
Award of common shares released from Employee Befrefst(136,559, 143,941 and 157,922 common share

the years endeDecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respecti 2,07t 1,652 1,48(
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockaweirds(7,300, 120,114 and 113,272 common shares forehes

endecDecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respecti 30 161 317
Options exercised (138,575, 463,245 and 125,405wmmsharefor the years ended December 31, 2014, 201:

2012, respectively 45¢E 1,451 164
Stock-based compensation activity, 1 1,12¢ (119 1,02¢
Stocl-based income tax (provision) bent 84¢€ 442 (303
Balance, end of yei 206,43° 201,90: 198,31
Treasury Stock
Balance, beginning of ye (22,059 (10,257 (7,355
Purchases of common shares outstanding (914,681083and 352,00common shares for the years en
December 31, 2014, 2013 a2012, respectively (17,649 (13,157 (5,019
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (150,185,245 and 150,22common shares for the years ended Dece

31, 2014, 201:and 2012, respectivel 2,461 6,762 1,81¢
Repurchase of shares to satisfy tax obligation8¢39 61,71(and 40,148 common shares for the years e

December 31, 2012013 and 2012, respective! (1,22¢) (999 (532
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockauveirds (202,46¢180,997 and 146,149 common shares fol

years ended December 2014, 2013 and 2012, respective 3,20¢ 2,40¢ 1,737
Purchase of common shares to fund options exer(@56818, 366,51and 65,074 common shares for the yi

ended December 31, 2014 2013 and 2012, respegtively (1,962) (6,814 (90€6)
Balance, end of ye: (37,227) (22,057 (10,257

Continue«

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholder&quity (continued)

For the years ended December

2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands, except per share ds

Retained Earnings
Balance, beginning of ye. 263,74 241,85¢ 223,51(
Net income 44,23¢ 37,75: 34,33:
Stock options exercised (11,540, 65,470, and 24c82tmonshares for the years ended December 31, 2014,

and 2012respectively’ 77) (128) (63
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawairds (195,166, 60,8{and 32,877 common shares for the y:

ended December 31, 2014, 2(and 2012, respectivel (430) (119 (10%)
Cash dividends declared and paid on common shdded0; $0.52 and $0.52 per share for the yearsdebdeembe

31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively) (17,857 (15,61¢) (15,817
Balance, end of year 289,62: 263,74 241,85t
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Neif Taxes
Balance, beginning of ye (11,37 12,137 4,81:
Amortization of prior service credits, net of taxafs$19, $20 and $20 fithe years ended December 31, 2014, -

and 2012, respective (26) (26) (26)
Amortization of net actuarial losses, net of tagB5330), ($541) and ($45for the years ended December 31, 2!

2013 and 2012, respective 37C 69¢€ 587
Unrecognized actuarial gains (losses), net of tak&®,880, ($2,527) and $3for the years ended December

2014, 2013 and 2012, respectiv (3,790 3,261 (479
Change in net unrealized (losses) gains on sezsigtiailable for sale, nettaxes of approximately ($10,44:

$20,609 and ($5,259) for the years enDecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respect 13,54¢ (26,547 6,831
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) lossesuidet in neincome, net of taxes of approximately $1,241, $300

($318) for the years ended December 31, 2014, a8d22012, respectively (1,634 (902) 411
Balance, end of yei (2,907 (11,37 12,137
Total Stockholders' Equity $ 456,247 $ 432,53. $  442,36!

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigenlby operating activities
Provision (benefit) for loan loss
Depreciation and amortization of premises and egaig
Net loss on sales of loans held for ¢
Net gain on sales of loans (including delinqueank)
Net gain on sales of securiti
Other-thar-temporary impairment charge on securi
Amortization of premium, net of accretion of disob
Fair value adjustment for financial assets andnione liabilities
Income from bank owned life insuran
Stock based compensation expe
Deferred compensatic
Amortization of core deposit intangibl
Excess tax provision (benefits) from st-based payment arrangeme
Deferred income tax provision (bene
Net decrease in prepaid FDIC assessr
(Decrease) increase in other as
Increase (decrease) in other liabilit

Net cash provided by operating activit
Investing Activities

Purchases of premises and equipn

Net purchases of Federal Home Loan E-NY shares

Purchases of securities available for ¢

Proceeds from sales and calls of securities avaifab sale

Proceeds from maturities and prepaymenisecurities available for sa
Net originations of loan

Purchases of loar

Proceeds from sale of delinquent lo.

Purchase of bank owned life insural

Proceeds from sale of Real Estate Ow

Net cash used in investing activiti

For the years ended December

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands

$ 44.23¢ $ 37,75: 34,33

(6,02)) 13,93¢ 21,00(

2,81: 2,95: 3,201

- 10€ 9
(67) (284) (32)
(2,875 (3,02)) (47)

- 1,41¢ 77€

7,292 7,58¢ 6,64%
2,56¢ 2,521 (55)
(3,050 (3,369) (2,790

4,26: 3,41z 3,26(
(2,519 (790 (86)

- 46¢ 46¢

(84€) (44%) 308
4,15¢ (682) (804)

- 3,281 3,88¢

8,11( (1,410 (3,695

(690 10,98: 4,71¢

57,37¢ 74,43¢ 71,097
(4,325 (809) (1,290
(899 (3,68¢) (12,097
(162,83() (458,591) (311,65))

115,29 194,00¢ 12,631

112,13 149,38 170,79¢
(248,077 (236,58)) (78,379
(169,86() (10,189 (3,45¢)

15,85 35,68: 44,22:

- - (20,000

3,12¢ 4,76° 1,22¢
(339,571) (326,029 (197,981)

Continue«

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows(continued)

Financing Activities

Net increase in ne-interest bearing depos

Net (decrease) increase in interest bearing dey

Net increase in mortgagors' escrow depc

Net proceeds (repayments) from s-term borrowed fund

Proceeds from lor-term borrowings

Repayment of lor-term borrowings

Purchases of treasury stc

Excess tax benefits (provision) from st-based payment arrangeme
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exxof stock option
Cash dividends pai

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents, end of !

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosur
Interest paic
Income taxes pai
Taxes paid if excess tax benefits on s-based compensatiwere not tax deductib!
Non-cash activities
Loans transferred to Other Real Estate Ow
Loans provided for the sale of Other Real Estateé€xl
Loans held for investment transferred to loans Faldale
Loans held for sale transferred to loans heldrigestmen

For the years ended December

2014 2013 2012

(In thousands

58,49 41,55 37,28:
213,50: 174,71 (172,19)
2,881 23¢ 2,774
30,50( (102,501) 132,00(
180,00( 269,34 212,51
(167,08) (109,91} (80,000
(18,877) (14,157) (5,551)
84¢€ 447 (309)

56E 532 88t
(17,857) (15,61%) (15,81
282,98 244,64¢ 111,59
78¢ (6,940 (15,29¢)
33,48t 40,42 55,72

34,26¢ $ 33,48 $ 40,42¢

53,96 $ 53,60: $ 62,36¢

24,94 21,38¢ 21,94,
25,78¢ 21,83: 21,64«
7,112 5,36¢ 6,127
71z 3,011 2,11(C
1,15C 13,00¢ 12,20(
= 2,21¢ 40C

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetbessolidated financial statements .
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ar®l 201

1. Nature of Operations

Flushing Financial Corporation (the “Holding Compgna Delaware business corporation, is a banklihglcompany. On February 28, 2013 the Holding Camy(s
wholly owned subsidiary Flushing Savings Bank, R8& “Savings Bank) merged with and into Flushingn®nercial Bank (the “Merger”)rlushing Commerci
Bank was the surviving entity of the Merger, whoaene was changed to Flushing Bank (the “Bank”). Riolling Company and its direct and indirect whalnec
subsidiaries, including the Bank, Flushing Prefrffeinding Corporation, Flushing Service Corporatemd FSB Properties Inc., are collectively herefierred to &
the “Company.”

The Merger was the result of the combination of émtities under common control, and in accordandle ASC 805-50-3®%, the Bank measured the recognized a
and liabilities transferred at their carrying amtsughistorical cost) for this transaction.

The Company’s principal business is attractingilretaposits from the general public and investihgse deposits together with funds generated from ongc
operations and borrowings, primarily in (1) origioas and purchases of muléimily residential properties, commercial businésans, commercial real est
mortgage loans and, to a lesser extent, one-toffouily (focusing on mixedise properties, which are properties that contait besidential dwelling units a
commercial units); (2) construction loans, primafibr residential properties; (3) Small Businessvdistration (“SBA”) loans and other small business loans
mortgage loan surrogates such as mortgage-backedt&s; and (5) U.S. government securities, cafsofixedincome securities and other marketable securifiee
Bank also originates certain other consumer loaakiding overdraft lines of credit. The Bank prihaconducts its business through seventeendetisice bankin
offices, nine of which are located in Queens Coutwy in Nassau County, five in Kings County (Brbe®, and one in New York County (Manhattan), Newrk.
The Bank also operates “iGObanking.com®”, an irgeébranch, offering checking, savings, money maakek certificates of deposit accounts.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Conydaliow generally accepted accounting principleshe United States of America (“GAAP&nhd general practic
within the banking industry. The policies which ewlly affect the determination of the Companyinancial position, results of operations andhctisws art
summarized below.

Principles of Consolidation:

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of the Holding Company andféiewing direct and indirect whollpwned subsidiaries

the Holding Company: the Bank, Flushing Preferredding Corporation (“FPFC”), Flushing Service Cagimn (“FSC”), and FSB Properties Inc. (“Propest)e
FPFC is a real estate investment trust formed kb &gortion of the Bank’ mortgage loans to facilitate access to capitakets. FSC was formed to market insur:
products and mutual funds. Properties is currambd to hold title to real estate owned that isioled via foreclosure. All intercompany transatsi@nd accounts &
eliminated in consolidation. The Holding Companyrently has three unconsolidated subsidiaries énftihm of whollyowned statutory business trusts, which \
formed to issue guaranteed capital debentures i(adagecurities”). Please see Note 9, “Borroweddsuand Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repsechiar
additional information regarding these trusts.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the reported amounéssst
and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent ass@td liabilities at the date of the financial etaénts, and reported amounts of revenue and expelsag th
reporting period. Estimates that are particuladgceptible to change in the near term are usedrinection with the determination of the allowanaeldan losses, tl
evaluation of goodwill for impairment, the reviewthe need for a valuation allowance of the Compamleferred tax assets, the fair value of the imvest portfolic
and the evaluation of other-than-temporary impamr{gOTTI") on securities. The current economic environmentiha®ased the degree of uncertainty inhere
these material estimates. Actual results couliéidifom these estimates.

87




Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, the Compdefines cash and due from banks, overnight iste&@ning deposits and federal funds sold with oall
maturities of 90 days or less as cash and caslalgots. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Coniparash and cash equivalents totaled $34.3 milliwh$%83.!
million, respectively. Included in cash and cashiegjents at those dates were $23.0 million and%28llion in interestearning deposits in other financial institutic
primarily consisting of balances due from the FatiBeserve Bank of New York and the Federal HomenLBank of New York (“FHLB-NY”).The Bank is require
to maintain cash reserves equal to a percentagertHin deposits. The reserve requirement totalefl illion and $10.1 million at December 31, 2CiaH 201z
respectively.

Securities Available for Sale:

Securities are classified as available for salennhanagement intends to hold the securities fandefinite period of time or when the securitiesynhe utilized fo
tactical asset/liability purposes and may be sobdnftime to time to effectively manage intereserakposure and resultant prepayment risk and liguitbeds
Premiums and discounts are amortized or accretsgectively, using the levgleld method. Realized gains and losses on the sdlsecurities are determined us
the specific identification method. Unrealized gaamd losses (other than unrealized losses coadidther-thariemporary which are recognized in the Consolic
Statements of Income) on securities available & are excluded from earnings and reported asgbatcumulated other comprehensive income, nédas. |i
estimating other-thatemporary impairment losses, management consitipted length of time and the extent to which e ¥alue has been less than amortized
(2) the current interest rate environment, (3)fthancial condition and nederm prospects of the issuer, if applicable, andhd intent and ability of the Company
retain its investment in the issuer for a periodimfe sufficient to allow for any anticipated reeoy in fair value. Other-thatemporary impairment losses for d
securities are measured using a discounted cashnfiodel. Other-thatemporary impairment losses for equity securitiess measured using quoted market pr
when available, or, when market quotes are notablaidue to an illiquid market, we use an impaimtraodel from a third party or quotes from investinigrokers.

Goodwill:

Goodwill is presumed to have an indefinite life amdested annually, or when certain conditionsraeg, for impairment, rather than amortized. If thie value of th
reporting unit is greater than the goodwill amourd, further evaluation is required. If the fair walof the reporting unit is less than the goodastiount, furthe
evaluation would be required to compare the faine®f the reporting unit to the goodwill amountaetermine if a write down is required.

The FASB issued ASU 2011-08, which gives entitles option of first performing a qualitative assesstto test goodwill for impairment on a reportimgjt-by-
reportingunit basis. If, after performing the qualitativesassment, an entity concludes that it is moreyliken not that the fair value of a reporting usitess than i
carrying amount, the entity would perform the tatep goodwill impairment test described in ASC 3H0wever, if, after applying the qualitative assesst, thi
entity concludes that it is not more likely thart tit the fair value is less than the carrying ampthe two-step goodwill impairment test is required.

In performing the goodwill impairment testing, tBempany has identified a single reporting unit. Twnpany performed the qualitative assessment gigeaxliin
ASU 201108 in assessing the carrying value of goodwill BBecember 31, 2014 and determined that there wagoodwill impairment. At December 31, 2014,
carrying amount of goodwill totaled $16.1 milliofhe identification of additional reporting unit$iet use of other valuation techniques and/or chatméspu
assumptions used in the analysis could result iremnadly different evaluations of goodwill impairmie

Loans:

Loans are reported at their principal outstandiatace net of any unearned income, chaff®-deferred loan fees and costs on originatedidoand unamortiz
premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Interesbans is recognized on the accrual basis. Theialcof income on loans is generally discontinudeen certai
factors, such as contractual delinquency of 90 daywmore, indicate reasonable doubt as to the yiroellectability of such income. Uncollected intstrg@reviousl
recognized on non-accrual loans is reversed fraerdst income at the time the loan is placed onawmnual status. A noaecrual loan can be returned to acc
status when contractual delinquency returns totkes 90 days delinquent. Subsequent cash paymemgived on nomccrual loans that do not bring the loan to
than 90 days delinquent are recorded on a cash. I&ddsequent cash payments can also be appBeddia reduction of principal until all principalrecovered ar
then subsequently to interest, if in managenseoinion, it is evident that recovery of all piipal due is unlikely to occur. Loan fees and cartaan origination cos
are deferred. Net loan origination costs and premsior discounts on loans purchased are amortizedriterest income over the contractual life of libens using tt
levelyield method. Prepayment penalties received onslaemich pay in full prior to their scheduled matyrare included in interest income in the perioeytlare
collected.
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Allowance for Loan Losses:

The Company maintains an allowance for loan loss@s amount, which, in managemerjtidgment, is adequate to absorb probable estihia@sses inherent in t
loan portfolio. Managemerst’judgment in determining the adequacy of the allwwe is based on evaluations of the collectalbfitpans. This evaluation is inherer
subjective, as it requires estimates that are ptibbe to significant revisions as more informatimeromes available.

The allowance is established through a provisioridan losses based on managenseavaluation of the risk inherent in the varioumponents of the loan portfo
and other factors, including historical loan logperience (which is updated quarterly), curreninecoic conditions, delinquency and nacerual trends, classified Ic
levels, risk in the portfolio and volumes and trerdl loan types, recent trends in chaofis; changes in underwriting standards, experieabgity and depth of t
Companys lenders, collection policies and experiencesrivdl loan review function and other external fextoAdditionally, the Company segregated our loatg
two portfolios based on year of origination. Onetfmiio was reviewed for loans originated after Bewber 31, 2009 and a second portfolio for loangimated prior t
January 1, 2010. Our decision to segregate théofiorbased upon origination dates was based ongdmmade in our underwriting standards during 2B93he en
of 2009, all loans were being underwritten basedesised and tightened underwriting standards.nkaaiginated prior to 2010 have a higher delingyemate an
loss history. Each of the years in the portfolio lfzans originated prior to 2010 has a similar mpliency rate. The determination of the amount efaffowance fc
loan losses includes estimates that are suscepbildgnificant changes due to changes in appraeales of collateral, national and local econoroaditions an
other factors. We review our loan portfolio by segte categories with similar risk and collaterah@tteristics. Impaired loans are segregated anewed separatel
All non-accrual loans are classified impaired. Twmpany’s Board of Directors reviews and approvasagemens evaluation of the adequacy of the allowanc
loan losses on a quarterly basis.

The allowance for loan losses is established thraiigarges to earnings in the form of a provisianldan losses. Increases and decreases in theaald@iother the
chargeeffs and recoveries are included in the provisionlban losses. When a loan or a portion of a lisadetermined to be uncollectible, the portion dee
uncollectible is charged against the allowance,;armbequent recoveries, if any, are credited tallbavance.

The Company recognizes a loan as performing when the borrower has demonstratedrthkility to bring the loan current, or due to otbgcumstances which,
management’s opinion, indicate the borrower willin@ble to bring the loan current within a reasteéime. All loans classified as ngrerforming, which includes
loans past due 90 days or more, are classifiedoasacrrual unless there is, in our opinion, compellavidence the borrower will bring the loan currémtthe
immediate future. Appraisals are obtained and/afatgd internal evaluations are prepared as sopnaatical, and before the loan becomes 90 dayadgiednt. Th
loan balances of collateral dependent impairedd@ae compared to the propestyipdated fair value. The Company considers fdirevaf collateral dependent lo:
to be 85% of the appraised or internally estimataldie of the property. The balance which exceetsviue is generally chargeuff. Management reviews t
allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basis, raodrds as a provision the amount deemed apptepaéer considering items such as, current ybargeeffs,
charge-off trends, new loan production, currenabet by particular loan categories, and delingloamts by particular loan categories.

A loan is considered impaired when, based uporeatiinformation, the Company believes it is probabht it will be unable to collect all amounts dbeth principe
and interest, in accordance with the original teahthe loan. Impaired loans are measured basdteopresent value of the expected future cash filissounted
the loan’s effective interest rate or at the Isaobservable market price or, as a practical erpédihe fair value of the collateral if the loancollateral depende
Interest income on impaired loans is recorded ercish basis. The Company’s management considlenahccrual loans impaired.

The Company reviews each impaired loan on an iddali basis to determine if either a chaafeer a valuation allowance needs to be allocatethe loan. Th
Company does not chargéf or allocate a valuation allowance to loansyidgrich management has concluded the current valtieeofinderlying collateral will allo
for recovery of the loan balance either throughsthle of the loan or by foreclosure and sale optioperty.

The Company evaluates the underlying collateralubh a third party appraisal, or when a third pappraisal is not available, the Company will useirdgerna
evaluation. The internal evaluations are prepasiaguan income approach or a sales approach. Thengapproach is used for income producing pragseend ust
current revenues less operating expenses to deteitimé net cash flow of the property. Once thecash flow is determined, the value of the propéstgalculate
using an appropriate capitalization rate for thepprty. The sales approach uses comparable sades pr the market. When an internal evaluationsisd, we plac
greater reliance on the income approach to vakiedtateral.
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In preparing internal evaluations of property valuie Company seeks to obtain current data oaubject property from various sources, includirig:tfie borrowe
(2) copies of existing leases; (3) local real estabkers and appraisers; (4) public records (asareal estate taxes and water and sewer chaggesymparable sal
and rental data in the market; (6) an inspectiothefproperty and (7) interviews with tenants. Enegernal evaluations primarily focus on the ineoapproach ar
comparable sales data to value the property.

As of December 31, 2014, we utilized recent thiady appraisals of the collateral to measure inmpaitt for $31.0 million, or 68.8%, of collateral @eplent impaire
loans, and used internal evaluations of the prgjsevalue for $14.1 million, or 31.2%, of collattdependent impaired loans.

The Company may restructure a loan to enable aWwerrexperiencing financial difficulties to conteunaking payments when it is deemed to be in thepgaoys
best longterm interest. This restructure may include redgi¢ire interest rate or amount of the monthly payrf@na specified period of time, after which tméeires
rate and repayment terms revert to the originahsenf the loan. We classify these loans as Troubkdat Restructured (“TDR”).

These restructurings have not included a reductigmincipal balance. The Company believes thatuetiring these loans in this manner will allowtee borrower
to become and remain current on their loans. Retsired loans are classified as a TDR when the Baakts a concession to a borrower who is expengrionancia
difficulties. All loans classified as TDR are caesied impaired, however TDR loans which have beerent for six consecutive montla the time they a
restructured as TDR remain on accrual status amaatrincluded as part of ngerforming loans. Loans which were delinquent atttie they are restructured ¢
TDR are placed on non-accrual status and reporsedoaperforming loans until they have made timely paytsefior six consecutive months. Loans that
restructured as TDR but are not performing in agance with the restructured terms are placed oraorual status and reported as non-performingsloan

The allocation of a portion of the allowance foaolosses for a performing TDR loan is based upemtesent value of the future expected cash fltiseounted :
the loan’s original effective rate, or for a nparforming TDR which is collateral dependent, the ¥alue of the collateral. At December 31, 20th&re were n
commitments to lend additional funds to borrowehoge loans were modified to a TDR. The modificatibhioans to a TDR did not have a significant effes ou
operating results, nor did it require a significatication of the allowance for loan losses.

Loans Held for Sale:
Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of oogstimated fair value. At December 31, 2014rehwere no loans classified as held for sale. étdbnber 31, 201
loans held for sale consisted of one non-performindfi-family residential loan for $0.4 million.

Bank Owned Life Insurance:

Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI"Jepresents life insurance on the lives of certampleyees who have provided positive consent allgwime Bank to be ti
beneficiary of such policies. BOLI is carried irethonsolidated statements of financial positioitsatash surrender value. Increases in the casie wdlthe policies, i
well as proceeds received, are recorded in otheiimterest income, and are not subject to incomesta

Other Real Estate Owned:

Other real estate owned (“OREQnsists of property acquired by foreclosure. Thmsperties are carried at fair value. The faiueals based on appraised vi
through a current appraisal, or at times througlngernal review, additionally adjusted by the estied costs to sell the property. This determimais made on ¢
individual asset basis. If the fair value of a prdp is less than the carrying amount, the diffeeeis recognized as a valuation allowance. Furdieereases to t
estimated value will be charged directly to expense

Bank Premises and Equipment:

Bank premises and equipment are stated at costdégseciation accumulated on a straigig-basis over the estimated useful lives of tlated assets (3 to 40 yee
Leasehold improvements are amortized on a stréiigithasis over the term of the related leased@lives of the assets, whichever is shorter. Maariee, repai
and minor improvements are charged to non-intengstnse in the period incurred.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock:

The FHLBNY has assigned to the Bank a mandated membersitk gurchase, based on its asset size. In addfto all borrowing activity, the Bank is requiréa
purchase shares of FHLB-NY non-marketable capitalksat par. Such shares are redeemed by FHLB\pamwith reductions in the Barkborrowing levels. Tt
Bank carries its investment in FHLB-NY stock attbitcal cost. The Company periodically reviews RLB-NY stock to determine if impairment exists.
December 31, 2014, the Company considered amory thtimgs the earnings performance, credit ratimg) @sset quality of the FHLRY. Based on this review, t
Company did not consider the value of our investmimeRHLB-NY stock to be impaired at December 3012.
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Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchasacaminted for as collateralized financing and amied at amounts at which the securities will bbsequentl
reacquired as specified in the respective agreesmimeérest incurred under these agreements isdadlin other interest expense.

Income Taxes:

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arerd@teed using the asset and liability (or balanageshmethod. Under this method, the net deferne@saet or liabilit
is determined based on the tax effects of the teanpalifferences between book and tax bases ofdhieus balance sheet assets and liabilities. Arded tax liabilit
is recognized on all taxable temporary differenaed a deferred tax asset is recognized on all diétri¢emporary differences and operating lossektar credi
carry-forwards. A valuation allowance is recogdize reduce the potential deferred tax assetiff fimore likely than not'that all or some portion of that poten
deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Campaust also take into account changes in tax wstes when valuing the deferred income tax ansoitircarrie
on its Consolidated Statements of Financial Coowliti

Stock Compensation Plans:

The Company accounts for its stock based compemnsatiaccordance with the Financial Accounting 8&ads Board (“FASB")Accounting Standards Codificati
(“ASC") Topic 718 “Stock Compensatidnwhich establishes fair value as the measuremigjectve in accounting for shatesed payment arrangements and rec
a fair-value-based measurement method in accoufingharebased payment transactions with employees. It r@gaires measurement of the cost of empl
services received in exchange for an award of aityeopstrument based on the grant date fair valuthe award. That cost is recognized over thegeturing whicl
an employee is required to provide service in emgedor the award. The requisite service periagsisglly the vesting period.

Benefit Plans:

The Company sponsors a qualified pension, 401¢d,pofit sharing plan for its employees. The Conmypalso sponsors postretirement health care amdnisuranc
benefits plans for its employees, a non-qualifiefedted compensation plan for officers who haveleaehd the level of at least senior vice presidend a non-
qualified pension plan for its outside directors.

The Company recognizes the funded status of a ibgxhei — measured as the difference between aets at fair value and the benefit obligatian the stateme
of financial condition, with the unrecognized citsdind charges recognized, net of taxes, as a e@npof accumulated other comprehensive incomes& beedits ¢
charges arose as a result of gains or losses @dsprvice costs or credits that arose duringrgr@riods but were not recognized as componemetgberiodic bene!
cost.

Treasury Stock:
The Company records treasury stock at cost. Trgasock is reissued at average cost.

Derivatives:

Derivatives are required to be recorded on the Gafeted Statements of Financial Condition at Yailue. The Company records derivatives on a grasslin ‘Othel
assets” and “Other liabilitiesh the Consolidated Statements of Financial CoowlitiThe accounting for changes in value of a é¢ite depends on whether or not
transaction has been designated and qualifies €dgénr accounting. Derivatives that are not desighatehedges are reported and measured at fair traioegt
earnings.

To qualify for hedge accounting, a derivative mossthighly effective at reducing the risk associatgth the exposure being hedged. In addition, fdegavative to b
designated as a hedge, the risk management olgjeatil strategy must be documented. Hedge docurnieentatist identify the derivative hedging instrumeéhe assi
or liability or forecasted transaction and typeisk to be hedged, and how the effectiveness ofléniative is assess@dospectively and retrospectively. The extel
which a derivative has been, and is expected ttirumto be, effective at offsetting changes inféievalue of the hedged item must be assessediatumented
least quarterly. Any hedge ineffectiveness (ifee, amount by which the gain or loss on the des@ghderivative instrument does not exactly offset¢hange in tt
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk) mestdported in currergeriod earnings. If it is determined that a defnxats not highly effective at hedging -
designated exposure, hedge accounting is discautinu
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Segment Reporting:
Management views the Company as operating as a&singl a community bank. Therefore, segment inédrom is not provided.

Advertising Expense:
Costs associated with advertising are expensedcasréd. The Company recorded advertising expeofs&4.8 million, $1.9 million and $1.7 million fahe year
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respactivel

Earnings per Common Share:

Earnings per share are computed in accordanceA@th Topic 260°Earnings Per Share.”Basic earnings per common share is computed bylidiyinet incom
available to common shareholders by the total weijlaverage number of common shares outstandinghvificludes unvested participating securities. &ate
sharebased payment awards that contain nonforfeitaghsito dividends or dividend equivalents (whetb&id or unpaid) are participating securities anduwh ar
included in the calculation of earnings per sharee Company unvested restricted stock and restricted stodkawards are considered participating secur
Therefore, weighted average common shares outstandied for computing basic earnings per commoresingludes common shares outstanding plus unv
restricted stock and restricted stock unit awafde computation of diluted earnings per share beduthe additional dilutive effect of stock optiangstanding ar
other common stock equivalents during the peri@dmmon stock equivalents that are atilitive are not included in the computation ofutgild earnings per comm
share. The numerator for calculating basic andetilearnings per common share is net income al@italrommon shareholders. The shares held in ¢mpa@nys
Employee Benefit Trust are not included in shargstanding for purposes of calculating earningscoemmon share.

Earnings per common share have been computed bagééd following, for the years ended December 31:

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands, except per share d¢
Net income, as reporte $ 4423¢ $ 37,75. $ 34,33:
Divided by:
Weighted average common shares outstar 29,78¢ 30,047 30,40:
Weighted average common stock equival 28 26 31
Total weighted average common shares outstandithcommon stock equivalen 29,815 30,07 30,43
Basic earnings per common sh $ 14¢ % 1.2¢ $ 1.1z
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 14 $ 126 $ 1.1z
Dividend Payout rati 40.5% 41.5% 46.(%

There were no options that were aditistive for the year ended December 31, 2014. @gtito purchase 151,900 shares, at an averagasexprice of $18.55, a
550,400 shares, at an average exercise price 06%1are antdilutive and were not included in the computatidrdiduted earnings per common share for the y
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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3. Loans

The composition of loans is as follows at Decendder

2014 2013
(In thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 1,92346/ $ 1,712,03
Commercial real esta 621,56¢ 512,55
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 573,77¢ 595,75:
One-to-four family — residentia 187,57: 193,72¢
Cc-operative apartmen 9,83t 10,137
Constructior 5,28¢ 4,247
Small Business Administratic 7,13¢ 7,792
Taxi medallion 22,51¢ 13,12
Commercial business and ot 447 ,50( 373,64

Gross loan: 3,798,65: 3,423,00:
Unearned loan fees and deferred costs 11,71¢ 11,17(

Total loans $ 3,810,37. $ 3,434,17

The total amount of loans on naeerual status was $31.9 million and $48.0 millkérDecember 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. dtadamount of loans classifi
as impaired, which includes all loans on ramtrual status, was $56.5 million and $81.8 milimecember 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Wergdly adjust th
carrying value of collateral dependent impairechtoto their fair value with a charge to the alloeffior loan losses. The average balance of impieets was $65
million and $95.0 million for 2014 and 2013, respesly.

The Company may restructure a loan to enable aWwerrto continue making payments when it is deetodak in our best lonterm interest. This restructure n
include reducing the interest rate or amount oftteathly payment for a specified period of timeegafvhich the interest rate and repayment termerteéo the origine
terms of the loan. The Company classifies theseslea a TDR.

There were no loans modified and classified as TDifg the year ended December 31, 2014.

The following table shows loans modified and cliedias TDR during the year ended December 31,:2013

For the year ende
December 31, 201

(Dollars in thousands Number Balance Modification descriptior

Multi-family residential 2 % 69¢ Received a below market interest rate and the loan
amortization was extend:t

Commercial real esta 1 273 Received a below market interest rate and the
amortization was extend:t

One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 1 39C Received a below market interest rate and the
amortization was extend:t

Commercial business and ot} 2 687 Received a below market interest rate and the

amortization was extended

Total 6 $ 2,04¢

The recorded investment of each of the loans nextldind classified to a TDR, presented in the abtee, was unchanged as there was no principavérgn any of
these modifications.
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The following table shows our recorded investmenidans classified as TDR that are performing ediog to their restructured terms at the periodciated:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Number Recordec Number Recordec

(Dollars in thousands of contracts investmen of contracts investmen
Multi-family residentia 10 $ 3,03¢ 10 $ 3,087
Commercial real esta 3 2,37: 3 2,407
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 7 2,381 8 2,692
One-to-four family - residentia 1 354 1 364
Constructior - - 1 74¢€
Commercial business and ol 4 2,24¢ 5 4,40¢

Total performing troubled debt restructul 25 3 10,39: 28 % 13,70:

During the year ended December 31, 2014, three [BARS totaling $2.7 million were transferred to fpmrforming status, which resulted in these loamsgomcludec
in non-performing loans. Two of these loans, subsat to being transferred to npefforming loans, were paid in full during the yearded December :
2014. Additionally, during the year ended Decembkr 2014, one loan for $0.4 million was transférfilom performing noraccrual status to performing acci
status as it has made timely payments for six aurise months. During the year ended December @132no TDR loans were transferred to non-perfognsiiatus.

The following table shows our recorded investmenidans classified as TDR that are not perforngiagording to their restructured terms at the perindicated:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Number Recordec Number Recordec
(Dollars in thousands of contracts investmen of contracts investmen
Commercial real esta 1 $ 2,25z 1 $ 2,33¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 1 187 - -
Total troubled debt restructurinthat subsequently default 2 9 2,43¢ 1 $ 2,33
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The following table shows our non-performing loamshe periods indicated:

At December 31

(In thousands 2014 2013
Loans ninety days or more past duand still accruing:
Multi-family residentia 67¢ $ 52
Commercial real esta 82C -
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 40E -
One-to-four family residentia 14 15
Commercial Business and ott 38€ 53¢
Total 2,301 60€
Non-accrual mortgage loans:
Multi-family residentia 6,87¢ 13,297
Commercial real esta 5,68¢ 9,962
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 6,93¢ 9,06:
One-to-four family residentia 11,24 13,25(
Cc-operative apartmen - 57
Total 30,74% 45,62¢
Non-accrual non-mortgage loans:
Commercial Business and ott 1,14 2,34¢
Total 1,143 2,34¢
Total non-accrual loans 31,89( 47,97
Total non-accrual loans and ninety day:or more past due and still accruing 34,19. $ 48,58
The following is a summary of interest foregonenam-accrual loans and loans classified as TDRheyears ended December 31:
2013 2012
(In thousands
Interest income that would have been recognizedtatbans performein accordance with their original terr 4,65¢ 9,02¢
Less: Interest income included in the results afrafions 1,21¢ 1,692
Total foregone interest 3,44 $ 7,33¢




The following table shows an age analysis of ooorded investment in loans at December 31, 2014:

Greatel
30-59 Days 60- 89 Day:s than Total Pas
(in thousands Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans
(in thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 7,721 $ 1,72¢ % 755 % 17,00¢ $ 1,906,451 $ 1,923,46!
Commercial real esta 1,612 1,90¢ 6,51( 10,02 611,54« 621,56¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 10,40¢ 1,15¢ 7,341 18,90: 554,87¢ 573,77¢
One-to-four family - residentia 1,751 2,24¢ 11,05: 15,04¢ 172,52¢ 187,57:
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - 9,83t 9,83t
Construction loan 3,00( - - 3,00( 2,28¢ 5,28¢
Small Business Administratic a0 - - a0 7,044 7,13¢
Taxi medallion - - - - 22,51¢ 22,51¢
Commercial business and ot 6 1,58¢ 74C 2,331 445,16¢ 447,50(

Total $ 2458¢ $ 8,61t $ 33,19¢ $ 66,39¢ $ 3,732,25! $ 3,798,65.
The following table shows an age analysis of ooorded investment in loans at December 31, 2013:

Greatel
30-59 Days 60 -89 Days than Total Past
(in thousands Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans
(in thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 14,10 $ 3,68 $ 13,34¢ % 31,13« $ 1,680,900 $ 1,712,03!
Commercial real esta 5,02¢ 7,69¢ 9,962 22,69( 489,86: 512,55
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 14,017 1,09¢ 9,06: 24,17¢ 571,57: 595,75
One-to-four family - residentia 3,82¢ 51¢ 12,96¢ 17,31« 176,41: 193,72¢
Cc-operative apartmen 99 - 144 243 9,89/ 10,13°
Construction loan - - - - 4,247 4,247
Small Business Administratic 10€ - - 10¢€ 7,68¢ 7,792
Taxi medallion - - - - 13,12 13,12
Commercial business and ot} 187 2 1,752 1,941 371,70( 373,64

Total $ 37,367 $ 13,00 $ 4723¢  $ 97,607 $ 3,32540. $ 3,423,00:
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the year ended Decemhe2(34:

One-to-four
family - One-to-four Commercia
Multi-family Commercie mixed-use family - Co-operative Constructior Small Busines  Taxi  business ar

(in thousands residentia real estatt  property residentia apartment: loans Administratior medallior other Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc $ 12,08: $ 4,95¢ $ 6,32¢ $ 2,07¢ $ 104 $ 444 $ 45¢ $ -$ 532( $ 31,77¢
Charge-off's (1,16)) (325 (423) (203 - - (49 - (381) (2,442
Recoveries 15C 481 60¢E 26¢ 7 - 92 - 17¢ 1,782
Provision (benefit (2,246 (913 (673 (555 (111 (402 (222 11 (910 (6,027

Ending balanc $ 8,827 $ 4,202 $ 584C $ 1,69C $ -$ 42 $ 27¢ $ 1% 4,208 $  25,09¢

Ending balance: individuall

evaluated for impairment  $ 28€ $ 21 $ 57¢ $ 54 $ -$ -$ -3 -3 154 $ 1,094

Ending balance: collective

evaluated for impairment  $ 8,541 $ 4,181 $ 5,261 $ 1,63¢ $ -$ 42 $ 27¢ $ 11 % 4,051 $ 24,00:

Financing Receivables

Ending balanc $ 1,923,446/ $ 621,56¢ $ 573,77¢ $ 187,57. $ 9,83t $ 5,28¢ $ 7,13¢ $ 2251¢$ 447,500 $3,798,65

Ending balance: individuall

evaluated for impairment  $ 13,26( $ 9,47:$ 15,12($ 13,17( $ - $ - $ -3 -$ 5492 § 56,51¢

Ending balance: collective

evaluated for impairment $ 1,910,200 $ 612,09¢ $ 558,65¢ $ 174,40: $ 9,83t $ 5,28¢ $ 7,132 $ 2251¢$ 442,00t $3,742,13!
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the year ended Decemhe2(3B:

One-to-four
family - One-to-four Commercia
Multi-family Commercie mixed-use family - Cc-operative Constructior Small Busines  Taxi  business ar

(in thousands residentia real estatt  property residentia apartment: loans Administratior medallior other Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc $ 13,00 $ 5,70t $ 5,96( $ 1,99¢ $ 4€ $ 66 $ 50t $ 7% 3,81t $ 31,10¢
Charge-off's (3,58%) (1,05)) (4,20¢) (702) (10¢) (2,679 (457) - (2,057 (14,84)
Recoveries 541 324 26¢€ 272 4 - 87 - 86 1,58(
Provision (benefit 2,12i (19 4,30¢ 50¢ 162 3,05¢€ 323 (@) 3,47¢ 13,93t

Ending balanc $ 12,08. $ 4,95¢ $ 6,32¢ $ 2,07¢ $ 104 $ 444 $ 45¢ $ -$ 5,32( $ 31,77¢

Ending balance: individuall

evaluated for impairment  $ 31z $ 164 $ 87t $ 58 $ -$ 17 $ -$ -$ 22z $  1,64¢

Ending balance: collective

evaluated for impairment $ 11,77 $ 479" $ 5452 $ 2,021 $ 104 $ 427 $ 45¢ $ -$ 5,09¢ $ 30,12¢

Financing Receivables

Ending balanc: $ 1,712,03' $ 512,55: $ 595,75. $ 193,72t $ 10,137 $ 4247 $ 7,792 $ 13,12 $ 373,64 $3,423,00i

Ending balance: individuall

evaluated for impairment  $ 21,75°$ 1975 % 16,93¢$ 1439( $ 52 $ 74€ $ -$ - $ 8,12( $ 81,76¢

Ending balance: collective

evaluated for impairment $ 1,690,28. $ 492,79 $ 578,81 $ 179,33t $ 10,07¢ $ 3,501 $ 7,792 $ 13,12 $ 365,52 $3,341,24
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The following table shows our recorded investmanpaid principal balance and allocated allowancddan losses, average recorded investment anckgttecom
recognized for loans that were considered impaitext for the year ended December 31, 2014:

Unpaid Average Interest
Recordec Principal Relatec Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen Recognizec

(In thousands
With no related allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia $ 10,48. $ 11,55 $ - % 14,16¢ $ 194
Commercial real esta 7,10( 7,221 - 11,32¢ 51
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 12,027 13,38: - 12,85: 321
One-to-four family residentia 12,81¢ 15,70¢ - 13,01t 10z
Ca-operative apartmen - - - - -
Constructior - - - 28t -

Nonr-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - - - - -
Taxi Medallion - = - -
Commercial Business and otf 2,77¢ 3,14¢ - 3,42¢ 137

Total loans with no related allowance recorded 45,20: 51,01 - 55,077 80¢€

With an allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia 2,77¢ 2,77¢ 28¢€ 2,93¢ 14¢
Commercial real esta 2,37: 2,37: 21 3,24z 167
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 3,09: 3,09: 57¢ 3,24¢ 17C
One-to-four family residentia 354 354 54 35¢€ 14
Ca-operative apartmen - - - - -
Constructior - - - 187 -

Nonr-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - - - - -
Taxi Medallion - = - - -
Commercial Business and ott 2,71¢ 2,71¢ 154 3,14¢ 11E

Total loans with an allowance recorc 11,31% 11,31% 1,094 13,12 61E
Total Impaired Loans

Total mortgage loan $ 51,02 $ 56,46. $ 94C % 61,62, $ 1,16¢

Total nor-mortgage loan $ 549: $ 586 $ 154 3 6,571 $ 252
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The following table shows our recorded investmanpaid principal balance and allocated allowancddan losses, average recorded investment anckgttecom
recognized for loans that were considered impaitext for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Unpaid Average Interest
Recordec Principal Relatec Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen Recognizec

(In thousands
With no related allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia $ 18,70¢ $ 20,93 $ - % 22,09: $ 402
Commercial real esta 16,72: 17,40¢ - 19,84¢ 26€
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 12,74¢ 15,25¢ - 13,91¢ 31¢
One-to-four family residentia 14,02¢ 17,52° - 14,52¢ 12t
Cc-operative apartmen 59 147 - 18¢ -
Constructior - 11€ - 4,01¢ -
Nonr-mortgage loans

Small Business Administratic - - - 247 -
Taxi Medallion - - - - -
Commercial Business and ott 3,22¢ 5,521 - 5,30¢ 26¢

Total loans with no related allowance recor 65,48¢ 76,91 - 80,14 1,38(

With an allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia 3,04¢ 3,04¢ 312 2,892 17C
Commercial real esta 3,03¢ 3,10z 164 6,38¢ 194
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 4,191 4,221 87t 4,041 22¢
One-to-four family residentia 364 364 58 36¢€ 15
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - -
Constructior 74¢€ 74¢ 17 1,92¢ 18

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - - - - -
Taxi Medallion - = - -
Commercial Business and ott 4,89t 4,89¢ 222 4,35¢ 23¢

Total loans with an allowance recorc 16,28( 16,37¢ 1,64¢ 19,97 864
Total Impaired Loans

Total mortgage loan $ 73,64¢ $ 82,86t $ 1,42¢  $ 90,20:  $ 1,737

Total nor-mortgage loan $ 8,12C % 10,42 % 22z $ 9,91C % 507
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In accordance with our policy and the current rathrly guidelines, we designate loans as “Special tidiefi which are considered “Criticized Loansghc
“Substandard,” “Doubtful,” or “Loss,” which are ceidered “Classified Loans’lf a loan does not fall within one of the previauentioned categories then the |
would be considered “Pass.” These loan designatmesupdated quarterly. We designate a loan ast&udard when a wetlefined weakness is identified t
jeopardizes the orderly liquidation of the debt. Bésignate a loan Doubtful when it displays thesieht weakness of a Substandard loan with the guldetsion the
collection of the debt in full, on the basis ofstiig facts, is highly improbable. We designateamlas Loss if it is deemed the debtor is incapabtepayment. Tt
Company does not hold any loans designated asdedeans that are designated as Loss are chardlee Allowance for Loan Losses. Loans that areamurual ar
designated as Substandard, Doubtful or Loss. Wignie a loan as Special Mention if the asset doesvarrant classification within one of the otletassifications
but does contain a potential weakness that deselvssr attention.

The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Criticized or ClassidieBecember 31, 2014:

(In thousands Special Mentio  Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 6,49: $ 10,22¢ $ - 8 - 3 16,72(
Commercial real esta 5,45: 7,10( - - 12,55
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 5,25¢ 12,49¢ - - 17,75:¢
One-to-four family - residentia 2,35 13,05¢ - - 15,40¢
Cc-operative apartmen 622 - - - 622
Construction loan - - - - -
Small Business Administratic 47¢ - - - 47¢
Commercial business and ol 2,841 3,77¢ - - 6,62(
Total loans $ 23,49¢ $ 46,66( $ - $ - $ 70,15¢

The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Criticized or ClassidieDecember 31, 2013:

(In thousands Special Mentio  Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 9,94C $ 19,08¢ $ - $ - % 29,02¢
Commercial real esta 13,50: 16,82( - - 30,32
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 7,992 14,89¢ - - 22,89(
One-to-four family - residentia 2,84¢ 14,02¢ - - 16,87+
Cc-operative apartmen - 59 - - 59
Construction loan 74¢ - - - 74¢
Small Business Administratic 31cC - - - 31C
Commercial business and other 7,31¢ 8,45( 50 - 15,81«
Total loans $ 42.65: $ 73,34. $ 50 $ - $ 116,04
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the years ended Deceniber 3

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands
Balance, beginning of ye $ 31,77¢  $ 31,10¢ $ 30,34+
Provision (benefit) for loan loss: (6,027 13,93t 21,00(
Chargroffs (2,449) (14,849 (21,269
Recoveries 1,782 1,58( 1,02¢
Balance, end of ye: $ 25,09¢ $ 31,77¢  $ 31,10¢
The following are net loan charge-offs (recoverkg)oan type for the years ended December 31:
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands
Multi-family residentia $ 1,011 % 3,042 $ 5,872
Commercial real esta (15€) 727 2,43¢
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert (185) 3,94( 3,92¢
One-to-four family — residentia (16€) 42¢ 1,55¢
Cc-operative apartmen @) 104 62
Constructior - 2,67¢ 4,591
Small Business Administratic (43 37C 237
Commercial business and ot} 20E 1,971 1,55
Total net loan charw-offs $ 65¢ $ 13,26 $ 20,24(

4. Loans held for sale

The Company has implemented a strategy of sellartaim delinquent and ngmerforming loans. Once the Company has decideélt@doan, the sale usually v
close in a short period of time, generally withtie same quarter. Loans designated held for salecatassified from loans held for investment tan® held for sal
Terms of sale include cash due upon the closingeofale, no contingencies or recourse to the Coynald servicing is released to the buyer.

The following table shows delinquent and non-perfiog loans sold during the period indicated:
For the year ende

December 31, 201
Net (charg-offs)

(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed: recoveries Net gain
Multi-family residentia 12 % 575¢ $ 80) $ 9
Commercial real esta 6 4,63t 29t 8
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 14 5,39¢ 122 5C
Commercial business and ot} 2 64 20

Total 34 3 15857 $ 357 $ 67
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The following table shows delinquent and non-perfiog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the year ende
December 31, 201

(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed:  Net charg-offs Net gain (los¢
Multi-family residentia 21 % 1142( $ (2,029 $ 98
Commercial real esta 9 5,48¢ (709%) 6
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 3¢ 11,427 (2,79)) (52
Constructior 2 5,06¢ (164) -
Commercial business and ott 1 - (21) =

Total 72 $ 33,400 $ (4,709 $ 53

The above table does not include one performingneeruial real estate loan for $2.4 million which veadd for a net gain of $0.2 million during the yeaded
December 31, 2013.

The following table shows delinquent and non-perfiog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the year ende
December 31, 201

(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed:  Net charg-offs Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 34 $ 21,42¢ $ (2,979 $ (46)
Commercial real esta 11 5,86¢ (572) -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 25 8,27( (1,927 -
Constructior 3 2,54( (57 -
Commercial business and ott 4 6,11¢ (13€) 8

Total 77 $ 44220 % (5,666 $ (38)

The above table does not include $0.7 million afgrening Small Business Administration loans tha&revsold for a net gain of $60,000 during the yeated
December 31, 2012.

5. Other Real Estate Owned
The following table shows the activity in OREO dgithe periods indicated:

For the years ended
December 31

2014 2013 2012

(In thousands

Balance at beginning of ye $ 298 $ 527¢ $ 3,17¢
Acquisitions 7,11z 5,36¢ 6,127
Reductions to carrying valt 5) (243%) (51€)
Sales (3,766 (7,419 (3,519
Balance at end of ye. $ 6,32¢ $ 2,98 $ 5,27¢
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The following table shows the gross gains, grossde and write-downs of OREO reported in the Catesteld Statements of Income during the periodsepites!:

For the years ende
December 31

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands

Gross gain: $ 17¢  $ 443 $ 78
Gross losse (109) (89 (25E)
Write-down of carrying valu (5 (243 (516)

Total $ 64 $ 111 $ (699

6. Debt and Equity Securities

The Companys investments in equity securities that have rgaditerminable fair values and all investmentsebtdsecurities are classified in one of the folluy
three categories and accounted for accordinglytréting securities, (2) securities available flesand (3) securities held-to-maturity.

The Company did not hold any trading securitiesexurities held-tonaturity during the years ended December 31, 20¥2813. Securities available for sale
recorded at fair value.

The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidfof securities available for sale at DecemberZl 4:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Fair Value Gains Losses

(In thousands

Corporate $ 90,71¢ $ 91,270 $ 1,26¢ $ 714
Municipals 145,86: 148,89¢ 3,09: 61
Mutual funds 21,11¢ 21,11¢ - -
Other 7,09¢ 7,09( - 8
Total other securitie 264,79¢ 268,37" 4,361 782
REMIC and CMC 504,20° 505,76¢ 6,18¢ 4,627
GNMA 13,86: 14,15¢ 421 124
FNMA 169,95¢ 170,36° 2,12¢ 1,717
FHLMC 14,50t 14,63¢ 142 8
Total mortgag-backed securitie 702,53( 704,93: 8,87¢ 6,47¢
Total securities available for se $ 967,32¢ $ 973,31 $ 13,24C $ 7,25¢

Mortgage-backed securities shown in the table abmlade three private issue collateralized mortgalgiggations (“CMO”)that are collateralized by commercial
estate mortgages with an amortized cost and mashe¢ of $12.4 million at December 31, 2014.
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The following table shows the Company’s availalolesfale securities with gross unrealized lossedlaidfair value, aggregated by category and legtime that
individual securities have been in a continuougalized loss position, at December 31, 2014.

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealizec Unrealizec Unrealizec
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands

Corporate $ 39,28 $ 714 $ 9,57 % 428 $ 29,71 $ 28¢€
Municipals 8,81( 61 3,54¢ 11 5,26¢ 50
Other 292 8 - - 292 8
Total other securitie 48,38¢ 78: 13,11¢ 43¢ 35,27( 344
REMIC and CMC 216,19( 4,627 77,38: 39¢ 138,80¢ 4,22¢
GNMA 8,35¢ 124 - - 8,35¢ 124
FNMA 95,14¢ 1,717 - - 95,14¢ 1,717
FHLMC 6,77° 8 6,77: 8 - -
Total mortgag-backed securitie 326,46¢ 6,47¢ 84,15¢ 407 242,31 6,06¢
Total securities available for se $ 374,85 $ 725¢ % 97,27¢ $ 84€ $ 27758 $ 6,41

OTTI losses on impaired securities must be fullgognized in earnings if an investor has the interdell the debt security or if it is more likelgain not that tr
investor will be required to sell the debt seculigfore recovery of its amortized cost. Howeveereif an investor does not expect to sell a detuirity, the investc
must evaluate the expected cash flows to be retevel determine if a credit loss has occurredhindvent that a credit loss has occurred, onlyatheunt o
impairment associated with the credit loss is recxeyl in earnings in the Consolidated Statementaci@fme. Amounts relating to factors other tharditrivsses ai
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive indbA@CI”) within Stockholders’ Equity.

The Company reviewed each investment that had eralized loss at December 31, 2014. An unrealiassl éxists when the current fair value of an invest is les
than its amortized cost basis. Unrealized lossesvailable for sale securities, that are deemdxbttemporary, are recorded in AOCI, net of tax.rdahized losses tr
are considered to be other-thi@mporary are split between credit related and reaficrelated impairments, with the credit relategbairment being recorded a
charge against earnings and the noncredit relatpdirment being recorded in AOCI, net of tax.

Corporate Securities:

The unrealized losses in Corporate securities aeDber 31, 2014 consist of losses on five Corpaaterities. The unrealized losses were causeddvemments i
interest rates. It is not anticipated that thesmigiges would be settled at a price that is ldemtthe amortized cost of the Companyivestment. Each of the
securities is performing according to its terms,andhe opinion of management, will continue tofpem according to its terms. The Company doeshawe the intel
to sell these securities and it is more likely timah the Company will not be required to sell teewsities before recovery of the securitiasiortized cost basis. Tl
conclusion is based upon considering the Compacgsh and working capital requirements and caun@dand regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpan
believes would cause the sale of the securitiestefbre, the Company did not consider these inverstsrto be other-than-temporarily impaired at Ddmem31, 2014.

Municipal Securities:

The unrealized losses in Municipal securities atdbswer 31, 2014, consist of losses on three mutisguraurities. The unrealized losses were causeddwements i
interest rates. It is not anticipated that thesmisges would be settled at a price that is ldemtthe amortized cost of the Companyivestment. Each of the
securities is performing according to its terms,andhe opinion of management, will continue tofpem according to its terms. The Company doeshawe the intel
to sell these securities and it is more likely timah the Company will not be required to sell teewsities before recovery of the securitiasiortized cost basis. Tl
conclusion is based upon considering the Comgaogsh and working capital requirements and cami@h@nd regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpan'
believes would cause the sale of the securitiestefbre, the Company did not consider these inverstsrto be other-than-temporarily impaired at Ddmem31, 2014.
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Other Securities:

The unrealized losses in Other Securities at Deee®b, 2014, consist of losses on one single igsustrpreferred security. The unrealized lossethisnsecurity wel
caused by market interest volatility, a significantdening of credit spreads across markets forettsesurities and illiquidity and uncertainty in fireancial market:
This security is currently rated below investmerddg. It is not anticipated that this security vebbk settled at a price that is less than the aedricost of th
Companys investment. This security is performing accordiogts terms and, in the opinion of managemenl, antinue to perform according to its terms.
Company does not have the intent to sell this #ycand it is more likely than not the Company wilbt be required to sell this security before rerpwof the
security’s amortized cost basis. This conclusiomased upon considering the Compangash and working capital requirements and cani@h@nd regulatol
obligations, none of which the Company believes ldl@mause the sale of the security. Therefore, theany did not consider this investment to be ethan-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2014.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, threeedadolist preferred securities for which OTTI chargesre recorded in previous periods, were soldfoceed
totaling $11.1 million, recording a net loss oresaf $2.3 million.

REMIC and CMO:

The unrealized losses in Real Estate Mortgage Imeargt Conduit (‘REMIC”) and Collateralized Mortgagél@ation (“CMO”) securities at December 31, 2!
consist of seven issues from the Federal Home Mamgage Corporation (“FHLMC”), 14 issues from thedEeal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA"gjghi
issues from Government National Mortgage AssocigtiGNMA”) and one private issue.

The unrealized losses on the REMIC and CMO secuiiiteged by FHLMC, FNMA, GNMA and the private issuereveaused by movements in interest rates. It i
anticipated that these securities would be setited price that is less than the amortized cosh@fCompanys investment. Each of these securities is perfay
according to its terms, and, in the opinion of ngmaent, will continue to perform according to é&sms. The Company does not have the intent tdtsedke securitie
and it is more likely than not the Company will rozt required to sell the securities before recowdrthe securitiesamortized cost basis. This conclusion is b
upon considering the Compasyctash and working capital requirements, and cotahand regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpany believes would cat
the sale of the securities. Therefore, the Complicthyiot consider these investments to be other-teaporarily impaired at December 31, 2014.

Credit related impairment for mortgagecked securities are determined for each sechyitystimating losses based on the following seasgfumptions: (.
delinquency and foreclosure levels; (2) projectesbés at various loss severity levels; and (3)itcesthancement and coverage. Based on these revien®TT
charge was recorded during the year ended DeceBihe@014. The Company recorded credit related GER@rges totaling $1.4 million on four private isSTEIOs
during the year ended December 31, 2013 and $0ii8mun five private issue CMOs during the year e@®ecember 31, 2012.

The private issue CMOs which incurred the aboveitrethted OTTI charges were sold during the yeadeel December 31, 2013 for proceeds of $18.3 m
realizing a loss on sale of $1.7 million.

GNMA:

The unrealized losses in GNMA securities at DecerStte2014 consist of losses on one security. Thealized losses were caused by movements in intertes. |
is not anticipated that this security would beledtat a price that is less than the amortized @bte Companys investment. This security is performing accordi
its terms and, in the opinion of management, vahtaue to perform according to its terms. The Canypdoes not have the intent to sell this secuaity it is mor
likely than not the Company will not be requiredstl the security before recovery of the secwsigmortized cost basis. This conclusion is based gpnsidering tt
Companys cash and working capital requirements and cani@band regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpany believes would cause the sale of the gg«
Therefore, the Company did not consider this sgctoibe other-than-temporarily impaired at Decengfe 2014.

FNMA:

The unrealized losses in FNMA securities at Decer3thie2014 consist of losses on 13 securities. Tinealized losses were caused by movements in gttertes.

is not anticipated that these securities woulddttiesl at a price that is less than the amortizest of the Companyg’investment. Each of these securities is perfay
according to its terms and, in the opinion of mamagnt, will continue to perform according to itetis. The Company does not have the intent to Isedlet securitic
and it is more likely than not the Company will roet required to sell the securities before recowdrthe securitiesamortized cost basis. This conclusion is b
upon considering the Compasytash and working capital requirements and cawnibhand regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpany believes will cause

sale of the securities. Therefore, the Companydidonsider these investments to be other-thapdesnily impaired at December 31, 2014.
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FHMLC:

The unrealized losses in FHMLC securities at DecerBbe2014 consist of losses on one security. Tirealized losses were caused by movements in gttexees.
is not anticipated that this security would beledtat a price that is less than the amortized @bte Companys investment. This security is performing accordi
its terms and, in the opinion of management, vahtaue to perform according to its terms. The Canypdoes not have the intent to sell this secuauity it is mor
likely than not the Company will not be requiredstl the security before recovery of the secwsigmortized cost basis. This conclusion is based apnsidering tt
Companys cash and working capital requirements and cani@hand regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpany believes would cause the sale of the gg«
Therefore, the Company did not consider this sectoibe other-than-temporarily impaired at Decengfe 2014.

The following table represents the activity relatedhe credit loss component recognized in eamig debt securities held by the Company for wiligiortion o
OTTI was recognized in AOCI for the periods indexht

For the years ende
December 31

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands
Beginning balanc $ 3,73t $ 6,17¢ $ 6,922
Recognition of actual loss: - (842) (1,27
OTTI charges due to credit loss recorded in eas - 1,41¢ 77¢€
Securities sold during the peri (3,73¢) (3,019 (249)

Ending balanc $ $ 3,73t $ 6,17¢

The amortized cost and estimated fair value ofGbenpanys securities, classified as available for sale etdnber 31, 2014, by contractual maturity, are s
below. Expected maturities will differ from conttaal maturities because borrowers may have the tigball or prepay obligations with or without lcaf prepaymet
penalties.

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
(In thousands

Due in one year or le: $ 23,51 $ 23,51¢
Due after one year through five ye. 35,80: 37,05(
Due after five years through ten ye 68,62( 68,097
Due after ten yeal 136,86 139,71

Total other securitie 264,79¢ 268,37"
Mortgage-backed securitie 702,53( 704,93:

Total securities available for s¢ $ 967,32¢ $ 973,31
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The following table represents the gross gainsgaoss losses realized from the sale of securitiaiadble for sale for the periods indicated:

For the years ende
December 31

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands
Gross gains from the sale of securi $ 5247 $ 522: $ 154
Gross losses from the sale of securi (2,372) (2,20 (107)
Net gains from the sale of securit $ 287 $ 3,021 $ 47
The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidfof securities available for sale at DecemberZl 3:
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Fair Value Gains Losses
(In thousands

Corporate $ 100,36: $ 101,71 $ 2,31€ $ 967
Municipals 127,96 123,42 93 4,637
Mutual funds 21,56 21,56 - -
Other 18,16( 14,93t - 3,22¢

Total other securitie 268,05+ 261,63¢ 2,40¢ 8,82¢
REMIC and CMC 494,98: 489,67( 6,51¢€ 11,83(
GNMA 38,97 40,87 2,32¢ 42E
FNMA 217,61! 212,32: 2,23: 7,52¢€
FHLMC 13,297 13,29( 22€ 23¢

Total mortgag-backed securitie 764,87( 756,15t 11,30( 20,01«

Total securities available for se $ 1,032,92. $ 1,017,790 $ 13,70¢ $ 28,84

Mortgage-backed securities shown in the table alimlade two private issue collateralized mortgabégations (“CMO”) that are collateralized by commercial
estate mortgages with an amortized cost and meaka¢ of $13.9 million at December 31, 2013.
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The following table shows the Company’s availalolesfale securities with gross unrealized lossedlaidfair value, aggregated by category and legtime that
individual securities have been in a continuougalized loss position, at December 31, 2013.

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealizec Unrealizec Unrealizec
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands

Corporate $ 39,03: $ 97 $ 39,03: $ 967 $ - $ =
Municipals 100,87! 4,637 95,95¢ 4,187 4,917 45C
Other 6,337 3,22t - - 6,337 3,22t
Total other securitie 146,24! 8,82¢ 134,99: 5,15¢ 11,25¢ 3,67¢
REMIC and CMC 298,16! 11,83( 279,74 10,65( 18,42: 1,18(
GNMA 9,21: 42E 9,21: 42E - -
FNMA 139,99¢ 7,52¢ 131,24¢ 6,65 8,751 872
FHLMC 7,47¢ 233 7,47¢ 23E - -
Total mortgag-backed securitie 454,85! 20,01« 427,68 17,96 27,17 2,052
Total securities available for se $ 601,100 $ 28,84: $ 562,67 $ 23,11¢ $ 38,427 $ 5,721

Corporate:

The unrealized losses in Corporate securities aeber 31, 2013 consisted of losses on four Copeeturities. The unrealized losses were causedobgments i
interest rates. It was not anticipated that theseirsties would be settled at a price that was fleas the amortized cost of the Companiyivestment. Each of the
securities was performing according to its termd, &m the opinion of management, would continug@edorm according to its terms. The Company didhreote th
intent to sell these securities and it was morelyikhan not the Company would not be requiredetbtee securities before recovery of the secwit@nortized co:
basis. This conclusion was based upon considenm@bmpanys cash and working capital requirements and cani@hand regulatory obligations, none of which
Company believed would cause the sale of the gesurTherefore, the Company did not consider thmsestments to be other-théemporarily impaired at Decemt
31, 2013.

Municipal Securities:

The unrealized losses in Municipal securities atébager 31, 2013, consisted of losses on 33 munisglrities. The unrealized losses were causedoygments i
interest rates. It was not anticipated that theseirsties would be settled at a price that was fleas the amortized cost of the Companiyivestment. Each of the
securities was performing according to its termd, am the opinion of management, would continu@edorm according to its terms. The Company didrote th
intent to sell these securities and it was morelyikhan not the Company would not be requiredetbthe securities before recovery of the secuwitinortized co
basis. This conclusion was based upon considenm@bmpanys cash and working capital requirements and cawi@hand regulatory obligations, none of which
Company believed would cause the sale of the gesurTherefore, the Company did not consider thmsestments to be other-théemporarily impaired at Decemt
31, 2013.

Other Securities:

The unrealized losses in Other Securities at Deeelb, 2013, consisted of losses on one singleigsust preferred security and two pooled trusfgred securitie
The unrealized losses on such securities were daoganarket interest volatility, a significant widag of credit spreads across markets for theserises an
illiquidity and uncertainty in the financial markefThese securities were rated below investmewnlegiehe pooled trust preferred securities did meehcollateral thi
was subordinate to the classes the Company own Cbngpanys management evaluated these securities using airiment model, through an independent !
party, that was applied to debt securities. Imeasting OTTI losses, management considered: (1)etihgth of time and the extent to which the fairneahas been le
than amortized cost; (2) the current interest eat@éronment; (3) the financial condition and ne&&m prospects of the issuer, if applicable; andt{@ intent and abilii
of the Company to retain its investment in the séctior a period of time sufficient to allow fomg anticipated recovery in fair value. Additionalipanageme
reviewed the financial condition of each individigduer within the pooled trust preferred secwgitigll of the issuers of the underlying collatesélthe pooled tru:
preferred securities we reviewed are banks.
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For each bank, our review included the followingfpenance items of the banks:

Ratio of tangible equity to assets

Tier 1 Risk Weighted Capital

Net interest margin

Efficiency ratio for most recent two quarters

Return on average assets for most recent two gsarte

Texas Ratio (ratio of non-performing assets plise@spast due over 90 days divided by tangibletyeglus the reserve for loan losses)
Credit ratings (where applicable)

Capital issuances within the past year (where epple)

Ability to complete Federal Deposit Insurance Caogpion (“FDIC”) assisted acquisitions (where apahte)

Based on the review of the above factors, we caeduhat:
All of the performing issuers in our pools were Meglpitalized banks, and did not appear likely écclbsed by their regulators.
All of the performing issuers in our pools woulchtioue as a going concern and would not defautheir securities.

In order to estimate potential future defaults deterrals, we segregated the performing underligagers by their Texas Ratio. We then reviewedopetihg issuel
with Texas Ratios in excess of 50%. The Texas Rat®key indicator of the health of the institatiand the likelihood of failure. This ratio compaithe probler
assets of the institution to the institutisravailable capital and reserves to absorb lossgste likely to occur in these assets. Thereamasissuer in our pooled tr
preferred securities which had a Texas Ratio irsxof 50%. We assigned a 25% default rate tashier. All other issuers in our pooled trust pmefe securities h:
a Texas Ratio below 50%. We assigned a zero pedegault rate to these issuers. Our analysis adsomed that issuers currently deferring would uefaith nc
recovery, and issuers that have defaulted will havescovery.

We had an independent third party prepare a didedwash flow analysis for each of these poolest preferred securities based on the assumptisesstied abov
Other significant assumptions were: (1) two issuetaling $26.7 million would prepay in the firstarter of 2014; (2) two issuers totaling $21.5 imillwould prepa
in the second quarter of 2015; (3) senior classmddwot call the debt on their portions; and (4¢ wf the forward London Interbank Offered Rate BQR”") curve
The cash flows were discounted at the effective f@t each security.

The Company also owned a pooled trust preferredriggchat was carried under the fair value optiatere the unrealized losses are included in thesGlaate:
Statements of Income — Net gain (loss) from falugadjustments.

It was not anticipated at the time that the onglsiissuer trust preferred security and the twdembtrust preferred securities would be settled ptice that was le
than the amortized cost of the Companiyivestment. Each of these securities was perfgraccording to its terms and, in the opinion ohagement based on
review performed at December 31, 2013, would coetito perform according to its terms. The Compadyndt have the intent to sell these securitiesibmés mor:
likely than not the Company would not be requiredsell the securities before recovery of the séiestiamortized cost basis. This conclusion was based
considering the Comparg/'cash and working capital requirements and cant@heand regulatory obligations, none of which @empany believed would cause
sale of the securities. Therefore, the Companyndicconsider the one single issuer trust prefesesairity and the two pooled trust preferred seesrib be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2013.
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7. Bank Premises and Equipment, Net

Bank premises and equipment are as follows at DeeeB1:

2014 2013
(In thousands
Land $ 3,551 $ 3,551
Building and leasehold improvemel 25,717 22,46¢
Equipment and furnitur 19,197 18,21¢
Total 48,46: 44,23:
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza 26,597 23,87¢
Bank premises and equipment, $ 21,86¢ $ 20,35¢
8. Deposits
Total deposits at December 31, 2014 and 2013,lend/eighted average rate on deposits at Decemb@034, are as follows:
Weighted
Average
Rate
2014 2013 2014

(Dollars in thousands
Interes-bearing deposits

Certificate of deposit accour $ 1,305,822 $ 1,120,95! 1.65%
Savings accouni 261,94: 265,00 0.3¢
Money market accoun 290,26: 199,90° 0.3z
NOW accountt 1,359,05 1,416,77. 0.4¢
Total interes-bearing deposit 3,217,08! 3,002,63!
Nor-interest bearing demand depo: 255,83: 197,34:
Total due to depositol 3,472,91! 3,199,98:
Mortgagors' escrow depos 35,67¢ 32,79¢ 0.0¢
Total deposit: $ 3,508,591 $ 3,232,78

The aggregate amount of time deposits with denainimaof $250,000 or more (excluding brokered dépassued in $1,000.00 amounts under a masteficaie of
deposit) was $109.6 million and $75.6 million atcBmber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The aggegaount of brokered deposits was $763.9 millioth $517 .-
million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively

Deposits obtained from the governmental divisica @ollateralized by either securities or lettersmefdit issued by FHLBNY or are placed in an Insured Cash Sv
service (“ICS”). The letters of credit are coll@iézed by mortgage loans pledged by the Bank.

At December 31, 2014, government deposits tota88d $ million, of which $94.0 million were ICS degits and $797.9 million were collateralized by $37@illion

in securities and $499.1 million of letters of atedt December 31, 2013, there were $407.4 milliorsecurities and $517.8 million of letters of ditepledged &
collateral for $867.1 million in government depssit
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Interest expense on deposits is summarized asv@lior the years ended December 31:

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands
Certificate of deposit accour $ 22,42(  $ 24,41  $ 32,98:
Savings account 597 51E 68¢
Money market accoun 667 294 39¢
NOW account: 6,221 6,771 6,27¢
Total due to depositol 29,91 32,00( 40,34¢
Mortgagors' escrow depos 138 37 36
Total interest expense on depo $ 30,04« $ 32,030 $ 40,38:

Scheduled remaining maturities of certificate gbagt accounts are summarized as follows for tleesyended December 31:

Within 12 months

More than 12 months to 24 moni
More than 24 months to 36 moni
More than 36 months to 48 moni
More than 48 months to 60 moni
More than 60 month

Total certificate of deposit accour
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2014 2013

(In thousands
$ 45529¢ $  459,01¢

269,84( 318,21!
229,93: 158,05(
176,87¢ 51,50¢
148,42: 108,48¢

25,45, 25,67,

$ 1,30582° $ 1,120,95!




9. Borrowed Funds and Securities Sold Under Agreemés to Repurchase

Borrowed funds and securities sold under agreentemepurchase are summarized as follows at Dece8ibe

2014 2013
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate

(Dollars in thousands

Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate:

Due in 201¢ $ - % $ 9,30( 1.27%
Due in 201¢€ 38,00( 1.92 68,00( 3.27
Due in 2017 38,00( 4.1€ 38,00( 4.1€
Due in 202(C 40,00( 3.4F 40,00( 3.4F
Total repurchase agreeme- fixed rate 116,00( 3.1¢ 155,30( 3.41
FHLB-NY advance:- fixed rate:
Due in 201¢ - - 89,50( 0.62
Due in 201& 185,55: 0.8C 166,73. 1.21
Due in 201€ 315,84 1.1¢ 331,06: 1.2¢
Due in 2017 305,52! 2.1z 174,16( 2.7¢
Due in 201¢ 74,79¢ 1.2¢ 65,79¢ 1.2¢
Due in 201¢ 30,00( 1.82 - -
Total FHLE-NY advance:- fixed rate 911,72: 1.44 827,25 1.4¢
Junior subordinated debentu- adjustable rat
Due in 2037 28,77 5.9¢ 29,57( 5.67
Total borrowings $ 1,056,49; 1.7°% $ 1,012,122 1.9(%

During 2014, $66.9 million in long-term FHLRY advances at an average cost of 2.98% and $30i0min repurchase agreements at an averageod@sb8% wer
prepaid while incurring a prepayment penalty tog$5.2 million.
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Borrowings which have call provisions are summatias follows at December 31, 2014:

Amount Rate Maturity Date Call Date
(Dollars in thousands
FHLB-NY advance« fixed rate $ 20,00( 4.4%% 10/10/201 1/9/201*
FHLB-NY advance+ fixed rate 30,00( 4.6( 10/10/201 1/9/201¢
FHLB-NY advance: fixed rate 10,00( 4.1z 9/18/201 3/17/201!
FHLB-NY advance+ fixed rate 10,00( 4.3z 9/18/201 3/17/201!
FHLB-NY advance« fixed rate 10,00¢( 4.1F 9/18/201° 3/18/201!
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 20,00( 2.2C 7/12/2011 1/12/201!
Repurchase agreeme- fixed rate 18,00( 4.2¢ 10/18/201 1/20/201!
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 18,00( 1.6C 4/19/2011 1/20/201!
Repurchase agreeme- fixed rate 20,00( 4.0t 9/19/201 3/19/201!
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 10,00( 3.0¢ 8/1/202( 2/1/201¢
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 10,00( 3.1¢ 2/1/202( 2/1/201¢
Repurchase agreeme- fixed rate 20,00( 3.7¢ 8/1/202( 2/1/201¢

As part of the Company'’s strategy to finance investt opportunities and manage its cost of fundsQbmpany enters into repurchase agreements vakiebdealer
and the FHLB-NY.

These agreements are recorded as financing tréovsaend the obligations to repurchase are refieetea liability in the consolidated financial staents. Th
securities underlying the agreements were deliverélde broker-dealers or the FHLNBY who arranged the transaction. The securitiesaremegistered in the name
the Company and are returned upon the maturithefgreement. The Company retains the right oftisutisn of collateral throughout the terms of thgreement
All the repurchase agreements are collateralizethbstgagebacked securities. Information relating to theseeagients at or for the years ended December 3¢
follows:

2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands
Book value of collatere $ 14292¢ $ 199,44 $ 228,62(
Estimated fair value of collater 142,92! 199,44 228,62
Average balance of outstanding agreements durggeht 137,82 172,94 185,30(
Maximum balance of outstanding agreements at a nerdduring the yea 155,30( 185,30( 185,30(
Average interest rate of outstanding agreementagltine yea(®) 5.31% 3.42% 3.62%

1. As discussed above, during the year ended DeceBiher014, the Company prepaid $30.0 million in FI-NY repurchase agreements at an average cost 6#4u@8le incurring a prepayme
penalty totaling $2.7 million. Excluding the prgpzent penalty, the average interest rate of agrenuiiring the year ended December 31, 2014 was@

Pursuant to a blanket collateral agreement withRtHeB-NY, advances are secured by all of the Baskéxk in the FHLBNY and certain qualifying mortgage lo:
in an amount at least equal to 110% of the advaogtsanding. The Bank may also pledge mortgagkdahand mortgageelated securities, and other securities
otherwise pledged.

The Holding Company has three trusts formed uniderldaws of the State of Delaware for the purposessfing capital and common securities, and inmgstine
proceeds thereof in junior subordinated debentoféke Holding Company. Each of these trusts issk2@6 million of securities which had a fixeate for the firs
five years, after which they reset quarterly basaeda spread over Bonth LIBOR. The securities were first callablepatr after five years, and pay cumula
dividends. The Holding Company has guaranteed &yenpnt of these trustebligations under their capital securities. Thenof the junior subordinated debenti
are the same as those of the capital securitiaedsBy the trusts. The junior subordinated debestigsued by the Holding Company are carried atvidue in th
consolidated financial statements.
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The table below shows the terms of the securisigsed by the trusts.

Flushing Financia
Capital Trust Il

Flushing Financia
Capital Trust Il

Flushing Financia
Capital Trust IV

Issue Date June 20, 20C
Initial Rate 7.1&%
First Reset Dat September 1, 20:
Spread over-month LIBOR 1.41%
Maturity Date September 1, 20:

June 21, 20C

6.8%%

June 15, 201

1.44%

September 15, 20:

July 3, 200
6.85%

July 30,201
1.42%

July 30, 203

The consolidated financial statements do not ireling securities issued by the trusts, but ratt@ude the junior subordinated debentures of thidiHg Company.

10. Income Taxes

Flushing Financial Corporation files consolidatesti€ral and combined New York State and New Yorl @itome tax returns with its subsidiaries, witke #xceptio
of the trusts, which file separate Federal incomereturns as trusts, and FPFC, which files a sépdfederal income tax return as a real estatestimest trus
Additionally, the Bank files New Jersey State taturns. The Company remains subject to examinétioits Federal, New York State and New York Citgome ta
returns for the years ending on or after Decemfie2811. The Bank remains subject to examinatiorité New Jersey income tax returns for the yeading on ¢
after December 31, 2011. During the three yearg@mecember 31, 2014, the Company did not recogmyematerial amounts of interest or penaltiesrmonine

taxes.

Income tax provisions are summarized as followgHeryears ended December 31:

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands
Federal:
Current $ 18,05: $ 17,80¢ $ 17,33(
Deferred 2,86( (464) (590
Total federal tax provisio 20,91: 17,34« 16,74(
State and Loca
Current 6,36¢ 5,82¢ 5,321
Deferred 1,292 (21€) (214
Total state and local tax provisi 7,661 5,612 5,107
Total income tax provisio $ 2857 $ 22,95t $ 21,84°
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The income tax provision in the Consolidated Statets of Income has been provided at effective raft@9.2%, 37.8% and 38.9% for the years ended Dbee 31
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The effectitesrdiffer from the statutory federal income tateras follows for the years ended December 31:

2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands
Taxes at federal statutory rz $ 25,48¢ 35.(% $ 21,24¢ 35.(% $ 19,66: 35.(%
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting frc
State and local income tax, net of Fedincome tax benef 4,98( 6.8 3,64¢ 6.C 3,32( 5.¢
Other (1,89) (2.6) (1,940 (3.2 (1,139 (2.0
Taxes at effective ra $ 28,57: 39.2% $ 22,95¢ 37.€% $ 21,847 38.9%

The components of the income taxes attributabiedome from operations and changes in equity afel@svs for the years ended December 31:

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands

Income from operatior $ 28,57 $ 22,95¢ $ 21,84
Equity:

Change in fair value of securities available fde: 9,20( (21,309 5,571

Current year actuarial gains (losses) of postmegm plans (2,880) 2,527 (340)

Amortization of net actuarial losses and prior m@Encredits (313) 521 43€

Compensation expense for tax purposes in (exceds3othan that recognized for financial

reporting purposes (84€) (443) 303
Total income taxe $ 33,73t $ 425: $ 27,82:
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The components of the net deferred tax assetsliied) are as follows at December 31:

2014 2013
(In thousands

Deferred tax asse

Postretirement benefi $ 5407 $ 4,88(
Allowance for loan losse 11,007 13,89¢
Stock based compensati 2,821 2,32z
Depreciatior 1,74C 1,40(
Unrealized loss on securities available for : - 6,612
Fair value adjustment on financial assets caat fair value - 2,47(
Derivative financial instrumen 1,02t -
Otherthar-temporary impairment charg - 1,58
Adjustment required to recognize funded statLpostretirement pension pla 4,787 2,21¢
Other 3,02¢ 2,33¢
Deferred tax ass 29,81( 37,717
Deferred tax liability:
Valuation differences resulting from acquilassets and liabilitie 2,76¢ 2,80t
Fair value adjustment on financial assets caat fair value 132 -
Fair value adjustment on financial liabilities ¢adrat fair value 14,48( 14,91(
Unrealized gains on securities available for : 2,58¢ -
Other 2,52k 1,89¢
Deferred tax liability 22,48¢ 19,61:
Net deferred tax asset included in other as $ 7,321 % 18,10«

The Company has recorded a deferred tax asset9d8 $#llion. This represents the anticipated neefal, state and local tax benefits expected teehkzed in futur
years upon the utilization of the underlying tatxiltites comprising this balance. The Company bperted taxable income for federal, state, and kasapurposes

each of the past three years. In management’'saypim view of the Compang’previous, current and projected future earningsdt the probability that some of
Companys $22.5 million deferred tax liability can be ugedffset a portion of the deferred tax asset, ek & certain tax planning strategies, it is mikely than no
that the deferred tax asset will be fully realizé:cordingly, no valuation allowance was deemetkssary for the deferred tax asset at Decemb&03¥4, and 2013.

The Company does not have uncertain tax positivatsare deemed material. The Comparpplicy is to recognize interest and penaltiesneome taxes in operati
expenses. During the three years ended Decemb2034, the Company did not recognize any matenelunts of interest or penalties on income taxes.

11. Stock Based Compensation

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 arl th@1Companyg net income, as reported, includes $4.3 millid4$nillion and $3.3 million, respectively,
stock-based compensation costs and $1.7 millior3 @dllion and $1.3 million, respectively, of incentax benefits related to the stock-based compensatlans.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock optiosing the Blacischoles valuation model. Key assumptions used tima&® the fair value of stock optic
include the exercise price of the award, the exguediption term, the expected volatility of the Camy's stock price, the risk-free interest rate ower options’
expected term and the annual dividend yield. Then@my uses the fair value of the common stock erdtite of award to measure compensation cost $triatec
stock unit awards. Compensation cost is recognizet the vesting period of the award using theigiitdine method. There were no stock options grarfor the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. Weeee266,895, 246,045 and 230,675 restricted siaitk granted for the years ended December 314, 2301
and 2012, respectively.

117




The 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“2014 Omnibus 'Blarcame effective on May 20, 2014 after adoptiorhieyBoard of Directors and approval by the stockés
The 2014 Omnibus Plan authorizes the Compensationn@ittee of the Company’s Board of Directors (ti@ofpensation Committeetp grant a variety of equi
compensation awards as well as Iagegn and annual cash incentive awards, all of whenh, but need not, be structured so as to comipty Section 162(m) of tf
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (therflat Revenue Code”)The 2014 Omnibus Plan authorizes the issuancel6000 shares. To the extent the
award under the 2014 Omnibus Plan is cancelledyexkpforfeited, settled in cash, settled by isseanf fewer shares than the number underlying therdy o
otherwise terminated without delivery of shares tparticipant in payment of the exercise priceages relating to an award, the shares retained bgtarned to th
Company will be available for future issuance untther 2014 Omnibus Plan. No further awards may betgd under the Compasy2005 Omnibus Incentive Pl
1996 Stock Option Incentive Plan, and 1996 Restli@tock Incentive Plan. At December 31, 2014 ethregre 1,097,200 shares available for deliveryoimectiol
with awards under the 2014 Omnibus Plan. To satigfgk option exercises or fund restricted stoal @estricted stock unit awards, shares are issued freasur
stock, if available; otherwise new shares are @slihe exercise price per share of a stock optiantgnay not be less than the fair market valuga@fcommon stoc
of the Company, as defined in the Omnibus Planthendate of grant and may not be re-priced withbeatapproval of the Comparsystockholders. Options, stc
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restrictegtls units and other stock based awards grantedruhé Omnibus Plan are generally subject to armim vestin
period of three years with stock options havinglaydar maximum contractual term. Other awards dohawe a contractual term of expiration. The Comptéons
Committee is authorized to grant awards that vpehua participant’s retirement. These amountsraieided in stocksased compensation expense at the time «
participant’s retirement eligibility.

The following table summarizes the Company’s retd stock unit (“‘RSU"awards under the 2014 Omnibus Plan and the PrarsAh the aggregate for the y
ended December 31, 2014:

Weightec-Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonr-vested at December 31, 2C 346,58 $ 14.0¢
Grantec 266,89! 20.1%
Vested (220,867) 16.8(
Forfeited (19,467 15.5¢
Non-vested at December 31, 2C 373,15 $ 16.7%
Vested but unissued at December 31, 2 233,83t $ 16.9:

As of December 31, 2014, there was $4.3 milliototél unrecognized compensation cost related to B8&rds granted under the 2014 Omnibus Plan anBrtbt
Plans. That cost is expected to be recognizedawaightedaverage period of 3.1 years. The total fair valilawards vested for the years ended December03¥,
2013 and 2012 were $4.4 million, $2.9 million ar8i3million, respectively. The vested but uniss®&1J) awards consist of awards made to employeesliegtor:
who are eligible for retirement. According to tleems of these awards, which provide for vestingnupetirement, these employees and directors haveskaoof
forfeiture. These shares will be issued at theioal contractual vesting and settlement dates.oA®ecember 31, 2014, there is no remaining unneiceg
compensation cost related to stock options granted.
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The following table summarizes certain informatregarding the stock option awards under the Omnitdas and the Prior Plans in the aggregate foyéae ende
December 31, 2014:

Weighte(- Weightec-Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise Contractual Value
Shares Price (years) $(000) *
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 306,63( $ 16.0z
Granted - -
Exercisec (150,119 16.8:
Forfeited (1,600 19.37%
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 154,91 $ 15.1¢ 32 $ 787
Exercisable shares at December 31, 2 154,91 $ 15.1¢ 32 $ 787

* The intrinsic value of a stock option is the diftnce between the market value of the underlytimgksand the exercise price of the option.

Cash proceeds, fair value received, tax benefits,istrinsic value related to stock options exedjsand the weighted average grant date fair valueptions grante:
during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012@h2i are provided in the following table:

(In thousands, except grant date fair val 2014 2013 2012

Proceeds from stock options exerci $ 56 $ 53: $ 88t
Fair value of shares received upon exercise oksiptions 1,962 6,81¢ 90¢&
Tax benefit related to stock options exerci 88 151 56
Intrinsic value of stock options exercis 48¢ 1,22¢ 25€
Weighted average fair value on grant c n/e n/e n/e

Phantom Stock PlarThe Company maintains a nguoalified phantom stock plan as a supplement tprit§it sharing plan for officers who have achietkd level o
Senior Vice President and above and completed eaeof service. However, officers who had achieaelgast the level of Vice President and completsel year ¢
service prior to January 1, 2009 remain eligibleg#aticipate in the phantom stock plan. Awardsraegle under this plan on certain compensation ligible for
awards made under the profit sharing plan, duén¢otérms of the profit sharing plan and the InteRevenue Code. Employees receive awards undeiptar
proportionate to the amount they would have reckiveder the profit sharing plan, but for limits ioged by the profit sharing plan and the InternaléRee Code. Tt
awards are made as cash awards, and then cont@dethmon stock equivalents (phantom shares) ahtre current market value of the Compangdbmmon stoc
Dividends are credited to each emplogeatcount in the form of additional phantom shaigsh time the Company pays a dividend on its comstack. In the eve
of a change of control (as defined in this plan)eeployees interest is converted to a fixed dollar amount deemed to be invested in the same manner astéiss
in the Bank’s norgualified deferred compensation plan. Employees weder this plan 20% per year for 5 years. Empsya@so become 100% vested upon a ct
of control. Employees receive their vested inteieshis plan in the form of a cash lump sum paynwerinstallments, as elected by the employeer &tenination ¢
employment. The Company adjusts its liability untheés plan to the fair value of the shares at tie @& each period.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s Phantock Plan at or for the year ended Decembe?®14:

Phantom Stock Pla Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 59,32 $ 20.7(C
Grantec 9,631 19.8¢
Forfeited (56) 19.7:
Distributions (1,789 19.6(
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 67,11. $ 20.2i
Vested at December 31, 20 66,99¢ $ 20.27

The Company recorded stoblsed compensation expense for the phantom staokopi$17,000, $343,000 and $155,000 for the yerstded December 31, 2014, 2
and 2012, respectively. The total fair value otriisitions from the phantom stock plan were $35,88000 and $12,000 for the years ended Decenthe2(@.4
2013 and 2012, respectively.

12. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The amounts recognized in accumulated other corepsife income, on a pre-tax basis, consist ofdlewing, as of December 31:

Net Actuarial Prior Service
loss (gain’ cost (credit) Total
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
(In thousands
Employee Retirement Pl $ 9,93¢ % 589¢ $ 11,84! $ - % - $ - 9 9,93¢ $ 589¢ $ 11,84:
Other Postretirement Bene
Plans 2,13( 20t 1,19¢ (629) (70¢) (794) 1,507 (509) 40E
Outside Directors Pla (48€) (49€) (409) 131 171 21C (357) (325) (199
Total $ 11580 $ 5606 $ 12,63 $ (492) $ (537) % (584) $ 11,08 $ 5,071 $ 12,04¢

Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive incanfetrecognized as components of net periodic esepfam these plans in 2014 are as follows:

Net Actuarial Prior Service
loss (gain’ cost (credit) Total
(In thousands
Employee Retirement Pl $ 1,162 $ - $ 1,162
Other Postretirement Benefit Ple 11¢ (85) 34
Outside Directors Pla (56) 40 (16)
$ 1,228 $ (45 $ 1,18(C

Employee Retirement Plan:

The Bank has a funded noncontributory defined benstirement plan covering substantially all of galaried employees who were hired before Septefn00!
(the “Retirement Plan”). The benefits are basedemrs of service and the employeebmpensation during the three consecutive yaarsfahe final ten years
service, which was completed prior to Septembe2806, the date the Retirement Plan was frozeh ptioaluces the highest average. The Barfikhding policy is t
contribute annually the amount recommended by #te@dnent Plan’s actuary. The Bank's Retirement Riaests in diversified equity and fixégeome funds, whic
are independently managed by a third party. Thegmy did not make a contribution to the Retirenf®flah during the year ended December 31, 2014. Dinep@ny
contributed $0.8 million and $0.7 million to thetRement Plan during the years ended December@Ii3 and 2012, respectively. The Company used arbleee3:
measurement date for the Retirement Plan.
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The following table sets forth, for the Retirem®@tan, the change in benefit obligation and asseis for the Company, the amounts recognized ilCthesolidated

Statements of Financial Condition at December 31:

Change in benefit obligatio
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y
Service cos
Interest cos
Actuarial (gains) los
Benefits paid

Projected benefit obligation at end of y:

Change in plan asse
Market value of assets at beginning of y
Actual return on plan asse
Employer contribution
Benefits paic
Market value of plan assets at end of y

Accrued pension (liability) prepaid included in etHliabilities) asset
Assumptions used to determine the Retirement Plzenigfit obligations are as follows at December 31:
Weighted average discount ri

Rate of increase in future compensation le
Expected lon-term rate of return on assi

2014 2013
(In thousands
19,74C  $ 22,53:
891 827
4,44¢ (2,48%)
(980 (1,139
24,09' 19,74(
20,49¢ 17,30(
993 3,49¢
- 831
(980 (1,139
20,50¢ 20,49¢
(3589 $ 75€
2014 2013
3.7¢% 4.6(%
n/e n/e
7.5(% 7.5(%

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Retirabf@an was $24.1 million and $19.7 million at Deder 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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The components of the net pension expense for ¢ieefent Plan are as follows for the years endeckbber 31:

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands
Service cos $ -8 -8 =
Interest cos 891 827 87¢
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 75¢ 1,222 1,032
Expected return on plan assets (1,349 (1,267 (1,257
Net pension expense (bene 30¢€ 78€ 654
Current year actuarial (gain) lo 4,79¢ (4,727) 652
Amortization of actuarial los (759 (1,222) (1,032)
Total recognized in other comprehensive inct 4,03¢ (5,949 (380
Total recognized in net pension cost (benefit) ateércomprehensive incorr $ 4,348 $ (5,15¢) $ 274
Assumptions used to develop periodic pension arshe Retirement Plan for the years ended DeceBibarere:
2014 2013 2012
Weighted average discount ri 4.6(% 3.75% 4.25%
Rate of increase in future compensation le n/e n/e n/e
Expected lon-term rate of return on assi 7.5(% 7.5(% 7.5(%

The following benefit payments, which reflect exjgecfuture service, are expected to be paid byR#éteement Plan:

Future Benefi

For the years ending December Payment:
(In thousands

2015 $ 1,094
2016 1,14¢
2017 1,161
2018 1,161
2019 1,181
2020- 2024 6,49(

The long-term rate-of-return-amssets assumption was set based on historicahsetarned by equities and fixed income securiéidgisted to reflect expectations
future returns as applied to the plan's targetation of asset classes. Equities and fixed inceacerities were assumed to earn real rates ofrétuthe ranges of 8-
10% and 3-5%, respectively. When these overaltmegMpectations are applied to the plans targetation, the result is an expected rate returrppf@aimately 8%.

The Retirement Plan’s weighted average asset #ilbosaat December 31, by asset category, were:
2014 2013

Equity securities 68% 69%
Debt securitie: 32% 31%
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Plan assets are invested in a diversified mix @fkseind bond investment funds on the pooled ac¢cguatip annuity platform of Prudential Retiremesat\ices. Eac
fund has its own investment objectives, investnsénategies and risks as detailed in its prospectus.

The long-term investment objectives are to maingdam assets at a level that will sufficiently col@ng-term obligations and to generate a return on péseta thi
will meet or exceed the rate at which lowgm obligations will grow. A combination of equignd fixed income portfolios are used to help aghithese objectivi
based on a longerm, liability based strategic mix of 60% equitasl 40% fixed income. Adjustments to this mix mu@de periodically based on current capital mi
conditions and plan funding levels. Performancthefinvestment fund managers is monitored on awmiogdasis using modern portfolio risk analysis apgropriat
index benchmarks.

The Bank does not expect to make a contributidghédRetirement Plan in 2015.

Pooled Separate Accounts (Level 2) Valued as determined by the investmentaganand is based on the value of the underlyingtaseld at December 31, 2
and 2013.

The following table sets forth the employee pengilam’s assets that are carried at fair value thadnethod that was used to determine their fdireyaat December
31, 2014:

Quoted Price Significant Significant
in Active Other Other
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(In thousands
Pooled Separate Account

U.S. larg-cap growth (a $ 483 $ - $ 4,83 $ -
U.S. larg-cap value (b 4,93¢ - 4,93¢ -
U.S. sma-cap blend (c 2,16: - 2,16: -
International blend (c 1,96€ - 1,96¢€ -
Bond fund (e 6,27 - 6,27 -
Prudential short term ( 33t - 33t -
Total $ 20,50¢ $ - $ 20,50¢ $ =

a. Comprised of larc-cap stocks seeking to outperform, over the longntéhe Russell 1000 Growth Index. The portfolid wipically hold between 55 al
70 stocks

b. Comprised of larc-cap stocks seeking to outperform the Russell ® Value benchmark over the rolling three and fiverygexiods, or a full market cyc
whichever is longel

c. Comprised of stocks with market capitalization efvbeen $100 million and the market capitalizatibrihe largest stock in the Russell 2000 index &

time of purchase. The portfolio will typically lbbetween 40 and 100 stoc

Comprised of nc-U.S. domiciled stocks. The portfolio will typicglhold between 80 and 90 stoc

e. Comprised of a portfolio of fixed income securitiesluding U.S agency mortge-backed securities and investment grade bc

Comprised of money market instruments with an emsighan safety and liquidit

o leN
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The following table sets forth the employee pengilam’s assets that are carried at fair value,thadnethod that was used to determine their fdireyaat December

31, 2013:

Quoted Price Significant Significant
in Active Other Other
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(In thousands

Pooled Separate Account

U.S. larg-cap growth (a $ 4,60¢ $ - % 4,60¢ $ -
U.S. larg-cap value (b 4,62t - 4,62t -
U.S. sma-cap blend (c 2,53¢ - 2,53¢ -
International blend (c 2,33¢ - 2,33¢ -
Bond fund (e 5,99: - 5,99: -
Prudential short term ( 397 - 397 -
Total $ 20,49¢ $ - $ 20,49t $ =
a. Comprised of larc-cap stocks seeking to outperform, over the longntéhe Russell 1000 Growth Index. The portfolid wipically hold between 55 al
70 stocks
b. Comprised of larc-cap stocks seeking to outperform the Russell ® Value benchmark over the rolling three and fiverygexiods, or a full market cyc
whichever is longel
c. Comprised of stocks with market capitalization efvbeen $100 million and the market capitalizatibrihe largest stock in the Russell 2000 index &
time of purchase. The portfolio will typically libbetween 40 and 100 stoc
d. Comprised of nc-U.S. domiciled stocks. The portfolio will typicalhold between 80 and 90 stoc
e. Comprised of a portfolio of fixed income securitiesluding U.S agency mortge-backed securities and investment grade bc

f.

Comprised of money market instruments with an ersighan safety and liquidit

Other Postretirement Benefit Plans:
The Company sponsors two unfunded postretiremargfliglans (the “Postretirement Plans”) that coai¢rretirees who were futime permanent employees witt

least five

years of service, and their spousesdiffe January 1, 2012, the Postretirement Plamsarlonger available for new hires. One plan mlesimedic:

benefits through a 50% cost sharing arrangemeiféctife January 1, 2000, the spouses of futureeesiwere required to pay 100% of the premiumstHei

coverage.

The other plan provides life insurangeebis and is noncontributory. Effective Januan2Q10, life insurance benefits are not availablefddure retiree:

Under these programs, eligible retirees receivetifife medical and life insurance coverage for thedwes and lifetime medical coverage for their spsusThi
Company reserves the right to amend or termin&setplans at its discretion.

Comprehensive medical plan benefits equal the leggtbe normal plan benefit or the total amount paid by Medicare. Life insurance benefits forrests are bas
on annual compensation and age at retirement. Aeoémber 31, 2014, the Company has not fundee& thless. The Company used a December 31 measu
date for these plans.
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The following table sets forth, for the Postretism Plans, the change in benefit
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition etddnber 31:

Change in benefit obligatio
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y
Service cos
Interest cos
Actuarial loss (gain
Benefits paid

Projected benefit obligation at end of y:

Change in plan asse
Market value of assets at beginning of y
Employer contribution
Benefits paic

Market value of plan assets at end of y

Accrued pension cost included in other liabilities

obligation ancttassand for the Company, the amounts recognizethe

2014 2013
(In thousands
$ 5586 $ 5,927
35¢ 44¢
258 21¢
1,92t (943)
(49 (66)
8,07: 5,58¢€
49 66
(49 (66)
$ (8,079 $ (5,586

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Poseetent Plans was $8.1 million and $5.6 million acBmber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Assumptions used in determining the actuarial priegglue of the accumulated postretirement beoéfigations at December 31 are as follows:

Rate of return on plan ass:
Discount rate
Rate of increase in health care cc
Initial
Ultimate (year 2018
Annual rate of salary increase for life insura

The resulting net periodic postretirement expemsesisted of the following components for the yearded December 31:

Service cos
Interest cos
Amortization of unrecognized lo:
Amortization of past service cret

Net postretirement benefit exper

Current year actuarial (gain) lo
Amortization of actuarial gai
Amortization of prior service crec
Total recognized in other comprehensive inct
Total recognized in net postretirement expenseodimelk comprehensive income
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2014 2013
n/e n/e
3.7¢% 4.6(%
8.0(% 9.0(%
5.0(% 5.0(%
n/e n/e
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands
$ 35¢ % 44¢  $ 40C
258 21¢ 217
- 50 40
(85) (85) (85)
52€ 633 572
1,92t (949) 211
- (50) (40)
85 85 85
2,01( (90€) 25€
$ 2536 $ (275) $ 82¢




Assumptions used to develop periodic postretireragpénse for the Postretirement Plans for the yeraded December 31 were:

2014 2013 2012
Rate of return on plan ass: n/e n/e n/e
Discount rate 4.6(% 3.7%% 4.25%
Rate of increase in health care cc
Initial 9.0(% 10.00% 10.5(%
Ultimate (year 2018 5.0(% 5.0(% 5.5(%
Annual rate of salary increase for life insura n/e n/e n/e

The health care cost trend rate assumptions haigndicant effect on the amounts reported. A oeecpntage point change in assumed health care rtaées woul
have the following effects:

Increase Decreast
(In thousands
Effect on postretirement benefit obligati $ 168 $ (1,27))
Effect on total service and interest c 187 (137)

The Company expects to pay benefits of $181,00@witsl Postretirement Plans in 2015.
The following benefit payments under the Postreteat Plan, which reflect expected future service expected to be paid:

Future Benefi

For the years ending December 31: Payment:

(In thousands
2015 $ 181
2016 20€
2017 23z
2018 254
2019 27z
2020- 2024 1,50¢

Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company maintains a tax qualified 401(k) plamclv covers substantially all salaried employee® Whve completed one year of service. Currentipua
matching contributions under the Bank's 401(k) pgual 50% of the employee’s contributions, up toaximum of 3% of the employeetompensation. In additic
the 401(k) plan includes the Defined Contributioaetifment Plan (“DCRP”), under which the Bank ciimites an amount equal to 4% of an employesigible
compensation as defined in the plan, and the P8jfaring Plan (“PSP”), under which at the discretad the Companyg Board of Directors a contribution
made. Contributions for the DCRP and PSP are rirattee form of Company common stock at or afterehd of each year. Annual contributions under th@ae:
are subject to the limits imposed under the InteRevenue Code. Contributions by the Company ineo401(k) plan vest 20% per year over the empleyfest five
years of service. Contributions to these plans &B@% vest upon a change of control (as definethénapplicable plan). Compensation expense recdgietthe
Company for these plans amounted to $3.1 milli@? $nillion and $2.4 million for the years endedcBmber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Bank provides a nogualified deferred compensation plan as an incerftiv officers who have achieved the level of asteSenior Vice President and hav
least one year of service. However, officers whd aehieved at least the level of Vice President @mdpleted one year of service prior to Januar0D9 remai
eligible to participate in the plan. In additianthe amounts deferred by the officers, the Bantches 50% of their contributions, generally up tmaimum of 5% c
the officers’salary. Matching contributions under this plan \28% per year for five years. They also become 108%ed upon a change of control (as defined i
plan). Compensation expense recorded by the Confpatlyis plan amounted to $0.4 million for eachiué years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
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Employee Benefit Trust:

An Employee Benefit Trust (‘EBT”) has been estdidid to assist the Company in funding its benefiinpbbligations. In connection with the Savings Bank
conversion to a federal stock savings bank in 1996 EBT borrowed $7.9 million from the Company arstd $7,000 of cash received from the Savings Ba
purchase 2,328,750 shares of the common stockeofCimpany. The loan was repaid from the Compalscretionary contributions to the EBT and diwid
payments received on common stock held by the ERifing the year ended December 31, 2010, the laanfully repaid. Dividend payments received subset]tc
the loan being repaid are used to purchase addititrares of common stock. Shares purchased vétloéim proceeds are held in a suspense accourtritiibution tc
specified benefit plans. Shares released fromubpense account are used solely for funding majatontributions under the Barsk401(k) plan, contributions to 1
401(k) plan for the DCRP, and contributions to Bf&P. Since annual contributions are discretionatly the Company or dependent upon employee coiits
compensation payable under the EBT cannot be dstilmBor the years ended December 31, 2014, 201 2@k2, the Company funded $2.7 million, $2.3 millanc
$2.1 million, respectively, of employer contributioto the 401(k), DCRP and profit sharing plansiftbe EBT.

Upon a change of control (as defined in the EBAg, EBT will terminate and any trust assets remagiifter certain benefit plan contributions will distributed to a
full-time employees of the Company with at least one gkaervice, in proportion to their compensatia@mothe four most recently completed calendar yphus the
portion of the current year prior to the terminataf the EBT.

As shares are released from the suspense accher€ompany reports compensation expense equat touthent market price of the shares, and the shaeom
outstanding for earnings per share computations.BBIT shares are as follows at December 31:

2014 2013
Shares owned by Employee Benefit Trust, beginnaigrize 913,79: 1,028,56!
Shares purchast 23,717 29,16¢
Shares released and allocated (136,559 (143,94
Shares owned by Employee Benefit Trust, endingnical 800,95( 913,79.
Market value of unallocated shar $ 16,235,25 $ 18,915,49.

Outside Director Retirement Plan:

The Bank has an unfunded noncontributory defingtefieOutside Director Retirement Plan (the “Diast Plan”), which provides benefits to each norplayee
director who became a non-employee director befareiary 1, 2004, who has at least five years efcgeas a non-employee director and whose yeassrofce as a
non-employee director plus age equals or exceedB&fiefits are also payable to a non-employee twiragho became a non-employee director before Jariua
2004 and whose status as a non-employee directomgges because of death or disability or whoim®@a-employee director upon a change of controbémed in
the Directors’ Plan). Any person who became a nopleyee director after January 1, 2004 is not kl@to participate in the Directors’ Plan. Upomtération an
eligible director will be paid an annual retireménefit equal to $48,000. Such benefit will bedpiai equal monthly installments for the lesserhd humber of
months such director served as a non-employeetdirec 120 months. In the event of a terminatiorBofird service due to a change of control, a nopleyee
director who has completed at least two years nficgeas a non-employee director will receive ehdasnp sum payment equal to 120 months of berggii, a non-
employee director with less than two years of serwiill receive a cash lump sum payment equalriaraber of months of benefit equal to the numbemnohths of
his service as a non-employee director. In the teokthe director’'s death, the surviving spousd vateive the equivalent benefit. No benefits widl payable to a
director who is removed for cause. The Holding Camyphas guaranteed the payment of benefits undebittectors’ Plan. Upon adopting the Directors’'rRlthe
Bank elected to immediately recognize the effecddpting the Directors’ Plan. Subsequent plan amemts are amortized as a past service liabiling Bank used
a December 31 measurement date for the Directtan’ P
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The following table sets forth, for the DirectoRan, the change in benefit obligation and assetd,for the Company, the amounts recognized irCinesolidate
Statements of Financial Condition at December 31:

2014 2013
(In thousands

Change in benefit obligatio

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 2,666 $ 2,70€
Service cos 54 82
Interest cos 11€ 98
Actuarial gain (53 (122)
Benefits paid (120 (98)

Projected benefit obligation at end of y 2,66° 2,66¢

Change in plan asse
Market value of assets at beginning of y -
Employer contribution 12C 98
Benefits paic (120 (98)
Market value of plan assets at end of y - -

Accrued pension cost included in other liabilit $ (2,669 $ (2,66€)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Direstétlan was $2.7 million at December 31, 2014 aditi32

The components of the net pension expense for ifeetors’ Plan are as follows for the years endeddmnber 31.:

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands
Service cos 54 $ 82 $ 80
Interest cos 11€ 98 11C
Amortization of unrecognized ga (60) (36) (29
Amortization of past service liabilit 40 40 40
Net pension expense 15C 184 201
Current actuarial gai (52 (122) (44
Amortization of actuarial gai 60 36 29
Amortization of prior service co: (40 (40) (49
Total recognized in other comprehensive inct (32 (12€) (55)
Total recognized in net pension expense and comprehensive incorr $ 116 $ 58 $ 14¢€
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations@eriodic pension expense for the Directors’ Rtarthe years ended December 31 were:
2014 2013 2012
Weighted average discount rate for the benefigalilbn 3.7¢% 4.6(% 3.75%
Weighted average discount rate for periodic pens@refit expens 4.6(% 3.75% 4.25%
Rate of increase in future compensation le n/e n/e n/e
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The following benefit payments under the Directdtin, which reflect expected future service, aggeeted to be paid:

Future Benefi

For the years ending December Payment:
(In thousands

2015 $ 28¢
2016 28¢
2017 28€
2018 27z
2019 28¢
2020- 2024 1,33¢

The Company expects to make payments of $288,00€ruts Directors’ Plan in 2015.
13. Stockholders’ Equity
Dividend Restrictions on the Bank:

In connection with the Savings Baslktonversion from mutual to stock form in Novemb@85, a special liquidation account was establigtiede time of conversic
in accordance with the requirements of its primagulator, which was equal to its capital as ofe]J88, 1995. The liquidation account is reducedrasta the extel
that eligible account holders have reduced theitifying deposits. Subsequent increases in depdsitsot restore an eligible account holdenterest in the liquidatic
account. Subsequent to the Merger, the Bank assthmddjuidation account. In the event of a compliteidation of the Bank, each eligible accountdssl will be
entitled to receive a distribution from the liquida account in an amount proportionate to the entradjusted qualifying balances for accounts theld. As o
December 31, 2014, the Bank’s liquidation accoues %1.0 million, and was presented within retaieachings.

In addition to the restriction described above, Néwk State and Federal banking regulations plaseam restrictions on dividends paid by the Bamihte Holding
Company. The total amount of dividends which mayaiel at any date is generally limited to the mebme of the Bank for the current year and priar ywars, les
any dividends previously paid from those earnirfgs.of December 31, 2014, the Bank had $60.4 millionetained earnings available to distribute te Holding
Company in the form of cash dividends.

In addition, dividends paid by the Bank to the HiogdCompany would be prohibited if the effect trereould cause the Bar&'capital to be reduced below applici
minimum capital requirements.

As a bank holding company, the Holding Companywlgect to similar dividend restrictions.
Stockholder Rights Plan:

The Holding Company has adopted a Shareholder figlain under which each stockholder has one rggputchase from the Holding Company, for each sbé
common stock owned, one ohandredth of a share of Series A junior participgpreferred stock at a price of $65. The rightslveicome exercisable only if a per:
or group acquires 15% or more of the Holding Comfmoommon stock or commences a tender or exchafgevdiich, if consummated, would result in thatgme
or group owning at least 15% of the Common Stolk (acquiring person or groupn such case, all stockholders other than the aoguperson or group will t
entitled to purchase, by paying the $65 exerciggpCommon Stock (or a common stock equivalentf) wivalue of twice the exercise price. In additiat any tim
after such event, and prior to the acquisition by person or group of 50% or more of the Commorci§tthe Board of Directors may, at its option, regeac!
outstanding right (other than rights held by thguaing person or group) to be exchanged for orseslof Common Stock (or one common stock equivalding
person or group becomes an acquiring person anddliing Company is acquired in a merger or othgifess combination or sells more than 50% ofsteis ¢
earning power, each right will entitle all othedders to purchase, by payment of $65 exercise prm@mon stock of the acquiring company with a gaéitwice thi
exercise price. The rights plan expires on Septei®®e2016.
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Treasury Stock Transactions:

The Holding Company repurchased 914,671 commoresteran average cost of $19.29 during the yeadebdcember 31, 2014. The Holding Company repuec
836,092 common shares at an average cost of $#iG6ri#8) the year ended December 31, 2013. At Deee®b, 2014, 635,199 shares remain to be repurdhaste
the current stock repurchase program. Stock wilpbeehased under the current stock repurchase grogom time to time, in the open market or throygivate
transactions, subject to market conditions anchatdiscretion of the management of the CompanyrelTleno expiration or maximum dollar amount untles

authorization.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):

The following are changes in accumulated other gelmgmnsive income (loss) by component, net of @xiHe years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Unrealized Gain
and (Losses) on
Available for Sale

Defined Benefil

December 31, 201 Securities Pension ltem Total
(In thousands
Beginning balance, net of ti (8527) $ (2,859 (11,375
Other comprehensive income befreclassifications, net of te 13,54¢ (3,790 9,75¢
Amounts reclassified from accumulated otcomprehensive income, net of 1 (1,639 344 (1,290
Net current period other comprehensive incomephtx 11,91« (3,44¢) 8,46¢
Ending balance, net of t 3392 $ (6,299 (2,907
Unrealized Gain
and (Losses) on
Available for Sale Defined Benefit
December 31, 201 Securities Pension Item Total
(In thousands
Beginning balance, net of ti 18,92 $ (6,789 12,137
Other comprehensive income befreclassifications, net of te (26,547 3,261 (23,280
Amounts reclassified from accumulated otcomprehensive income, net of 1 (902) 67C (232)
Net current period other comprehensive incomephtetx (27,44 3,931 (23,517
Ending balance, net of t (8527 $ (2,859 (11,375
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The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other compreherisc@me by component for the year ended Decemhe2(BIY:

Amounts
Reclassified from
Accumulated Other
Details about Accumulated Oth Comprehensive Affected Line Item in the Stateme
Comprehensive Income Compone Income Where Net Income is Present
(Dollars in thousands

Unrealized gains (losses) on availafor sale securities $ 2,87¢ Net gain on sale of securiti
(1,247 Tax expens:
$ 1,63« Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit pension iter

Actuarial losse: $ (700) (1) Other expens
Prior service credit 45 (1) Other expens
(655) Total before tas
311 Tax benefit
$ (344) Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive income caengoare included in the computation of net pecigainsion cost (see Note 12 of the Notes to Catetelil Financial Statements “Pension and
Other Postretirement Benefit PIi").

The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other compreherisc@me by component for the year ended Decemhbe2(RI13:

Amounts
Reclassified from
Accumulated Other

Details about Accumulated Oth Comprehensive Affected Line Item in the Stateme
Comprehensive Income Compone Income Where Net Income is Present
(Dollars in thousands
Unrealized gains (losses) on availafor sale securities $ 3,021 Net gain on sale of securiti
(1,320 Tax expense
$ 1,70C Net of tax
OTTI charges $ (1,419 OTTI charge
621 Tax benefit
$ (79¢) Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit pension iten

Actuarial losse: $ (1,237 (1) Other expens
Prior service credit 4€ (1) Other expens
(1,190 Total before tas
521 Tax benefit
$ (670 Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive income caenpoare included in the computation of net pecipainsion cost (see Note 12 of the Notes to Catetelil Financial Statements “Pension and
Other Postretirement Benefit PIi").
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14. Regulatory Capital

Under current capital regulations, the Bank is imeglito comply with three separate capital adequsiagdards. As of December 31, 2014, the Bank moedsi to b
categorized as “well-capitalized” under the promgtrective action regulations and continues to edal regulatory capital requirements.

Set forth below is a summary of the Bank’'s commleawith banking regulatory capital standards.

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Percent o Percent o
Amount Assets Amount Assets

(Dollars in thousands

Tier | (leverage) capita

Capital level $ 472,25: 9.62% $ 447,30! 9.4&%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 245,25: 5.0C 235,99: 5.0C

Excess 226,99 4.65 211,31 4.4¢
Tier | risk-based capita

Capital level $ 472,25: 13.8% $ 447,30" 14.5%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 204,35: 6.0C 183,94 6.0C

Excess 267,89 7.87 263,36 8.5¢
Total risk-based capita

Capital level $ 497,34 146% $ 479,08: 15.63%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 340,58¢ 10.0C 306,57: 10.0C

Excess 156,75¢ 4.6( 172,50t 5.6
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As a result of its conversion to a bank holding pany on February 28, 2013, the Holding Company fpecsubject to the same regulatory capital requingsnas th
Bank. As of December 31, 2014, the Holding Compeomtinues to be categorized as “well-capitalizedtier the prompt corrective action regulations @mtinues t
exceed all regulatory capital requirements.

Set forth below is a summary of the Holding Compsicpmpliance with banking regulatory capital stamts.

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Percent of Percent of
Amount Assets Amount Assets

(Dollars in thousands

Tier | (leverage) capita

Capital level $ 471,23 9.62% $ 456,77. 9.7(%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 244.,96( 5.0C 235,54° 5.0C

Excess 226,27: 4.62 221,22 4.7C
Tier | risk-based capita

Capital level $ 471,23 13.81% $ 456,77. 14.9%%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 203,87¢ 6.0C 183,57¢ 6.0C

Excess 267,35! 7.817 273,19 8.92
Total risk-based capita

Capital level $ 496,32 14.61% $ 488,54¢ 15.97%

Requirement to be well capitaliz: 339,79 10.0C 305,96t 10.0C

Excess 156,53: 4.61 182,58: 5.97

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments:

The Company is a party to financial instrumentshvaff-balancesheet risk in the normal course of business to rtreeffinancing needs of its customers. Tl
financial instruments include commitments to extenedit and lines of credit. The instruments imgglto varying degrees, elements of credit and atanikks ir
excess of the amount recognized in the consolidatadcial statements.

The Companys exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperéorce by the counterparty to the financial instnoirfer loan commitments and lines of cred
represented by the contractual amounts of thesmiments.

Commitments to extend credit (principally real &stmortgage loans) and lines of credit (principallisiness lines of credit and home equity linesredlit) amounte
to $68.3 million and $190.4 million, respectivest,December 31, 2014. Included in these commitmeste $11.6 million of fixedate commitments at a weigh
average rate of 4.20% and $247.1 million of adjisteate commitments with a weighted average ratef &eoember 31, 2014, of 3.65%. Since generallyfathe
loan commitments are expected to be drawn uportpthEloan commitments approximate future cashiireqnents, whereas the amounts of lines of credit not b
indicative of the Compang’future cash requirements. The loan commitmentsradly expire in 90 days, while construction |d@es of credit mature within eighte
months and home equity lines of credit mature witiein years. The Company uses the same crediigmlit making commitments and conditional obligagias i
does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are legally bindingeagnents to lend to a customer as long as thene igolation of any condition established in thenttact
Commitments generally have fixed expiration dated equire payment of a fee. The Company evalusdeh customer’s creditworthiness on a casedsge basi
Collateral held consists primarily of real estate.

The Bank collateralized a portion of its deposifthwetters of credit issued by FHLBY. At December 31, 2014, there were $499.1 nmillaf letters of cred
outstanding. The letters of credit are collateesl by mortgage loans pledged by the Bank.
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The Trusts issued capital securities with a pauealf $61.9 million in June and July 2007. The KwdCompany has guaranteed the payment of the sTrust
obligations under these capital securities.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Coynganounced it had entered into an agreement s& lepproximately 90,000 square feet of space inrndigle
New York to serve as the Compi's new corporate headquarters. Additionally, the @amy intends to use a portion of the space to hausenk branch. The to
minimum rent due over the 12 year lease term iscqapately $24.4 million.

The Company’s minimum annual rental payments farkBaremises due under non-cancelable leases éobores:

Minimum Rental
(In thousands

Years ended December &

2015 $ 4,44(
2016 4,51z
2017 4,38:
2018 4,44¢
2019 5,33:
Thereaftel 30,68
Total minimum payments requirt $ 53,80

The leases have escalation clauses for operatpgnses and real estate taxes. Rent expense uederl¢fases for the years ended December 31, 2013 a2d 201
was approximately $3.8 million, $3.7 million and. $3nillion, respectively.

Contingencies:

The Company is a defendant in various lawsuits. iameent of the Company, after consultation with idettegal counsel, believes that the resolutiothe$e variot
matters will not result in any material adversesefffon the Company’s consolidated financial cooditresults of operations or cash flows.

16. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s lending is concentrated in the NewkY®ity metropolitan area. The Company evaluatesh eastomer’s creditworthiness on a caseséye bas
under the Company’s established underwriting pedicirhe collateral obtained by the Company genecalhsists of first liens on one-to-four family idential, multi-
family residential, and commercial real estateD&tember 31, 2014, the largest amount the Banlddent to one borrower was approximately $70.8iom|land &
that date, the Bank’s largest aggregate amouraoid to one borrower was $66.7 million, all of whweere performing according to their terms.

17. Related Party Transactions

At December 31, 2014, one loan for $27,000 wastauténg to an executive officer of the Company.sTlban was made in the ordinary course of busiardswa
fully approved in accordance with all of the Comyiancredit underwriting standards and was made dtehaates of interest and other normal terms bth véduce
origination fees. No such loans were made duririg#20he Company believes that such loans do nofievmore than the normal risk of collectabilitypesent othe
unfavorable features.

18. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company carries certain financial assets arahéial liabilities at fair value in accordancem®SC Topic 825 “Financial Instrumentahd values those financ
assets and financial liabilities in accordance W8C Topic 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disalest ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price thatld
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfebdity in an orderly transaction between markatticipants at the measurement date, establistiesrework fo
measuring fair value, and expands disclosures dagutalue measurements. ASC topic 825 permitdies to choose to measure many financial instnsean:
certain other items at fair value. At DecemberZ114, the Company carried financial assets anadiahliabilities under the fair value option withir values of $32.
million and $28.8 million, respectively. The Compaglected to measure at fair value, securities wittost of $5.0 million that were purchased duthmgyear ende
December 31, 2014. The Company did not elect toycany additional financial assets or financiabiigies under the fair value option during the yesndes
December 31, 2013. During the years ended DeceB8he2014 and 2013, the Company sold financial assatied under the fair value option totaling $&ilion
and $8.1 million, respectively.
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The following table presents the financial asseid financial liabilities reported at fair value wrdthe fair value option at December 31, 2014 abti32 and th
changes in fair value included in the Consolid&@tatement of Income Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustments, far jfears ended December 31, 2014, 201.
2012:

Changes in Fair Values For Items Meast
Fair Value Fair Value at Fair Value
Measuremen Measuremen Pursuant to Election of the Fair Value Opi
at December at December Fortheyea Fortheyear Forthe year

31, 31, endec endec endec

Decembe Decembe Decembe
Description 2014 2013 31, 2014 31, 201¢ 31, 2012
(Dollars in thousands
Mortgage-backed securitie $ 4,67¢ $ 7,11¢  $ 7% % (725 $ (539
Other securitie 27,91¢ 30,16 59¢ 241 79€
Borrowed funds 28,77: 29,57( 802 (5,657) 2,062
Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustme(®) $ 147 $ (6,135 $ 2,31¢

(1) The net gain (loss) from fair value adjustmentsspneed in the above table does not include nesgaid (losses) of ($4.0) million, $3.6 million a{§2.3’
million from the change in fair value of derivatiwestruments during the years ended December 34,2013 and 2012, respective

Included in the fair value of the financial assatsl financial liabilities selected for the fair waloption is the accrued interest receivable oablayfor the relate
instrument. The Company reports as interest incomaaterest expense in the Consolidated Statemfelitcome, the interest receivable or payable onfitencia
instruments selected for the fair value optiorhatrtrespective contractual rates.

The borrowed funds have a contractual principal@amof $61.9 million at December 31, 2014 and 2018 fair value of borrowed funds includes accrirgdres
payable of $0.1 million at December 31, 2014 anti320

The Company generally holds its earning assetgrdttan securities available for sale, to matuaitgl settles its liabilities at maturity. Howevairfvalue estimatt
are made at a specific point in time and are base@levant market information. These estimatesataeflect any premium or discount that could lesom offering
for sale at one time the Compasyéntire holdings of a particular instrument. Aclingly, as assumptions change, such as interet eatd prepayments, fair ve
estimates change and these amounts may not nelyessaealized in an immediate sale.

Disclosure of fair value does not require fair waloformation for items that do not meet the déifimi of a financial instrument or certain otherdfitial instrumen
specifically excluded from its requirements. Thigems include core deposit intangibles and othetamer relationships, premises and equipment, deasmme taxe
and equity.

Further, fair value disclosure does not attemptatioie future income or business. These items maydterial and accordingly, the fair value inforroatipresente
does not purport to represent, nor should it besitoad to represent, the underlying “market” onéfzsise value of the Company.

Financial assets and financial liabilities reportgdair value are required to be measured baseeitbar: (1) quoted prices in active markets famiical financie
instruments (Level 1); (2) significant other obsase inputs (Level 2); or (3) significant unobsdaeainputs (Level 3).

A description of the methods and significant assiong utilized in estimating the fair value of tempanys assets and liabilities that are carried at falue on .
recurring basis are as follows:

Level 1 —where quoted market prices are available in arvectiarket. The Company did not value any of itewssr liabilities that are carried at fair value &
recurring basis as Level 1 at December 31, 2012848.

Level 2 —when quoted market prices are not available, faiuer is estimated using quoted market prices foilai financial instruments and adjusted for diéflece
between the quoted instrument and the instrumenghalued. Fair value can also be estimated lrygusricing models, or discounted cash flows. iRganodel:
primarily use markebased or independently sourced market parametarpass, including, but not limited to, yield cusjanterest rates, equity or debt prices
credit spreads. In addition to observable mankfgtrination, models also incorporate maturity anshctow assumptions. At December 31, 2014 and 20&@el 2
included mortgage related securities, corporaté aeth interest rate caps/swaps.
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Level 3 —when there is limited activity or less transpareaoyund inputs to the valuation, financial instrumseare classified as Level 3. At December 31, 28ic
2013, Level 3 included municipal securities andttpreferred securities owned by and junior sulmatéid debentures issued by the Company.

The methods described above may produce fair vaihatsnay not be indicative of net realizable vadueeflective of future fair values. While the Cpamy believe
its valuation methods are appropriate and congistéh those of other market participants, the akdifferent methodologies, assumptions and motieldetermin
fair value of certain financial instruments couldguce different estimates of fair value at theorépg date.

The following table sets forth the Company's asapttliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, and the method that was usddtemine their fair
value, at December 31:

Quoted Price

in Active Markets Significant Othel Significant Othel
for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair valu
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Assets:
Securities available for sa
Mortgage-backedSecurities $ - % - $ 70493 $ 756,15t $ - % - $ 704,930 $ 756,15¢
Other securitie - - 245,76¢ 237,47¢ 22,60¢ 24,15¢ 268,37 261,63¢
Interest rate sway - - 84 2,081 - - 84 2,081
Total asset $ - 3 - $ 950,78! $ 995,710 $ 22,60¢ $ 24,15¢ $ 973,39: $1,019,87.
Liabilities:
Borrowings $ - % - 8 - 8 - $ 2877 $ 2957( $ 2877 $ 29,57(
Interest rate sway - - 2,64¢ - - - 2,64¢ -
Total liabilities $ - $ - $ 2,64¢ % - $ 2877 $ 2957C $ 3142( $ 29,57(
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The following table sets forth the Company's asaetkliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of trauation hierarchy
for the period indicated:

Trust preferrec Junior subordinate
Municipals securities debenture:

(In thousands

Beginning balanc $ 9,22: $ 14,93 $ 29,57(
Purchase 7,59t - -
Principal repayment (219 - -
Maturities (1,085 - -
Sales - (11,139 -
Net gain from fair value adjustmeof financial asset - 71 -
Net gain from fair valuadjustment of financial liabilitie - - (801)
Increase in accrued interest paye - - 2
Change in unrealized gains inclucin other comprehensive incor - 3,217 -
Ending balance $ 15,51¢  $ 7,000 $ 28,77
Changes in unrealized held at period $ - $ 3211 $ -

The following table sets forth the Company's asaetkliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of trauation hierarchy
for the period indicated:

For the year ende
December 31, 201
REMIC and Trust preferrec Junior subordinate
CMO Municipals securities debenture:
(In thousands

Beginning balanc $ 23478 $ 9,42¢ $ 6,65 $ 23,92;
Transfer into Level - - 6,12¢ -
Principal repayment (5,03¢) (20€) - -
Sales (19,979 - - -
Net gain from fair value adjustmeof financial asset - - 884 -
Net loss from fair valuadjustment of financial liabilitie - - - 5,651
Decrease in accrued interest paye - - - (©)]
Otherthar-temporary impairment charg (1,419 - - -
Change in unrealized gains (losses) incluin other

comprehensive income 2,95: - 1,27¢ -
Ending balanc $ - $ 9,22 $ 1493 $ 29,57(
Changes in unrealized held at period $ - $ - $ 1,27t $ -

During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 204 were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2.
During the year ended December 31, 2014 there meteansfers between Level 3 and Level 2.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, tranéfens Level 2 to Level 3 included one private issuest preferred security for $6.1 million. This gety was
transferred due to illiquidity and reduced pricGnsparency.
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The following table presents the quantitative infation about recurring Level 3 fair value of finadénstruments and the fair value measurement$ Becember 31,
2014:

December 31, 201. Fair Value Valuation Technigue Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(Dollars in thousands

Assets:

Municipals $ 15,51¢ Discounted cash flown Discount rate 0.2% - 4.0%(2.3%,

Trust Preferred Securiti¢ $ 7,09( Discounted cash flown Discount rate 7.0% - 7.25%(7.2%),

Liabilities:

Junior subordinated debentu $ 28,77: Discounted cash flown Discount rate 7.0% (7.0%,

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevalue measurement of the Company’s municipal rstgesi valued under Level 3 are the securitief§ective yield
Significant increases or decreases in the effegirid in isolation would result in a significantigwer or higher fair value measurement.

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevalue measurement of the Company’s trust predesexurities valued under Level 3 are the secsritffective
yield, probability of default and loss severitythre event of default. Significant increases or eéases in any of the inputs in isolation would resuk significanth
lower or higher fair value measurement.

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevalue measurement of the Companjinior subordinated Debentures are effectivedyiSignificant increases
decreases in the effective yield in isolation wodslult in a significantly lower or higher fair val measurement.

The following table sets forth the Company's asaetkliabilities that are carried at fair valueaonon-recurring basis, and the method that was tosgetermine their
fair value, at December 31:

Quoted Price

in Active Markets Significant Other Significant Other

for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair valu

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Assets:

Loans held for sal $ - $ - $ - $ - % - $ 428 $ - $ 428
Impaired loan: - - - - 22,17 23,54+ 22,17 23,54+
Other real estate ownt - - - - 6,32¢ 2,98t 6,32¢ 2,98t
Total asset $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 2850( $ 2695« $ 2850( $ 26,95«
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The following table presents the quantitative infation about nomecurring Level 3 fair value of financial instrunterand the fair value measurements ¢
December 31, 2014:

December 31, 201. Fair Value Valuation Technigue Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(Dollars in thousands
Assets:
Impaired loan: $ 6,981 Income approac Capitalization ratt 7.3% to 8.5% (7.8%)
Loss severity discoul 0.5% to 81.7% (21.3%
Adjustment to sales comparison valug
reconcile differences between comparal
Impaired loan: $ 6,93t Sales approac sales -41.5% to 40.0% (-2.2%)
Loss severity discoul 1.8% to 89.4% (20.0%
Adjustment to sales comparison valug
Blended income and sal reconcile differences between comparal
Impaired loan: $ 8,25¢ approact sales -55.0% to 25.0% (-6.1%)
Capitalization ratt 5.8% to 11.0% (8.0%)
Loss severity discoul 0.9% to 74.4% (30.0%
Other real estate ownt $ 4,76¢ Income approac Capitalization ratt 9.0% to 12.0% (9.1%)
Loss severity discoul 0.9% to 4.9% (1.0%)
Adjustment to sales comparison valug
reconcile differences between comparal
Other real estate ownt $ 587 Sales approac sales -11.9% to 15.0% (-3.5%)
Loss severity discoul 0.0% to 36.9% (9.6%)
Adjustment to sales comparison valug
Blended income and sal reconcile differences between comparal
Other real estate ownt $ 971 approact sales -25.0% to 0.0% (-8.9%)
Capitalization ratt 7.5% to 8.0% (7.7%)
Loss severity discoul 0.0% to 6.2% (3.0%)

The Company carries its Loans held for sale and @R&he expected sales price less selling costs.
The Company carries its impaired collateral depahli&ns at 85% of the appraised or internallynestéd value of the underlying property.
The Company did not have any liabilities that weaeried at fair value on a non-recurring basis eténber 31, 2014 and 2013.

The estimated fair value of each material clasinaincial instruments at December 31, 2014 and 201Bthe related methods and assumptions usedirtats fai
value are as follows:

Cash and Due from Banks, Overnight Interest-EarningDeposits and Federal Funds Sold:

The fair values of financial instruments that drersterm or reprice frequently and have littlenorrisk are considered to have a fair value thpt@pmates carrying
value (Level 1).

FHLB-NY stock:

The fair value is based upon the par value of thekswhich equals its carrying value (Level 2).
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Securities Available for Sale:

The estimated fair values of securities availablestle are contained in Note 6 of Notes to Codatéid Financial Statements. Fair value is based gpoted mark:
prices (Level 1 input), where available. If a qubtearket price is not available, fair value ismstied using quoted market prices for similar séiesrand adjusted f
differences between the quoted instrument andrisgument being valued (Level 2 input). When thierémited activity or less transparency arounduitgpto th
valuation, securities are valued using (Level ithp

Loans held for sale:

The fair value of non-performing loans held foresial estimated through bids received on the loadsas such, are classified as a Level 3 input.

Loans:

The estimated fair value of loans is estimated ibgalinting the expected future cash flows usingctiveent rates at which similar loans would be mideorrower
with similar credit ratings and remaining matustig.evel 3 input).

For non-accruing loans, fair value is generallyneated by discounting managemenéstimate of future cash flows with a discouné mmmensurate with the r
associated with such assets or for collateral digr@rioans 85% of the appraised or internally estidh value of the property (Level 3 input).

Due to Depositors:

The fair values of demand, passbook savings, NOWhay market deposits and escrow deposits are, fiyitie, equal to the amount payable on demanthe
reporting dates (i.e. their carrying value) (Let®l The fair value of fixednaturity certificates of deposits are estimatedlisgounting the expected future cash fl
using the rates currently offered for depositsimilar remaining maturities (Level 2 input).

Borrowings:

The estimated fair value of borrowings are estihdig discounting the contractual cash flows usittgrest rates in effect for borrowings with simitaaturities an
collateral requirements (Level 2 input) or usingarket-standard model (Level 3 input).

Interest Rate Caps:

The estimated fair value of interest rate capa&ed upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).
Interest Rate Swaps:

The estimated fair value of interest rate swapmged upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).
Other Real Estate Owned:

OREO are carried at fair value less selling costse fair value is based on appraised value thraughirrent appraisal, or sometimes through anriateeview
additionally adjusted by the estimated costs tbtlselproperty (Level 3 input).

Other Financial Instruments:

The fair values of commitments to sell, lend orrber are estimated using the fees currently chaoggzhid to enter into similar agreements, takirtg account th
remaining terms of the agreements and the preseditworthiness of the counterparties or on thémeged cost to terminate them or otherwise setilé the
counterparties at the reporting date. For fixa loan commitments to sell, lend or borrow, faitues also consider the difference between cutesmels of intere:
rates and committed rates (where applicable).

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the fair valuesiefabove financial instruments approximate therdembamounts of the related fees and were not deresd to b
material.
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The following table sets forth the carrying amouansl estimated fair values of selected financisfriments based on the assumptions described aisedeby th
Company in estimating fair value at December 31,420

December 31, 201

Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 34,268 $ 34,268 $ 34,268 $ - $ -
MortgagebackecSecurities 704,93: 704,93 - 704,93 -
Other securitie 268,37 268,37" - 245,76¢ 22,60¢
Loans 3,810,37. 3,871,08 - - 3,871,08
FHLB-NY stock 46,92« 46,92« - 46,92« -
Interest rate swag 84 84 - 84 -
OREO 6,32¢ 6,32¢ - - 6,32¢
Total assets $ 487128, $ 4,931,990 $ 34,26 $ 997,70¢ $ 3,900,02;
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 3,508,591 $ 3,524,12. $ 2,202,77"  $ 1,321,341 % -
Borrowings 1,056,49; 1,070,42i - 1,041,65 28,77
Interest rate swag 2,64¢ 2,64¢ - 2,64¢ -
Total liabilities $ 4567,73" $ 4,597,200 $ 2,202,77" $ 2,365,65: $ 28,77:
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The following table sets forth the carrying amouansl estimated fair values of selected financisfriments based on the assumptions described aisedeby th
Company in estimating fair value at December 31,320

December 31, 201

Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 33,48: $ 33,48 $ 33,48 $ - $ -
MortgagebackecSecurities 756,15t 756,15t - 756,15t -
Other securitie 261,63: 261,63¢ - 237,47t 24,15¢
Loans held for sal 42E 42E - - 42t
Loans 3,434,17: 3,502,79; - - 3,502,79:
FHLB-NY stock 46,02t 46,02t - 46,02t -
Interest rate caf - - - - -
Interest rate swag 2,081 2,081 - 2,081 -
OREO 2,98t 2,98t - - 2,98t
Total asset $ 4,536,996 $ 460558 $ 33,48 $ 1,041,730 $ 3,530,36!
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 3,232,781 $ 3,253,26. $ 2,111,82! $ 1,141,431 $ =
Borrowings 1,012,12; 1,034,79 - 1,005,22! 29,57(
Total liabilities $ 424490. $ 4,288,060 $ 2,111,82! $ 2,146,66! $ 29,57(
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19. Derivative Financial Instruments

At December 31, 2014, the Company’s derivativerfoial instruments consisted of interest rate svaaqubat December 31, 2013, the Compardgrivative financi
instruments consisted of purchased options andeistteate swaps. The Company'’s interest rate sapsised to mitigate the Compasigxposure to rising inter
rates on a portion ($18.0 million) of its floatingte junior subordinated debentures that have &raxinal value of $61.9 million. Additionally, tf@ompany at time
may use interest rate swaps to mitigate the Compaxyosure to rising interest rates on its fixat loans.

The purchased options, which expired during 20ldrevused to mitigate the Compamyexposure to rising interest rates on its findri@ailities without state
maturities.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013 derivatives with mlmioed notional amount of $36.3 million and $11&d0lion, respectively, were not designated as hei
Derivatives with a combined notional amount of $lrillion and $11.2 million were designated as faitue hedges at December 31, 2014 and 2013, tesdg:
Changes in the fair value of the derivatives ndtigieated as hedges are reflected in “Net gainfiesa fair value adjustmentsh the Consolidated Statement:s
Income. The portion of the change in the fair eatdi the derivative designated as a fair value demdgich is considered ineffective is reflected et gain/loss fror
fair value adjustments” in the Consolidated Stat#sef Income.

The following table sets forth information regamglihe Company’s derivative financial instrument®atember 31, 2014:

At or for the year ended December 31, 2
Notional Net Carrying
Amount Value @)

(In thousands

Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) $ 36,32. $ (2,239
Interest rate swaps (hed 4,131 84
Interest rate swaps (hedc 10,34( (410

Total derivatives $ 50,79: $ (2,565

The following table sets forth information regaglithe Company’s derivative financial instrument®atember 31, 2013:

At or for the year ended December 31, 2
Notional Net Carrying
Amount Purchase Pric Value(®)
(In thousands

Interest rate caps (n-hedge) $ 100,00 $ 9,03t $ =
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) 18,00( - 1,681
Interest rate swaps (hedc 11,21° - 40C

Total derivatives $ 129,217 $ 9,03t $ 2,081
Q) Derivatives in a net positive position areareted as “Other assets” and derivatives in a ngadtiee position are recorded as “Other liabilitigsthe

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.ré&heere no unrealized losses on derivative findmesruments at December 31, 2014 and 2!
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The following table sets forth the effect of detiva instruments on the Consolidated Statemenksaafme for the periods indicated:

For the year ende
December 31

(In thousands 2014 2013 2012
Financial Derivatives
Interest rate caps (n-hedge) $ - % (18 $ (337)
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) (3,919 3,60: (1,927)
Interest rate swaps (hedc (124 29 -
Net Gain (loss®) $ (4,04) $ 3,61¢ $ (2,269)
(D) Net gains (losses) are recordec‘Net gain (losses) from fair value adjustm?” in the Consolidated Statements of Inco

20. New Authoritative Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 20%4to clarify that when an in substance repossessioforeclosure occurs, a creditor is considdetiave receive
physical possession of residential real estategutpgollateralizing a consumer mortgage loan, ugitimer (1) the creditor obtaining legal title teetresidential re
estate property upon completion of a foreclosuré2prthe borrower conveying all interest in theidestial real estate property to the creditor tbsfathat loai
through completion of a deed in lieu of foreclosarehrough a similar legal agreement. Additionathe amendments require interim and annual disotosf both (1
the amount of foreclosed residential real estabpguty held by the creditor and (2) the recordeg$tment in consumer mortgage loans collateraligedesidentic
real estate property that are in the process etcfosure according to local requirements of thdiegiple jurisdiction. ASU 201404 is effective for annual reporti
periods beginning after December 15, 2014. Adoptibthis update is not expected to have a mateffatt on the Company’consolidated results of operation
financial condition.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 which pilegi new guidance that supersedes the revenue iaogequirements in ASC Topic 605Revenu
Recognition”. The guidance requires an entity to recognize rexgoudepict the transfer of promised goods or ses/to customers in an amount that reflect
consideration to which the company expects to ligleshin exchange for those goods or servicess Quidance is effective for interim and annual répg period:
beginning after December 15, 2016. We are curresdbluating the impact of adopting this new guigana our consolidated results of operations andnfira
condition.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-11 whichretmehe authoritative accounting guidance under As8@ic 860 “Transfers and Servicingthe amendmen
require two accounting changes. First, the amentsnelmange the accounting for repurchasexsurity transactions to secured borrowing accogntSecond, fc
repurchase financing arrangements, the amendmeqtsre separate accounting for a transfer of anfii@ asset executed contemporaneously with a capsi
agreement with the same counterparty, which walulein secured borrowing accounting for the repase agreement. The amendments also require cadk
disclosures regarding repurchase agreements. Mieadments are effective for the first interim onaa period beginning after December 15, 2014.tiestiar
required to present changes in accounting for &ietiens outstanding on the effective date as a tatime-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of tiggnbing o
the period of adoption. Early adoption is prohidit€he amendments regarding disclosures for cefamsactions accounted for as a sale are reqgtarbd presente
for interim and annual periods beginning after Deler 15, 2014, and the disclosure for repurchaseeatents, securities lending transactions, andrebpse-to-
maturity transactions accounted for as securedtdmgs are required to be presented for annuabgeibeginning after December 15, 2014, and forimtperiod:
beginning after March 15, 2015. The disclosuresnaterequired to be presented for comparative perlmefore the effective date. We are currently eataig the
impact of adopting these amendments on our coraelidresults of operations and financial condition.
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In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-14 whioteads the authoritative accounting guidance und&t Aopic 310 “ReceivablesThe amendments requ
that a mortgage loan be derecognized and thateaatepther receivable be recognized upon fore@asthe follow conditions are met: (1) the loaesha governme
guarantee that is not separable from the loan édfmeclosure; (2) at the time of foreclosure, theditor has the intent to convey the real estat@grty to th
guarantor and make claim on the guarantee, ancrdlaitor has the ability to recover under thatrolaind (3) at the time of foreclosure, any amourthefclaim that i
determined on the basis of the fair value of retéte is fixed. Upon foreclosure, the separateratbheeivable should be measured based on the ambtimn loal
balance (principal and interest) expected to bevered from the guarantor. The amendments aretiefefor annual periods, and interim periods witthiese annu
periods, beginning after December 15, 2014. Estishould adopt the amendments in this Update usithgr a prospective transition method or a mod
retrospective transition method. Adoption of thjglate is not expected to have a material effecthenCompanys consolidated results of operations or final
condition.

21. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)
Selected unaudited quarterly financial data forfibeal years ended December 31, 2014 and 2012s&epted below:

2014 2013
4th 3rd 2nd 1st 4th 3rd 2nd 1st
(In thousands, except per share d¢

Quarterly operating data:

Interest incom $ 49,17 $ 49,177 $ 4956¢ $ 4921 $ 50,29« $ 4985 $ 50,298 $ 50,08¢
Interest expens 12,057 17,22( 12,74( 12,72« 13,05¢ 12,86¢ 12,99¢ 15,94(
Net interest incom 37,11« 31,95° 36,82¢ 36,48° 37,23¢ 36,98¢ 37,29¢ 34,14¢
Provision (benefit) for loan loss (3,197 (61€) (1,097) (1,119 1,00C 3,43t 3,50(C 6,00(
Other operating incomr (57€) 7,12° 1,98¢ 1,71C 1,064 94¢& 2,19¢ 5,34¢
Other operating expen: 21,68¢ 21,43} 20,62« 22,09! 18,89 19,05( 20,21 22,41¢
Income before incomtax expens: 18,04: 18,26 19,28: 17,22 18,40¢ 15,44: 15,78: 11,07¢
Income tax expens 6,98¢ 7,06( 7,59¢ 6,927 6,45¢ 6,024 6,15¢ 4,31¢
Net income $ 1105 $ 11200 $ 1168 $ 1029¢ $ 11,94¢ $ 9,421 $ 9,627 $ 6,75¢€
Basic earnings per common sh $ 03¢ $ 03¢ $ 03¢ $ 032 % 04C $ 03z $ 03z $ 0.22
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 03¢ $ 03¢ $ 03¢ $ 03¢ $ 04C $ 03z $ 03z $ 0.2Z
Dividends per common sha $ 0.1t $ 0.1t $ 0.1t $ 0.1t $ 0.1: $ 0.1 $ 0.1z $ 0.1:
Average common shares outstanding foi
Basic earnings per she 29,34 29,77: 30,05¢ 29,98 29,76: 29,77 30,21 30,44¢
Diluted earnings per sha 29,36¢ 29,79¢ 30,09( 30,02: 29,80: 29,80¢ 30,23¢ 30,48:

22. Parent Company Only Financial Information
Earnings of the Bank are recognized by the Hol@ogpany using the equity method of accounting. Agicgly, earnings of the Bank are recorded as as®s in th

Holding Company’s investment, any dividends wowduce the Holding Company’s investment in the Bamkl any changes in the Baskinrealized gain or loss
securities available for sale, net of taxes, wandtdease or decrease, respectively, the Holdinggaoryis investment in the Bank.
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The condensed financial statements for the Hol@ampany are presented below:

Condensed Statements of Financial Conditio

Assets:
Cash and due from ban
Securities available for sal

Other securities ($864 and $2,562 at fair valuesyamt tcthe fair value option at December 31, 2014 and 2

respectively’
Interest receivabl
Investment in subsidiarie
Goodwill
Other asset

Total asset

Liabilities:

Borrowings (at fair value pursuant to the fair vahptionat December 31, 2014 and 20.

Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stoc
Common stocl
Additional paic-in capital

Treasury stock, at average cost (2,126,772 shark$,407,343 eDecember 31, 2014 and 2013, respectiv

Retained earninc
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes

Total equity

Total liabilities and equit'

Condensed Statements of Incom

Dividends from the Ban
Interest income
Interest expens
Gain on sale of securiti¢
Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustme
Other operating expens
Income before taxes and equity in undistribiearnings of subsidial
Income tax benef
Income before equity in undistributed earningsudfsidiary
Equity in undistributed earnings of the Bank

Net income
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December 31

December 31

2014 2013
(Dollars in thousands
$ 7,74¢ % 16,52¢
1,15¢ 2,84¢
4 4
482,99¢ 449,58(
2,18t 2,18¢
4,402 4,35¢
$ 498,49: $ 475,49
$ 28,770 $ 29,57(
13,47¢ 13,39¢
42,24* 42,96¢
31E 31t
206,43" 201,90:
(37,22) (22,059
289,62: 263,74:
(2,907 (11,379
456,24° 432,53.
$ 498,49. $ 475,49'
For the years ended December
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands
20,00 $ 20,00 $ 20,00(
51z 59C 694
(1,039 (1,06€) (2,957)
- 17 -
77¢ (5,475 1,991
(78€) (621) (730
19,46¢ 13,44: 18,99¢
66€ 2,851 49¢
20,13« 16,30: 19,49¢
24,10t 21,45( 14,83
4423¢ $ 37,75. $ 34,33:




Condensed Statements of Cash Flov

Operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigealby operating activities
Equity in undistributed earnings of the Be
Net gain on sale of securiti
Deferred income tax (benefit) provisi
Fair value adjustments for financial assets financial liabilities
Stock based compensation expe
Net change in operating assets and liabil

Net cash provided by operating activit

Investing activities
Purchases of securities available for ¢
Proceeds from sales and calls of securities avaifab sale

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi

Financing activities
Purchase of treasury sto
Cash dividends pai
Stock options exercise

Net cash used in financing activiti

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents, end of !
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For the years ended December

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands

44,23¢  $ 37,75.  $ 34,33
(24,109 (21,450 (14,83Y
- @an -

17 (2,349 85¢
(779 5,47¢ (1,999
4,24¢ 3,06¢ 3,10¢
2,08¢ 1,74¢ 1,28
25,70¢ 24,22¢ 22,75t
(22) (23 (29
1,69¢ 517 -
1,671 494 (29)
(18,879 (14,157 (5,627)
(17,859 (15,619 (15,81))
56E 53¢ 95€
(36,159 (29,236 (20,489
(8,77¢) (4,51¢) 2,24z
16,52t 21,04: 18,79¢
7,74¢ 16,52 $ 21,04:




Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Flushing Financial Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséates of financial condition of Flushing Financ@brporation (a Delaware corporation) and subsie&(the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, ard¢lated consolidated statements of income, cdmpsve income, changes in stockholdexgiity and cas
flows for each of the three years in the periodeeh®ecember 31, 2014. These financial statemeetsha responsibility of the Compasymanagement. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBio(United States). Those standards requirevibgblar
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout whether the financial statements are fferaberial misstatement. An audit includes exangnion a te:
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and diselssn the financial statements. An audit alsduithes assessing the accounting principles usedsigmifican
estimates made by management, as well as evaluhgrayerall financial statement presentation. B&keve that our audits provide a reasonable Hasisur opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeaferred to above present fairly, in all mateespects, the financial position of Flushing Ficial Corporation ar
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013ftendesults of their operations and their cash $léar each of the three years in the period endeckBber 3:
2014, in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boédnited States), the Compasyinternal control o
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, basedriteria established in the 20i8ernal Control - Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQig aur report dated March 16, 2015 expressed analifigd opinion.

/s GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 16, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Flushing Financial Corporation

We have audited the internal control over financeggorting of Flushing Financial Corporation (a @eare corporation) and subsidiaries (the "Comparg$)o
December 31, 2014, based on criteria establishéideir2013 Internal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafribie
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Companylanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and i3 assessment
the effectiveness of internal control over finahecgporting, included in the accompanying ManagenseReport on Internal Control over Financial RepgrtiOu
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Camys internal control over financial reporting ben our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightr8d@nited States). Those standards require thatlare an
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoatakhether effective internal control over finaldieporting was maintained in all material respe@ur aud
included obtaining an understanding of internaltadrover financial reporting, assessing the risktta material weakness exists, testing and evadutite design ar
operating effectiveness of internal control basedhe assessed risk, and performing such otheeguoes as we considered necessary in the circucestaWe belie\
that our audit provides a reasonable basis foopurion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is a@ess designed to provide reasonable assurancelireggéhe reliability of financial reporting ande
preparation of financial statements for externalppees in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples. A companyg’ internal control over financ
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(tt) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbet transactions a
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) ideoveasonable assurance that transactions areleecas necessary to permit preparation of finhstéements |
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfes; and that receipts and expenditures of tmepemy are being made only in accordance with aizidibons o
management and directors of the company; and @)ige reasonable assurance regarding preventiotimedy detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could kan®terial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or det@isstatements. Also, projections of any evatuetf effectivenes
to future periods are subject to the risk that m@atmay become inadequate because of changesditions, or that the degree of complianveih the policies ¢
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maferespects, effective internal control over fioal reporting as of December 31, 2014, based riarie
established in the 2018ternal Control—Integrated Frameworgsued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidated financial st&tets of th
Company as of and for the year ended December034, 2nd our report dated March 16, 2015 expresseagualified opinion on those financial statements
/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 16, 2015
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Agunting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company carried out, under the supervisionwitidl the participation of the Company's managemigiiuding its Chief Executive Officer and CF
Financial Officer, an evaluation of the effectivesef the design and operation of the Company'slaisre controls and procedures (as defined in RB&L5(e
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as efethd of the period covered by this Annual Ref®ased upon that evaluation, the Chief Executivac&ffanc
Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of Debem31, 2014, the design and operation of thessodisre controls and procedures were effectiveiriguhe perio
covered by this Annual Report, there have beenhamges in the Company's internal control over firgreporting that have materially affected, o@ egasonab
likely to materially affect, the Company's intereahtrol over financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finah&eporting

Management is responsible for establishing and miaing adequate internal control over financialomtipg, and for performing an assessment o
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting as of December 31, 2014. Internal contrar financial reporting is defined in Rule 13afl%( 15d15(f)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act 8818 a process designed by, or under the superasi the Companyg’ principal executive and principal finan
officers and effected by the CompasyBoard of Directors, management and other per$otm@rovide reasonable assurance regarding thabiléy of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial stateiméor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaglcepted accounting principles. Internal cdnbreer financia
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(tt) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbet transactions a
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) ideorveasonable assurance that transactions anglegcas necessary to permit preparation of findstigements i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; and that receipts and expenditures of thmgamy are being made only in accordance with aisthibons o
management and directors of the Company; and (&Yige reasonable assurance regarding preventioimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, ug
disposition of the Company’s assets that could lzamveterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtyver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also, projections of any evéabmaot
effectiveness to future periods are subject toritlethat controls may become inadequate becaushasfges in conditions, or that the degree of ciampé with th
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management performed an assessment of the effeetisesf the Company’internal control over financial reporting as oédember 31, 2014 based u
criteria in Internal Control — Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohshe Treadway Commission (2013 Framew
(“COSQ”). Based on this assessment, managemenhuctad that the Comparg/internal control over financial reporting waseeffve as of December 31, 2014 be
on those criteria issued by COSO.

Grant Thornton LLP, the Company’s independent tegésl public accounting firm that audited the Conypa consolidated financial statements include
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has issued a tepothe effectiveness of the Compaiiternal control over financial reporting as adfdd@mber 31, 2014, as ste
in its report which appears on page 149.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace.

Other than the disclosures below, information rdijey the directors and executive officers of therpany appears in the CompasiyProxy Statement for t
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held May 19,20Proxy Statement”) under the captions “Board Nuees,” “Continuing Directors,”Executive Officers Wh
Are Not Directors” and “Meeting and Committees of tBoard of Directors — Audit Committe@hd is incorporated herein by this reference. midfon regardin
Section 16(a) beneficial ownership appears in the@any’s Proxy Statement under the caption “Sectigf@) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Complianesd it
incorporated herein by this reference.

Code of Ethics The Company has adopted a Code of Business CbaddcEthics that applies to all of its directafficers and employees. This cod:
publicly available on the Company’s website atpsittwww.snl.com/Cache/1001183751.PDF?Y=&0=PDF&D#8F1001183751&T=&IID=102398
Any substantive amendments to the code and any gfanwaiver from a provision of the code requiridisclosure under applicable SEC or NASDAQ rulds e
disclosed in a report on Form 8-K.

Audit Committee Financial ExperfThe Board of Directors of the Company has deteechithat Louis C. Grassi, the Chairman of the AGdimmittee, is ¢
“audit committee financial expert” as defined unttem 401(h) of Regulation &; and that he is independent as defined undeiicghie NASDAQ listing standarc
Mr. Grassi is a certified public accountant and rifoed fraud examiner.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation.

Information regarding executive compensation appéathe Proxy Statement under the caption “Exgeuilompensation&nd is incorporated herein by 1
reference.

Iltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andvlanagement and Related Stockholder Matters.

Information regarding security ownership of certéieneficial owners appears in the Proxy Statemeuemu the caption Stock Ownership of Certe
Beneficial Owners” and is incorporated herein kg teference.

Information regarding security ownership of managetrnappears in the Proxy Statement under the cap8tock Ownership of Managemen#hd i
incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence.

Information regarding certain relationships andated transactions and directors independence appeathe Proxy Statement under the cap
“Compensation Committee Interlocks and InsideriBigetion” and “Related Party Transactions” anéhiorporated herein by this reference.

Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Information regarding fees paid to the Companydependent auditor appears in the Proxy Statemelgrihe caption “Schedule of Fees to Independent
Auditors” and is hereby incorporated by this refee
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(@ 1. Financial Statements

The following financial statements are includedt@m 8 of this Annual Report and are incorporatecein by this reference:
« Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditionetdnber 31, 2014 and 20
« Consolidated Statements of Income for each oftiheetyears in the period ended December 31,
« Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomedtih of the three years in the period ended Deee8th 201+
« Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh¢ Equity for each of the three years in the periodeehDecember 31, 20:
« Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheofttree years in the period ended December 34,
« Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemt
« Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing

2. Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statement Schedules have been omittealibechey are not applicable or the required indtion is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statee
or Notes thereto included in Item 8 of this AnnRalport and are incorporated herein by this referenc
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3.

Exhibit
Numbel

Exhibits Required by Securities and Exchage Commission Regulation S-K

Description

4.2

10.1*
10.2*
10.3*
10.4*
10.5*
10.6*
10.7*
10.8*
10.9*
10.10*
10.11*
10.12
10.13
10.14*
10.15*
10.16*
10.17*
10.18*
10.19*
10.20*
10.21*
10.22*
10.23*
10.24*
10.25*
10.26*
10.27*
10.28
10.29*

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of Decemhe2@% by and between Flushing Financial Corponaimd Atlantic Liberty Financial Corp. (1
Certificate of Incorporation of Flushing Financ@dbrporation (1

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation |

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation (1

Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Rgrating Preferred Stock of Flushing FinancCorporation (6

Certificate of Increase of Shares Designated as$SArJunior Participating Preferred Stock of FlnghFinancial Corporation (1<

Amended and Restated -Laws of Flushing Financial Corporation (z

Certificate of Designation relating to the Fixed&®&umulative Perpetual Preferred Stock SeriesAB

Rights Agreement, dated as of September 8, 200@ebe Flushing Financial Corporation and Computaesiirust Company N.A., as Rights Age
which includes the form of Certificate of Increa$eShares Designated as Series A Junior Partiop&treferred Stock as Exhibit A, form of Right
Certificate as Exhibit B and the Summary of Rigbt®urchase Preferred Stock as Exhib(12)

Flushing Financial Corporation has outstandingatetbnc-term debt. None of such debt exceeds ten percdtitishing Financial Corporati’s total
assets; therefore, copies of constituent instrusnéetining the rights of the holders of such debtret included as exhibits. Copies of instrumevits
respect to such lor-term debt will be furnished to the Securities andttange Commission upon requ

Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreenmamtden Flushing Bank aiCertain Officers (20

Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreenmamtden Flushing Financial Corporation «Certain Officers (20

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betwleishikg Financial Corporation and JohnBuran (20)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betwleshifg Bank and John R. Buran (:

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betwleehifg Financial Corporation and Maria A. Grasso)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betwleshifg Bank and Maria A. Grasso (<

Flushing Bank Specified Officer Change in Contrel/&rance Policy (1€

Amended and Restated Employee Severance CompenBéio of Flushing Bank (-

Amended and Restated Outside Director Retirememt @I1)

Amended and Restated Flushing Bank Outside Dirdd¢derred Compensation Plan |

Amended and Restated Flushing Bank Supplementah@aincentive Plan (filed herewit

Form of Indemnity Agreement among Flushing Bankisking Financial Corporation, and each Directol

Form of Indemnity Agreement among Flushing Bankisking Financial Corporation, and Certain Offio@k

Employee Benefit Trust Agreement

Amendment to the Employee Benefit Trust Agreemah

Loan Document for Employee Benefit Trust

Guarantee by Flushing Financial Corporation

1996 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan of FlushingaRcial Corporation (€

1996 Stock Option Incentive Plan of Flushing FinahCorporation (7

Description of Outside Director Fee Arrangemen®)

Form of Outside Director Restricted Stock Awardtee{9)

Form of Outside Director Restricted Stock Unit Adidetter (19)

Form of Outside Director Stock Option Grant Le{@r

Form of Employee Restricted Stock Award Letter

Form of Employee Restricted Stock Unit Award Le{&2)

Form of Employee Stock Option Award Letter

Amended and Restated Flushing Financial Corpar&@®5 Omnibus Incentive Plan (1

Amendment to Flushing Financial Corporation 2005n@ms Incentive Plan (1¢

Annual Incentive Plan for Executives and Senioii¢@ffs (19)

153




10.30
10.31
10.32
10.33
211
23.1
311
31.2
32.1

32.2

Form of Amendment to Employee Stock Option Awarttére(21)

Form of Amendment to Director Stock Option Awardtkee (21)

Lease agreement between Flushing Bank and Rextazp BPE LLC (23

Flushing Financial Corporation 2014 Omnibus IncenfPlan (23

Subsidiaries information incorporated herein berefice to Part— Subsidiary Activities

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking (filed herewith’

Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officeilétl herewith)

Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Saes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officeil¢fd herewith)

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 ofSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Offic
(furnished herewith

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 ofSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Offic
(furnished herewith

101.INS XBRL Instance Document (filed herewit

101.SCF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed héte

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuingiled herewith)
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docuréiiied herewith)
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documeriefiherewith)
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenntfiled herewith

*Indicates compensatory plan or arrangement.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed witle tRegistration Statement on Fori-1 filed September 1, 1995, Registration Nc-96488.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1
Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-K for the year ended December 31, 1€
Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withriroS-8 filed May 31, 2002

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Fol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Fol(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Foé-K filed December 23, 200!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Foé-K filed September 11, 200

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Foé-K filed September 26, 200

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrircE-K filed December 23, 200:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Fol(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Appendices filed Witbxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed April 7, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-k for the year ended December 31, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or lth@lSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, the Compasyduly caused this report or amendment thereto
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatp authorized, in New York, New York, on March 2§15.

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION

By /S/JOHN R. BURAN
John R. Bural
President and CE

POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned directors and officers of Rhghrinancial Corporation (the “Companytiereby severally constitute and appoint John RaBum:
David Fry as our true and lawful attorneys and &gesach acting alone and with full power of sub8tin and resubstitution, to do any and all things in our narim
the capacities indicated below which said John i®aB or David Fry may deem necessary or advisabéaable the Company to comply with the Securkieshang
Act of 1934, and any rules, regulations and requinets of the Securities and Exchange Commissioopimmection with the report on Form KQ-or amendmel
thereto, including specifically, but not limited, tpower and authority to sign for us in our nameshe capacities indicated below the report on FafK, or
amendment thereto; and we hereby approve, ratdycanfirm all that said John R. Buran or David Bhall do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report on Form KQ-or amendment thereto, has been signed by thewiolg
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicate

Signature Title Date

/SIJOHN R. BURAN Director, President (Principal Executive Offic March 3, 201t
John R. Burai

/SIJOHN E. ROE, SF Director, Chairmai March 3, 201¢
John E. Roe, S

/SIDAVID FRY Treasurer (Principal Financial and Accounting Gifix March 3, 201¢
David Fry

/S/ JAMES D. BENNET1 Director March 3, 201¢

James D. Benne

/SISTEVEN J. D'IORIC Director March 3, 201¢
Steven J. D'loric
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/SILOUIS C. GRASS

Louis C. Grass

/SISAM S. HAN

Sam S. Hal

/SIMICHAEL J. HEGARTY

Michael J. Hegart

/SIJOHN J. MCCABE

John J. McCab

/SIALFRED A. DELLIBOVI

Alfred A. DelliBovi

/SIDONNA M. O'BRIEN

Donna M. O'Brier

/SIMICHAEL J. RUSSC

Michael J. Russ

/SITHOMAS S. GULOTTA

Thomas S. Gulott

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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March 3, 201¢

March 3, 201¢

March 3, 201¢

March 3, 201¢

March 3, 201¢

March 3, 201t

March 3, 201¢

March 3, 201t




Exhibit 10.11
FLUSHING BANK
SUPPLEMENTAL SAVINGS INCENTIVE PLAN

(Restated as of February 1, 2015)

Unless otherwise required by the context, the alpitd terms used herein without definition arardef in the Flushing Bank 401(k) Savings Plan (¢l (k) Plan”)
and shall have the same meanings as used therein.

DEFINITIONS

The following terms shall have the meanings sehfbelow when used in this Supplemental Savingsritice Plan (the “Plan”):

@)

(b)

(©

Deferral Credi- the amount credited pursuant to the Plan equai)ta Participar's compensation deferred pursuant to the F*Elective Deferra
Credits”) plus (B) effective January 1, 2008, theoant of elective deferrals that would have beeattrdouted to a Participant’s account under the 401
(k) Plan but for the limitations imposed by Sectitid of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as astk(ttie “Code”), and that would otherwise be
required to be returned to the Particip¢Makeup Deferral Credi”).

Matching Credi- the amount credited pursuant to the Plan by FlgsBank (the“Bank’) on behalf of a Participant equal to (A) 50% of
Participant’s Elective Deferral Credit, or suchastpercentage of the Participant’s Elective DefeZradit as may be determined on a prospective
basis by resolution of the Board of Directors & Bank (“Regular Matching Credits”) plus (B) effeetiJanuary 1, 2008, the amount of matching
contributions that would have been contributed Radicipant’'s account under the 401(k) Plan buttie limitations imposed by Section 415 of the
Code and that would otherwise be required to bieited (Makeup Matching Credi”).

Supplemental Cred- the amount credited pursuant to the Plan by thé&Bamnal to (A) the amount of contributions (but fafeitures) that woulc

have been contributed to a Participant’'s accoudeuthe Flushing Financial Corporation Stock-BaBeafit Sharing Plan prior to May 1, 2008 or
under the profit sharing (but not retirement ac¢puamponent of the 401(k) Plan after April 30, 8@@ollectively, the “Profit Sharing Plan”) but for
the limitations imposed by the Code, including withlimitation, Section 401(a)(17) of the Code, t8et415 of the Code, and the exclusion from
Compensation (as defined in the Profit Sharing Réiamounts deferred under this Plan (collectiyéte “Code Limitations”), plus (B) effective
January 1, 2008, the amount of retirement accoumtributions and the amount of forfeitures that ldcwave been allocated to a Participant’s
account under the Profit Sharing Plan or 401 (ki Plat for the limitations imposed by Section 415%h& Code, in each case in excess of the amounts
permitted to be contributed to the Profit SharitgnRand 401(k) Plar




(d) Grandfathered Portic— the amount credited to a Participant under the Béaof December 31, 2004, to the extent vested @seember 31, 200-
plus subsequent earnings (or losses) creditedregiiiect to such amount less subsequent distritsubibany such amount. The Bank shall separately
account for the Grandfathered Portion of the an®argdited to a Participant under the P

(e) Non-Grandfathered Portic— all amounts credited to a Participant under the Btaer than the Grandfathered Porti

() Section 409/- Section 409A of the Code and applicable TreasuguRgions thereunde

1. PURPOSE OF THE PLAN

The purpose of this Plan is (i) to provide a pracedvhereby certain senior officers of the Bankmenitted to defer a portion of their compensatiad to receive
Matching Credits with respect to such deferrals, @htb provide Credits for certain senior offisawhose benefits under the Profit Sharing Plar0&sl4 Plan are
subject to the Code Limitations. It is intended: tie Plan be an unfunded plan of deferred compienseovering a select group of highly compensateshanageme
employees.

2. EFFECTIVE DATE

The Plan first became effective on January 1, E3#iDwas amended and restated at various times. RHstatement is effective as of February 1, 2015.
3. ELIGIBILITY

All full-time senior vice presidents level Il or ae of the Bank who have completed at least onegfeservice shall be Participants in the Planaddition, all senior
vice presidents level 11l and vice presidents & Bank who were Participants on January 31, 20&b ebntinue to be Participants in the Plan; predidhowever, that
if any such senior vice president level Ill or vigesident (other than a senior vice president léwe above) does not elect to defer compensatiuther this Plan for
2015 or any subsequent calendar year in accordaitit¢he first two paragraphs of Paragraph 4 bekweh senior vice president level 11l or vice pdesit shall no
longer be a Participant in the Plan for such yeany subsequent year.

4. TYPES OF CREDITS

Deferral Credits Each Participant shall be entitled to defer camspéon under this Plan. The maximum amount tiRdréicipant may defer from his compensation for
a calendar year shall be equal to 15% of his Admhpensation, less 6% of his compensation asetefor purposes of pre-tax contributions underdig(k)

Plan. Actual Compensation for this purpose shathma Participant’'s base compensation for a calemaa without reduction for any pre-tax contrilou to the 401

(k) Plan or to any other pension or welfare planntaéned by the Bank, and without regard to anythtion on compensation imposed by Section 40173)¢1 the

Code. The amount by which a Participant defergebispensation for a calendar year under this Plalh Isé credited by the Bank on behalf of such Bigaint

(“Elective Deferral Credits”).




All deferrals of compensation agreed to by a Pipdiat for a calendar year shall be in writing dioian prepared by the Bank. Each such deferralieleshall be
entered into before the beginning of the calenéar yo which it relates, except that any person firsbbecomes eligible to participate in the Pilaming a calendar
year may elect within 30 days of first becomingiblie to defer a portion of his compensation (as/juled in this Plan) earned after the date of slebtion. All
elections shall be irrevocable for the duratiothef year or the remaining portion of the year fbick the election is made.

Effective January 1, 2008, each Participant shsdl be credited with the amount of elective defsrilaat would have been contributed to the Paditljs account
under the 401(k) Plan but for the limitations impody Section 415 of the Code and that would otlserlye required to be returned to the Particigdiakeup
Deferral Credits”).

Elective Deferral Credits and Makeup Deferral Credite referred to as Deferral Credits.

Matching Credits In addition to a Participarst’'Deferral Credit, in each calendar year the Bduall sllso credit each Participant in the Plan aitidatching Credit in &
amount equal to 50% (or such other percentagetasieed by the Board of Directors of the Bank ger@spective basis) of such Participant’'s Elecbederral
Credit for such calendar year (“Regular Matchingdiss).

Effective January 1, 2008, each Participant slisdl be credited with the amount of matching contidns that would have been contributed to a Hpeitt’'s account
under the 401(k) Plan but for the limitations impody Section 415 of the Code and that would otlserlye required to be forfeited (“Makeup Matchingd@ts”).

Regular Matching Credits and Makeup Matching Credigeferred to as Matching Credits.
Supplemental Creditsin addition to Deferral Credits and Matching Ctegdihe Bank shall also credit each ParticipatihénPlan with a number of phantom shares

(“Phantom Shares”) of common stock of Flushing Raial Corporation (“Common Stock”) equal to the renof shares of Common Stock that would have been
credited to the Participant’s account under thditPsharing Plan but for the Code Limitations.

Effective January 1, 2008, each Participant shsdl be credited with the amount of retirement aoct@ontributions and forfeitures that would haverballocated to a
Participant’'s account under the Profit Sharing RIaa01(k) Plan but for the limitations imposed®sction 415 of the Code.

These additional credits shall be referred to ggpunental Credits.




5. TIME OF CREDITING; EARNINGS

All Deferral Credits, Matching Credits, and Supplerta Credits (collectively referred to as “Credjtaiade on behalf of a Participant pursuant to Rapdg4 above
shall be credited by the Bank as an item of indi#ries of the Bank to the Participant. A ParticijsaBtective Deferral Credit shall be credited te tharticipant as a
fixed dollar amount on the date that the defer@dmensation with respect to which such Credit angeuld have been paid by the Bank to the Partitigizut for
such deferral). A Participant’s Makeup Deferral @revill be credited on the date such amounts watleerwise have been required to be returned t@éntcipant.
Each Regular Matching Credit shall be credited faseal dollar amount at the same time as the EledDieferral Credit to which it relates. Each Mak&datching
Credit will be credited on the date such amountldiotherwise have been required to be forfeite@ahEBupplemental Credit shall be credited at theesimre as the
contributions or forfeitures would have been altedaunder the Profit Sharing Plan or 401(k) Plan.

Prior to July 1, 1991 all Deferral Credits and MaighCredits accrued interest, compounded from mtmthonth on the basis of the balance of such &¢plius
accrued interest) on the first day of the precediogth at a rate determined by the Board of Tresté¢he Flushing Savings Bank (predecessor t®#rk) at the
beginning of each calendar year.

For the period from July 1, 1991 through Decemh&®7, all Deferral Credits and Matching Creditg] all accrued interest thereon, were deemed iovested in
one or more of the investment funds offered byreetent System Fund, Inc. or in such other fundsexe specified by the Bank from time to time, inltiples of
10%, as directed from time to time no more freglyeiian once each calendar quarter by the resgePwvticipant.

Effective December 3, 2007, all Deferral Creditd datching Credits, and all accrued interest andiegs thereon, shall be deemed to be investedéroomore of
the investments funds designated as permitted timezgs by the Bank from time to time, as directednftime to time by the respective Participant (it periods
prior to March 1, 2008, no more frequently than osaeh quarter) in accordance with rules and praesdestablished from time to time by the Bank.

Supplemental Credits shall be deemed to be investeldsively in Common Stock, provided, howeveattin the event of a transaction described in itisé paragraph
of Paragraph 13, Supplemental Credits shall be ddenvested in the manner set forth in such papigra

Participants shall be credited, on a daily bagisf¢@ periods prior to March 1, 2008, on at leaguarterly basis), with the earnings (or losses§urh deemed
investments.

6. VESTING

A Participant’s Deferral Credits (and earnings ¢oer) shall be 100% vested. Matching Credits (andirgs thereon) and Supplemental Credits (and egsrilrereon)
made on behalf of a Participant shall become 108%ed upon the Participant’s death while employeBlbshing Financial Corporation (the “Holding Coangy”),
the Bank or any Related Company, or upon a Chah@emtrol (as defined in Paragraph 13) while emptbpy the Holding Company, the Bank, or a Related
Company, and otherwise shall vest in accordande tvé vesting schedule under the 401(k) Plan oPtbét Sharing Plan, as the case may be, takitmy@ocount any
service for vesting purposes that is recognizecutite 401(k) Plan or the Profit Sharing Planhasdase may be. If a Participant terminates emméoy (for reasons
other than death, retirement or disability) athaetivhen he is less than 100% vested in his Matdbiedits or Supplemental Credits, the non-vestetiggoof such
Matching Credits (and earnings thereon) and/or Supehtal Credits (and earnings thereon) shall atitha be forfeited, and such forfeiture shall betrestored,
irrespective of whether the Participant again beeoan employee of the Holding Company, the BardngrRelated Company.




7. METHOD OF PAYMENT

The aggregate amount of a Participant’s Deferratl®s and the vested portion of his Matching Creatitd Supplemental Credits (including all earningslited
thereon) shall be paid to the Participant in thenfof a cash lump sum within sixty (60) days follog/ his termination of employment with the Holdi@gmpany, the
Bank and any Related Company, unless the Particglacts to receive his benefits in one of theofelhg manners: (i) in the form of a cash lump suithiw sixty (60)
days following the last day of the calendar yeawinich occurs his termination of employment; (ii)substantially equal annual installments (orhim ¢ase of electiol
made prior to January 1, 2002, substantially equatterly installments) over a period of five (5)fewer years commencing within sixty (60) daysdaing the
Participant’s termination of employment, and, #akd by the Participant, with any unpaid instafitegayable in a lump sum within sixty (60) dayeiathe
Participant’s death or; (i) with respect to DetdrCredits and Matching Credits credited on orrafeuary 1, 2010, in a specified year which isast two years after
the first day of the calendar year in which sucloants were credited (i.e., a payment no earlien tremuary 1, 2012 for Deferral Credits and Matcl@nedits credite
during 2010 pursuant to a deferral election mad#0®0). An election to have benefits paid undaus (jii) above shall be specified as a dollaraménot to exceed
the Participant’s vested account balance of Ddfémadits and Matching Credits credited with respiethe applicable deferral year) or as a percentatpich may be
less than 100%) of the Participant’s vested accbaltstnce of Deferral Credits and Matching Crediglited with respect to the applicable deferral yeaeach case
reflecting earnings and losses credited with reisiheceto). In the event the Participartrmination of employment occurs before the paytrgear specified pursua
to clause (iii) above, payment of amounts electadku clause (iii) above shall instead be made wishity (60) days following the Participant’s termation of
employment. Portions of a Participant’s vestedant balance which are not eligible for paymentarradause (iii) above (i.e. those attributable tp@emental
Credits and to Matching Credits that were not veatedf the payment date in the specified year) Slegbayable in the form of a cash lump sum wilixty (60) days
following the Participant’s termination of employntainless the Participant has elected payment widese (i) or (ii) above for such amounts. He tase of the
Grandfathered Portion, such election must be mgderitten notice delivered to the Bank at leastlt#®we12) months prior to such termination of empl@nt and
shall indicate whether payment of any unpaid bésefiall be made in a lump sum upon the Participaegth. In the case of the Non-Grandfatheretid?or
attributable to Deferral Credits, Matching CreditsSoipplemental Credits credited with respect toGalgndar year, such election must be made inngritrior to the
beginning of the calendar year with respect to Wisiech Deferral Credits, Matching Credits or Supgetal Credits are credited (or, in the case ofrddizant who
first becomes eligible to participate in the Plaminlg a calendar year, within 30 days of first beagy eligible to participate), shall indicate whettany unpaid benef
shall be made in a lump sum upon the Participatg&h, and shall be irrevocable; except that poidhe Participant’s termination of employment, Begticipant and
the Employer may agree to change the method of payof the Non-Grandfathered Portion provided tfipsuch agreement is made at least one year farifve date
on which the Non-Grandfathered Portion is schedtddak paid, or in the case of installment paymeoris year prior to the date on which the affeatsthliment is
scheduled to be paid, (ii) the redesignated paymhatet for the NorGsrandfathered Portion or installment payment, asctise may be, is no less than five years aft
date on which such Non-Grandfathered Portion daliment payment would otherwise be paid, and i@ change in method of payment may not take teffietil 12
months following the date of the agreement makimghchange.




During the period of any installment distributidhe balance of funds owed to such former Participhall be deemed to be invested by the Bank inrdenice with
the provisions set forth in Paragraph 5 above &g Would be applicable to a Participant who corgthto be employed by the Bank. The amount of eagtaliment
shall be equal to the total value of a Particiabteferral Credits and the vested portion of hisdWiaitg Credits and Supplemental Credits (includithg@anings
credited thereon) on the relevant installment payrdate (or, in the case of installments paid paranuary 1, 2008, the tenth (10th) day pridhéorelevant
installment payment date), divided by the total hemof remaining installment payments elected. Fadicipant’s account in the Plan shall be debiyethe amount
of any payment made to the Participant from hi®ant Each installment payment under this Pardgvaghall be treated as a separate payment foogespf
Section 409A.

Notwithstanding any election by a Participant téed@ayment of benefits following termination of ployment, in the event that (i) a Participant hasrenination of
employment (for any reason) within three (3) yesdter a Change of Control, or (ii) a Change of @amiccurs at any time after a Participant’s tertion of
employment, the aggregate amount of the Particgp&wferral Credits and the vested portion of higd¥iang Credits and Supplemental Credits (includimgvested
portion of all earnings credited thereon) whichédaet previously been paid to such Participant sfeapaid to the Participant in the form of a ckshp sum within
thirty (30) days following the Participant’s termation of employment (in the case of clause (i))her Change of Control (in the case of clause {i)pvided, however,
that the payment of the Non-Grandfathered Portiail 10t be accelerated and shall continue to letipaaccordance with the Participant’s applicgtagment
election if (A) the Change of Control does not ditage a “change of control” for purposes of Sect#tD9A or (B) in the case of clause (i), the temion of
employment does not occur within two (2) yearsréfie Change of Control.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thigd&gaph 7: (i) with respect to the M-Grandfathered Portion, a Participant’'s terminatbemployment shall not be
deemed to have occurred for purposes of any pmvisi this Plan providing for the payment of anycamts upon or following a termination of employmantess
such termination is also a “separation from seffaéthin the meaning of Code Section 409A); anjlifia Participant is a “specified employeefthin the meaning ¢
Section 409A as determined by the Bank’'s Employeecits Committee in accordance with Section 408d ihany amounts (other than amounts payable fiwm
Grandfathered Portion) are payable under this &eaccount of the Participant’s “separation fromviee” within the meaning of Section 409A (othearthon account
of death), then any amounts that would otherwispéié, or in the case of installment payouts conoada be paid, to the Participant under this Pagatgi7 within six
months of such separation from service (other Hraounts payable from the Grandfathered Portiorl) abtomatically be deferred and paid, or in theecaf
installment payouts commence to be paid, on thensmth anniversary of such separation from serfacéhe date of the Participant’s death, if eaylier




8. BENEFICIARY

Each Participant may, at any time, designate aftoéamy to receive his Deferral Credits and vestéatching Credits and Supplemental Credits undePtha
(including all earnings credited thereon) in thergvwof his death prior to all such amounts beinid pahim. Such designation of beneficiary shatidree effective
when received by the Bank, and shall be on a fawaiged by or otherwise acceptable to the Bank.

In the event of the death of a Participant eitlr@argo designating a beneficiary pursuant to Bésagraph 8, or concurrent with or after the deésuch beneficiary,
in the event of such beneficiary’s death beforéshmaid all of the amounts due to him as a redithe Participant’s death, such amounts shall I jpethe estate of
the later to die of the Participant or his benefigi provided, however, that in the event thatRheticipant provides for a contingent beneficiang auch contingent
beneficiary is surviving at the time of the latétlee death of the Participant or his primary bemafy, such amount shall be paid to such contibhgeneficiary. A
Participant may designate a trust as a beneficiary.

9. NONASSIGNABILITY

A Participant’s or beneficiary’s right to any Credaccumulated hereunder (including any earninedited thereon) shall not be transferable or aabign except by
reason of the laws of descent and distribution.

10. NO EQUITABLE OR SECURITY RIGHT CREATE D

The Holding Company or the Bank, by determinatibthe Board of Directors of the Bank, may enteoiah agreement with another organization to haddéferred
funds and administer the Plan in accordance watriles and procedures outlined herein. Notwitltitenthe foregoing, no Participant or beneficiangitted to
receive Credits (including earnings credited theyamder this Plan shall have any equitable orrgaights in any specific assets of the Holdingn@pany or the
Bank, and the rights of Participants or their bgfies under this Plan shall not be greater tharrights of unsecured general creditors of thieliig Company or
the Bank.

All Credits (including all earnings credited then¢shall constitute general assets of the Holdingy@any or the Bank and neither a Participant ngrdasignated
beneficiary shall have any rights in or against ampunts held by the Holding Company or the Bankraslits under this Plan. Credits (including alinéags credited
thereon) may not be encumbered or assigned byt@ipant or any beneficiary.




11. EFFECT OF DETERMINATION

If any amounts deferred pursuant to the Plan aredon a “determination’within the meaning of Section 1313(a) of the Cadd)ave been includible in gross incc
by a Participant prior to payment of such amountden the Plan, such amounts shall be immediatetiytpasuch Participant, notwithstanding his deflearad payment
elections.

12. TAX WITHHOLDING

If upon the crediting or payment of any benefitdemthe Plan, the Bank or any related employel slealequired to withhold any amounts with respgectuch
benefits by reason of any federal, state or laaldws, rules or regulations, then the Bank ohsraployer shall be entitled to deduct and withtsaldh amounts fro
any such benefits. In any event, the recipienuchsenefits shall make available to the Bank chmployer, promptly when requested by the Bartk@employer,
sufficient funds or other property to meet the iegments of any withholding; furthermore, the Bamksuch employer shall be entitled to take andai#h such steps
as it may deem advisable in order to have the ategequired to be withheld made available to itafiany funds or property payable to the recip@rthe benefits,
whether under the Plan or otherwise.

13. CHANGE OF CONTROL

In the event of a merger, acquisition or other oaafe transaction as a result of which the ComntookSs no longer outstanding or the Bank or thédithg Company
survives as a subsidiary of another entity, eaehesbf Phantom Stock credited as Supplemental Grelall be converted to a fixed dollar amount étuthe fair
market value of the cash, securities, and/or qthgperty payable in the merger or other transadtidhe holder of a share of Common Stock, andetifear
Supplemental Credits shall be deemed to be invastibd same manner as Deferral Credits and MatdBiedits.

For purposes of this Plan, a “Change of Controlanse

@) the acquisition of all or substantially all of tassets of the Bank or the Holding Company by amgqueor entity, or by any persons or entities ax
in concert; ol
(b) the occurrence of any event if, immediately follog/isuch event, a majority of the members of ther@o&Directors of the Bank or the Holdil

Company or of any successor corporation shall sbo$ipersons other than Current Members (for tpesposes, a “Current Member” shall mean
any member of the Board of Directors of the BankherHolding Company as of the effective date efBank’s conversion from the mutual to the
capital stock form of ownership, and any succes$arCurrent Member whose nomination or electionldeen approved by a majority of the Curi
Members then on the Board of Directors)

(c) the acquisition of beneficial ownership, directlyimdirectly (as provided in Rule 1-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 “Act”), or any
successor rule), of 25% or more of the total comtbivoting power of all classes of stock of the Bankhe Holding Company by any person or
group deemed a person under Section 13(d)(3) oAtkieor




(d) approval by the stockholders of the Bank or thediihgg Company of an agreement providing for the reegg consolidation of the Bank or t
Holding Company with another corporation wheregtoekholders of the Bank or the Holding Companymediately prior to the merger or
consolidation, would not beneficially own, directly indirectly, immediately after the merger or solidation, shares entitling such stockholders to
50% or more of the total combined voting powerlbEsses of stock of the surviving corporati

14. CHOICE OF LAW
This Plan shall be construed in accordance witha¥vs of the State of New York, without referencesonflicts of law principles.
15. MISCELLANEOUS

(a) The Plan shall be administered by the F's Employee Benefits Committee. The decision of SLemmittee with respect to any questions arisin
to the interpretation of this Plan, including tleerability of any and all of the provisions thdreshall be final, conclusive and bindir

(b) The Bank reserves the right to modify this Plamfriime to time or to terminate the Plan entirelyaayion of the Board of Directors of the Bal
provided, however, that (i) no modification or témation of this Plan shall operate to reduce anmalready credited to a Participant under the Plan,
or to reduce the right to future earnings creditset forth in Paragraph 5, unless the affecteticRent consents; and (ii) no modification or
termination may accelerate the payment of the Nmam@fathered Portion of amounts credited to antiddaant or beneficiary under the Plan except
as permitted by Section 409

(c) No amounts owed hereunder shall be deemed a depasithecking or savings accot



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIN&GRM

We have issued our reports dated March 16, 2015, respect to the consolidated financial statemamdisinternal control over financial reporting indal in the
Annual Report of Flushing Financial Corporationform 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014h&/eby consent to the incorporation by referencsaif
reports in the Registration Statements of Fluskinmgncial Corporation on Forms S-8 (File Nos. 32®8 effective October 16, 1995; 333-125358, eiffedlay 31,
2005; 333-136669, effective August 16, 2006, 338185, effective May 23, 2008, 333-151187, effechay 23, 2008, 333-163010, effective November 9,200
333-176064, effective August 4, 2011, 333-1887Tectdve May 22, 2013, and 333-198021, effective Bstgll, 2014), and on Form S-3 (File No. 333-195182
effective April 25, 2014).

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 16, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John R. Buran, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlushing Financial Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a materialdacimit to state a material fact necessary to nlaestatements
made, in light of the circumstances under whicthstatements were made, not misleading with respebe period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all material redpdbe financial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preseint¢his annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined imd&h@ge Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control dwamcial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoitss designed under our supervision, to ensatentlaterial
information relating to the registrant, includirig consolidated subsidiaries, is made known toyustiers within those entities, particularly durithg period in
which this annual report is being prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over financigomting, or caused such internal control over fmalreporting to be designed under our supervjgioprovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynahttial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeiterally
accepted accounting principles;

c¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presentibisiannual report our conclusions about the &ffesess of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofrileéthe period covered by this annual report dasesuch evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this annual report any changeérdgistrant’s internal control over financial refpmy that occurred during the registrant’s moserg quarter that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likelyrtaterially affect, the registrant’s internal cahtver financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial reporting, tetregistrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registeaintiard of directors (or persons performing thevedent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weas®s in the design or operation of internal comvel financial reporting which are reasonablyliiikt® adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal controls ofieancial
reporting.

Dated: March 16, 201 By: /s/John R. Bura
John R. Buran
President and Chief Executive Offic



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David Fry, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlushing Financial Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a materialdacimit to state a material fact necessary to nlaestatements
made, in light of the circumstances under whicthstatements were made, not misleading with respebe period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all material redpdbe financial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preseint¢his annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined imd&h@ge Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control dwamcial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoitss designed under our supervision, to ensatentlaterial
information relating to the registrant, includirig consolidated subsidiaries, is made known toyustiers within those entities, particularly durithg period in
which this annual report is being prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over financigomting, or caused such internal control over fmalreporting to be designed under our supervjgioprovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynahttial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeiterally
accepted accounting principles;

c¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presentibisiannual report our conclusions about the &ffesess of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofrileéthe period covered by this annual report dasesuch evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this annual report any changeérdgistrant’s internal control over financial refpmy that occurred during the registrant’s moserg quarter that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likelyrtaterially affect, the registrant’s internal cahtver financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial reporting, tetregistrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registeaintiard of directors (or persons performing thevedent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weas®s in the design or operation of internal comver financial reporting which are reasonablyljiikte adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal controls ofieancial
reporting.

Dated: March 16, 201 By: /s/David Fry
David Fry
Senior Executive Vice President, Treasurer and
Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Flushingdticial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Form KGer the year ending December 31, 2014 as fileith tie
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateh@he “Report”), I, John R. Buran, Chief Execati@fficer of the Corporation, certify, pursuantl®U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 90&darbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knogéed

(1) The Report fully complies with the requivents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repoitlygpresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the @ogpion.

By: /s/John R. Buran
John R. Buran

Chief Executive Officer
March 16, 2015



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Flushingdticial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Form KGer the year ending December 31, 2014 as fileith tie
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@h@he “Report”), |, David Fry, Chief Financial ffer of the Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18LC. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tHeaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requivents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repoitlygpresents, in all material respects, the firahcondition and results of operations of the @ogpion.

By: /s/David Fry
David Fry

Chief Financial Officer
March 16, 2015



